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Explanatory Note:

        This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2008, which was
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 20, 2008 (the "Original Filing"), is being filed to provide the information
required by Part III of this Form 10-K/A. As a result of this amendment, (1) the certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 filed as exhibits to the Original Filing, have been re-executed and re-filed as of the date of this Form 10-K/A; and
(2) a revised Consent of our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated January 16, 2009, relating to its reports dated November 20,
2008 included in this Form 10/K-A relating to the consolidated and combined financial statements of Tyco Electronics Ltd. and subsidiaries and
the effectiveness of Tyco Electronics Ltd. and subsidiaries' internal control over financial reporting, is being filed. Accordingly, the exhibits
listed under Item 15 of Part IV of this Form 10-K/A are being updated to reflect the consent and new certifications described above.

        For the convenience of the reader, this Form 10-K/A sets forth the Original Filing in its entirety and, no attempt has been made in this
Form 10-K/A to modify or update the disclosures in the Original Filing except as described above. This Form 10-K/A continues to describe
conditions as of the date of the Original Filing, and the disclosures contained herein have not been updated to reflect events, results or
developments that occurred after the Original Filing, or to modify or update those disclosures affected by subsequent events. Among other
things, forward-looking statements made in the Original Filing have not been revised to reflect events, results or developments that occurred or
facts that became known to us after the date of the Original Filing, and such forward-looking statements should be read in conjunction with our
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission subsequent to the filing of the Original Filing.

ii
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 SPECIAL NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

        We have made forward-looking statements in this Annual Report, including in the sections entitled "Business," "Risk Factors," "Legal
Proceedings," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," and "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk," that are based on our management's beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to our
management. Forward-looking statements include, among others, the information concerning our possible or assumed future results of
operations, business strategies, financing plans, competitive position, potential growth opportunities, potential operating performance
improvements, the effects of competition, and the effects of future legislation or regulations. Forward-looking statements include all statements
that are not historical facts and can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as the words "believe," "expect," "plan,"
"intend," "anticipate," "estimate," "predict," "potential," "continue," "may," "should," or the negative of these terms or similar expressions.

        Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in
these forward-looking statements. You should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. We do not have any intention or
obligation to update forward-looking statements after we file this report except as required by law.

        The risk factors discussed in "Risk Factors" and other risks identified in the Annual Report could cause our results to differ materially from
those expressed in forward-looking statements. There may be other risks and uncertainties that we are unable to predict at this time or that we
currently do not expect to have a material adverse effect on our business.

iii
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 PART I

ITEM 1.    BUSINESS

Overview

        Tyco Electronics Ltd. ("we," "Tyco Electronics," or the "Company") is a leading global provider of engineered electronic components,
network solutions, undersea telecommunication systems, and wireless systems. We design, manufacture, and market products for customers in
industries ranging from automotive, appliance, and aerospace and defense to telecommunications, computers, and consumer electronics. Our
products are produced in over 100 manufacturing sites in approximately 25 countries. With nearly 8,000 engineers and worldwide
manufacturing, sales, and customer service capabilities, Tyco Electronics' commitment is our customers' advantage.

        Tyco Electronics Ltd. was incorporated in Bermuda in fiscal 2000 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tyco International Ltd. ("Tyco
International"). For the period following its incorporation, Tyco Electronics Ltd. did not engage in any significant business activities and held
minimal assets. In connection with our separation from Tyco International, the equity interests in the entities that hold all of the assets and
liabilities of Tyco International's electronics businesses were transferred to Tyco Electronics.

        Our business was formed principally through a series of acquisitions, from fiscal 1999 through fiscal 2002, of established electronics
companies and divisions, including the acquisition of AMP Incorporated and Raychem Corporation in fiscal 1999 and the Electromechanical
Components Division of Siemens and OEM Division of Thomas & Betts in fiscal 2000. These companies each have more than 50 years of
history in engineering and innovation excellence. We operated as a segment of Tyco International prior to our separation.

        Effective June 29, 2007, Tyco International distributed all of its shares of Tyco Electronics to its common shareholders. Tyco
Electronics Ltd. became an independent, publicly traded company owning the former electronics businesses of Tyco International Ltd.

        Our reporting segments manufacture and distribute our products and solutions to a number of end markets. The table below provides a
summary of our reporting segments, the fiscal 2008 net sales contribution of each segment, and the key products and markets that we serve:

Segment
Electronic
Components

Network
Solutions

Undersea
Telecommunications

Wireless
Systems

% of Fiscal 2008 Net Sales 74% 15% 8% 3%
Key Products � Connector

systems
� Connector
systems

� Undersea � Land mobile
radios

� Relays � Heat shrink
tubing

telecommunication and systems

� Heat shrink
tubing

� Fiber optics systems

� Fiber optics � Wire and cable
� Circuit
protection

� Racks and
panels

devices � Intelligent
building

� Wire and cable controls
� Touch screens � Network

interface
� Application
tooling

devices

Key Markets � Automotive � Energy � Communication � Public safety
� Computer � Communication service providers
� Communications service

providers
� Oil and gas

� Industrial � Building
networks

� Aerospace and
defense

� Appliance
� Consumer
electronics
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See Note 25 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for certain segment and geographic financial information relating to our
business.

Our Competitive Strengths

        We believe that we have the following competitive strengths:

�
Global leader in passive components.  With net sales of approximately $14.8 billion in fiscal 2008, we are significantly
larger than many of our competitors. In the $43 billion fragmented connector industry, our net sales were approximately
$8 billion in fiscal 2008. We have established a global leadership position in the connector industry with leading market
positions in the following markets:

�
Automotive�#1

�
Industrial�#1

�
Computers and peripherals�#2

�
Telecom/data communications�#2

Our scale provides us the opportunity to accelerate our sales growth by making larger investments in existing and new
technologies in our core markets and to expand our presence in emerging markets. Our leadership position also provides us
the opportunity to lower our purchasing costs by developing lower cost sources of supply and to maintain a flexible
manufacturing footprint worldwide that is close to our customers' locations.

�
Strong customer relationships.  As an industry leader, we have established close working relationships with our customers.
These relationships allow us to better anticipate and respond to customer needs when designing new products and new
technical solutions. By working with our customers in developing new products and technologies, we believe we are able to
identify and act on trends and leverage knowledge about next-generation technology across our products. In addition, we
operate a broad Global Account Management program through which we maintain close working relationships with the key
customers in the end markets that we serve.

�
Process and product technology leadership.  We employ nearly 8,000 engineers dedicated to product research, development,
and engineering. Our investment of over $600 million in product and process engineering and development together with our
capital spending of over $600 million in fiscal 2008, enable us to consistently provide innovative, high-quality products with
efficient manufacturing methods.

�
Diverse product mix and customer base.  We manufacture and sell a broad portfolio of products to customers in various
industries. Our customers include many of the leaders in their respective industries, and our relationships with them typically
date back many years. We believe that this diversified customer base provides us an opportunity to leverage our skills and
experience across markets and reduces our exposure to particular end markets, thereby reducing the variability of our
financial performance. Additionally, we believe that the diversity of our customer base reduces the level of cyclicality in our
results and distinguishes us from our competitors.

�
Balanced geographic sales mix.  We have an established manufacturing presence in approximately 25 countries and our
sales are global. Our global coverage positions us near our customers' locations and allows us to assist them in consolidating
their supply base and lowering their production costs. We believe our balanced sales distribution lowers our exposure to any
particular geography and improves our financial profile. In addition, our strategy is to continue to increase the percentage of
production from low-cost countries.
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�
Strong and experienced management team.  We believe we have a management team that has the experience necessary to
effectively execute our strategy and advance our product and technology leadership. Our Chief Executive Officer and
segment leaders average more than 20 years of experience in the electronics industry. They are supported by an experienced
and talented management team that is dedicated to maintaining and expanding our position as a global leader in the industry.

Our Strategy

        Our goal is to be the world leader in providing custom-engineered electronic components and solutions for an increasingly connected
world. We believe that in achieving this goal we will increase net sales and profitability across our segments in the markets that we serve. Our
business strategy is based upon the following priorities:

�
Leverage our market leadership position to increase our market share.  We are a global leader in many of the markets that
we serve. For example, within our Electronic Components segment, we are the leading global supplier of connectors and
connector systems to the automotive and industrial markets. We believe that these and other markets are critical to our
success and that we must continue to strengthen our leadership position in these markets. We plan to capitalize on the
expected long-term growth in these markets by leveraging our significant scale in the industry, the breadth of our product
portfolio, our established relationships and leading specification positions with our customers, and our extensive worldwide
distribution channels.

�
Achieve market leadership in attractive and under-penetrated industries.  We plan to accelerate growth in end-user markets
in which we do not have the number one market share but which we believe have attractive growth and profitability
characteristics. These markets include: aerospace and defense, mobile phone, and medical markets with respect to our
Electronic Components segment; the energy and communication service provider market with respect to our Network
Solutions segment; and the land mobile radio market with respect to our Wireless Systems segment. We believe that we can
further leverage our customer service and our new product and technology capabilities in order to achieve a leading position
in these markets.

�
Extend our leadership in key emerging markets.  We seek to improve our market leadership position in emerging geographic
regions, including China, Eastern Europe, and India, which we expect will experience higher growth rates than those of more
developed regions in the world. In fiscal 2008, we generated $1.8 billion of net sales in China, $1.2 billion of net sales in
Eastern Europe, and $0.2 billion of net sales in India. We have been increasing our sales and marketing, engineering, and
manufacturing resources in these emerging regions in order to more fully capitalize on our skills and technologies. We
believe that expansion in these regions will enable us to grow faster than the overall global market.

�
Supplement organic growth with strategic acquisitions.  We will evaluate and selectively pursue strategic acquisitions that
strengthen our market position, enhance our existing product offering, enable us to enter attractive markets, expand our
technological capabilities, and provide synergy opportunities.

�
Continue to focus our existing portfolio.  As part of our strategy, we regularly review and will consider the divestiture of
underperforming or non-strategic businesses to improve our operating results and better utilize our capital. We have made
strategic divestitures in the past and expect that we may make additional divestitures in the future. Some of these divestitures
may have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations�Divestitures and Manufacturing Simplification."

3
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�
Improve operating margins.  We intend to continue to increase our productivity and reduce our manufacturing costs. We
plan to achieve this by developing best in class manufacturing, enhancing our purchasing strategy through design initiatives
and sourcing of materials from suppliers in low-cost regions, simplifying our distribution network, and further implementing
best practice continuous improvement programs. We also plan to continue to simplify our global manufacturing footprint,
both by migrating facilities from high-cost to low-cost countries and by consolidating within countries. With respect to our
manufacturing rationalization plan, we expect to incur restructuring charges of up to $200 million from fiscal 2009 through
2010. These initiatives are designed to help us maintain our competitiveness in the industry.

�
Accelerate new product development through research and development excellence.  We seek to continue to increase the
percentage of our annual net sales from new products. In fiscal 2008, we derived approximately 34% of our net sales from
new products launched within the previous three years. In order to accomplish this goal, we intend to focus our research,
development, and engineering investment on next generation technologies and highly engineered products and platforms,
and leverage innovation across our segments.

Our Products

        Our net sales by reporting segment as a percentage of our total net sales was as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
Electronic Components 74% 78% 79%
Network Solutions 15 15 15
Undersea Telecommunications 8 4 3
Wireless Systems 3 3 3

Total 100% 100% 100%

Electronic Components

        Our Electronic Components segment is one of the world's largest suppliers of passive electronic components, which includes connectors
and interconnect systems, relays, switches, circuit protection devices, touch screens, sensors, and wire and cable. The products sold by the
Electronic Components segment are sold primarily to original equipment manufacturers and their contract manufacturers in the automotive,
computer, communications, industrial, aerospace and defense, appliance, consumer electronics, and medical markets. The following are the
primary product families sold by the segment:

�
Connector Systems and Components.  We offer an extensive range of electrical and electronic interconnection products.
These connectors include a wide variety of pin and socket, terminal, USB, coaxial, I/O, fiber optic, and power connectors, as
well as sophisticated interconnection products used in complex telecommunications and computer equipment.

�
Relays.  Our relay products can be used in a wide range of applications in the automotive, telecommunications, industrial,
and aerospace industries, including electric sunroofs, anti-lock braking systems, and fuel injection coils for the automotive
industry, signal and power relay technologies for the telecommunications industry, and high-performance products for the
aerospace industry.

�
Heat Shrink Tubing.  We offer hundreds of reliable, cost-effective products to seal, connect, insulate, protect, hold, and
bundle high-performance electrical harnesses. We also provide customized harnessing design, prototype, and build services.

4
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�
Fiber Optics.  We manufacture fiber optic connectors, cable assemblies, adapters, and accessories. We provide highly
engineered products that connect, configure, and control light.

�
Circuit Protection Devices.  We offer a range of circuit protection devices, which limit the flow of high current during fault
conditions and automatically reset when the fault is cleared and power to the circuit is removed. We also offer surface-mount
fuses, surge protectors, gas discharge tubes for overvoltage protection, and electrostatic discharge protection devices.

�
Wire and Cable.  We provide highly engineered cable and wire products to the data transmission, aerospace, automotive,
telecommunications, industrial, and medical markets. We offer a broad range of cable, including UTP and PVC ribbon
cables, SCSI and IEEE 1394 computer cables, NASA-spec cable, and other cables suitable for use in the aerospace industry.

�
Touch Screens.  We develop, manufacture, and market a complete line of touch products for transactional kiosks,
point-of-sale terminals, machine and process control, and automated teller machines. We offer component touch systems for
original equipment manufacturers and a broad line of standard and custom LCD and CRT touch monitors. We believe that
we are an industry leader in advancing surface wave, resistive, infrared, and capacitive technologies.

�
Application Tooling.  We offer a broad portfolio of hand tools, semi-automatic bench machines, and fully-automatic
machine systems for processing terminal products.

        In addition to the above product families which represent in excess of 90% of the Electronic Components segment net sales, we also offer
identification products, antennas, magnetics, sensors, and switches.

Network Solutions

        Our Network Solutions segment is one of the world's largest suppliers of infrastructure components and systems for telecommunications
and energy markets. These components include connectors, above- and below-ground enclosures, heat shrink tubing, cable accessories, surge
arrestors, fiber optic cabling, copper cabling, and racks for copper and fiber networks. This segment also provides electronic systems for test
access and intelligent cross-connect applications as well as integrated cabling solutions for cabling and building management. The products are
grouped into the following product families:

�
Connector Systems and Components.  We offer an extensive range of low, medium, and high-voltage connectors and splices,
cable assemblies, sealing systems, terminals, fittings, lugs and clamps, transmission line fittings, splice closures, grounding
hardware, and wall and floor outlets for voice and data connection to local area networks.

�
Heat Shrink Tubing.  We offer heat shrink tubing, heat-shrinkable splice closures, wrap-around sleeves, and molded parts
designed to better protect both high- and low-voltage circuits against harsh aerial, buried, and above-ground environments.

�
Fiber Optics.  We provide fiber optic connectors, splices, fiber optic splice closures, fiber management systems, high density
cable assemblies, couplers and splitters, and complete cabling systems. These products find use in both local-area and
wide-area networks, and emerging "Last-Mile" Fiber-to-the-Home installations.

�
Wire and Cable.  We provide wire and cable for indoor and outdoor use in office, factory floor, school, and residential voice,
data, and video networks, including copper and fiber optic distribution cables, shielded and unshielded twisted-pair cables,
armored cable, and patch cords.

5
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�
Racks and Panels.  We provide racks and panels that are used to integrate, organize, and manage fiber and copper cables and
splices, thereby simplifying installation, maintenance, and upgrades for both exchange/head end and customer premise
environments.

        In addition to the above product families which represent in excess of 90% of the total Network Solutions segment net sales, the segment
also sells insulators, surge arrestors, power measurement products, CATV accessories, network interface devices, raceway systems, and duct
accessories.

Undersea Telecommunications

        Our Undersea Telecommunications segment designs, builds, maintains, and tests undersea fiber optic networks for both the
telecommunications and oil and gas markets.

Wireless Systems

        Our Wireless Systems segment is an innovator of wireless technology for critical communications systems. We provide state-of-the-art
two-way land mobile radio technology products and systems, including network and system infrastructure, portable radios, service, and
maintenance. These products and systems are used primarily by public safety and government organizations.

Markets

        We sell our products to manufacturers and distributors in a number of major markets. The approximate percentage of our total net sales by
market in fiscal 2008 was as follows:

Markets Percentage
Automotive 30%
Telecommunications 23
Computer 7
Energy 7
Industrial 5
Aerospace and Defense 5
Appliance 4
Medical 2
Consumer Electronics 2
Other 15

Total 100%

         Automotive.    The automotive industry uses our products in motor management systems, body electronic applications, safety systems,
chassis systems, security systems, driver information, passenger entertainment, and comfort and convenience applications. Electronic
components regulate critical vehicle functions, from fuel intake to braking, as well as information, entertainment, and climate control systems.

         Telecommunications.    Our products are used in telecommunications products, such as data networking equipment, switches, routers, wire
line infrastructure equipment, wireless infrastructure equipment, wireless base stations, mobile phones, and undersea fiber optic
telecommunication systems.

         Computer.    Our products are used in computer products, such as servers and storage equipment, workstations, notebook computers,
desktop computers, and business and retail equipment.

         Energy.    The energy industry uses our products in power generation equipment and power transmission equipment. The industry has been
investing heavily to improve, upgrade, and restore existing equipment and systems. In addition, this industry addresses the needs of emerging
countries that are building out and upgrading their energy infrastructure.
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         Industrial.    Our products are used in factory automation and process control systems, photovoltaic systems, industrial motors and
generators, and general industrial machinery and equipment.

         Aerospace and Defense.    Our products are used in military and commercial aircraft, missile systems, satellites, space programs, and radar
systems.

         Appliance.    Our products are used in many household appliances, including refrigerators, washers, dryers, dishwashers, and microwaves.

         Medical.    Our products are used in medical equipment for imaging, surgical, and monitoring applications, ranging from general surgical
to ultrasound to "smart" vital sign monitoring equipment.

         Consumer Electronics.    The consumer electronics industry uses our products to produce digital cameras, plasma and LCD televisions,
electronic games, and DVD recorders and players.

         Other.    Our products are used in numerous products, including instrumentation and measurement equipment, commercial and building
equipment, building network and cabling systems, and railway equipment. Other also includes products sold through third-party distributors.

Customers

        Our customers include automobile, telecommunication, computer, industrial, aerospace, and consumer products manufacturers that operate
both globally and locally. Our customers also include contract manufacturers and third-party distributors. We serve approximately 200,000
customer locations in over 150 countries, and we maintain a strong local presence in each of the geographic areas in which we operate.

        Our net sales by geographic area as a percentage of our total net sales were as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
Americas(1) 36% 35% 36%
Europe/Middle East/Africa 37 37 36
Asia-Pacific 27 28 28

Total 100% 100% 100%

(1)
The Americas includes our Undersea Telecommunications segment.

        We collaborate closely with our customers so that their product needs are met. There is no single customer that accounted for more than
10% of our net sales in fiscal 2008, 2007, or 2006. Our approach to our customers is driven by our dedication to further developing our product
families and ensuring that we are globally positioned to best provide our customers with sales and engineering support. We believe that as
electronic component technologies continue to proliferate, our broad product portfolio and engineering capability give us a potential competitive
advantage when addressing the needs of our global customers.

Raw Materials

        We use a wide variety of raw materials in the manufacture of our products. The principal raw materials that we use include plastic resins for
molding, precious metals such as gold and silver for plating, and other metals such as copper, aluminum, brass, steel for manufacturing cable,
contacts, and other parts that are used for cable and component bodies and inserts. Many of these raw materials are produced in a limited number
of regions around the world or are only available from a limited number of suppliers. The prices of these materials are driven by global supply
and demand dynamics.
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Working Capital

        We consistently maintain an adequate level of working capital to support our business needs. There are no unusual industry practices or
requirements relating to working capital items.

Research and Development

        We are engaged in both internal and external research and development in an effort to introduce new products, to enhance the effectiveness,
ease of use, safety, and reliability of our existing products, and to expand the applications for which the uses of our products are appropriate. We
continually evaluate developing technologies in areas where we may have technological or marketing expertise for possible investment or
acquisition.

        Our research and development expense for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 was as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Electronic Components $393 $341 $302
Network Solutions 61 56 50
Undersea Telecommunications 29 24 23
Wireless Systems 47 61 53

Total $530 $482 $428

        Our research, development, and engineering efforts are supported by approximately 8,000 engineers. These engineers work closely with our
customers to develop application specific, highly engineered products and systems to satisfy the customers' needs. Our new products, including
product extensions introduced during the past year, comprised approximately 12% of our net sales for fiscal 2008.

Sales, Marketing, and Distribution

        We sell our products into more than 150 countries, and we sell primarily through direct selling efforts. We also sell some of our products
indirectly via third-party distributors. In fiscal 2008, our direct sales represented 85% of net sales, with the remainder of net sales provided by
sales to third-party distributors and independent manufacturer representatives.

        We maintain distribution centers around the world. Products are generally delivered to these distribution centers by our manufacturing
facilities and then subsequently delivered to the customer. In some instances, product is delivered directly from our manufacturing facility to the
customer. We contract with a wide range of transport providers to deliver our products via road, rail, sea, and air.

Seasonality and Backlog

        Customer orders typically fluctuate from quarter to quarter based upon business conditions and because unfilled orders may be canceled
prior to shipment of goods. We experience a slight seasonal pattern to our business. The third fiscal quarter is typically the strongest quarter of
our fiscal year, while the first fiscal quarter is negatively affected by winter holidays and the fourth fiscal quarter is negatively affected by
European holidays. The second fiscal quarter may also be affected by adverse winter weather conditions in certain of our end markets.

8
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        Backlog by reportable segment at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)

Electronics Components $1,655 $1,663
Network Solutions 339 277
Undersea Telecommunications 1,128 560
Wireless Systems(1) 351 260

Total $3,473 $2,760

(1)
Includes approximately $50 million related to the Wireless Systems segment's contract with the State of New York at
September 26, 2008.

        We expect that the majority of our backlog at September 26, 2008 will be filled during fiscal 2009.

Competition

        The industries in which we operate are highly competitive, and we compete with thousands of companies that range from large
multinational corporations to local manufacturers. Competition is generally on the basis of breadth of product offering, product innovation,
price, quality, delivery, and service. Our markets have generally been growing but with downward pressure on prices.

�
Electronic Components.  This segment competes against numerous companies, including Molex, Amphenol, FCI, JST, and
Omron.

�
Network Solutions.  This segment's major competitors include Corning, Commscope, and 3M.

�
Undersea Telecommunications.  This segment primarily competes with Alcatel-Lucent.

�
Wireless Systems.  This segment primarily competes with Motorola.

Intellectual Property

        Patents and other proprietary rights are important to our business. We also rely upon trade secrets, manufacturing know-how, continuing
technological innovations, and licensing opportunities to maintain and improve our competitive position. We review third-party proprietary
rights, including patents and patent applications, as available, in an effort to develop an effective intellectual property strategy, avoid
infringement of third-party proprietary rights, identify licensing opportunities, and monitor the intellectual property claims of others.

        We own a large portfolio of patents that principally relate to electrical and electronic products. We also own a portfolio of trademarks and
are a licensee of various patents and trademarks. Patents for individual products extend for varying periods according to the date of patent filing
or grant and the legal term of patents in the various countries where patent protection is obtained. Trademark rights may potentially extend for
longer periods of time and are dependent upon national laws and use of the trademarks.

        While we consider our patents and trademarks to be valued assets, we do not believe that our competitive position is dependent on patent or
trademark protection or that our operations are dependent upon any single patent or group of related patents.

Employees

        As of September 26, 2008, we employed approximately 96,000 people worldwide, of whom 26,000 were in the Americas region, 27,000
were in the Europe/Middle East/Africa region, and 43,000 were in
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the Asia-Pacific region. Of our total employees, approximately 58,000 were employed in manufacturing and 19,000 were represented by
collective bargaining agreements. Approximately 57% of our employees were based in low-cost countries, primarily China. We believe that our
relations with our employees are satisfactory.

Government Regulation and Supervision

        The import and export of products are subject to regulation by the United States and other countries. A small portion of our products,
including defense-related products, may require governmental import and export licenses, whose issuance may be influenced by geopolitical and
other events. We have a trade compliance organization and other systems in place to apply for licenses and otherwise comply with such
regulations. Any failure to maintain compliance with domestic and foreign trade regulation could limit our ability to import and export raw
materials and finished goods into or from the relevant jurisdiction.

Environmental

        We are committed to complying with all applicable environmental, health, and safety laws and to the protection of our employees and the
environment. We maintain a global environmental, health, and safety program that includes appropriate policies and standards, staff dedicated to
environmental, health, and safety issues, periodic compliance auditing, training, and other measures. We have a program for compliance with the
European Union ("EU") RoHS and WEEE Directives, the China RoHS law, and similar laws.

        We have projects underway at a number of current and former manufacturing facilities to investigate and remediate environmental
contamination resulting from past operations. Based upon our experience, current information and applicable laws, we believe that it is probable
that we will incur remedial costs in the range of approximately $13 million to $25 million. As of September 26, 2008, we believe that the best
estimate within this range is approximately $16 million.

Available Information

        All periodic and current reports, registration filings, and other filings that we are required to file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC"), including annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") are available free of
charge through our internet website at www.tycoelectronics.com. Such documents are available as soon as reasonably practicable after electronic
filing or furnishing of the material with the SEC.

        The public may also read and copy any document that we file, including this Annual Report, at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F
Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Investors may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an internet site at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and
other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC, from which investors can electronically access our SEC filings.
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 ITEM 1A.    RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below before investing in our securities. The risks described below are not the only ones
facing us. Our business is also subject to risks that affect many other companies, such as general economic conditions, geopolitical events,
competition, technological obsolescence, labor relations, and international operations. Additional risks not currently known to us or that we
currently believe are immaterial also may impair our business operations, financial condition, and liquidity.

Risks Relating to Our Business

Current and future conditions in the global economy and global capital markets, and cyclical industry conditions, may adversely
affect our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

        Our business and operating results have been and will continue to be affected by worldwide economic conditions. As a result of slowing
global economic growth, the credit market crisis, declining consumer and business confidence, fluctuating commodity prices, and other
challenges currently affecting the global economy, our customers may experience deterioration of their businesses, cash flow shortages, and
difficulty obtaining financing. As a result, existing or potential customers may delay or cancel plans to purchase our products and may not be
able to fulfill their obligations to us in a timely fashion. Further, our vendors may be experiencing similar conditions, which may impact their
ability to fulfill their obligations to us. If the global economic slowdown continues for significant periods or deteriorates significantly, our results
of operations, financial condition, and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

        Additionally, we are heavily dependent on the end market industry dynamics for our products, and our operating results can be adversely
affected by cyclical and reduced demand patterns of these markets. For example, the automotive industry, which accounted for approximately
30% of our net sales in fiscal 2008, is experiencing a significant downturn described below. The telecommunications industry, which accounted
for approximately 23% of our net sales in fiscal 2008, has historically experienced periods of robust capital expenditure followed by periods of
retrenchment and consolidation, which reflects current market conditions. The aerospace and defense industry, which accounted for 5% of our
net sales in fiscal 2008, has similarly undergone significant fluctuations in demand, depending on worldwide economic and political conditions.
These periodic downturns in our customers' industries can significantly reduce demand for certain of our products, which could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

We are dependent on the automotive industry which is experiencing significant declines in the current economic environment.

        Approximately 30% of our net sales for fiscal 2008 were to customers in the automotive industry. Automotive manufacturers globally are
experiencing significant declines in sales of vehicles from the current economic downturn, credit conditions, and volatile fuel costs.
Additionally, the automotive industry is dominated by large manufacturers that can exert significant price pressure on their suppliers. As a
supplier of automotive electronics products, our sales of these products and our profitability have been and could continue to be negatively
affected by changes in the operations, products, business models, part-sourcing requirements, financial condition, and market share of
automotive manufacturers, as well as potential consolidations among automotive manufacturers.

We are dependent on the telecommunications, computer, and consumer electronics industries.

        Approximately 23% of our net sales for fiscal 2008 came from sales to the telecommunications industry. Demand for these products is
subject to rapid technological change and has been affected by declines in consumer and business spending due to global economic conditions.
Additionally, these markets are dominated by several large manufacturers that can exert significant price pressure on their
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suppliers. There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to compete successfully in the telecommunications industry, and our failure
to do so would materially impair our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

        Approximately 9% of our net sales for fiscal 2008 came from sales to the computer and consumer electronics industries. Demand for our
computer and consumer electronics products depends primarily on underlying business and consumer demand for new computer and consumer
electronics products, which has been affected by reduced spending due to global economic conditions. The amount of this demand and therefore
our sales and profitability will be affected by a variety of factors, including the rate of technological change, degree of consumer acceptance of
new products, and general economic conditions. We cannot assure you that existing levels of business and consumer demand for new computer
and consumer electronics products will not decrease.

Disruption in credit markets and volatility in equity markets may affect our ability to access sufficient funding.

        The global equity markets have been volatile and credit markets globally have been disrupted, which has reduced the availability of
investment capital and credit. If these conditions continue or worsen, we may be unable to access adequate funding to operate and grow our
business. Our inability to access adequate funding or to generate sufficient cash from operations may require us to reconsider certain projects
and capital expenditures. The extent of any impact will depend on several factors, including our operating cash flows, the duration of tight credit
conditions and volatile equity markets, our credit ratings and credit capacity, the cost of financing, and other general economic and business
conditions.

We encounter competition in substantially all areas of the electronic components industry.

        We operate in highly competitive markets for electronic components. The competition we experience across product lines from other
companies ranges in size from large, diversified manufacturers to small, highly specialized manufacturers. The electronic components industry
has continued to become increasingly concentrated and globalized in recent years, and our major competitors have significant financial resources
and technological capabilities. A number of these competitors compete with us primarily on price, and in some instances may enjoy lower
production costs for certain products. We cannot assure you that additional competitors will not enter our markets, or that we will be able to
compete successfully against existing or new competitors.

We are dependent on market acceptance of new product introductions and product innovations for continued revenue growth.

        The markets in which we operate are subject to rapid technological change. Our long-term operating results depend substantially upon our
ability to continually develop, introduce, and market new and innovative products, to modify existing products, to respond to technological
change, and to customize certain products to meet customer requirements. There are numerous risks inherent in this process, including the risks
that we will be unable to anticipate the direction of technological change or that we will be unable to develop and market new products and
applications in a timely fashion to satisfy customer demands.

Like other suppliers to the electronics industry, we are subject to continuing pressure to lower our prices.

        Over the past several years we have experienced, and we expect to continue to experience, pressure each year to lower our prices. In recent
years, we have experienced price erosion averaging from 1% to 3%. In order to maintain our margins, we must continue to reduce our costs by
similar amounts. We cannot assure you that continuing pressures to reduce our prices will not have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition, and cash flows.
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We may be negatively affected as our customers and vendors continue to consolidate.

        Many of the industries to which we sell our products, as well as many of the industries from which we buy materials, have become
increasingly concentrated in recent years, including the automotive, telecommunications, computer, and aerospace and defense industries.
Consolidation of customers may lead to decreased product purchases from us. In addition, as our customers buy in larger volumes, their volume
buying power has increased, and they have been able to negotiate more favorable pricing and find alternative sources from which to purchase.
Our materials suppliers similarly have increased their ability to negotiate favorable pricing. These trends may adversely affect the profit margins
on our products, particularly for commodity components.

Our results are sensitive to raw material availability, quality, and cost.

        We are a large buyer of resin, copper, gold, brass, steel, chemicals and additives, and zinc. Many of these raw materials are produced in a
limited number of regions around the world or are only available from a limited number of suppliers. In addition, the price of many of these raw
materials, including copper and gold, has increased in recent years and continues to fluctuate. Over the last three years, we have only been able
to partially offset these increases through higher selling prices. Our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows may be materially
and adversely affected if we have difficulty obtaining these raw materials, the quality of available raw materials deteriorates, or there are
continued significant price increases for these raw materials. Any of these events could have a substantial impact on the price we pay for raw
materials and, to the extent we cannot compensate for cost increases through productivity improvements or price increases to our customers, our
margins may decline, materially affecting our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Foreign currency exchange rates may adversely affect our results.

        We are exposed to a variety of market risks, including the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Approximately 54% of our
net sales for fiscal 2008 were invoiced in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, and we expect revenue from non-U.S. markets to continue to
represent a significant portion of our net revenue. Therefore, when the U.S. dollar strengthens in relation to the currencies of the countries where
we sell our products, such as the Euro, our U.S. dollar reported revenue and income will decrease. Changes in the relative values of currencies
may have a significant effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. We manage this risk in part by entering into
financial derivative contracts. In addition to the risk of non-performance by the counterparty to the contracts, our efforts to manage these risks
might not be successful.

The life cycles of our products can be very short.

        The life cycles of certain of our products can be very short relative to the development cycles. As a result, the resources devoted to product
sales and marketing may not result in material revenue, and, from time to time, we may need to write off excess or obsolete inventory or
equipment. If we were to incur significant engineering expenses and investments in inventory and equipment that we were not able to recover
and we were not able to compensate for those expenses, our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows would be materially and
adversely affected.

Divestitures of some of our businesses or product lines may materially adversely affect our results of operations, financial
condition, and cash flows.

        During fiscal 2008, we have sold or discontinued businesses and product lines with annualized net sales of approximately $1 billion, and
we continue to evaluate the performance of all of our businesses and may continue to sell businesses or product lines. Any divestitures may
result in significant write-offs, including those related to goodwill and other intangible assets, which could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition. Divestitures could involve additional risks, including difficulties in the separation of operations,
services, products and personnel, the
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diversion of management's attention from other business concerns, the disruption of our business, and the potential loss of key employees. There
can be no assurance that we will be successful in addressing these or any other significant risks encountered.

A decline in the market value of our pension plans' investment portfolios could adversely affect our results of operations, financial
condition, and cash flows.

        Concerns about deterioration in the global economy, together with the current credit crisis, have caused significant volatility in interest rates
and equity prices, which could decrease the value of our pension plans' investment portfolios. A decrease in the value of our pension plans'
investment portfolios could have an adverse affect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

We may use components and products manufactured by third parties.

        We may rely on third-party suppliers for the components used in our products, and we may rely on third-party manufacturers to
manufacture certain of our assemblies and finished products. Our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows could be adversely
affected if such third parties lack sufficient quality control or if there are significant changes in their financial or business condition. We also
have third-party arrangements for the manufacture of certain products, parts, and components. If these third parties fail to deliver quality
products, parts, and components on time and at reasonable prices, we could have difficulties fulfilling our orders, sales and profits could decline,
and our commercial reputation could be damaged.

Our future success is substantially dependent on our ability to attract and retain highly qualified technical, managerial, marketing,
finance, and administrative personnel.

        Our success depends upon our continued ability to hire and retain key employees at our operations around the world. We depend on highly
skilled technical personnel to design, manufacture, and support our wide range of electronic components. Additionally, we rely upon
experienced managerial, marketing, and support personnel to manage our business effectively and to successfully promote our wide range of
products. Any difficulties in obtaining or retaining the necessary global management, technical, human resource, and financial skills to achieve
our objectives may have adverse affects on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

If we fail to remediate the material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting relating to accounting for income
taxes, concerns about the potential for material errors in our financial reporting could cause the value of our securities to be adversely
affected.

        Subsequent to the filing of our Combined Financial Statements for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 in the initial filing of our registration
statement on Form 10 with the SEC, we determined that our Combined Financial Statements contained certain errors. The errors primarily
resulted from the process of carving out certain income tax accounts from Tyco International's consolidated financial statements and related
information. We substantially relied upon the processes at Tyco International to prepare our carve-out accounts for income taxes. We have
determined that certain of those tax processes utilized by Tyco International in determining certain carve-out amounts for income taxes did not
operate at a sufficient level of precision relative to our materiality for us to ensure that the carve-out accounts were materially correct.
Concurrently, we determined that we did not have sufficient control processes in place to ensure that the information provided by Tyco
International was complete and accurate and concluded that the absence of these control processes was a material weakness in our internal
control over financial reporting relating to accounting for income taxes.

        Subsequent to separation, in our periodic reports we continued to disclose a material weakness in our internal control over financial
reporting relating to accounting for income taxes. As of September 26, 2008, management has concluded that recently enhanced resources and
processes related to this previously identified material weakness have not been operating for a sufficient period of time
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and, accordingly, has further concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of September 26, 2008.

        Unless we remediate the material weakness, concerns about the potential for material errors in our financial reporting could adversely affect
the value of our securities.

If any of our operations are found not to comply with applicable antitrust or competition laws, our business may suffer.

        Our operations are subject to applicable antitrust and competition laws in the jurisdictions in which we conduct our business, in particular
the United States and the European Union. These laws prohibit, among other things, anticompetitive agreements and practices. If any of our
commercial, including distribution, agreements and practices with respect to the electrical components or other markets is found to violate or
infringe such laws, we may be subject to civil and other penalties. We also may be subject to third party claims for damages. Further, agreements
that infringe these antitrust and competition laws may be void and unenforceable, in whole or in part, or require modification in order to be
lawful and enforceable. If we are unable to enforce any of our commercial agreements, whether at all or in material part, our results of
operations, financial condition, and cash flows could be adversely affected.

We are subject to the risks of political, economic, and military instability in countries outside the United States.

        Non-U.S. markets account for a substantial portion of our business. During fiscal 2008, non-U.S. markets constituted over 69% of our net
sales. We employ more than 82% of our workforce outside the United States. Our customers are located throughout the world and we have many
manufacturing, administrative, and sales facilities outside the United States. Because of our extensive non-U.S. operations, we are exposed to
risks that could negatively affect sales or profitability, including:

�
tariffs, trade barriers, and trade disputes;

�
regulations related to customs and import/export matters;

�
longer payment cycles;

�
tax issues, such as tax law changes, examinations by taxing authorities, variations in tax laws from country to country as
compared to the United States, and difficulties in repatriating in a tax-efficient manner cash generated or held abroad;

�
challenges in collecting accounts receivable;

�
employment regulations and local labor conditions;

�
difficulties protecting intellectual property;

�
instability in economic or political conditions, including inflation, recession, and actual or anticipated military or political
conflicts; and

�
the impact of each of the foregoing on our outsourcing and procurement arrangements.

        Many of our products that are manufactured outside of the United States are manufactured in Asia. In particular, we have sizeable
operations in China, including manufacturing operations, and in fiscal 2008, 12% of our net sales were made to customers in China. The legal
system in China is still developing and is subject to change. Accordingly, our operations and orders for products in China could be adversely
affected by changes to or interpretation of Chinese law.
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We could be adversely affected by violations of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws.

        The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FCPA") and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws generally prohibit companies and their
intermediaries from making improper payments to non-U.S. officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. Our policies mandate
compliance with these anti-bribery laws. We operate in many parts of the world that have experienced governmental corruption to some degree,
and in certain circumstances, strict compliance with anti-bribery laws may conflict with local customs and practices. Despite our training and
compliance program, we cannot assure you that our internal control policies and procedures always will protect us from reckless or criminal acts
committed by our employees or agents. Violations of these laws, or allegations of such violations, could disrupt our business and result in a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Our operations expose us to the risk of material environmental liabilities, litigation, and violations.

        We are subject to numerous federal, state, local, and non-U.S. environmental protection and health and safety laws governing, among other
things:

�
the generation, storage, use, and transportation of hazardous materials;

�
emissions or discharges of substances into the environment;

�
investigation and remediation of hazardous substances or materials at various sites; and

�
the health and safety of our employees.

        We may not have been, or we may not at all times be, in compliance with environmental and health and safety laws. If we violate these
laws, we could be fined, criminally charged, or otherwise sanctioned by regulators. Environmental laws outside of the United States are
becoming more stringent, resulting in increased costs and compliance burdens.

        Certain environmental laws assess liability on current or previous owners or operators of real property for the costs of investigation,
removal, or remediation of hazardous substances or materials at their properties or at properties at which they have disposed of hazardous
substances. Liability for investigative, removal, and remedial costs under certain federal and state laws are retroactive, strict, and joint and
several. In addition to cleanup actions brought by governmental authorities, private parties could bring personal injury or other claims due to the
presence of, or exposure to, hazardous substances. We have received notification from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and similar
state environmental agencies that conditions at a number of formerly owned sites where we and others have disposed of hazardous substances
require investigation, cleanup, and other possible remedial action and may require that we reimburse the government or otherwise pay for the
costs of investigation and remediation and for natural resource damage claims from such sites.

        While we plan for future capital and operating expenditures to maintain compliance with environmental laws, we cannot assure you that our
costs of complying with current or future environmental protection and health and safety laws, or our liabilities arising from past or future
releases of, or exposures to, hazardous substances will not exceed our estimates or adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations,
and cash flows or that we will not be subject to additional environmental claims for personal injury or cleanup in the future based on our past,
present, or future business activities.

Our products are subject to various requirements related to chemical usage, hazardous material content, and recycling.

        The EU, China, and other jurisdictions in which our products are sold have enacted or are proposing to enact laws addressing
environmental and other impacts from product disposal, use of
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hazardous materials in products, use of chemicals in manufacturing, recycling of products at the end of their useful life, and other related
matters. These laws include the EU Restriction on Hazardous Substances, End of Life Vehicle and Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
Directives, the EU REACH (chemical registration) Directive, the China law on Management Methods for Controlling Pollution by Electronic
Information Products, and various other laws. These laws prohibit the use of certain substances in the manufacture of our products and directly
and indirectly impose a variety of requirements for modification of manufacturing processes, registration, chemical testing, labeling, and other
matters. We cannot predict the extent to which these laws will proliferate in other jurisdictions or expand to address other materials or other
aspects of our product manufacturing and sale. These laws could make manufacture or sale of our products more expensive or impossible and
could limit our ability to sell our products in certain jurisdictions.

Our ability to compete effectively depends, in part, on our ability to maintain the proprietary nature of our technology.

        The electronics industry is characterized by litigation regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. Within this industry,
companies have become more aggressive in asserting and defending patent claims against competitors. There can be no assurance that we will
not be subject to future litigation alleging intellectual property rights infringement or that we will not pursue litigation to protect our property
rights. Depending on the size and importance of the patent or trademark in question, an unfavorable outcome regarding one of these matters may
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

We are a defendant to a variety of litigation in the course of our business that could cause a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

        In the ordinary course of business, we are a defendant in litigation, including litigation alleging the infringement of intellectual property
rights, anti-competitive behavior, and product liability. In certain circumstances, patent infringement and antitrust laws permit successful
plaintiffs to recover treble damages. The defense of these lawsuits may divert our management's attention, and we may incur significant
expenses in defending these lawsuits. In addition, we may be required to pay damage awards or settlements, or become subject to injunctions or
other equitable remedies, that could cause a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Covenants in our debt instruments may adversely affect us.

        Our bank credit agreement contains financial and other covenants, such as a limit on the ratio of debt to earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, and limits on subsidiary debt and incurrence of liens. Our outstanding indentures contain customary covenants
including limits on incurrence of liens, sale and lease-back transactions, and our ability to consolidate, merge, and sell assets.

        Although we believe none of these covenants are presently restrictive to our operations, our ability to meet the financial covenant can be
affected by events beyond our control, and we cannot provide assurance that we will continue to comply with the covenant. A breach of any of
these covenants could result in a default under our credit agreement or indentures. Upon the occurrence of certain defaults under our credit
facility and indentures, the lenders or trustee could elect to declare all amounts outstanding thereunder to be immediately due and payable, and
our lenders could terminate commitments to extend further credit under our bank credit facility. If the lenders or trustee accelerate the repayment
of borrowings, we cannot provide assurance that we will have sufficient assets to repay our credit facility and our other affected indebtedness.
Acceleration of any debt obligation under any of our material debt instruments may permit the holders or trustee of our other material debt to
accelerate payment of debt obligations to the creditors thereunder.
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         The indentures governing our outstanding senior notes contain covenants that may require us to offer to buy back the notes for a price
equal to 101% of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, to the repurchase date, upon a change of control triggering event (as
defined in the indentures). We cannot assure you that we will have sufficient funds available to repurchase the notes in that event, which could
result in a default under the notes. Any future debt that we incur may contain covenants regarding repurchases in the event of a change of control
triggering event.

Future acquisitions may not be successful.

        We will continue to investigate the acquisition of strategic businesses or product lines with the potential to strengthen our market position
or enhance our existing product offering. We cannot assure you, however, that we will identify or successfully complete transactions with
suitable acquisition candidates in the future. Nor can we assure you that completed acquisitions will be successful. If an acquired business fails
to operate as anticipated or cannot be successfully integrated with our existing business, our results of operations, financial condition, and cash
flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Future acquisitions could require us to issue additional debt or equity.

        If we were to undertake a substantial acquisition for cash, the acquisition would likely need to be financed in part through additional
financing from banks, through public offerings or private placements of debt or equity securities, or other arrangements. This acquisition
financing might decrease our ratio of earnings to fixed charges and adversely affect other leverage measures. We cannot assure you that the
necessary acquisition financing would be available to us on acceptable terms if and when required. If we were to undertake an acquisition by
issuing equity securities or equity-linked securities, the issued securities may have a dilutive effect on the interests of the holders of our common
shares.

Risks Relating to Our Separation from Tyco International

We are responsible for a portion of Tyco International's contingent and other corporate liabilities, including those relating to
shareholder litigation.

        In connection with our separation from Tyco International on June 29, 2007, we, Tyco International, and Covidien Ltd. ("Covidien")
entered into a Separation and Distribution Agreement which governs the relationships among us, Tyco International, and Covidien subsequent to
the separation and provided for the allocation among us, Tyco International, and Covidien of Tyco International's assets, liabilities, and
obligations attributable to periods prior to the separation. Under the Separation and Distribution Agreement, subject to certain exceptions
contained in the Tax Sharing Agreement among the parties, we, Tyco International, and Covidien have agreed to assume and be responsible for
31%, 27%, and 42%, respectively, of certain of Tyco International's contingent and other corporate liabilities. All costs and expenses associated
with the management of these contingent and other corporate liabilities are shared equally among the parties. These contingent and other
corporate liabilities primarily relate to consolidated securities litigation, any actions with respect to the separation plan or the distribution
brought by any third party and tax liabilities for periods prior to and including the date of separation of June 29, 2007. For more information on
the contingent tax liabilities, see "We share responsibility for certain of our, Tyco International's, and Covidien's income tax liabilities for tax
periods prior to and including the distribution date." Contingent and other corporate liabilities do not include liabilities that are specifically
related to one of the three separated companies, which were allocated 100% to the relevant company.

        If any party responsible for such liabilities were to default in its payment, when due, of any of these assumed obligations, each
non-defaulting party would be required to pay equally with any other non-defaulting party the amounts in default. Accordingly, under certain
circumstances, we may be obligated to pay amounts in excess of our agreed-upon share of the assumed obligations related to such contingent
and other corporate liabilities, including associated costs and expenses.
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        Prior to the announcement by Tyco International of the planned separation of Tyco Electronics and Covidien in January 2006, Tyco
International and certain of its former directors and officers were named as defendants in over 40 purported securities class action lawsuits, most
of which were part of a class action settlement of 32 lawsuits reached in 2007, for which we were responsible for 31%. Holders of approximately
4% of the shares owned by class members opted out of the class action settlement and a number of these individuals and entities have filed
actions separately against Tyco International and/or Tyco International, Covidien, and us. Two additional securities cases were settled in fiscal
2008. Several securities cases remain outstanding, including several cases asserting claims arising under the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act ("ERISA"). As a part of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, any existing or potential liabilities related to the securities
actions were allocated among Tyco International, Covidien, and us. We are responsible for 31% of potential liabilities that may arise upon the
resolution of the remaining pending litigation. If the unresolved securities proceedings were to be determined adversely to Tyco International,
our share of any additional potential losses under the terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, which are not presently estimable,
may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

        Tyco International has the right to control the defense and settlement of outstanding securities litigation, subject to certain limitations. The
timing, nature, and amount of any settlements of outstanding litigation may not be in our best interests. Furthermore, in the event of any future
settlements, we may have limited notice before we would be required to pay our portion of the settlement amount. Moreover, Tyco International
stipulated, pursuant to a court order, that we, Tyco International, and Covidien each will be primarily liable for a portion of the obligations
arising from the Tyco International shareholder litigation. The stipulation also provides that if any party defaults on its obligations, the other
parties are jointly and severally liable for the defaulting party's obligations.

We share responsibility for certain of our, Tyco International's and Covidien's income tax liabilities for tax periods prior to and
including the distribution date.

        Under the Tax Sharing Agreement, we share responsibility for certain of our, Tyco International's, and Covidien's income tax liabilities
based on a sharing formula for periods prior to and including June 29, 2007. More specifically, we, Tyco International, and Covidien share 31%,
27%, and 42%, respectively, of U.S. income tax liabilities that arise from adjustments made by tax authorities to our, Tyco International's, and
Covidien's U.S. income tax returns, certain income tax liabilities arising from adjustments made by tax authorities to intercompany transactions
or similar adjustments, and certain taxes attributable to internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the separation. All costs and expenses
associated with the management of these shared tax liabilities will be shared equally among the parties. We are responsible for all of our own
taxes that are not shared pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement's sharing formula. In addition, Tyco International and Covidien are responsible
for their tax liabilities that are not subject to the Tax Sharing Agreement's sharing formula.

        All the tax liabilities that are associated with our businesses, including liabilities that arose prior to our separation from Tyco International,
have become our tax liabilities. Although we have agreed to share certain of these tax liabilities with Tyco International and Covidien pursuant
to the Tax Sharing Agreement, we remain primarily liable for all of these liabilities. If Tyco International and Covidien default on their
obligations to us under the Tax Sharing Agreement, we would be liable for the entire amount of these liabilities.

        If any party to the Tax Sharing Agreement were to default in its obligation to another party to pay its share of the distribution taxes that
arise as a result of no party's fault, each non-defaulting party would be required to pay, equally with any other non-defaulting party, the amounts
in default. In addition, if another party to the Tax Sharing Agreement that is responsible for all or a portion of an income tax liability were to
default in its payment of such liability to a taxing authority, we could be legally liable under applicable tax law for such liabilities and required
to make additional tax payments. Accordingly, under certain circumstances, we may be obligated to pay amounts in excess of our agreed-upon
share of our, Tyco International's, and Covidien's tax liabilities.
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        Our, Tyco International's, and Covidien's income tax returns are examined periodically by various tax authorities. In connection with such
examinations, tax authorities, including the U.S. Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), have raised issues and proposed tax adjustments. We are
reviewing and contesting certain of the proposed tax adjustments. Amounts related to these tax adjustments and other tax contingencies that we
have assessed under the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes�an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109," have been reflected as a liability in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
The calculation of our tax liabilities includes estimates for uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations across multiple global
jurisdictions where we conduct our operations. We recognize liabilities for tax as well as related interest for issues in the U.S. and other tax
jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes and related interest will be due. These tax liabilities and
related interest are reflected net of the impact of related tax loss carryforwards. These estimates may change due to changing facts and
circumstances; however, due to the complexity of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in a settlement that differs from our
current estimate of the tax liabilities and related interest.

        Under the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco International has the right to administer, control, and settle all U.S. income tax audits for periods
prior to and including June 29, 2007. The timing, nature, and amount of any settlement agreed to by Tyco International may not be in our best
interests. Moreover, the other parties to the Tax Sharing Agreement will be able to remove Tyco International as the controlling party only under
limited circumstances, including a change of control or bankruptcy of Tyco International, or by a majority vote of the parties on or after the
second anniversary of the distribution. All other tax audits will be administered, controlled, and settled by the party that would be responsible for
paying the tax.

If the distribution or certain internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the separation are determined to be taxable for
U.S. federal income tax purposes, we could incur significant U.S. federal income tax liabilities.

        Tyco International received private letter rulings from the IRS regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the distribution of our
common shares and Covidien common shares to the Tyco International shareholders substantially to the effect that the distribution, except for
cash received in lieu of a fractional share of our common shares and the Covidien common shares, will qualify as tax-free under
Sections 368(a)(1)(D) and 355 of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code"). The private letter rulings also provided that certain internal
transactions undertaken in anticipation of the separation would qualify for favorable treatment under the Code. In addition to obtaining the
private letter rulings, Tyco International obtained opinions from the law firm of McDermott Will & Emery LLP confirming the tax-free status of
the distribution and certain internal transactions. The private letter rulings and the opinions relied on certain facts and assumptions, and certain
representations and undertakings, from us, Tyco International, and Covidien regarding the past and future conduct of our respective businesses
and other matters. Notwithstanding the private letter rulings and the opinions, the IRS could determine on audit that the distribution or the
internal transactions should be treated as taxable transactions if it determines that any of these facts, assumptions, representations, or
undertakings are not correct or have been violated, or that the distributions should be taxable for other reasons, including as a result of
significant changes in stock or asset ownership after the distribution. If the distribution ultimately is determined to be taxable, Tyco International
would recognize gain in an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of our common shares and Covidien common shares distributed
to Tyco International shareholders on the distribution date over Tyco International's tax basis in such common shares, but such gain, if
recognized, generally would not be subject to U.S. federal income tax. However, we would incur significant U.S. federal income tax liabilities if
it is ultimately determined that certain internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the separation should be treated as taxable transactions.
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        In addition, under the terms of the Tax Sharing Agreement, in the event the distribution or the internal transactions were determined to be
taxable and such determination was the result of actions taken after the distribution by us, Tyco International, or Covidien, the party responsible
for such failure would be responsible for all taxes imposed on us, Tyco International, or Covidien as a result thereof. If such determination is not
the result of actions taken after the distribution by us, Tyco International, or Covidien, then we, Tyco International, or Covidien would be
responsible for 31%, 27%, and 42%, respectively, of any taxes imposed on us, Tyco International, or Covidien as a result of such determination.
Such tax amounts could be significant. In the event that any party to the Tax Sharing Agreement defaults in its obligation to pay distribution
taxes to another party that arise as a result of no party's fault, each non-defaulting party would be responsible for an equal amount of the
defaulting party's obligation to make a payment to another party in respect of such other party's taxes.

We might not be able to engage in desirable strategic transactions and equity issuances because of restrictions relating to U.S.
federal income tax requirements for tax-free distributions.

        Our ability to engage in significant equity transactions could be limited or restricted in order to preserve for U.S. federal income tax
purposes the tax-free nature of the distribution by Tyco International. Similar limitations and restrictions apply to Tyco International and
Covidien. The distribution may result in corporate level taxable gain to Tyco International under Section 355(e) of the Code if 50% or more, by
vote or value, of our common shares, Tyco International's common shares, or Covidien's common shares are acquired or issued as part of a plan
or series of related transactions that includes the distribution. For this purpose, any acquisitions or issuances of Tyco International's common
shares within two years before the distribution, and any acquisitions or issuances of our common shares, Tyco International's common shares, or
Covidien's common shares within two years after the distribution, generally are presumed to be part of such a plan, although we, Tyco
International or Covidien may be able to rebut that presumption. We are not aware of any such acquisitions or issuances of Tyco International's
common shares within the two years before the distribution. If an acquisition or issuance of our common shares, Tyco International's common
shares, or Covidien's common shares triggers the application of Section 355(e) of the Code, Tyco International would recognize taxable gain as
described above, but such gain generally would not be subject to U.S. federal income tax. However, certain subsidiaries of Tyco International or
Covidien or subsidiaries of ours would incur significant U.S. federal income tax liabilities as a result of the application of Section 355(e) of the
Code.

        Under the Tax Sharing Agreement, there are restrictions on our ability to take actions that could cause the distribution or certain internal
transactions undertaken in anticipation of the separation to fail to qualify as tax-favored transactions, including entering into, approving, or
allowing any transaction that results in a change in ownership of more than 35% of our common shares, a redemption of equity securities, a sale
or other disposition of a substantial portion of our assets, an acquisition of a business or assets with equity securities to the extent one or more
persons would acquire 35% or more of our common shares, or engaging in certain internal transactions. These restrictions apply for the two-year
period after the distribution, unless we obtain the consent of the other parties or we obtain a private letter ruling from the IRS or an unqualified
opinion of a nationally recognized law firm that such action will not cause the distribution or the internal transactions undertaken in anticipation
of the separation to fail to qualify as tax-favored transactions, and such letter ruling or opinion, as the case may be, is acceptable to the parties.
Tyco International and Covidien are subject to similar restrictions under the Tax Sharing Agreement. Moreover, the Tax Sharing Agreement
generally provides that a party thereto is responsible for any taxes imposed on any other party thereto as a result of the failure of the distribution
or certain internal transactions to qualify as a tax-favored transaction under the Code if such failure is attributable to certain post-distribution
actions taken by or in respect of the responsible party or its shareholders, regardless of whether the actions occur more than two years after the
distribution, the other parties consent to such actions or such party obtains a favorable letter ruling or opinion of tax counsel as described above.
For example, we would be responsible for a third party's
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acquisition of us at a time and in a manner that would cause such failure. These restrictions may prevent us from entering into transactions which
might be advantageous to our securityholders.

Risks Relating to Our Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Legislation and negative publicity regarding Bermuda companies could increase our tax burden and adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Tax Legislation

        We continue to assess the impact of various U.S. federal and state legislative proposals, and modifications to existing tax treaties between
the United States and foreign countries, that could result in a material increase in our U.S. federal and state taxes. The U.S. Congress has in the
past considered and is anticipated to continue to consider legislation affecting the tax treatment of companies that have undertaken certain types
of expatriation transactions or companies' use of or relocation to offshore jurisdictions, including Bermuda. We continue to monitor such
potential U.S. federal legislative proposals, as well as potential proposals relating to deductible payments from U.S. subsidiaries to foreign
parents. Tax legislation may be introduced, passed, or modified by the U.S. Congress in the future that would have material adverse effects on us
if enacted. Such adverse effects could include substantially reducing the tax benefits of our corporate structure, materially increasing our tax
burden or otherwise materially adversely affecting our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Negative Publicity

        There is continuing negative publicity regarding, and criticism of, companies' use of or relocation to offshore jurisdictions, including
Bermuda. As a Bermuda company, this negative publicity could harm our reputation and impair our ability to generate new business if
companies or governmental agencies decline to do business with us as a result of any perceived negative public image of Bermuda companies or
the possibility of our customers receiving negative media attention from doing business with a Bermuda company.

Legislation Relating to Governmental Contracts

        We expect the U.S. Congress to continue to consider implementation and/or expansion of policies that would restrict the federal and state
governments from contracting with entities that move their corporate locations abroad. We are unable to predict the likelihood that, or final form
in which, any such proposed legislation might become law, the nature of regulations that may be promulgated under any future legislative
enactments, or the effect such enactments and increased regulatory scrutiny may have on our business. We are unable to predict whether the
final form of any potential legislation discussed above also would affect our indirect sales to the U.S. federal or state governments or the
willingness of our non-governmental customers to do business with us. As a result of these uncertainties, we are unable to assess the potential
impact of any proposed legislation in this area and cannot assure you that the impact will not be materially adverse to us.

Bermuda law differs from the laws in effect in the United States and may afford less protection to holders of our securities.

        We are organized under the laws of Bermuda. It may not be possible to enforce court judgments obtained in the United States against us in
Bermuda based on the civil liability provisions of the U.S. federal or state securities laws. In addition, there is some uncertainty as to whether the
courts of Bermuda would recognize or enforce judgments of U.S. courts obtained against us or our directors or officers based on the civil
liabilities provisions of the U.S. federal or state securities laws or hear actions against us or those persons based on those laws. We have been
advised that the United States and Bermuda currently do not have a treaty providing for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments
in civil and commercial matters. Therefore, a final judgment for the payment of money
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rendered by any U.S. federal or state court based on civil liability, whether or not based solely on U.S. federal or state securities laws, would not
automatically be enforceable in Bermuda.

        As a Bermuda company, we are governed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, which differs in some material respects from laws
generally applicable to United States corporations and shareholders, including differences relating to interested director and officer transactions,
shareholder lawsuits, and indemnification. Likewise, the duties of directors and officers of a Bermuda company generally are owed to the
company only. Shareholders of Bermuda companies generally do not have a personal right of action against directors or officers of the company
and may exercise such rights of action on behalf of the company only in limited circumstances. Under Bermuda law, a company also may agree
to indemnify directors and officers for any personal liability, not involving fraud or dishonesty, incurred in relation to the company. Thus,
holders of our securities may have more difficulty protecting their interests than would holders of securities of a corporation incorporated in a
jurisdiction of the United States.

Risks Relating to Our Common Shares

The market price of our common shares may fluctuate widely.

        The market price of our common shares may fluctuate widely, depending upon many factors, including:

�
our quarterly or annual earnings;

�
changes in quarterly or annual sales or earnings guidance that we may provide;

�
actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

�
extreme volatility in financial markets and market fluctuations caused by the global economic downturn and deterioration of
credit conditions;

�
changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts or our ability to meet those estimates;

�
changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations, or principles;

�
announcements by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions or dispositions; and

�
the operating and stock price performance of comparable companies.

Certain provisions of our bye-laws may reduce the likelihood of any unsolicited acquisition proposal or potential change of control
that our shareholders might consider favorable.

        Our bye-laws contain provisions that could be considered "anti-takeover" provisions because they make it harder for a third party to acquire
us without the consent of our incumbent board of directors. Under these bye-law provisions:

�
shareholders may not remove directors without cause, change the size of the board of directors or, except in limited
circumstances, fill vacancies on the board of directors;

�
shareholders may act only at shareholder meetings and not by written consent;
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�
shareholders must comply with advance notice provisions for nominating directors or presenting other proposals at
shareholder meetings;

�
restrictions will apply to any merger or other business combination (including an amalgamation under Bermuda law)
between our company and any holder of 15% or more of our issued voting shares who became such without the prior
approval of our board of directors; and

�
our board of directors may without shareholder approval issue preferred shares and determine their rights and terms,
including voting rights, or adopt a shareholder rights plan.

        These provisions, which may only be amended by the affirmative vote of the holders of 80% of our issued voting shares, could have the
effect of discouraging an unsolicited acquisition proposal or delaying, deferring, or preventing a change of control transaction that might involve
a premium price or otherwise be considered favorably by our shareholders.
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 ITEM 1B.    UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

        Not applicable.

 ITEM 2.    PROPERTIES

Properties

        Our principal offices in the United States are located in Berwyn, Pennsylvania in a facility that we rent. We operate nearly 150
manufacturing, warehousing, and office locations in approximately 30 states in the United States. We also operate over 250 manufacturing,
warehousing, and office locations in approximately 50 countries and territories outside the United States.

        We own approximately 18 million square feet of space and lease approximately 11 million square feet of space. Our facilities are
reasonably maintained and suitable for the operations conducted in them.

Manufacturing

        We manufacture our products in approximately 25 countries worldwide. These manufacturing sites focus on various aspects of the
manufacturing processes, including our primary processes of stamping, plating, molding, extrusion, beaming, and assembly. We expect to
continue to migrate our manufacturing activities to low-cost countries as our customers' requirements shift. In addition, we will continue to look
for efficiencies to reduce our manufacturing costs and believe that we can achieve cost reductions through improved manufacturing efficiency
and through the migration of manufacturing to low-cost countries.

        Our centers of manufacturing output at September 26, 2008 included sites in the following countries:

Number of Manufacturing Facilities
Electronic
Components

Network
Solutions

Undersea
Telecommunications

Wireless
Systems Total

Americas:
United States 24 3 1 1 29
Mexico 5 1 � � 6
Brazil 1 � � � 1

Europe/Middle
East/Africa:

United Kingdom 3 5 � � 8
Germany 4 3 � � 7
India 5 1 � � 6
France 3 1 � � 4
Switzerland 3 1 � � 4
Spain 3 � � � 3
Belgium 1 1 � � 2
Czech Republic 2 � � � 2
Ireland � 1 � 1 2
Italy 2 � � � 2
Austria 1 � � � 1
Hungary 1 � � � 1
Poland 1 � � � 1
Portugal 1 � � � 1
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Number of Manufacturing Facilities
Electronic
Components

Network
Solutions

Undersea
Telecommunications

Wireless
Systems Total

Asia-Pacific:
China 13 2 � � 15
Japan 3 � � � 3
Indonesia � 1 � � 1
Korea 1 � � � 1
Malaysia � 1 � � 1
New Zealand 1 � � � 1
Singapore 1 � � � 1
Thailand � 1 � � 1

Total 79 22 1 2 104

        We estimate that our manufacturing production by region in fiscal 2008 was approximately: Americas�30%, Europe/Middle
East/Africa�40%, and Asia-Pacific�30%.

        We expect that manufacturing production will continue to increase in the Asia-Pacific region as a percentage of total manufacturing as this
region continues to experience strong growth and our customers' manufacturing continues to migrate to the region.

 ITEM 3.    LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Tyco Electronics Legal Proceedings

        In the ordinary course of business, we are subject to various legal proceedings and claims, including antitrust claims, product liability
matters, environmental matters, employment disputes, disputes on agreements, and other commercial disputes. In addition, we operate in an
industry susceptible to significant patent legal claims. At any given time in the ordinary course of business, we are involved as either a plaintiff
or defendant in a number of patent infringement actions. If infringement of a third party's patent were to be determined against us, we might be
required to make significant royalty or other payments or might be subject to an injunction or other limitation on our ability to manufacture or
sell one or more products. If a patent owned by or licensed to us were determined to be invalid or unenforceable, we might be required to reduce
the value of the patent on our balance sheet and to record a corresponding charge, which could be significant in amount.

        Management believes that these legal proceedings and claims likely will be resolved over an extended period of time. Although it is not
feasible to predict the outcome of these proceedings, based upon our experience, current information and applicable law, we do not expect that
these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on our financial position. However, one or more of the proceedings could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations for a future period.

Legal Matters under Separation and Distribution Agreement

        The Separation and Distribution Agreement provided for the allocation among us, Tyco International, and Covidien of Tyco International's
assets, liabilities, and obligations attributable to periods prior to our and Covidien's separations from Tyco International on June 29, 2007. Under
the Separation and Distribution Agreement, we assumed the liability for, and control of, all pending and threatened legal matters at separation
related to our own business or assumed or retained liabilities, and will indemnify the other parties for any liability arising out of or resulting
from such assumed legal matters. Tyco Electronics will be responsible for 31% of certain potential liabilities that may arise from litigation
pending or threatened at separation that was not allocated to one of the three parties, and Tyco International and Covidien are responsible for
27% and 42%, respectively, of such liabilities. If
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any party defaults in payment of its allocated share of any such liability, each non-defaulting party will be responsible for an equal portion of the
amount in default together with any other non-defaulting party, although any such payments will not release the obligation of the defaulting
party. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, Tyco International manages and controls all the legal
matters related to the shared contingent liabilities, including the defense or settlement thereof, subject to certain limitations. All costs and
expenses that Tyco International incurs in connection with the defense of such litigation, other than the amount of any judgment or settlement,
which will be allocated in the manner described above, will be borne equally by Tyco International, Covidien, and us.

Tyco International Legal Proceedings

Securities Actions

Securities Class Actions and Settlements

        As previously reported in our periodic filings, prior to the announcement by Tyco International of the planned separation of Tyco
Electronics and Covidien in January 2006, Tyco International and certain of its former directors and officers were named as defendants in over
40 purported securities class action lawsuits. As a part of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, any existing or potential liabilities related
to the securities class actions were allocated among Tyco International, Covidien, and us. We are responsible for 31% of potential liabilities that
may arise upon the resolution of the remaining pending litigation.

        Most of the securities class actions were transferred to the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire for coordinated or
consolidated pre-trial proceedings. A consolidated securities class action complaint was filed in these proceedings, and on June 12, 2006, the
court entered an order certifying a class "consisting of all persons and entities who purchased or otherwise acquired Tyco securities between
December 13, 1999 and June 7, 2002, and who were damaged thereby, excluding defendants, all of the officers, directors and partners thereof,
members of their immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors or assigns, and any entity in which any of the foregoing
have or had a controlling interest." As previously reported, Tyco International settled 32 of the purported securities class action lawsuits arising
from the actions alleged to have been taken by its prior management, for which we were responsible for 31%. All legal contingencies that could
have affected the final order entered in the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire approving the settlement expired on
February 21, 2008. As of the opt-out deadline for the settlement, Tyco International received opt-out notices from individuals and entities
totaling approximately 4% of the shares owned by class members. A number of these individuals and entities have filed actions separately
against Tyco International and/or Tyco International, Covidien, and us. Generally, the claims asserted by these plaintiffs include violations of the
disclosure provisions of federal securities laws. Tyco International has advised us that it intends to vigorously defend any litigation resulting
from opt-out claims. It is not possible at this time to predict the final outcome or to estimate the amount of loss or range of possible loss, if any,
that might result from an adverse resolution of the asserted or unasserted claims from individuals that have opted out. One of the opt-out lawsuits
was filed by certain BlackRock funds against Tyco International, Covidien and us. One of our directors, Robert M. Hernandez, is a
trustee/director of certain of the BlackRock funds named as plaintiffs in the lawsuit. However, Mr. Hernandez was not informed and had no
knowledge of the lawsuit because he had been recused from all discussions and decisions relating to the lawsuit. Mr. Hernandez will continue to
recuse himself from any and all matters relating to the lawsuit in both his capacity as a director of Tyco Electronics and as a trustee/director of
certain BlackRock funds.

        Two additional securities cases were settled in fiscal 2008, and since the end of fiscal 2008, two additional securities cases, Hess v. Tyco
International Ltd., et al. and Sciallo v. Tyco International Ltd.,
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et al., have been settled as described below. A few securities cases remain outstanding, including Stumpf v. Tyco International Ltd., et al., Jasin
v. Tyco International Ltd., et al., and Hall v. Kozlowski, et al. Additionally, several cases asserting claims arising under ERISA remain
outstanding.

        If the unresolved securities proceedings were to be determined adversely to Tyco International, our share of any additional potential losses
under the terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, which are not presently estimable, may have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

Securities Actions Not Covered by the Class Action Settlement or Other Settlements

        As previously reported in our periodic filings, an action entitled Hess v. Tyco International Ltd., et al. was filed on June 3, 2004 in the
Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles against certain of Tyco International's former directors and officers,
Tyco International's former auditors, and Tyco International. The complaint asserts claims of fraud, negligent representation, aiding and abetting
breach of fiduciary duty, and breach of fiduciary duty in connection with, and subsequent to, an underlying settlement of litigation brought by
shareholders in Progressive Angioplasty Systems, Inc. where the plaintiffs received Tyco International's stock as consideration. In November
2008, Tyco International entered into a definitive agreement to settle this action, and our allocated portion of the settlement amount under the
Separation and Distribution Agreement is approximately $5 million.

        As previously reported in our periodic filings, on October 30, 2003, Stumpf v. Tyco International Ltd., et al. was transferred to the United
States District Court for the District of New Hampshire by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation. The complaint asserts claims against
Tyco International based on Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act") and Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
Exchange Act. This action is in the pre-trial stage.

        As previously reported in our periodic filings, an action entitled Sciallo v. Tyco International Ltd., et al. was filed on September 30, 2003 in
the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against defendants Tyco International and certain former Tyco
International directors and executives. The complaint alleged plaintiffs traded U.S. Surgical stock options for Tyco International stock options
when Tyco International acquired U.S. Surgical on October 1, 1998 and asserted causes of action under Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, for common law fraud and negligence, and violation of New York General Business Law Section 349,
which prohibits deceptive acts and practices in the conduct of any business. The Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation transferred this action
to the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire. In November 2008, Tyco International entered into a definitive agreement
to settle this action, and our allocated portion of the settlement amount under the Separation and Distribution Agreement is less than $1 million.

        As previously reported in our periodic filings, an action was filed on September 2, 2004 in the Court of Common Pleas for Dauphin
County, Pennsylvania, entitled Jasin v. Tyco International Ltd., et al. This pro se plaintiff named as additional defendants Tyco International
(U.S.) Inc. and certain of Tyco International's former executives. Plaintiff's complaint asserts causes of action under Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, as well as Section 11 of the Securities Act. Claims against the former executives also are
asserted under Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereunder and Section 20A of the Exchange Act, as well as
Sections 11, 12(a)(2) and 15 of the Securities Act. Plaintiff also asserts common law fraud, negligent misrepresentation, unfair trade practice,
breach of contract, breach of the duty of good faith and fair dealing, and violation of Section 1-402 of the Pennsylvania Securities Act of 1972.
Tyco International removed the complaint to the United States District Court for the Middle District of Pennsylvania and
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the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation transferred this action to the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire. This
action is in the pre-trial stage.

        As previously reported in our periodic filings, the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation transferred Hall v. Kozlowski, et al., an action
relating to plaintiff's employment, 401(k) and pension plans, and ownership of Tyco International stock, to the United States District Court for
the District of New Hampshire. This action is in the pre-trial stage.

ERISA Litigation

        As previously reported in our periodic filings, Tyco International and certain of its current and former employees, officers, and directors
have been named as defendants in eight class actions brought under ERISA. All eight actions were consolidated in the United States District
Court for the District of New Hampshire. The consolidated complaint purports to bring claims on behalf of the Tyco International Retirement
Savings and Investment Plans and the participants therein and alleges that the defendants breached their fiduciary duties under ERISA by
negligently misrepresenting and negligently failing to disclose material information concerning, among other things, the following: related-party
transactions and executive compensation; Tyco International's mergers and acquisitions and the accounting therefor, as well as allegedly
undisclosed acquisitions; and misstatements of Tyco International's financial results. The complaint also asserts that the defendants breached
their fiduciary duties by allowing the Plans to invest in Tyco International's shares when it was not a prudent investment. The complaints seek
recovery of alleged plan losses arising from alleged breaches of fiduciary duties. On August 15, 2006, the court entered an order certifying a
class "consisting of all Participants in the Plans for whose individual accounts the Plans purchased and/or held shares of Tyco Stock Fund at any
time from August 12, 1998 to July 25, 2002." This action is in the pre-trial stage.

Investigations

        As previously reported in our periodic filings, Tyco International and others have received various subpoenas and requests from the SEC's
Division of Enforcement, the U.S. Department of Labor, the General Services Administration, and others seeking the production of voluminous
documents in connection with various investigations into Tyco International's governance, management, operations, accounting, and related
controls prior to the separation. The Department of Labor is investigating Tyco International and the administrators of certain of its benefit
plans. Tyco International has advised us that it cannot predict when these investigations will be completed, nor can it predict what the results of
these investigations may be. It is possible that Tyco International will be required to pay material fines or suffer other penalties, and pursuant to
the liability sharing provisions of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, a portion of such payments may be allocated to us. It is not
possible to estimate the amount of loss, or range of possible loss, if any, that might result from an adverse resolution of these matters. As a
result, our share of such potential losses also is not estimable and may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial
position, or cash flows.

Compliance Matters

        As previously reported in our periodic filings, Tyco International received and has responded to various allegations that certain improper
payments were made by Tyco International subsidiaries, including Tyco Electronics subsidiaries, in recent years prior to the separation. Tyco
International reported to the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") and the SEC the investigative steps and remedial measures that it had taken in
response to the allegations, including that it retained outside counsel to perform a company-wide baseline review of its policies, controls, and
practices with respect to compliance with the FCPA, that it would continue to make periodic progress reports to these agencies, and that it would
present its factual findings upon conclusion of the baseline review. To date, our baseline review has revealed that some of our former business
practices may not comply with FCPA
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requirements. At this time, we cannot predict the outcome of these matters and other allegations reported to regulatory and law enforcement
authorities and therefore cannot estimate the range of potential loss or extent of risk, if any, that may result from an adverse resolution of these
matters. However, it is possible that we may be required to pay judgments, suffer penalties, or incur settlements in amounts that may have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. Any judgment, settlement, or other cost incurred by Tyco
International in connection with these matters not specifically allocated to Tyco International, Covidien, or us would be subject to the liability
sharing provisions of the Separation and Distribution Agreement.

 ITEM 4.    SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

        No matters were submitted to security holders for a vote during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended September 26, 2008.
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 PART II

 ITEM 5.    MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

        Tyco Electronics' common shares are listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") and the Bermuda Stock Exchange
under the symbol "TEL," and began trading on the NYSE on a "when-issued" basis on June 14, 2007 prior to Tyco Electronics' spin-off from
Tyco International on June 29, 2007. The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices of Tyco Electronics' common shares as
reported by the NYSE for the quarterly periods from and after June 14, 2007.

Market Price Range
Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2007 High Low
Third Quarter (June 14, 2007 through June 29, 2007) $ 39.75 $ 35.95
Fourth Quarter 40.30 32.45
Fiscal Year Ended September 26, 2008
First Quarter $ 37.97 $ 31.36
Second Quarter 37.13 31.18
Third Quarter 40.12 34.04
Fourth Quarter 37.40 26.90

        The number of registered holders of Tyco Electronics' common shares at November 17, 2008 was 39,071.

Dividends

        The following table sets forth the dividends declared on Tyco Electronics' common shares for the quarterly periods presented below.

Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2007

Dividend per
Common
Share

Fourth Quarter $ 0.14
Fiscal Year Ended September 26, 2008
First Quarter 0.14
Second Quarter 0.14
Third Quarter 0.14
Fourth Quarter 0.16

        Future dividends on our common shares, if any, will be at the discretion of Tyco Electronics' board of directors and will depend on, among
other things, our results of operations, cash requirements and surplus, financial condition, statutory requirements of Bermuda law, contractual
restrictions, and other factors that the board of directors may deem relevant. We may from time to time enter into financing agreements that
contain financial covenants and restrictions, some of which may limit the ability of Tyco Electronics to pay dividends.

Performance Graph

        Set forth below is a graph comparing the cumulative total shareholder return on Tyco Electronics' common shares against the cumulative
return on the S&P 500 Index and the Dow Jones Wilshire
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Electrical Components & Equipment Index, assuming investment of $100 on June 14, 2007, the first day of "when-issued" trading of Tyco
Electronics' common shares on the NYSE prior to our separation from Tyco International on June 29, 2007, including the reinvestment of
dividends, and the investment of $100 in the Indexes on May 31, 2007. The graph shows the cumulative total return as of the fiscal years ended
September 28, 2007 and September 26, 2008. The comparisons in the graph below are based upon historical data and are not indicative of, nor
intended to forecast, future performance of the common shares.

6/14/07* 9/28/07 9/26/08
Tyco Electronics Ltd. 100.00 91.20 70.50
S&P 500 100.00 100.34 78.29
Dow Jones Wilshire Electrical Components & Equipment 100.00 100.72 76.90

*
$100 invested on 6/14/07 in Tyco Electronics' common shares or on 5/31/07 in Index�including reinvestment of dividends. Indexes calculated on
month-end basis.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

        Under the Separation and Distribution Agreement among Tyco International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics, we were required from time
to time to issue common shares upon the conversion of convertible notes of Tyco International that were outstanding at the time of the
separation. During the fiscal quarter ended September 26, 2008, we issued 201,669 unregistered common shares upon the conversion of Tyco
International convertible notes.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

        The following table provides information as of September 26, 2008 with respect to Tyco Electronics' common shares issuable under its
equity compensation plans or equity compensation plans of Tyco International prior to the separation:

Plan Category

Number of
securities

to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding

options, warrants
and rights

(a)

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding
options,

warrants and
rights
(b)

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
future issuance

under
equity

compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected
in column (a))

(c)
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders:
2007 Stock and Incentive Plan(1) 5,076,564 $ 39.39 19,766,888

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders:
Equity awards under Tyco
International Ltd. 2004 Stock and
Incentive Plan and other equity
incentive plans(2) 23,766,736 $ 43.79

Total 28,843,300 19,766,888

(1)
The Tyco Electronics Ltd. 2007 Stock and Incentive Plan (the "2007 Plan") provides for the award of share options, stock appreciation rights, annual
performance bonuses, long-term performance awards, restricted units, deferred stock units, restricted shares, promissory shares, and other share-based
awards (collectively, "Awards") to board members, officers, and non-officer employees. The 2007 Plan provides for a maximum of 24,843,452
common shares to be issued as Awards, subject to adjustment as provided under the terms of the 2007 Plan.

(2)
Includes common shares that may be issued by Tyco Electronics pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement under equity awards, including
share options, restricted shares, restricted stock units, and deferred stock units, granted to current and former employees and directors of Tyco
International Ltd. and its subsidiaries, which may include individuals currently or formerly employed by or serving with Tyco Electronics, Tyco
International, or Covidien subsequent to the separation. See Note 24 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information
regarding these outstanding awards.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

        The following table presents information about our purchases of our common shares during the fiscal quarter ended September 26, 2008:

Period

Total
Number
of Shares

Purchased(1)

Average
Price

Paid Per
Share(1)

Total Number
of

Shares
Purchased
as Part of
Publicly

Announced
Plans or

Programs(2)

Maximum
Approximate
Dollar Value
of Shares that

May
Yet Be

Purchased
Under the
Plans

or Programs(2)
June 28�July 25, 2008 3,210,671 $ 35.23 3,210,604 $ 268,747,820
July 26�August 29, 2008 4,370,064 33.25 4,370,064 873,445,780
August 30�September 26, 2008 4,905,043 28.98 4,904,744 731,320,097

Total 12,485,778 $ 32.08 12,485,412 $ 731,320,097

(1)
This column includes the following transactions which occurred during the fiscal quarter ended September 26, 2008:

(i)
the acquisition of 366 common shares from individuals in order to satisfy tax withholding requirements in connection with the vesting of
restricted shares issued under equity compensation plans; and

(ii)
the purchase of 12,485,412 common shares, summarized on a trade-date basis, in conjunction with the repurchase program announced in
September 2007, which transactions occurred in open market purchases and pursuant to a trading plan under Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange
Act.

(2)
On July 28, 2008, our board of directors approved and authorized an increase of the share repurchase program from $1.25 billion to $2.0 billion. The
share repurchase program authorizes the company to purchase a portion of our outstanding common shares from time to time through open market or
private transactions, depending on business and market conditions. The share repurchase program does not have an expiration date.

 ITEM 6.   SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

        The following table presents selected consolidated and combined financial and other operating data for Tyco Electronics. The consolidated
and combined statement of operations data for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of September 26, 2008 and
September 28, 2007 are derived from our audited consolidated and combined financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The
combined statement of operations data for fiscal 2005 and 2004 and the combined balance sheet data as of September 29, 2006 and
September 30, 2005 are derived from our audited combined financial statements not included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The combined
balance sheet data as of September 30, 2004 is derived from our unaudited combined financial statements not included elsewhere in this Annual
Report. The unaudited combined financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated and combined financial
statements and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair
presentation of the information set forth herein.

        The data presented below should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements and accompanying
notes and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
Our consolidated and combined financial information may not be indicative of our future performance and does not
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necessarily reflect what our financial position and results of operations would have been had we operated as an independent, publicly-traded
company during the periods presented.

As of or for Fiscal

2008(1) 2007(2)(6) 2006(3)(6) 2005(4)(6) 2004(5)(6)

(in millions, except per share data)
Statement of Operations Data
Net sales $14,834 $ 12,959 $ 11,811 $ 10,924 $ 10,079
Gross income 3,770 3,339 3,194 2,978 2,901
Litigation settlement, net 22 887 � � �
Separation costs � 44 � � �
Restructuring and other charges (credits), net 185 92 7 (11) (34)
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets 137 � � � �
Gain on divestiture � � � (301) �
Income from operations 1,746 716 1,742 1,961 1,574
Income (loss) from continuing operations 1,594 (178) 1,447 979 726
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes 188 (376) (246) 154 36
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net
of income taxes � � (8) 11 �
Net income (loss) $ 1,782 $ (554) $ 1,193 $ 1,144 $ 762
Per Share Data(7)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 3.30 $ (0.36) $ 2.91 $ 1.97 $ 1.46
Net income (loss) 3.69 (1.11) 2.40 2.30 1.53

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 3.28 $ (0.36) $ 2.91 $ 1.97 $ 1.46
Net income (loss) 3.67 (1.11) 2.40 2.30 1.53

Cash dividends per share $ 0.58 $ 0.14 $ � $ � $ �
Balance Sheet Data
Total current assets $ 7,095 $ 9,996 $ 6,686 $ 6,339 $ 6,246
Total assets 21,600 23,688 19,091 18,473 18,789
Total current liabilities 3,332 6,204 3,167 3,188 3,004
Long-term debt and obligations under capital
leases 3,161 3,373 3,371 3,816 5,208
Total equity 11,073 11,377 11,160 9,842 8,242
Working capital(8) 3,763 3,792 3,519 3,151 3,242
Other Operating Data
Capital expenditures $ 619 $ 875 $ 519 $ 467 $ 384

(1)
Fiscal 2008 income from continuing operations includes net litigation settlement costs of $22 million, net restructuring and other charges of
$185 million, impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets of $137 million, other income of $567 million pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement with
Tyco International and Covidien, and an income tax benefit of $33 million related to the analysis and reconciliation of tax accounts. (See Notes 17, 4,
5, 20, and 19 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.) Fiscal 2008 net income includes $188 million of income, net of income taxes,
from discontinued operations. (See Note 6 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.)

(2)
Fiscal 2007 loss from continuing operations includes net litigation settlement costs of $887 million, separation costs of $44 million, net restructuring
and other charges of $92 million, and allocated loss on retirement of debt of $232 million. (See Notes 17, 3, 4, and 13 to the Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements.) Fiscal 2007 net loss includes $376 million of loss, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations. (See Note 6 to
the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.)
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(3)
Fiscal 2006 net income includes a $246 million loss, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations as well as an $8 million loss, net of income
taxes, related to the cumulative effect of accounting change recorded in conjunction with the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board

Interpretation No. 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations�an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143." (See Notes 6 and 2 to
the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.)

(4)
Fiscal 2005 income from continuing operations includes a $301 million gain on the divestiture of the Tyco Global Network as well as a $365 million
loss on retirement of debt. Fiscal 2005 net income includes $154 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations and an
$11 million gain, net of income taxes, related to the cumulative effect of accounting change recorded in conjunction with the change in measurement
date for pension and postretirement benefit plans.

(5)
Fiscal 2004 income from continuing operations includes $102 million of loss on retirement of debt. Fiscal 2004 net income includes $36 million of
income, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.

(6)
The Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors businesses met the held for sale and discontinued operations criteria
in fiscal 2008. As such, we have reclassified amounts previously reported to reflect these businesses as discontinued operations in all periods presented.
For additional information regarding discontinued operations, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations�Discontinued Operations" and Note 6 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

(7)
For all periods prior to our separation from Tyco International, basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share were calculated utilizing the basic shares
outstanding at June 29, 2007, the date of separation.

(8)
Working capital is defined as current assets minus current liabilities.

 ITEM 7.   MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

        The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements and the accompanying notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The following
discussion may contain forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates, and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from
those discussed in these forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include those factors discussed
below and elsewhere in this Annual Report, particularly in "Risk Factors" and "Forward-Looking Information."

Separation From Tyco International Ltd.

        Effective June 29, 2007, Tyco Electronics Ltd. ("Tyco Electronics" or the "Company", which may be referred to as "we," "us," or "our"), a
company organized under the laws of Bermuda, became the parent company of the former electronics businesses of Tyco International Ltd.
("Tyco International"). On June 29, 2007, Tyco International distributed all of its shares of Tyco Electronics, as well as its shares of its former
healthcare businesses ("Covidien"), to its common shareholders (the "Separation").

        The Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements reflect the consolidated operations of Tyco Electronics Ltd. and its subsidiaries as an
independent, publicly-traded entity subsequent to the Separation and a combined reporting entity comprising the assets and liabilities used in
managing and operating the electronics businesses of Tyco International, including Tyco Electronics Ltd., for periods prior to the Separation.

        Our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements have been prepared in United States dollars, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). The Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for periods
prior to the Separation may not be indicative of our future performance and do not necessarily reflect what our consolidated and combined
results of operations, financial position, and cash flows would have been had we operated as an independent, publicly-traded company during
the periods presented. Certain general corporate overhead, net class action settlement costs, and other expenses as well as debt and related net
interest expense for periods prior to the Separation were allocated to us by Tyco International.
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Management believes such allocations were reasonable; however, they may not be indicative of our actual results had we been operating as an
independent, publicly-traded company for the periods presented. See Note 18 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further
information regarding allocations.

        As discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report, prior to the Separation, we used the corporate services of Tyco International for a variety of
functions including treasury, tax, legal, internal audit, human resources, and risk management. We no longer rely on Tyco International for these
services.

Overview

        We are a leading global provider of engineered electronic components, network solutions, undersea telecommunication systems, and
wireless systems. We operate through four reporting segments: Electronic Components, Network Solutions, Undersea Telecommunications, and
Wireless Systems. We design, manufacture, and market approximately 500,000 different products for customers in industries ranging from
automotive, appliance, and aerospace and defense to telecommunications, computer, and consumer electronics. We believe the end markets that
we sell into are balanced with the total end market demand for electronic components.

        We service our customers primarily through our direct sales force that serves customers in over 150 countries. The sales force is supported
by nearly 8,000 engineers, as well as globally deployed manufacturing sites. Through our sales force and engineering resources, we are able to
collaborate with our customers anywhere in the world to provide highly engineered products and solutions to meet their needs.

        Our strategic objective is to increase our revenue and profitability across all of our segments in the markets we serve. This strategy is
dependent upon the following strategic priorities:

�
leverage our market leadership position to increase our market share;

�
achieve market leadership in attractive and under-penetrated industries;

�
extend our leadership in key emerging markets;

�
supplement organic growth with strategic acquisitions;

�
continue to focus our existing portfolio;

�
improve operating margins; and

�
accelerate new product development through research and development excellence. 

        Key business factors that influenced our results of operations for the periods discussed in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations include:

�
Market conditions.  We have experienced sales growth that was driven by the continued increased use of electronics across
the end markets that we serve. This sales growth was achieved despite industry pricing pressures. Over the periods shown,
we have experienced price erosion of approximately 1% to 3%. We expect price erosion to continue in the future. The
increase in our net sales for each fiscal year in the periods shown reflects volume increases that more than offset the impact
of pricing pressures.
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Raw material price increases.  We purchase approximately 200 million pounds of copper and approximately 220,000 troy
ounces of gold annually. During the periods shown, the prices of these key raw materials, as well as the prices of certain
other raw materials, have increased substantially. Copper prices remain high relative to historical levels, but the rate of
increase has
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slowed over the past year. The following table illustrates the increase in average prices related to our most significant raw
materials, copper and gold, during the periods presented:

Fiscal Year

Measure 2008 2007 2006
Copper Lb. $3.40 $3.20 $2.80
Gold Troy oz. $ 870 $ 653 $ 572

�
Foreign exchange.  Approximately 54% of our net sales are invoiced in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Our results of
operations are influenced by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Increases or decreases in the value of the U.S.
dollar, compared to other currencies, will directly affect our reported results as we translate those currencies into U.S. dollars
at the end of each fiscal period. The percentage of net sales in fiscal 2008 by major currencies invoiced was as follows:

U.S. Dollar 46%
Euro 32
Japanese Yen 7
Chinese Renminbi 3
Korean Won 3
British Pound Sterling 2
All others 7

Total 100%

Economic Conditions

        Current instability in the worldwide financial markets, including volatility in and disruption of the credit markets, has resulted in uncertain
economic conditions along with significant volatility in raw material costs and currency markets. Our business and operating results have been
and will continue to be affected by worldwide economic conditions. Our sales are dependent on certain end markets that are impacted by
consumer as well as industrial and infrastructure spending, and our operating results can be adversely affected by reduced demand in those
markets. As a result of recent economic trends, we anticipate a 15% to 20% decrease in net sales in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 as compared
to the first quarter of fiscal 2008 primarily as a result of slowing demand in the consumer related end markets served by our Electronic
Components segment. Specifically, the economic uncertainty has had the most pronounced effect in the automotive market, where major
manufacturers in all regions have significantly reduced their production forecasts for the December quarter. As a result, we expect our
automotive net sales to decline approximately 20% to 25% in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 as compared to the same period of fiscal 2008.

        The decline in net sales coupled with anticipated unfavorable factory cost absorption will result in lower operating income in the first
quarter of fiscal 2009 as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2008. In addition, we utilize financial derivative instruments to manage our
currency exposures related to operating costs. In early fiscal 2009, there has been significant volatility in certain eastern European currencies
which has resulted in foreign currency losses of approximately $50 million primarily related to the mark-to-market of derivative financial
instruments.

        We are monitoring the current environment and its potential effects on our customers and on the end markets we serve. Additionally, we
continue to closely manage our costs in order to respond to changing conditions. We are also managing our capital resources and monitoring
capital availability to ensure that we have sufficient resources to fund our future capital needs. (See further discussion in

37

Edgar Filing: Tyco Electronics Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

48



"Liquidity and Capital Resources�Capitalization.") A more severe and/or prolonged economic downturn could adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Discontinued Operations

        During fiscal 2008, our board of directors authorized us to pursue the divestiture of our Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and
Automotive Radar Sensors businesses. In September 2008, we completed the sale of the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem business
for net cash proceeds of $427 million and recorded a $184 million pre-tax gain on the sale. In September 2008, we also completed the sale of the
Automotive Radar Sensors business for net cash proceeds of $42 million and recorded a $31 million pre-tax gain on the sale. The proceeds
received in both transactions are subject to final working capital adjustments.

        The divestiture of our Power Systems business was authorized during fiscal 2007. As a result, we assessed Power Systems' assets for
impairment and determined that the book value of the Power Systems business exceeded its estimated fair value. We recorded a $585 million
pre-tax impairment charge in fiscal 2007 in income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes on the Consolidated and Combined
Statement of Operations. In fiscal 2008, we completed the sale of the Power Systems business for $102 million in net cash proceeds and
recorded a $51 million pre-tax gain on the sale.

        During fiscal 2006, we entered into a definitive agreement to divest our Printed Circuit Group business. In fiscal 2007, we completed the
sale of the Printed Circuit Group business for $227 million in net cash proceeds and recorded a $45 million pre-tax gain on the sale.

        The Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem, Automotive Radar Sensors, Power Systems, and Printed Circuit Group businesses have
been included in discontinued operations in all periods presented in our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. Prior to
reclassification to discontinued operations, the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors businesses were
components of the Wireless Systems segment. Both the Power Systems and Printed Circuit Group businesses were components of the Other
segment, which has been renamed the Undersea Telecommunications segment. See Note 6 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements for additional information regarding discontinued operations.

Divestitures and Manufacturing Simplification

        As part of our strategy, we regularly review and consider the divestiture of underperforming or non-strategic businesses to improve our
operating results and better utilize our capital. We have made strategic divestitures in the past and expect that we may make additional
divestitures in the future. Some of these divestitures may have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

        We plan to continue to simplify our global manufacturing footprint, by migrating facilities from high-cost to low-cost countries,
consolidating within countries, and transferring product lines to low-cost countries. These initiatives are designed to help us to maintain our
competitiveness in the industry. In connection with our manufacturing rationalization plan, we expect to incur restructuring charges of up to
$200 million from fiscal 2009 through 2010.

Class Action Settlement

        As previously reported, Tyco International settled 32 purported securities class action lawsuits arising from actions alleged to have been
taken by its prior management. All legal contingencies that could have affected the final order approving the settlement expired on February 21,
2008. Tyco International received opt-out notices from individuals and entities totaling approximately 4% of the shares owned by class
members, including shares owned by the State of New Jersey pension funds

38

Edgar Filing: Tyco Electronics Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

49



mentioned below. A number of these individuals and entities have filed claims separately against Tyco International and/or Tyco International,
Covidien, and us. Under the terms of the settlement, the plaintiffs agreed to release all claims against Tyco International, the other settling
defendants, and ten other individuals in consideration for the payment of $2,975 million from Tyco International to the certified class.

        Under the terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement entered into in connection with the Separation, each of Tyco International,
Covidien, and Tyco Electronics are jointly and severally liable for the full amount of the class action settlement and any judgments resulting
from opt-out claims. Additionally, under the Separation and Distribution Agreement, the companies shared in the liability and related escrow
account, with Tyco International assuming 27%, Covidien 42%, and Tyco Electronics 31% of the settlement amount.

        In fiscal 2007, we were allocated a charge from Tyco International of $922 million, for which no tax benefit was available. In addition, in
fiscal 2007, we were allocated $35 million of income relating to Tyco International's expected recovery of certain costs from insurers. The net
charge of $887 million was recorded on the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations as litigation settlement, net. The portion
allocated to us was consistent with the sharing percentage included in the Separation and Distribution Agreement. Tyco International placed
funds in escrow for the benefit of the class. The escrow account earned interest that was payable to the class. In addition, interest was accrued on
the class action settlement liability. At fiscal year end 2007, we reflected $928 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for our portion of the
escrow. We also reflected a $2,992 million liability and a $2,064 million receivable from Tyco International and Covidien for their portion of the
liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 28, 2007.

        The finalization of the settlement in February 2008 resulted in the extinguishment of our class action settlement liability of $3,020 million,
interest in the escrow of $936 million, and class action settlement receivable of $2,084 million from the Consolidated Balance Sheet in the
second quarter of fiscal 2008. The finalization of the class action settlement resulted in a decrease to cash flows from operating activities and an
increase to cash flows from investing activities during fiscal 2008. It did not affect the cash balance on the Consolidated Balance Sheet because
we had previously fully funded our portion of the class action settlement into an escrow account intended to be used to settle the liability, as
mentioned above.

        The settlement did not resolve all securities cases, and several remain outstanding. In addition, the settlement did not resolve claims arising
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act ("ERISA") and the lawsuits arising thereunder. See "Part I. Item 3. Legal Proceedings" for
additional information about these proceedings. If the unresolved securities proceedings, including the opt-out cases noted above, were to be
determined adversely to Tyco International, our share of any additional potential losses, which are not presently estimable, may have a material
adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

Settlement of Securities Proceedings Not Covered by the Class Action Settlement

        As previously reported, on April 29, 2008, Tyco International signed a definitive agreement with the State of New Jersey, on behalf of
several of the State's pension funds, to settle the action captioned New Jersey v. Tyco International Ltd., et al., brought by the State in 2002 in
the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey against Tyco International, its former auditors, and certain of its former officers
and directors, alleging that the defendants had, among other things, violated federal and state securities and other laws through the unauthorized
and improper actions of Tyco International's former management. The agreement with the State of New Jersey provided for Tyco International
to make a payment of $73 million to the plaintiffs in exchange for the plaintiffs' agreement to dismiss the case and release all claims asserted or
which might have been asserted therein, which payment was
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made on June 2, 2008. In fiscal 2008, we recorded a charge of $23 million, for which no tax benefit was available. The charge represented our
share of the settlement costs in accordance with the sharing percentages included in the Separation and Distribution Agreement.

        As previously reported, on June 2, 2008, Tyco International entered into an agreement in principle with the trustee of various trusts that
brought claims against Tyco International in the previously disclosed action captioned Ballard v. Tyco International Ltd., et al., in the United
States District Court for the District of New Hampshire, alleging, among other things, securities fraud in connection with Tyco International's
acquisition in 1999 of AMP Incorporated. A definitive settlement agreement and release was executed on June 10, 2008. The settlement
agreement and release set forth the terms pursuant to which the parties settled all claims between them that were raised or could have been raised
in the litigation. The settlement agreement and release provided that Tyco International make a payment of $36 million to the plaintiffs, which
payment was subject to the sharing formula contained in the Separation and Distribution Agreement. Pursuant to the sharing formula, our net
liability was approximately $11 million, with Tyco International and Covidien responsible for approximately $10 million and $15 million,
respectively.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

        Organic net sales growth, which is included in the discussion below, is a non-GAAP financial measure. The difference between reported
net sales growth (the most comparable GAAP measure) and organic net sales growth (the non-GAAP measure) consists of the impact from
foreign currency exchange rates, acquisitions, and divestitures. Organic net sales growth is a useful measure of the underlying results and trends
in our business. It excludes items that are not completely under management's control, such as the impact of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates, and items that do not reflect the underlying growth of the company, such as acquisition and divestiture activity.

        We believe organic net sales growth provides useful information to investors because it reflects the underlying growth from the ongoing
activities of our business. Furthermore, it provides investors with a view of our operations from management's perspective. We use organic net
sales growth to monitor and evaluate performance, as it is an important measure of the underlying results of our operations. Management uses
organic net sales growth together with GAAP measures such as net sales growth and operating income in its decision making processes related
to the operations of our reporting segments and our overall company. Organic net sales growth is also a component of our compensation
programs. We believe that investors benefit from having access to the same financial measures that management uses in evaluating operations.
The discussion and analysis of organic net sales growth in Results of Operations below utilizes organic net sales growth as management does
internally. Because organic net sales growth calculations may vary among other companies, organic net sales growth amounts presented below
may not be comparable with similarly titled measures of other companies. Organic net sales growth is a non-GAAP financial measure that is not
meant to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for GAAP measures. The primary limitation of this measure is that it excludes items that
have an impact on our net sales. This limitation is best addressed by evaluating organic net sales growth in combination with our GAAP net
sales. The tables presented in Results of Operations below provide reconciliations of organic net sales growth to net sales growth calculated
under GAAP.
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 Results of Operations

Consolidated and Combined Operations

        The following table sets forth certain items from our Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations and the percentage of net sales
that such items represent for the periods shown.

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
($ in millions)

Net sales $14,834 100.0% $12,959 100.0% $11,811 100.0%
Cost of sales 11,064 74.6 9,620 74.2 8,617 73.0
Gross income 3,770 25.4 3,339 25.8 3,194 27.0

Selling, general, and administrative
expenses 1,680 11.3 1,600 12.3 1,445 12.2
Litigation settlement, net 22 0.1 887 6.8 � �
Separation costs � � 44 0.3 � �
Restructuring and other charges, net 185 1.2 92 0.7 7 0.1
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived
assets 137 0.9 � � � �
Income from operations 1,746 11.8 716 5.5 1,742 14.7

Interest income 32 0.2 53 0.4 48 0.4
Interest expense (188) (1.3) (231) (1.8) (256) (2.2)
Other income (expense), net 567 3.8 (219) (1.7) � �
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes and minority
interest 2,157 14.5 319 2.5 1,534 13.0

Income taxes (558) (3.8) (491) (3.8) (81) (0.7)
Income (loss) from continuing
operations 1,594 10.7 (178) (1.4) 1,447 12.3

Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes 188 1.3 (376) (2.9) (246) (2.1)
Net income (loss) $ 1,782 12.0% $ (554) (4.3)% $ 1,193 10.1%

         Net Sales.    Net sales increased $1,875 million, or 14.5%, to $14,834 million in fiscal 2008 from $12,959 million in fiscal 2007. In fiscal
2007, net sales increased $1,148 million, or 9.7%, to $12,959 million from $11,811 million in fiscal 2006. On an organic basis, net sales
increased 7.9% in fiscal 2008, reflecting growth in all of our business segments with above Company average growth in our Undersea
Telecommunications and Wireless Systems segments. Organic net sales increased 5.9% in fiscal 2007 as a result of strong growth in our
Undersea Telecommunications segment and sales in international markets. Foreign currency exchange rates, primarily the Euro, favorably
impacted net sales by $850 million, or 6.6%, in fiscal 2008 and $429 million, or 3.6%, in fiscal 2007. Price erosion adversely affected net sales
by $191 million in fiscal 2008, $197 million in fiscal 2007, and $286 million in fiscal 2006. See further discussion below under Results of
Operations by Segment.

        The following table sets forth the percentage of our total net sales by geographic region:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
Americas 36% 35% 36%
Europe/Middle East/Africa (EMEA) 37 37 36
Asia-Pacific 27 28 28

Total 100% 100% 100%
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        The following table provides an analysis of the change in our net sales compared to the prior fiscal year by geographic region:

Fiscal

2008 2007

Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year

Organic(1) Translation(2) Total Organic(1) Translation(2) Acquisitions Total
($ in millions)

Americas(3) $ 710 15.9% $ 87 $ 797 17.9% $173 4.1% $ 101 $ � $ 274 6.5%
Europe/Middle
East/Africa 116 2.4 583 699 14.5 227 5.3 308 17 552 12.9
Asia-Pacific 199 5.4 180 379 10.3 302 9.0 20 � 322 9.6

Total $1,025 7.9% $ 850 $1,875 14.5% $702 5.9% $ 429 $ 17 $1,148 9.7%

(1)
Represents the change in net sales resulting from volume and price changes, before consideration of acquisitions, divestitures, and the impact of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

(2)
Represents the change in net sales resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

(3)
The Americas includes our Undersea Telecommunications segment.

        The following table sets forth the percentage of our total net sales by segment:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
Electronic Components 74% 78% 79%
Network Solutions 15 15 15
Undersea Telecommunications 8 4 3
Wireless Systems 3 3 3

Total 100% 100% 100%

        The following table provides an analysis of the change in our net sales compared to the prior fiscal year by segment:

Fiscal

2008 2007

Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year

Organic(1) Translation(2) Total Organic(1) Translation(2) Acquisitions Total
($ in millions)

Electronic
Components $ 243 2.4% $ 689 $ 932 9.2% $375 4.0% $ 333 $ 17 $ 725 7.7%
Network Solutions 116 6.1 150 266 14.0 61 3.5 96 � 157 9.0
Undersea
Telecommunications 597 105.7 3 600 106.2 266 88.9 (1) � 265 88.3
Wireless Systems 69 18.0 8 77 19.9 � � 1 � 1 0.3

Total $1,025 7.9% $ 850 $1,875 14.5% $702 5.9% $ 429 $ 17 $1,148 9.7%

(1)
Represents the change in net sales resulting from volume and price changes, before consideration of acquisitions, divestitures, and the impact of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
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(2)
Represents the change in net sales resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

         Gross Income.    Gross income increased $431 million in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of higher sales volume. Gross
income as a percentage of net sales decreased by 40 basis points in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. We were negatively impacted by
lower volume growth in certain consumer related end markets in our Electronic Components segment and significant growth in our Undersea
Telecommunications segment which has a margin below our Company average.

        In fiscal 2007, gross income increased by $145 million over fiscal 2006; however, gross income as a percentage of net sales decreased by
120 basis points. Our margin percentage declined due to higher
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organic growth in lower margin markets such as Undersea Telecommunications. We also were negatively impacted by lower plant productivity
in North America as a result of sales declines in that market by our Electronic Components segment in fiscal 2007.

         Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses.    Selling, general, and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales decreased to
11.3% in fiscal 2008 as compared to 12.3% in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2008, selling, general, and administrative expenses included a $36 million
gain on the sale of real estate related to our Electronic Components segment. Excluding this gain, selling, general, and administrative expenses
were lower as a percentage of sales in fiscal 2008 due to sales volume leverage of our overhead structure. In 2007, selling, general, and
administrative expenses included allocated overhead expenses from Tyco International of $152 million. Also, we incurred costs of $41 million
in fiscal 2007 related to building separate company functions. A portion of these costs were duplicative in fiscal 2007 as we were also allocated
costs related to these functions from Tyco International until the Separation date.

        Selling, general, and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales were 12.3% and 12.2% in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Prior to Separation, selling, general, and administrative expenses included allocated overhead expenses from Tyco International, which
decreased by $25 million to $152 million in fiscal 2007 as compared to $177 million in fiscal 2006. As discussed above, we incurred costs of
$41 million in fiscal 2007 related to building separate company functions that did not exist in the prior fiscal year.

         Litigation Settlement, Net.    In fiscal 2008, we recorded a net charge of $22 million related to legacy securities litigation. A charge of
$11 million, for which no tax benefit was available, was recorded in connection with Tyco International's settlement of previously disclosed
securities litigation captioned Ballard v. Tyco International Ltd., et al. for $36 million. Also, in connection with Tyco International's settlement
of securities litigation with the State of New Jersey for $73 million, we recorded a charge of $23 million, for which no tax benefit was available.
These charges represent our share of the settlement costs in accordance with the sharing percentages included in the Separation and Distribution
Agreement. Also, we recorded income of $12 million in fiscal 2008 related to Tyco International's recovery of certain costs from insurers.

        As discussed above in "Overview�Class Action Settlement," in connection with the class action settlement, we were allocated a net charge
from Tyco International of $887 million in fiscal 2007.

        See Note 17 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further information regarding the class action settlement and the
settlement of legacy securities litigation.

         Separation Costs.    In connection with the Separation, we incurred costs of $44 million in fiscal 2007, primarily related to employee costs,
including non-cash compensation expense of $11 million related to the modification of share option awards at Separation and $12 million related
to the acceleration of restricted share award vesting as a result of Separation. See Note 24 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements for further information on the conversion of Tyco International share option awards into Tyco Electronics share option awards.

         Restructuring and Other Charges, Net.    Net restructuring and other charges were $185 million in fiscal 2008 as compared to $92 million
in fiscal 2007. Total charges, including amounts reflected in cost of sales, increased $97 million to $194 million in fiscal 2008 from $97 million
in fiscal 2007. Increases resulted from our strategic priority to simplify our manufacturing footprint.

        During fiscal 2008 and 2007, we initiated restructuring actions primarily relating to the migration of product lines to low-cost countries and
the exit of certain manufacturing operations in the Electronic Components and Network Solutions segments. Fiscal 2007 actions also related to
the rationalization of
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a product line in the Wireless Systems segment. Restructuring charges recorded in both fiscal 2008 and 2007 primarily related to employee
severance and benefits.

        See Note 4 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further information regarding restructuring and other charges, net.

         Impairment of Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets.    During fiscal 2008, we recorded impairment charges of $137 million in the Electronic
Components segment, consisting of a goodwill impairment of $103 million and long-lived asset impairment of $34 million. The goodwill
impairment, which related to the Global Application and Tooling Division reporting unit, was incurred when the reporting unit experienced
slower growth and profitability than management's previous expectations and lower future expectations in certain end markets. The long-lived
asset impairment was comprised of $22 million related to the pending divestiture of our Battery Systems business and $12 million related to
certain dedicated manufacturing lines serving the North American automotive market.

        In September 2008, our board of directors authorized management to proceed with strategic alternatives with respect to our Battery Systems
business. Subsequent to fiscal year end 2008, we signed an agreement with a third party to sell this business for $30 million. Consequently, a
pre-tax impairment charge of $22 million has been recorded in fiscal 2008 to write the carrying value of the assets and liabilities down to the fair
value.

        See Notes 5 and 10 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further information regarding the impairment of goodwill
and long-lived assets.

         Income from Operations.    Income from operations was $1,746 million, or 11.8% of net sales, in fiscal 2008 as compared to $716 million,
or 5.5% of net sales, in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2008, restructuring related costs and legacy litigation expenses were $194 million and $22 million,
respectively. Fiscal 2008 results also included $137 million of impairment charges and a $36 million gain on the sale of real estate. Fiscal 2007
results included $887 million of allocated net class action settlement charges, $44 million of separation costs, $41 million of costs related to
building separate company functions, and $97 million of restructuring related and other charges. Excluding these items, higher sales levels drove
the increases in income from operations. The increase as a percentage of net sales resulted from increased operating margin in our Undersea
Telecommunications and Wireless Systems segments, primarily due to sales volume leverage of our overhead structure.

        Income from operations was $716 million, or 5.5% of net sales, in fiscal 2007 as compared to $1,742 million, or 14.7% of net sales, in
fiscal 2006. The decline resulted primarily from allocated net class action settlement costs of $887 million in fiscal 2007 and a higher level of
restructuring and other charges of $84 million related to our strategic initiative to simplify our manufacturing operations.

Results of Operations by Segment

Electronic Components

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
($ in millions)

Net sales $11,043 $10,111 $9,386
Income from operations $ 1,287 $ 1,339 $1,404
Operating margin 11.7% 13.2% 15.0%
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        The following table sets forth Electronic Components' percentage of total net sales by primary industry end market(1):

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
Automotive 40% 39% 38%
Computer 9 11 12
Communications 9 8 8
Industrial 6 6 5
Aerospace and Defense 6 6 5
Appliance 5 5 5
Consumer Electronics 2 2 2
Other 23 23 25

Total 100% 100% 100%

(1)
Industry end market information about net sales is presented consistently with our internal management reporting and may be
periodically revised as management deems necessary.

        The following table provides an analysis of the change in Electronic Components' net sales compared to the prior fiscal year by primary
industry end market(1):

Fiscal

2008 2007

Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year

Organic(2) Translation(3) Total Organic(2) Translation(3) Acquisitions Total
($ in millions)

Automotive $110 2.8% $ 354 $464 11.8% $192 5.4% $ 176 $ 17 $385 10.8%
Computer (66) (6.2) 38 (28) (2.6) (43) (3.9) 16 � (27) (2.4)
Communications 98 12.1 58 156 19.2 45 6.1 22 � 67 9.1
Industrial 87 15.0 55 142 24.5 53 11.5 17 � 70 15.2
Aerospace and Defense 51 8.7 30 81 13.9 54 10.6 15 � 69 13.5
Appliance (9) (1.8) 33 24 4.7 17 3.5 16 � 33 6.7
Consumer Electronics (7) (3.1) 12 5 2.3 22 11.7 3 � 25 13.4
Other (21) (0.9) 109 88 3.7 35 1.5 68 � 103 4.4

Total $243 2.4% $ 689 $932 9.2% $375 4.0% $ 333 $ 17 $725 7.7%

(1)
Industry end market information about net sales is presented consistently with our internal management reporting and may be periodically revised as
management deems necessary.

(2)
Represents the change in net sales resulting from volume and price changes, before consideration of acquisitions, divestitures, and the impact of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

(3)
Represents the change in net sales resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

        In fiscal 2008, Electronic Components' net sales increased $932 million, or 9.2%, to $11,043 million from $10,111 million in fiscal 2007.
The strengthening of certain foreign currencies favorably affected net sales by $689 million, or 6.8%, in fiscal 2008. Organic net sales growth of
2.4% in fiscal 2008 resulted from increases in volume partially offset by price erosion.
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        Electronic Components' organic net sales growth by industry end market was strongest in the industrial, communications, and aerospace
and defense markets in fiscal 2008. Our organic net sales growth of 15.0% in the industrial market in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 was due to
global demand for products in the solar and oil and gas markets and investment in industrial equipment for emerging markets. In the
communications market, our organic net sales growth of 12.1% in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 was primarily due to 28.8% growth in
our sales of interconnect components to
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mobile phone manufacturers resulting from our strategic efforts to increase our market share as well as end market unit growth. Our organic net
sales growth of 8.7% in the aerospace and defense market in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 was attributable to continued strong demand
in this end market. In the automotive market, our organic net sales growth of 2.8% in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 resulted from growth in the
Asia-Pacific region of 12.2% and the EMEA region of 3.8% partially offset by a 17.0% decline in the North America region that was driven by
continued reductions in production by automotive manufacturers. In the computer market, our organic net sales decline of 6.2% in fiscal 2008 as
compared to fiscal 2007 resulted from a strategic decision to exit certain low-margin products, which negatively impacted net sales by
approximately $57 million, and to be more selective in the new projects in which we participate.

        Electronic Components' operating income decreased $52 million, or 3.9%, to $1,287 million in fiscal 2008 from $1,339 million in fiscal
2007. In fiscal 2008, segment results included goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charges of $137 million and a gain on the sale of real
estate of $36 million. In addition, Electronic Components incurred $33 million of costs in fiscal 2007 that related to our Separation from Tyco
International. Excluding these items, higher sales were partially offset by higher raw material costs as well as increased restructuring costs of
$112 million in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

        Electronic Components' net sales increased $725 million, or 7.7%, to $10,111 million in fiscal 2007 from $9,386 million in fiscal 2006.
Approximately $333 million, or 3.5%, of the increase was due to the strengthening of certain foreign currencies in fiscal 2007 as compared to
fiscal 2006. Organic net sales growth of 4.0% in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 was attributable to increases in volume partially offset by price
erosion.

        In fiscal 2007, Electronic Components' organic net sales growth by industry end market was strongest in the consumer electronics,
industrial, and aerospace and defense end markets. Our organic growth of 11.7% in the consumer electronics market in fiscal 2007 as compared
to fiscal 2006 resulted from continued strong consumer demand as well as our continued focus on this market. In the industrial market, our
organic net sales growth of 11.5% in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 resulted from strong demand globally as companies continued to invest in
factory automation. In the aerospace and defense market, our organic net sales growth of 10.6% in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 was driven
primarily by strength in North America and Europe in the commercial aerospace market. Our organic net sales growth of 5.4% in the automotive
market in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 was attributable to growth in the Asia-Pacific region of 13.0% and the EMEA region of 5.4% partially
offset by a decline in the North America region that was driven by reduced production by automotive manufacturers. Finally, in the computer
market, our organic net sales declined 3.9% in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 due to a strategic decision to exit certain low-margin
products which negatively impacted net sales by $83 million.

        Electronic Components' operating income decreased $65 million, or 4.6%, to $1,339 million in fiscal 2007 from $1,404 million in fiscal
2006. Benefits from higher sales and favorable foreign currency increases were reduced by lower productivity resulting from sales declines in
North America primarily in automotive, housing related, and communications markets. Also, restructuring costs in fiscal 2007 increased
$45 million as compared to fiscal 2006, and segment results included $33 million of costs in fiscal 2007 that related to our Separation from Tyco
International that did not exist in fiscal 2006.
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Network Solutions

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
($ in millions)

Net sales $2,163 $1,897 $1,740
Income from operations $ 254 $ 231 $ 268
Operating margin 11.7% 12.2% 15.4%

        The following table sets forth Network Solutions' percentage of total net sales by primary industry end market(1):

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
Energy 45% 45% 44%
Communication Service Provider 27 28 31
Building Networks 25 24 22
Other 3 3 3

Total 100% 100% 100%

(1)
Industry end market information about net sales is presented consistently with our internal management reporting and may be
periodically revised as management deems necessary.

        The following table provides an analysis of the change in Network Solutions' net sales compared to the prior fiscal year by primary industry
end market(1):

Fiscal

2008 2007

Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year Change in Net Sales versus Prior Fiscal Year

Organic(2) Translation(3) Total Organic(2) Translation(3) Total
($ in millions)

Energy $ 49 5.7% $ 78 $127 15.0% $ 43 5.7% $ 47 $ 90 11.9%
Communication
Service Provider 17 3.2 31 48 9.0 (41) (7.4) 25 (16) (2.9)
Building Networks 51 11.3 37 88 19.3 61 16.2 19 80 21.4
Other (1) (2.5) 4 3 4.9 (2) (2.7) 5 3 5.0

Total $116 6.1% $ 150 $266 14.0% $ 61 3.5% $ 96 $157 9.0%

(1)
Industry end market information about net sales is presented consistently with our internal management reporting and may be periodically revised as
management deems necessary.

(2)
Represents the change in net sales resulting from volume and price changes, before consideration of acquisitions, divestitures, and the impact of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

(3)
Represents the percentage change in net sales resulting from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

        Network Solutions' net sales increased $266 million, or 14.0%, to $2,163 million in fiscal 2008 from $1,897 million in fiscal 2007. The
strengthening of certain foreign currencies favorably affected net sales by $150 million, or 7.9%, in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007. Organic net
sales growth was $116 million, or 6.1%, in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007.
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        On an organic basis, Network Solutions' organic net sales growth was strongest in the building networks industry end market in fiscal 2008
over fiscal 2007 with growth of 11.3% attributable to strong global demand for faster, higher capacity, and more secure networks. In the energy
market, our organic net sales growth of 5.7% in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 was attributable to solid growth in
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EMEA, Asia, and North America. In EMEA and North America, growth resulted from the upgrade of aging grids and the demand for alternate
energy sources. In both Asia and EMEA, growth was due to the build-out of energy infrastructure in emerging markets. In the communication
service provider market, our organic net sales growth of 3.2% in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007 reflects increased spending levels at certain U.S.
carriers that more than offset declines in EMEA.

        Network Solutions' operating income increased $23 million, or 10.0%, to $254 million in fiscal 2008 from $231 million in fiscal 2007. The
operating income increase resulted from increases in volume and decreased restructuring costs of $12 million partially offset by a lower margin
product mix and lower productivity levels in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. In addition, Network Solutions incurred $5 million of costs
in fiscal 2007 that related to our Separation from Tyco International.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

        Network Solutions' net sales increased $157 million, or 9.0%, to $1,897 million in fiscal 2007 from $1,740 million in fiscal 2006. The
strengthening of certain foreign currencies, primarily the Euro, favorably affected net sales by $96 million, or 5.5%, in fiscal 2007 over fiscal
2006. Organic net sales growth was $61 million, or 3.5%, in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006.

        In fiscal 2007, Network Solutions' organic net sales growth was strong in the building networks and energy end markets; however, organic
net sales declined in the communication service provider market. In the building networks market, our organic net sales growth of 16.2% in
fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 resulted from higher pricing on copper cabling products as well as increases in non-residential construction spending
and network upgrades in existing buildings. Our organic net sales growth of 5.7% in the energy market in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006
resulted from solid growth in EMEA due to continued strong demand for high voltage products used to replace/upgrade aging grids in developed
countries. On an organic basis, net sales decreased 7.4% in the communication service provider market in fiscal 2007, reflecting a pause in
spending on fiber network deployments by certain operators compared to strong sales in fiscal 2006 due to hurricane-related spending in the
Americas and the accelerated build-out of fiber networks by certain operators in Europe.

        Network Solutions' operating income decreased $37 million, or 13.8%, to $231 million in fiscal 2007 from $268 million in fiscal 2006.
Price increases offset increased raw material costs. The operating income decrease resulted from a $26 million increase in restructuring cost and
a lower margin sales mix due to the sales decline in the communication service provider market in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006. Also,
in fiscal 2007, we incurred $5 million of costs related to our Separation from Tyco International that did not exist in fiscal 2006.

Undersea Telecommunications

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
($ in millions)

Net sales $1,165 $565 $300
Income from operations $ 160 $ 38 $ 15
Operating margin 13.7% 6.7% 5.0%

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

        In fiscal 2008, Undersea Telecommunications' net sales increased $600 million, or 106.2%, to $1,165 million from $565 million in fiscal
2007. This growth was attributable to our execution of the construction of a transoceanic system that connects the U.S. and China, as well as
several other projects, including large projects in Asia, Africa, North America, and Europe. Foreign currency exchange rates had a minimal
impact on net sales.
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        With the completion of the transoceanic system linking the U.S. and China, we currently expect a decline in fiscal 2009 net sales as
compared to fiscal 2008; however, activity in this market remains strong, especially in Asia and emerging markets where broadband
requirements continue to increase. We expect that new projects will partially offset the reduction caused by the completion of the transoceanic
system.

        In fiscal 2008, Undersea Telecommunications' operating income increased $122 million to $160 million from $38 million in fiscal 2007 as
a result of increased volumes and improved operating leverage. Segment results included $1 million of costs in fiscal 2007 that related to our
Separation from Tyco International.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

        Net sales in the Undersea Telecommunications segment increased $265 million, or 88.3%, to $565 million in fiscal 2007 from $300 million
in fiscal 2006. On an organic basis, net sales increased by 88.9% in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 from our execution of the
construction of a transoceanic system that connects the U.S. and China as well as a project in the oil and gas market.

        Undersea Telecommunications had operating income of $38 million in fiscal 2007 as compared to $15 million in fiscal 2006 primarily as a
result of increases in sales. Restructuring costs in fiscal 2007 increased $9 million as compared to fiscal 2006, and segment results included
$1 million of costs in fiscal 2007 that related to our Separation from Tyco International that did not exist in fiscal 2006.

Wireless Systems

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
($ in millions)

Net sales $ 463 $ 386 $ 385
Income from operations $ 67 $ 39 $ 55
Operating margin 14.5% 10.1% 14.3%

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

        Wireless Systems' net sales increased $77 million, or 19.9%, to $463 million in fiscal 2008 from $386 million in fiscal 2007.
Approximately $8 million, or 1.9%, of the increase was due to the strengthening of certain foreign currencies in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal
2007. Organic net sales growth of 18.0% in fiscal 2008 resulted primarily from higher radio sales related to federally mandated re-banding
efforts, as well as the continued migration from analog to digital systems.

        Wireless Systems' operating income increased $28 million, or 71.8%, to $67 million in fiscal 2008 from $39 million in fiscal 2007. The
increase was the result of higher sales volumes and favorable sales mix in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. Also, segment results included
$3 million of restructuring costs and $2 million of costs that related to our Separation from Tyco International in fiscal 2007.

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

        In fiscal 2007, Wireless Systems' net sales increased $1 million to $386 million from $385 million in fiscal 2006. Organic net sales were
flat in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 as increases in government spending in the public safety market offset reduced demand for
equipment related to public safety channel re-banding programs. The impact of foreign currency exchange rates was minimal.

        In fiscal 2007, Wireless Systems' operating income decreased $16 million, or 29.1%, to $39 million from $55 million in fiscal 2006.
Increased engineering and selling investment in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 negatively impacted operating income. In addition,
operating income was negatively impacted by increased restructuring costs of $4 million in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 and
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$2 million of costs related to our Separation from Tyco International in fiscal 2007 that did not exist in fiscal 2006.

Non-Operating Items

Interest Expense, Net

        Net interest expense was $156 million in fiscal 2008, as compared to $178 million in fiscal 2007 and $208 million in fiscal 2006. The
decrease of $22 million, or 12.4%, in fiscal 2008 from fiscal 2007 was driven by lower average debt levels. The decrease of $30 million, or
14.4%, in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006 was also driven by lower average debt levels. In fiscal 2007, decreases in net interest expense allocated
by Tyco International were partially offset by interest incurred on our unsecured senior bridge loan and unsecured senior revolving credit
facilities.

        A portion of Tyco International's net interest expense was allocated to us through June 1, 2007. During fiscal 2007 and 2006, we were
allocated net interest expense of $130 million and $201 million, respectively, which included the impact of Tyco International's interest rate
swaps. Management believes the net interest expense allocation basis was reasonable; however, these amounts may not be indicative of the
actual amounts that we would have incurred had we been operating as an independent, publicly-traded company for these periods.

Other Income (Expense), Net

        In fiscal 2008, we recorded other income of $567 million pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement with Tyco International and Covidien, of
which $545 million related to certain incremental tax liabilities recorded in connection with the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards
Board ("FASB") Interpretation No. ("FIN") 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109." See
Notes 2 and 19 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information regarding the adoption of FIN 48. For further
information regarding the Tax Sharing Agreement, see Notes 17 and 18 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

        Net other expense of $219 million in fiscal 2007 includes an allocation from Tyco International of $232 million for loss on retirement of
debt. See Note 13 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information. Additionally, in fiscal 2007, we recorded
other income of $13 million associated with Tyco International's and Covidien's share of certain contingent tax liabilities relating to unresolved
tax matters of legacy Tyco International.

Income Taxes

        Our effective income tax rate was 25.9% for fiscal 2008 and includes a benefit of $198 million primarily related to the pre-tax income of
$545 million recognized in connection with our adoption of FIN 48, for which no tax was provided. The effective tax rate was also impacted by
increased accruals in fiscal 2008 of interest related to uncertain tax positions partially offset by a $42 million benefit associated with a favorable
settlement with a taxing authority for certain legacy tax issues. In addition, the effective tax rate for fiscal 2008 reflects the benefits of increased
profitability in operations in lower tax rate jurisdictions, a $33 million benefit related to adjustments to tax account balances, a $25 million
increase in the valuation allowance related to restructuring charges, and a $22 million tax detriment recorded in connection with the goodwill
impairment charge for which a tax benefit was not fully realized.

        Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2007 includes the effects of the pre-tax charges recorded in connection with the allocated class action
settlement and loss on retirement of debt for which no tax benefits were recorded. These impacts on the effective tax rate in fiscal 2007 were
$312 million and $81 million, respectively. In addition, the fiscal 2007 effective tax rate reflects tax detriments related to increased borrowings
in order to fund the class action settlement escrow and our Separation from Tyco International.
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        Our effective income tax rate was 5.3% for fiscal 2006. The effective tax rate in fiscal 2006 includes a net release of $268 million of
deferred tax asset valuation allowances recorded in connection with improved profitability in certain jurisdictions, principally the U.S. Our U.S.
results of operations in fiscal 2006 combined with other available evidence, including projections of future taxable income, indicated that it is
more likely than not we will realize additional deferred tax assets in the future, and accordingly, the related valuation allowances were reduced.
In addition to the valuation allowance release, effective tax rate was impacted by a $39 million state tax benefit recognized in fiscal 2006,
primarily related to the Tyco Global Network divestiture, as well as $87 million of tax benefits associated with the receipt of a favorable
non-U.S. tax ruling permitting the deduction of historical debt retirement costs.

        The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets of $873 million and $703 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, respectively, relates
principally to the uncertainty of the utilization of certain deferred tax assets, primarily tax loss, capital loss, and credit carryforwards in various
jurisdictions. We believe that we will generate sufficient future taxable income to realize the tax benefits related to the remaining net deferred
tax assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. The valuation allowance was calculated in accordance with the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes," which requires that a valuation allowance be established or
maintained when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of deferred tax assets will not be realized.

        The calculation of our tax liabilities includes estimates for uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations across multiple global
jurisdictions where we conduct our operations. Under the provisions of FIN 48, we recognize liabilities for tax as well as related interest for
issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes and related interest will
be due. These tax liabilities and related interest are reflected net of the impact of related tax loss carryforwards as such tax loss carryforwards
will be applied against these tax liabilities and will reduce the amount of cash tax payments due upon the eventual settlement with the tax
authorities. These estimates may change due to changing facts and circumstances; however, due to the complexity of these uncertainties, the
ultimate resolution may result in a settlement that differs from our current estimate of the tax liabilities and related interest. Further, management
has reviewed with tax counsel the issues raised by certain taxing authorities and the adequacy of these recorded amounts. If our current estimate
of tax and interest liabilities is less than the ultimate settlement, an additional charge to expense may result. If our current estimate of tax and
interest liabilities is more than the ultimate settlement, income tax benefits may be recognized. Substantially all of these tax liabilities and related
interest are recorded in income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as payment is not expected within one year.

        We have provided income taxes for earnings that are currently distributed as well as the taxes associated with several subsidiaries' earnings
that are expected to be distributed in fiscal year 2009. No additional provision has been made for U.S. or non-U.S. income taxes on the
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries or for unrecognized deferred tax liabilities for temporary differences related to basis differences in
investments in subsidiaries, as such earnings are expected to be permanently reinvested, the investments are essentially permanent in duration, or
we have concluded that no additional tax liability will arise as a result of the distribution of such earnings. As of September 26, 2008, certain
subsidiaries had approximately $10 billion of undistributed earnings that we intend to permanently reinvest. A liability could arise if our
intentions to permanently reinvest such earnings were to change and amounts are distributed by such subsidiaries or if such subsidiaries are
ultimately disposed. It is not practicable to estimate the additional income taxes related to permanently reinvested earnings or the basis
differences related to investments in subsidiaries.
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Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income Taxes

        Income from discontinued operations was $188 million in fiscal 2008, and loss from discontinued operations was $376 million and
$246 million in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively.

        During fiscal 2008, our board of directors authorized us to pursue the divestiture of our Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and
Automotive Radar Sensors businesses. In September 2008, we completed the sale of the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem business
for net cash proceeds of $427 million and recorded a $184 million pre-tax gain on the sale. In September 2008, we also completed the sale of the
Automotive Radar Sensors business for net cash proceeds of $42 million and recorded a $31 million pre-tax gain on the sale. The proceeds
received in both transactions are subject to final working capital adjustments.

        During fiscal 2008, we completed the sale of our Power Systems business for $102 million in net cash proceeds and recorded a $51 million
pre-tax gain on the sale.

        During fiscal 2007, the divestiture of our Power Systems business was authorized, and in connection with the approval, we recorded a
$585 million pre-tax impairment charge. Also, in fiscal 2007, we completed the sale of the Printed Circuit Group business for $227 million in
net cash proceeds and recorded a $45 million pre-tax gain on the sale.

        During fiscal 2006, we recorded a goodwill impairment of $316 million related to the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and
Automotive Radar Sensors reporting units, which were reporting units in the Wireless Systems segment prior to reclassification to discontinued
operations.

        See Note 6 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information regarding discontinued operations.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change

        During fiscal 2006, we adopted FIN 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations�an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 143." Accordingly, we have recognized asset retirement obligations of $16 million and net property, plant, and equipment of $4 million in
our Combined Balance Sheet at fiscal year end 2006. In addition, we recorded a cumulative effect of accounting change which resulted in an
$8 million after-tax, $12 million pre-tax, loss. See Note 2 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for more information on
FIN 47.
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 Liquidity and Capital Resources

        The following table summarizes the sources and uses of our cash flow from continuing operating activities for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Income from operations $ 1,746 $ 716 $1,742
Class action settlement (936) 887 �
Non-cash restructuring and other charges, net 47 23 4
Depreciation and amortization 559 514 459
Deferred income taxes 174 163 (14)
Provisions for losses on accounts receivable and inventory 41 82 62
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets 137 � �
Other, net 38 (15) 6
Income tax advance payment � (163) �
Changes in assets and liabilities, net (78) (30) (346)
Interest income 32 53 48
Interest expense (188) (231) (256)
Income tax expense (558) (491) (81)

Net cash provided by continuing operating activities $ 1,014 $1,508 $1,624

Other cash flow items:
Capital expenditures $ (619) $ (875) $ (519)
Proceeds from divestiture of businesses 571 227 �
Payment of common dividends (271) � �
Repurchase of common shares (1,242) � �

        Net cash provided by continuing operating activities in fiscal 2008 was $1,014 million as compared to $1,508 million in fiscal 2007. The
decline in fiscal 2008 was driven by the class action settlement of $936 million. As discussed above, the finalization of the class action
settlement in the second quarter of fiscal 2008 resulted in a decrease to cash flows from operating activities and an increase to cash flows from
investing activities. It did not affect the cash balance on the Consolidated Balance Sheet because we had previously fully funded our portion of
the class action settlement into an escrow account intended to be used to settle the liability. Also, in fiscal 2007, cash from continuing operating
activities was negatively impacted by a $163 million advance tax payment to the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") for legacy tax liabilities.

        We continue to fund capital expenditures to support new programs and to invest in machinery and our manufacturing facilities to further
enhance productivity and manufacturing capabilities. Capital spending decreased $256 million in fiscal 2008 to $619 million as compared to
$875 million in fiscal 2007. During fiscal 2007, we exercised our option to buy five cable-laying sea vessels that were previously leased to us
and used by the Undersea Telecommunications segment at a cost of $280 million, which was reflected as a capital expenditure. We expect
long-term capital investment levels of approximately 4% to 5% of net sales each year.

        In fiscal 2008, we received net cash proceeds of $102 million, $427 million, and $42 million related to the sale of the Power Systems,
Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem, and Automotive Radar Sensors businesses, respectively. In fiscal 2007, we received $227 million
in net cash proceeds related to the sale of the Printed Circuit Group business. Also, during fiscal 2007, we funded our portion of the class action
settlement escrow for $928 million. Related net class action settlement costs of $887 million were recognized in fiscal 2007.
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        The amount of pension and postretirement benefit contributions reflected in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $77 million, $71 million, and
$69 million, respectively. We anticipate pension contributions to be $70 million to $80 million per year on an ongoing basis before consideration
of voluntary contributions.

        The amount of income taxes paid, net of refunds, during fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 was $369 million, $450 million, and $274 million,
respectively. The amount of income taxes paid, net of refunds, during fiscal 2007 included the $163 million related to the advance payment to
the IRS for legacy tax liabilities.

Capitalization

        Total debt at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 was $3,181 million and $3,378 million, respectively. See Note 13 to the Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements for additional information regarding debt.

        During September 2007, Tyco Electronics Group S.A. ("TEGSA"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued $800 million
principal amount of 6.00% senior notes due 2012, $750 million principal amount of 6.55% senior notes due 2017, and $500 million principal
amount of 7.125% senior notes due 2037. In connection with the issuance of the senior notes, we and TEGSA entered into a registration rights
agreement with the initial purchasers under which we and TEGSA agreed, for the benefit of the holders of the senior notes, to file with the SEC
an exchange offer registration statement within 210 days after the date of the original issue of the notes. The registration statement became
effective April 15, 2008, and the exchange offer was completed on May 20, 2008, meeting the registration requirements.

        During July 2008, TEGSA issued $300 million principal amount of 5.95% senior notes due 2014. The notes were offered and sold pursuant
to an effective registration statement on Form S-3 filed on July 1, 2008. Interest on the notes accrues from their date of issuance at a rate of
5.95% per year and is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year, beginning on January 15, 2009. The notes are TEGSA's
unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of the existing and future senior debt and senior to any subordinated
indebtedness that TEGSA may incur. Net proceeds from the issuance were approximately $298 million.

        In July 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TEGSA issued $100 million principal amount of profit sharing notes with an initial maturity
date of 2010. Remuneration on the notes is paid quarterly, commencing on October 15, 2008, based on the after tax profits of the TEGSA
subsidiary, with quarterly remuneration not to exceed 0.9615% of the outstanding principal.

        As of September 28, 2007, TEGSA had $550 million of indebtedness outstanding under its unsecured senior bridge loan facility, which
bore interest at the rate of 5.47%. During fiscal 2008, we paid off all balances and cancelled all commitments under the unsecured senior bridge
loan facility.

        In April 2007, TEGSA entered into a five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility. The commitments under the revolving credit
facility total $1,500 million; however, $75 million of these commitments are from a subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. Due to the
Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing by Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. in September 2008, we believe it is unlikely that this $75 million commitment
will be honored. Accordingly, our useable commitments under the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility are likely $1,425 million.
Borrowings under the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility bear interest, at TEGSA's option, at a base rate or the London
interbank offered rate plus a margin dependent on TEGSA's credit ratings and the amount drawn under the facility. TEGSA is required to pay an
annual facility fee ranging from 4.5 to 12.5 basis points depending on its credit ratings.

        As of September 28, 2007, TEGSA had $700 million of indebtedness outstanding under the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit
facility, which bore interest at the rate of 5.38%. In July 2008, all amounts outstanding under the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit
facility were paid
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off with proceeds from the issuance of the $300 million principal amount of 5.95% senior notes and $100 million principal amount of profit
sharing notes, as well as cash from operations.

        In November 2007, TEGSA commenced issuing commercial paper to U.S. institutional accredited investors and qualified institutional
buyers in accordance with available exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act, as part of our ongoing effort to enhance
financial flexibility and to potentially decrease the cost of borrowings. As of fiscal year end 2008, TEGSA had $647 million of commercial
paper outstanding at an average interest rate of 4.01%. Borrowings under the commercial paper program are backed by the five-year unsecured
senior revolving credit facility.

        TEGSA's payment obligations under its senior notes, five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility, commercial paper, and profit
sharing notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Tyco Electronics Ltd.

        Our debt agreements contain financial and other customary covenants. None of these covenants are presently considered restrictive to our
operations. As of September 26, 2008, we were in compliance with all of our debt covenants.

        In September 2008, our board of directors declared a regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.16 per common share. The dividend was paid on
November 4, 2008. Future dividends to holders of our common shares, if any, will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend
on, among other things, our results of operations, cash requirements and surplus, financial condition, statutory requirements of Bermuda law,
contractual restrictions, and other factors that the board of directors may deem relevant.

        In September 2007, our board of directors authorized a share repurchase program of $750 million to purchase a portion of our outstanding
common shares. Our board of directors authorized an increase in the share repurchase program from $750 million to $1,250 million in March
2008 and an additional increase in the program from $1,250 million to $2,000 million in July 2008. In fiscal 2008, we repurchased
approximately 37 million common shares for $1,269 million under this program, of which $1,242 million was paid as of September 26, 2008.
No common shares were repurchased under this program in fiscal 2007.

        On September 19, 2005, we were awarded a contract to build and operate the statewide private radio system for the State of New York.
Under the contractual terms, this is a twenty-year contract that requires us to build the network and lease it to the State. As we build the network
over the next five years, we will need to invest approximately $500 to $550 million. As of September 26, 2008, we have invested $56 million,
which is included primarily in inventory on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

        On August 29, 2008, we were served by the State of New York with a default notice related to the first regional network, pursuant to the
contract. Under the contract, we had 45 days to rectify the deficiencies noted by the State. We believe that these deficiencies have been
remediated and the system is operating in accordance with the contract specifications. On October 16, 2008, we certified the system ready for
testing and presented our conclusions to the State of New York. The State's testing is scheduled to occur in November and December 2008. The
level of investment in fiscal 2009 will be dependent upon the conclusion of the State's testing. We estimate that our investment in fiscal 2009
will not exceed $100 million.

        Our ability to fund our future capital needs will be affected by our ability to continue to generate cash from operations and our ability to
access the capital markets, money markets, or other sources of financing, as well as the capacity and terms of our financing arrangements which
are discussed above. We believe that cash from operations and, to the extent necessary, these other sources of potential funding are sufficient to
meet our anticipated capital needs. Although we have been able to issue commercial paper, to the extent that market instability causes
interruptions to the commercial paper market, we may elect to borrow under our five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility. Our
liquidity has not been materially impacted by the current credit environment, and we do not expect that it will be materially impacted in the near
future. There can be no assurance, however, that the cost or availability of future borrowings will not be impacted by the ongoing credit market
instability. We will continue to monitor the market in order to respond to changing conditions.
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 Commitments and Contingencies

        The following table provides a summary of our contractual obligations and commitments for debt, minimum lease payments obligations
under non-cancelable leases, and other obligations at fiscal year end 2008.

Payments due by fiscal year

Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 There-after
(in millions)

Debt(1)(2) $3,181 $667 $101 $ 1 $ �$858 $ 1,554
Operating leases 483 118 88 67 46 37 127
Purchase obligations(3) 128 128 � � � � �

Total contractual cash obligations(4) $3,792 $913 $189 $ 68 $ 46 $895 $ 1,681

(1)
Excludes interest.

(2)
Our outstanding commercial paper of $647 million at September 26, 2008 is classified as long-term as borrowings under the commercial paper program
are backed by the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility. On the maturity schedule above, the $647 million is presented as maturing in
fiscal 2009.

(3)
Purchase obligations consist of commitments for purchases of goods and services.

(4)
Total contractual cash obligations in the table above exclude pension and postretirement benefit obligations, income taxes, and other long-term
liabilities.

We have pension and postretirement benefit obligations to certain employees and former employees. We are obligated to make contributions to our
pension plans and postretirement benefit plans; however, we are unable to determine the amount of plan contributions due to the inherent uncertainties
of obligations of this type, including timing, interest rate charges, investment performance, and amounts of benefit payments. We expect to contribute
$83 million to pension and postretirement benefit plans in fiscal 2009 and $70 million to $80 million per year on an ongoing basis, before consideration
of voluntary contributions. These plans and our estimates of future contributions and benefit payments are more fully described in Note 16 to the
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. 

Income taxes and other long-term liabilities are excluded from the table above as we are unable to estimate the timing of payment for these items.

        At September 26, 2008, we had outstanding letters of credit and letters of guarantee in the amount of $338 million.

        At September 26, 2008, we had a contingent purchase price commitment of $80 million related to the fiscal 2001 acquisition of Com-Net
by the Wireless Systems segment. This represents the maximum amount payable to the former shareholders of Com-Net only after the
construction and installation of a communications system for the State of Florida is finished and the State has approved the system based on the
guidelines set forth in the contract. A liability for this contingency has not been recorded in our Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements as the amount of this contingency is not currently estimable.

Income Tax Matters

        In connection with the Separation, we entered into a Tax Sharing Agreement that generally governs Covidien's, Tyco Electronics', and Tyco
International's respective rights, responsibilities, and obligations after the distribution with respect to taxes, including ordinary course of business
taxes and taxes, if any, incurred as a result of any failure of the distribution of all of the shares of Covidien or Tyco Electronics to qualify as a
tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes within the meaning of Section 355 of the Code or certain internal transactions
undertaken in anticipation of the spin-offs to qualify for tax-favored treatment under the Code.

        Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement and Tax Sharing Agreement, upon Separation, we entered into certain guarantee
commitments and indemnifications with Tyco
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International and Covidien. Under these agreements, principally the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics
share 27%, 42%, and 31%, respectively, of certain contingent liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International. The
effect of the Tax Sharing Agreement is to indemnify us for 69% of certain liabilities settled by Tyco Electronics with respect to unresolved
legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that indemnification, we have made similar indemnifications to Tyco International and Covidien with respect to
31% of certain liabilities settled by the companies with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. If any of the companies responsible for all or a
portion of such liabilities were to default in its payment of costs or expenses related to any such liability, we would be responsible for a portion
of the defaulting party or parties' obligation.

        Prior to Separation, certain of our subsidiaries filed combined tax returns with Tyco International. Those and other of our income tax
returns are periodically examined by various tax authorities. In connection with these examinations, tax authorities, including the IRS, have
raised issues and proposed tax adjustments. Tyco International, as the U.S. income tax audit controlling party under the Tax Sharing Agreement,
is reviewing and contesting certain of the proposed tax adjustments. Amounts related to these tax adjustments and other tax contingencies and
related interest that management has assessed under the provisions of FIN 48, which relate specifically to Tyco Electronics entities, have been
recorded in our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. In addition, we may be required to fund portions of Covidien and Tyco
International's tax obligations. Estimates about these guarantees have also been recognized in the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements. See Note 14 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information.

        In prior years, in connection with the IRS audit of various fiscal years, Tyco International submitted to the IRS proposed adjustments to
these prior period U.S. federal income tax returns resulting in a reduction in the taxable income previously filed. The IRS accepted substantially
all of the proposed adjustments for fiscal years 1997 through 2000 for which the IRS had completed its field work. On the basis of previously
accepted amendments, we have determined that acceptance of adjustments presented for additional periods through fiscal 2005 is probable and,
accordingly, have recorded them, as well as the impacts of the adjustments accepted by the IRS, in the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements.

        During fiscal 2007, the IRS concluded its field examination of certain of Tyco International's U.S. federal income tax returns for the years
1997 through 2000 and issued anticipated Revenue Agent Reports which reflect the IRS' determination of proposed tax adjustments for the
periods under audit. Tyco International has agreed with the IRS on adjustments totaling $498 million, with an estimated cash impact of
$458 million which was paid by Tyco International during fiscal 2007. Our portion of this payment reduced income taxes on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet by $163 million. It is our understanding that Tyco International has appealed other proposed adjustments totaling approximately
$1 billion and is vigorously defending its prior filed tax return positions.

        Additionally, the IRS proposed civil fraud penalties against Tyco International arising from alleged actions of former executives in
connection with certain intercompany transfers of stock in 1998 and 1999. Any penalty imposed would be subject to sharing with Tyco
International and Covidien under the Tax Sharing Agreement. It is our understanding that Tyco International is vigorously opposing the
assertion of any such penalties. We continue to believe that the amounts recorded in our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements
relating to these matters are appropriate; however, the ultimate resolution is uncertain and, should Tyco International lose its appeal, it could
result in a material impact to our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        Tyco International continues to complete proposed adjustments to the remainder of its U.S. federal income tax returns. In fiscal 2008,
certain proposed adjustments to U.S. federal income tax returns were completed by Tyco International and presented to the IRS. As a result, in
fiscal 2008, we recorded a $225 million decrease in income tax liabilities, a $42 million decrease in deferred tax assets, a $140 million decrease
in the receivable from Tyco International and Covidien recorded in connection with the Tax Sharing Agreement, a $57 million increase in the
indemnification liability to Tyco
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International and Covidien, and a $14 million charge to contributed surplus. See Note 14 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements for additional information regarding the indemnification liability to Tyco International and Covidien. In addition, in fiscal 2008,
Tyco International, Covidien, and we completed and filed certain fiscal 2007 U.S. consolidated federal and state income tax returns which
included a combination of Tyco International, Covidien, and our subsidiaries. As a result, we recorded a $66 million decrease in income tax
liabilities with a corresponding offset to the income tax receivable, a $44 million decrease in the receivable from Tyco International and
Covidien and a $42 million decrease in the payable to Tyco International and Covidien pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement, a $30 million
increase in contributed surplus, and a $32 million net adjustment to other related tax accounts. As our tax return positions continue to be
updated, additional adjustments may be identified and recorded in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. While the final
adjustments cannot be determined until the income tax return amendment process is completed, we believe that any resulting adjustments will
not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows. Additionally, adjustments may be recorded to
shareholders' equity in the future for the impact of filing final or amended income tax returns in certain jurisdictions where those returns include
a combination of Tyco International, Covidien, and/or our subsidiaries for the periods prior to the Separation.

Legal Matters

        In the ordinary course of business, we are subject to various legal proceedings and claims, including patent infringement claims, antitrust
claims, product liability matters, environmental matters, employment disputes, disputes on agreements, and other commercial disputes.
Management believes that these legal proceedings and claims likely will be resolved over an extended period of time. Although it is not feasible
to predict the outcome of these proceedings, based upon our experience, current information and applicable law, we do not expect that these
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on our financial position. However, one or more of the proceedings could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations for a future period. See "Part I. Item 3. Legal Proceedings" and Note 17 to the Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements for further information regarding legal proceedings.

        Prior to the announcement of the planned separation in January 2006, Tyco International and certain former directors and officers were
named as defendants in several lawsuits relating to securities class action, shareholder lawsuits, and ERISA related litigation. As a part of the
Separation and Distribution Agreement, any existing or potential liabilities related to this outstanding litigation have been allocated among Tyco
International, Covidien, and us. We are responsible for 31% of potential liabilities that may arise upon the settlement of any remaining pending
litigation. If Tyco International or Covidien were to default on their obligation to pay their allocated share of these liabilities, however, we would
be required to pay additional amounts. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, Tyco International
manages and controls all the legal matters related to the shared contingent liabilities, including the defense or settlement thereof, subject to
certain limitations. The liability sharing provisions regarding these class actions are set forth in the Separation and Distribution Agreement
among Tyco International, Tyco Electronics, and Covidien.

 Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

        Certain of our segments have guaranteed the performance of third parties and provided financial guarantees for uncompleted work and
financial commitments. The terms of these guarantees vary with end dates ranging from fiscal 2009 through the completion of such transactions.
The guarantees would be triggered in the event of nonperformance. We believe the potential exposure for nonperformance under the guarantees
would not have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.
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        In disposing of assets or businesses, we often provide representations, warranties, and/or indemnities to cover various risks including
unknown damage to the assets, environmental risks involved in the sale of real estate, liability for investigation and remediation of
environmental contamination at waste disposal sites and manufacturing facilities, and unidentified tax liabilities and legal fees related to periods
prior to disposition. We do not have the ability to estimate the potential liability from such indemnities because they relate to unknown
conditions; however, we have no reason to believe that these uncertainties would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations,
financial position, or cash flows.

        We have recorded liabilities for known indemnifications included as part of environmental liabilities. See Note 17 to the Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements for a discussion of these liabilities.

        In the normal course of business, we are liable for contract completion and product performance. In the opinion of management, such
obligations will not significantly affect our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement and Tax Sharing Agreement, upon Separation, we entered into certain guarantee
commitments and indemnifications with Tyco International and Covidien. Under these agreements, principally the Tax Sharing Agreement,
Tyco International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics share 27%, 42%, and 31%, respectively, of certain contingent liabilities relating to
unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International. The effect of the Tax Sharing Agreement is to indemnify us for 69% of certain liabilities
settled by us with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that indemnification, we have made similar indemnifications to Tyco
International and Covidien with respect to 31% of certain liabilities settled by the companies with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. If
any of the companies responsible for all or a portion of such liabilities were to default in its payment of costs or expenses related to any such
liability, we would be responsible for a portion of the defaulting party or parties' obligation. These arrangements have been valued upon our
Separation from Tyco International in accordance with FIN 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others," and accordingly, liabilities amounting to $339 million were recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 26, 2008. See Notes 14 and 17 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional
information.

        We record estimated product warranty costs at the time of sale. See Note 14 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for
further information regarding estimated product warranty.

 Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

        The preparation of the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to use judgment
in making estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses. Our significant accounting policies are summarized in Note 2 to the Consolidated and Combined
Financial Statements. The following noted accounting policies are based on, among other things, judgments and assumptions made by
management that include inherent risks and uncertainties. Management's estimates are based on the relevant information available at the end of
each period.

Revenue Recognition

        Our revenue recognition policies are in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 101, "Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements," and SAB No. 104, "Revenue Recognition," as issued by the SEC and other applicable guidance.

        Our revenues are generated principally from the sale of our products. Revenue from the sales of products is recognized at the time title and
the risks and rewards of ownership pass. This generally
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occurs when the products reach the free-on-board shipping point, the sales price is fixed and determinable, and collection is reasonably assured.
For those items where title has not yet transferred, we have deferred the recognition of revenue. A reserve for estimated returns is established at
the time of sale based on historical return experience and is recorded as a reduction of sales. Other allowances include customer quantity and
price discrepancies. A reserve for other allowances is established at the time of sale based on historical experience and is recorded as a reduction
of sales.

        Contract sales for construction related projects are recorded primarily on the percentage-of-completion method. Profits recognized on
contracts in process are based upon estimated contract revenue and related cost to complete. Percentage of completion is measured based on the
ratio of actual cost incurred to total estimated cost. Revisions in cost estimates as contracts progress have the effect of increasing or decreasing
profits in the current period. Provisions for anticipated losses are made in the period in which they first become determinable. Contract sales for
construction related projects are generated primarily within our Undersea Telecommunications and Wireless Systems segments.

Inventories

        Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Provisions for slow moving and obsolete inventory are made based upon product
demand and historical experience. Should future product demand change, existing inventory could become slow moving or obsolete and
provisions would be increased accordingly.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

        Intangible assets acquired include both those that have a determinable life and residual goodwill. Intangible assets with a determinable life
include primarily intellectual property consisting of patents, trademarks, and unpatented technology with estimates of recoverability ranging
from 1 to 50 years that are amortized on a straight-line basis. An evaluation of the remaining useful life of intangible assets with a determinable
life is performed on a periodic basis and when events and circumstances warrant an evaluation. We assess intangible assets with a determinable
life for impairment consistent with our policy for assessing other long-lived assets. Goodwill is assessed for impairment separately from other
intangible assets with a determinable life by comparing the carrying value of each reporting unit to its fair value on the first day of the fourth
quarter of each year or whenever we believe a triggering event requiring a more frequent assessment has occurred. In making this assessment,
management relies on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows,
transactions, and market place data. There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors, and management's judgment in applying them to the
analysis of goodwill impairment. Since management's judgment is involved in performing goodwill valuation analyses, there is risk that the
carrying value of our goodwill may be overstated or understated.

        When testing for goodwill impairment, we follow the guidance prescribed in SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." First,
we perform a step I goodwill impairment test to identify a potential impairment. In doing so, we compare the fair value of a reporting unit with
its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill may be impaired and a step II goodwill
impairment test is performed to measure the amount of any impairment loss. In the step II goodwill impairment test, we compare the implied fair
value of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied
fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined
in the same manner that the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination is determined. We allocate the fair value of a reporting
unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit, including intangible assets, as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business
combination. Any excess of the value of a reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of
goodwill.
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        Estimates about fair value used in the step I goodwill impairment tests have been calculated using an income approach based on the present
value of future cash flows of each reporting unit. The income approach has been supported by additional transaction and guideline analyses.
These approaches incorporate many assumptions including future growth rates, discount factors, and income tax rates in assessing fair value.
Changes in economic and operating conditions impacting these assumptions could result in goodwill impairments in future periods.

Income Taxes

        In determining income for financial statement purposes, we must make certain estimates and judgments. These estimates and judgments
affect the calculation of certain tax liabilities and the determination of the recoverability of certain of the deferred tax assets, which arise from
temporary differences between the tax and financial statement recognition of revenue and expense.

        In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets, we consider all available positive and negative evidence including our past
operating results, the existence of cumulative losses in the most recent years, and our forecast of future taxable income. In estimating future
taxable income, we develop assumptions including the amount of future state, federal, and international pre-tax operating income, the reversal of
temporary differences, and the implementation of feasible and prudent tax planning strategies. These assumptions require significant judgment
about the forecasts of future taxable income and are consistent with the plans and estimates we are using to manage the underlying businesses.

        We currently have recorded significant valuation allowances that we intend to maintain until it is more likely than not the deferred tax
assets will be realized. Our income tax expense recorded in the future will be reduced to the extent of decreases in our valuation allowances. The
realization of our remaining deferred tax assets is primarily dependent on future taxable income in the appropriate jurisdiction. Any reduction in
future taxable income including any future restructuring activities may require that we record an additional valuation allowance against our
deferred tax assets. An increase in the valuation allowance would result in additional income tax expense in such period and could have a
significant impact on our future earnings. If a change in a valuation allowance occurs, which was established in connection with an acquisition,
the adjustment of such allowance may affect goodwill rather than the income tax provision.

        Changes in tax laws and rates also could affect recorded deferred tax assets and liabilities in the future. Management is not aware of any
such changes that would have a material effect on our results of operations, cash flows, or financial position.

        In addition, the calculation of our tax liabilities includes estimates for uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations across
multiple global jurisdictions where we conduct our operations. Under the provisions of FIN 48, we recognize liabilities for tax as well as related
interest for issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes and related
interest will be due. These tax liabilities and related interest are reflected net of the impact of related tax loss carryforwards as such tax loss
carryforwards will be applied against these tax liabilities and will reduce the amount of cash tax payments due upon the eventual settlement with
the tax authorities. These estimates may change due to changing facts and circumstances; however, due to the complexity of these uncertainties,
the ultimate resolution may result in a settlement that differs from our current estimate of the tax liabilities and related interest. Further,
management has reviewed with tax counsel the issues raised by certain taxing authorities and the adequacy of these recorded amounts. If our
current estimate of tax and interest liabilities is less than the ultimate settlement, an additional charge to expense may result. If our current
estimate of tax and interest liabilities is more than the ultimate settlement, income tax benefits may be recognized. Substantially all of these tax
liabilities and related interest are recorded in income taxes on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as payment is not expected within one year.
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Pension and Postretirement Benefit

        Our pension expense and obligations are developed from actuarial assumptions. Two critical assumptions in determining pension expense
and obligations are the discount rate and expected long-term return on plan assets. We evaluate these assumptions at least annually. Other
assumptions reflect demographic factors such as retirement, mortality, and turnover and are evaluated periodically and updated to reflect our
actual experience. Actual results may differ from actuarial assumptions. The discount rate represents the market rate for high-quality fixed
income investments and is used to calculate the present value of the expected future cash flows for benefit obligations to be paid under our
pension plans. A decrease in the discount rate increases the present value of pension benefit obligations. A 25 basis point decrease in the
discount rate would increase our present value of pension obligations by $101 million, while a 25 basis point increase in the discount rate would
decrease our present value of pension obligations by $97 million. We consider the current and expected asset allocations of our pension plans, as
well as historical and expected long-term rates of return on those types of plan assets, in determining the expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets. During the year, our Investment Committee made the decision to change the target asset allocation of the U.S. Plans' Master Trust
from 60% equity and 40% fixed income to 30% equity and 70% fixed income in an effort to better align asset risk with the anticipated payment
of benefit obligations. The target asset allocation transition began in fiscal 2008 and is expected to be completed in fiscal 2010. As a result of
this change, we are lowering the fiscal 2009 expected return on plan assets for our U.S. pension plans by 0.44 percentage points to 7.55%. A 50
basis point decrease in the expected long-term return on plan assets would increase our pension expense by $11 million, while a 50 basis point
increase in the expected long-term return on plan assets would decrease our pension expense by $11 million. Concerns about deterioration in the
global economy, together with the current credit crisis, have caused significant volatility in interest rates and equity prices, which could decrease
the value of our pension plans' investment portfolios. A decrease in the value of our pension plans' investment portfolios could have an adverse
affect on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.

Share-Based Compensation

        We adopted SFAS No. 123R, "Share-Based Payment," on October 1, 2005 using the modified prospective transition method. Under SFAS
No. 123R, we determine the fair value of share awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model. The
Black-Scholes-Merton model requires certain assumptions that involve judgment. Such assumptions are the expected share price volatility,
expected annual dividend yield, expected life of options, and risk-free interest rate. (See Note 24 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements for additional information related to share-based compensation.) An increase in the volatility of the Company's stock will increase
the amount of compensation expense on new awards. An increase in the holding period of options will also cause an increase in compensation
expense. Dividend yields and risk-free interest rates are less difficult to estimate, but an increase in the dividend yield will cause a decrease in
expense and an increase in the risk-free interest rate will increase compensation expense.

 Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

        In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles." SFAS No. 162 codifies the
hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles to be used by the preparers of financial statements. The hierarchy is identical to that
contained in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statements on Auditing Standards No. 69, "The Meaning of Present Fairly
in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles." Adoption of the standard did not have any impact on our Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements.

        In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. This interpretation prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition,
measurement, presentation, and disclosure of uncertain tax
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positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 requires that an enterprise must determine whether it is more likely than
not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities, including resolution of any appeals or litigation processes, based
upon the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not threshold is then measured to determine the amount
of tax benefit to recognize in the financial statements. As a result of adopting FIN 48, we recorded a net increase in contingent tax liabilities of
$1,197 million, an increase in deferred tax assets of $648 million, and a corresponding decrease in the opening balance of accumulated earnings
of $549 million. See Note 19 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information regarding income taxes and the
adoption of FIN 48.

        In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans-an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)." SFAS No. 158 requires that employers recognize the funded status of
defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans as a net asset or liability on the balance sheet and recognize as a component of
other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized
as a component of net periodic benefit cost. Under SFAS No. 158, companies are required to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of
their fiscal year end. We currently use a measurement date of August 31st. SFAS No. 158 also requires additional disclosure in the notes to the
financial statements. The measurement date provisions will become effective for us in fiscal 2009. We are currently assessing the impact of the
measurement date change provisions on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. We adopted the funded status recognition
provisions at September 28, 2007. The incremental effects of adopting the standard on the Consolidated Balance Sheet were increases of
$386 million in long-term pension and postretirement benefit liabilities, $16 million in accrued and other current liabilities, and $55 million in
other assets. The impact of adoption also resulted in additional net deferred tax assets of $122 million. The impact of adoption to accumulated
other comprehensive income, a component of equity, was a reduction of $225 million. There was no impact on pension or other postretirement
benefit expense, cash flows, or benefits plans in fiscal 2007. On-going compliance with the standard will not impact pension or other
postretirement benefit expense, cash flows, or benefit plans. See Note 16 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for further
discussion of the implementation of the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158.

        In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB No. 108, "Considering the Effect of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements." SAB No. 108 provides guidance on evaluating the materiality of prior periods' misstatements, quantifying
the effects of correcting misstatements in the current period, and criteria for restatement of prior periods. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal
years ending after November 15, 2006. We adopted this guidance effective for fiscal 2007. The adoption did not have a material impact on our
results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

        In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP") No. FAS 157-3, "Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset when
the Market for That Asset Is Not Active." FSP No. FAS 157-3 clarifies the methods employed in determining the fair value for financial assets
when a market for such assets is not active. FSP No. FAS 157-3 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The adoption of FSP No.
FAS 157-3 will not have a significant impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") 03-6-1, "Determining Whether Instruments Granted in
Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities." FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 concludes that unvested restricted share awards that pay
nonforfeitable cash dividends are participating securities and are subject to the two-class method of computing earnings per share. FSP No.
EITF 03-6-1 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal
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2010. We do not expect that adoption of FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 will have a material impact on our Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements.

        In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 142-3, "Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets." FSP No. FAS 142-3 amends
the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible
asset under SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." FSP No. FAS 142-3 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. We
are currently assessing the impact that FSP No. FAS 142-3 will have on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures About Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities�an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133." SFAS No. 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities," to provide improved transparency into the uses and financial statement impact of derivative instruments and hedging
activities. We plan to adopt SFAS No. 161 in the second quarter of fiscal 2009. We are currently assessing the impact that SFAS No. 161 will
have on our Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

        In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, "Business Combinations." SFAS No. 141R replaces SFAS No. 141 and addresses the
recognition and accounting for identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and noncontrolling interests in business combinations. SFAS
No. 141R is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. We are currently assessing the impact that SFAS No. 141R will have on our results
of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements." SFAS No. 160
addresses the accounting and reporting framework for minority interests by a parent company. SFAS No. 160 is effective for us in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010. We are currently assessing the impact that SFAS No. 160 will have on our results of operations, financial position, or cash
flows.

        In June 2007, the FASB EITF issued EITF Issue No. 06-11, "Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment
Awards." EITF 06-11 requires that a realized income tax benefit from dividends or dividend equivalent units paid on unvested restricted shares
and restricted share units be reflected as an increase in contributed surplus and reflected as an addition to our excess tax benefit pool, as defined
under SFAS No. 123R. EITF 06-11 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The adoption of EITF 06-11 will not have a significant
impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities." SFAS No. 159
permits an entity, on a contract-by-contract basis, to make an irrevocable election to account for certain types of financial instruments and
warranty and insurance contracts at fair value, rather than historical cost, with changes in the fair value, whether realized or unrealized,
recognized in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. We do not expect to use the fair value election for any
existing assets or liabilities as of the date of adoption. The adoption of SFAS No. 159 will not have a significant impact on our results of
operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements." SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for us in the first quarter
of fiscal 2009. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 will not have a significant impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.
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 Forward-Looking Information

        Certain statements in this report are "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. These statements are based on our management's beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to our management.
Forward-looking statements include, among others, the information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations, business
strategies, financing plans, competitive position, potential growth opportunities, potential operating performance improvements, the effects of
competition, and the effects of future legislation or regulations. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts
and can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as the words "believe," "expect," "plan," "intend," "anticipate," "estimate,"
"predict," "potential," "continue," "may," "should," or the negative of these terms or similar expressions.

        Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in
these forward-looking statements. You should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. We do not have any intention or
obligation to update forward-looking statements after we file this report except as required by law.

        Among the risks that could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements are the risks described
in "Part I. Item 1A. Risk Factors." There may be other risks and uncertainties that we are unable to predict at this time or that we currently do not
expect to have a material adverse effect on our business.

 ITEM 7A.    QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

        In the normal course of business, our financial position is routinely subject to a variety of risks, including market risks associated with
interest rate and currency movements on outstanding debt and non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities and commodity price
movements. We utilize established risk management policies and procedures in executing derivative financial instrument transactions to manage
a portion of these risks.

        We do not execute transactions or hold derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Counterparties to derivative
financial instruments are limited to major financial institutions with at least an A/A2 long-term debt rating. There is no significant concentration
of exposures with any one counterparty.

Foreign Currency Exposures

        As part of managing the exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, we use foreign exchange forwards and swaps. The
objective is to manage our foreign currency exposures on intercompany transactions, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and forecasted
transactions denominated in certain foreign currencies. A 10% appreciation of the U.S. dollar from the September 26, 2008 market rates would
increase the unrealized value of our forward contracts by $95 million, while a 10% depreciation of the U.S. dollar would decrease the unrealized
value of our forward contracts by $116 million. A 10% appreciation of the U.S. dollar from the September 28, 2007 market rates would increase
the unrealized value of our forward contracts by $59 million, while a 10% depreciation of the U.S. dollar would decrease the unrealized value of
our forward contracts by $72 million. However, such gains or losses on these contracts would be generally offset by the gains or losses on the
revaluation or settlement of the underlying transactions.
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Interest Rate Exposures

        We issue debt, from time to time, in capital markets to fund our operations. Such borrowings can result in interest rate and/or currency
exposure. To manage these exposures and to minimize overall interest cost, we have used and may use in the future interest rate swaps to
convert a portion of the fixed-rate debt into variable rate debt (fair value hedges) and/or convert a portion of the variable rate debt into fixed-rate
debt (cash flow hedges). At September 26, 2008, we had outstanding interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges on $300 million
principal amount of our 6.55% senior notes and $200 million principal amount of our 6.00% senior notes. At September 28, 2007, we had no
outstanding interest rate swaps. Based on our floating rate debt balances of $1,147 million and $1,250 million at September 26, 2008 and
September 28, 2007, respectively, an increase in the levels of the U.S. dollar interest rates by 0.5%, with all other variables held constant, would
result in an increase of annual interest expense of approximately $6 million.

Commodity Exposures

        Our worldwide operations and product lines may expose us to risks from fluctuations in commodity prices. To limit the effects of
fluctuations in the future market price paid and related volatility in cash flows, we have used and may use in the future forward or option
contracts. We continually evaluate the commodity market with respect to our forecasted usage requirements over the next twelve to twenty-four
months and periodically enter into commodity forward or option contracts in order to hedge a portion of usage requirements over that period. At
September 26, 2008, we had entered into commodity forward contracts, specifically related to gold, designated as cash flow hedges for a
notional value of $21 million. A 10% appreciation of the price of a troy ounce of gold from the September 26, 2008 prices would increase the
unrealized value of our forward contracts by $2 million, while a 10% depreciation of prices would decrease the unrealized value of our forward
contracts by $2 million.

        See Note 15 to the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for additional information on financial instruments.

 ITEM 8.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

        The following Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements and schedule specified by this Item, together with the reports thereon of
Deloitte & Touche LLP, are presented following Item 15 and the signature pages of this report:

        Financial Statements:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007,
and September 29, 2006

Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007

Consolidated and Combined Statements of Equity for the Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and
September 29, 2006

Consolidated and Combined Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007,
and September 29, 2006

Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements

        Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule II�Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
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        All other financial statements and schedules have been omitted since the information required to be submitted has been included in the
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements and related notes or because they are either not applicable or not required under the rules of
Regulation S-X.

 ITEM 9.    CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURES

        None.

 ITEM 9A.    CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

        Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of September 26, 2008. Based on that evaluation,
our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of
September 26, 2008, because of the material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting related to accounting for income taxes
described in our information statement filed as Exhibit 99.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K on June 8, 2007 and in Management's Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting below. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company's management, including its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

        Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act). Management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

        We previously disclosed a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting relating to accounting for income taxes.
Subsequent to the filing of our combined financial statements for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 in the initial filing of our registration statement
with the SEC, we determined that our combined financial statements contained certain errors. The errors primarily resulted from the process of
carving out certain income tax accounts from Tyco International's consolidated financial statements and related information. We substantially
relied upon the processes at Tyco International to prepare our carve-out accounts for income taxes. We determined that certain of those tax
processes utilized by Tyco International in determining certain carve out amounts for income taxes did not operate at a sufficient level of
precision relative to our materiality for us to ensure that the carve-out accounts were materially correct. We also determined that we did not have
sufficient control processes in place to ensure that the information provided by Tyco International was complete and accurate and concluded that
the absence of these control processes was a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting relating to income taxes.

        As of September 26, 2008, management has concluded that recently enhanced resources and processes related to this previously identified
material weakness have not been operating for a sufficient period of time and, accordingly, has further concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was not effective as of September 26, 2008.
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        A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on
a timely basis.

        Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate.

        Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on our internal control over
financial reporting as of September 26, 2008, which is included in this Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

        We have enhanced our tax accounting resources and capabilities to remediate the material weakness indicated above, and have
implemented new control processes and procedures over the past several months. Improvements to our control processes included the following:

�
We implemented appropriately designed processes and controls and instituted multi-level management reviews.

�
We completed analysis and reconciliation of our tax accounts and recorded necessary adjustments while implementing
sustainable reconciliation processes to ensure continued accuracy of these accounts.

�
We enhanced policies and procedures relating to tax account reconciliation and analysis.

�
We expanded tax accounting resources at both the corporate and regional levels with personnel experienced in accounting
for income taxes in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

�
We conducted training for both existing and newly hired tax accountants along with other accounting and finance personnel
who are responsible for analyzing, documenting and accounting for taxes in their jurisdiction.

�
We increased accountability for accounting for income taxes by recording tax accounting at the legal entity, developed and
communicated clear responsibilities and expectations, and implemented a multi-level review process.

�
We invested in additional information systems to improve control around newly implemented processes and enable more
effective review.

        Although we believe that the improvements in our control processes as designed are adequate to remediate the material weakness, we will
not consider the material weakness to be remediated until the new processes operate for a sufficient period of time, and we are confident that
they are operating effectively.

 ITEM 9B.    OTHER INFORMATION

        None.

68

Edgar Filing: Tyco Electronics Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

83



 PART III

 ITEM 10.    DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors and Executive Officers

        The following table presents information with respect to our directors and executive officers as of January 1, 2009.

Name Age Position(s)
Thomas J. Lynch 54 Chief Executive Officer and Director
Pierre R. Brondeau 51 Director
Ram Charan 69 Director
Juergen W. Gromer 63 Director
Robert M. Hernandez 64 Director
Daniel J. Phelan 59 Director
Frederic M. Poses 66 Director
Lawrence S. Smith 61 Director
Paula A. Sneed 61 Director
David P. Steiner 48 Director
John C. Van Scoter 47 Director
Sandra S. Wijnberg 52 Director
Mario Calastri 51 Senior Vice President and Treasurer
Alan C. Clarke 55 President, Network Solutions
Terrence R. Curtin 40 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Joseph B. Donahue 50 President, Automotive Division
Charles P. Dougherty 46 President, Wireless Systems
Jane A. Leipold 48 Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources
Minoru Okamoto 59 President, Communications & Industrial Solutions
Robert J. Ott 47 Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller
Jeffrey G. Rea 43 President, Specialty Products
Eric J. Resch 51 Senior Vice President and Tax Officer
Robert A. Scott 58 Executive Vice President and General Counsel
Joan E. Wainwright 48 Senior Vice President, Marketing and

Communications
Thomas J. Lynch serves on our Board of Directors and has been Chief Executive Officer of Tyco Electronics since January 2006 and was

previously President of Tyco Engineered Products and Services since joining Tyco International in September 2004. Prior to joining Tyco
International, Mr. Lynch was at Motorola where he was Executive Vice President and President and Chief Executive Officer, Personal
Communications Sector from August 2002 to September 2004; Executive Vice President and President, Integrated Electronic Systems Sector
from January 2001 to August 2002; Senior Vice President and General Manager, Satellite & Broadcast Network Systems, Broadband
Communications Sector from February 2000 to January 2001; and Senior Vice President and General Manager, Satellite & Broadcast Network
Systems, General Instrument Corporation from May 1998 to February 2000. Mr. Lynch holds a bachelor's degree in commerce from Rider
University.

Pierre R. Brondeau joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation from Tyco International.
Dr. Brondeau was named President and Chief Operating Officer of Rohm & Haas Company, a U.S. based manufacturer of specialty materials, in
May 2008 and previously was Executive Vice President of electronics materials and specialty materials of Rohm & Haas Company from 2006.
He also has served as Vice-President, Business Group Executive, Electronic Materials, President and Chief Executive Officer, Rohm & Haas
Electronic Materials LLC, and Regional Director, Europe, from 2003 to 2006, and previously as Vice-President, Business Group
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Director, Electronic Materials, President and Chief Executive Officer, Shipley Company, LLC, from 1999 to 2003. Dr. Brondeau received a
masters degree from Universite de Montpellier and a Doctorate from Institut National des Sciences appliquees de Toulouse.

Ram Charan joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation from Tyco International. Since 1978,
Dr. Charan has served as an advisor to executives and corporate boards and provides expertise in corporate governance, global strategy and
succession. Dr. Charan received a bachelor's degree from Banaras Hindu University and an MBA and a DBA from Harvard Business School.

Juergen W. Gromer joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation from Tyco International.
Dr. Gromer was President of Tyco Electronics from April 1999 until he retired from that position on December 31, 2007. From September 2006
until our separation from Tyco International, he also held the position of President of the Electronic Components Business segment of Tyco
International. Dr. Gromer held a number of senior executive positions over the previous 10 years with AMP Incorporated. Dr. Gromer received
his undergraduate degree and doctorate in physics from the University of Stuttgart. Dr. Gromer is a Director of WABCO Holdings Inc., Marvell
Technology Group Ltd. and RWE Rhein-Ruhr AG. He is also Chairman of the Board of the Society for Economic Development of the District
Bergstrasse/Hessen, a member of the Advisory Board of Commerzbank, and a Director of the Board and Vice President of the American
Chamber of Commerce Germany.

Robert M. Hernandez joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation from Tyco International.
Mr. Hernandez has served as Chairman of the Board of RTI International Metals, Inc., a producer of titanium mill products and fabricated metal
components, from 1990 to the present. From 1994 to 2001, he served as Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of USX Corporation and
prior to that served in a variety of positions during his career at USX, beginning in 1968. Mr. Hernandez received a bachelor's degree from the
University of Pittsburgh and an MBA from the Wharton Graduate School of the University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Hernandez is Lead Director of
ACE Ltd., a Director of Eastman Chemical Company and Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Equity-Bond Complex of the BlackRock
Mutual Funds.

Daniel J. Phelan joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation from Tyco International. Mr. Phelan
has served as Chief of Staff of GlaxoSmithKline, a manufacturer of pharmaceuticals and consumer health-related products from May 2008 to the
present and previously was Senior Vice President, Human Resources from 1994. Mr. Phelan is responsible for information technology, human
resources, corporate strategy and development, world wide real estate and facilities, environmental health and safety, and global security.
Mr. Phelan received bachelor's and law degrees from Rutgers University and a master's degree from Ohio State University.

Frederic M. Poses joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation from Tyco International, and serves
as our Chairman. Mr. Poses was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Trane Inc. (formerly American Standard Companies Inc.), a
manufacturer and provider of air conditioning systems and services and vehicle control systems from 1999 until its acquisition by Ingersoll Rand
in 2008. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Poses was President and Chief Operating Officer of AlliedSignal, Inc., where he served in various capacities
over his career, beginning in 1969. Mr. Poses holds a bachelor's degree in business administration from New York University. Mr. Poses is a
Director of Centex Corporation and Raytheon Company.

Lawrence S. Smith joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation from Tyco International. Mr. Smith
was Executive Vice President and Co-Chief Financial Officer of Comcast Corporation, a broadband cable provider, from 2002 until he retired in
March 2007. He presently consults for Comcast Corporation. He served in finance, administration and executive positions at Comcast from 1988
to 2002. Prior to joining Comcast, Mr. Smith was the Chief Financial
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Officer of Advanta Corporation. He also worked for Arthur Andersen LLP for 18 years, where he was a tax partner. Mr. Smith has a bachelor's
degree from Ithaca College. Mr. Smith is a Director of Air Products and Chemicals, Inc. and GSI Commerce Inc.

Paula A. Sneed joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation from Tyco International. Ms. Sneed is
Chair and Chief Executive Officer of Phelps Prescott Group, LLC, a strategy and management consulting firm, since 2008. Previously she was
Executive Vice President of Global Marketing Resources and Initiatives for Kraft Foods, Inc., a worldwide producer of branded food and
beverage products, until her retirement in December 2006. She served as Group Vice President and President of Electronic-Commerce and
Marketing Services for Kraft Foods North America, part of Kraft Foods, Inc., from 2000 until 2004, and Senior Vice President, Global
Marketing Resources and Initiatives from December 2004 to July 2005. She joined General Foods Corporation (which later merged with Kraft
Foods) in 1977 and has held a variety of management positions. Ms. Sneed received a bachelor's degree from Simmons College and an MBA
from Harvard Graduate School of Business. Ms. Sneed is a Director of Airgas Inc. and Charles Schwab Corporation.

David P. Steiner joined our Board of Directors in June 2007, immediately following our separation from Tyco International. Since March
2004, Mr. Steiner has served as Chief Executive Officer and a director of Waste Management, Inc., a provider of integrated waste management
services. His previous positions at Waste Management included Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from 2003 to 2004, Senior
Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary from 2001 to 2003 and Vice President and Deputy General Counsel from 2000 to
2001. Mr. Steiner received a bachelor's degree from Louisiana State University and a law degree from the University of California, Los Angeles.

John C. Van Scoter joined our Board of Directors on December 1, 2008. Mr. Van Scoter has served as Senior Vice President of Texas
Instruments Incorporated, a global semiconductor company, since 2005. During his 25 year career at Texas Instruments, he also served as
General Manager of the Digital Light Processing (DLP®) Products and Digital Signal Processor Applications divisions, manager of application
specific integrated circuit (ASIC) product development and engineering, product engineer and technical sales engineer. Mr. Van Scoter holds a
bachelor of science degree in engineering from the University of Vermont.

Sandra S. Wijnberg joined our Board of Directors in June 2007. Ms. Wijnberg has served as Chief Administrative Officer of Aquiline
Holdings LLC, a New York based investment firm specializing in financial services, since March 2007. Until April 2006, Ms. Wijnberg was the
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc., a professional services firm with insurance and
reinsurance brokerage, consulting and investment management businesses. Before joining Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc. in January 2000,
Ms. Wijnberg served as Senior Vice President and Treasurer of Tricon Global Restaurants, Inc. and held various positions at PepsiCo, Inc.,
Morgan Stanley Group, Inc. and American Express Company. Ms. Wijnberg is a graduate of the University of California, Los Angeles and
received an MBA from the University of Southern California. Ms. Wijnberg is a Director of Tyco International Ltd.

Mario Calastri has been Senior Vice President and Treasurer of Tyco Electronics since our separation from Tyco International in June
2007 and he served on the Tyco Electronics Board prior to the separation. He was Vice President and Assistant Treasurer of Tyco International
between 2005 and June 2007. Prior to joining Tyco International, Mr. Calastri was Vice President, Finance and Planning for IBM Global
Financing EMEA in 2004 and Assistant Treasurer of IBM Corporation from 1999 to 2003.

Alan C. Clarke has been President of Network Solutions of Tyco Electronics since September 2006 and served as a Vice President of Tyco
Electronics since 1999. Prior to that, Mr. Clarke worked for
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Raychem Corporation, which was acquired by Tyco International in 1999, for 17 years in various senior management positions.

Terrence R. Curtin has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Tyco Electronics since October 2006 and he served
on the Tyco Electronics Board prior to the separation. Mr. Curtin previously served as Vice President and Corporate Controller since 2001. Prior
to joining Tyco Electronics, Mr. Curtin worked for Arthur Andersen LLP.

Joseph B. Donahue has been President, Automotive Division, for Tyco Electronics since July 2008 and was Senior Vice President from
August 2007 until then. From 2006 to August 2007, he was Group Vice President, Woodcoatings Division for Valspar Corporation, a
manufacturer of commercial and industrial coating. Over the prior 16 years, Mr. Donahue held a variety of senior management roles at Tyco
Electronics and AMP Incorporated, leading the North America automotive business from 2001 to 2006.

Charles P. Dougherty has been President of Wireless Systems of Tyco Electronics since October 2006. Prior to joining Tyco Electronics,
Mr. Dougherty was at Motorola where he served as Corporate Vice President and General Manager, Voice and Data Solutions from July 2004,
Vice President and General Manager IP Solutions from June 2001 to July 2004, and Vice President and General Manager North American VolP
Solutions from July 2000 to June 2001.

Jane A. Leipold has been Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources for Tyco Electronics since 2006. She has a total of 27 years of
Tyco Electronics and AMP Incorporated experience and has held various human resources, purchasing and engineering positions.

Minoru Okamoto has been President, Communications & Industrial Solutions of Tyco Electronics since November 2008. Previously, he
was President, Communications, Computer and Consumer Electronics ("CC&CE") from July 2008 and was Vice President of CC&CE since
March 2001. He has a total of 33 years of Tyco Electronics and AMP Incorporated experience and has held a variety of positions covering sales,
marketing, operations and general management.

Robert J. Ott has been Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller of Tyco Electronics since our separation from Tyco International in
June 2007. Prior to that, he was Vice President, Corporate Audit of Tyco International from March 2003 to June 2007 and Vice President of
Finance-Corporate Governance of Tyco International from August 2002 until March 2003. Prior to joining Tyco International, Mr. Ott was
Chief Financial Officer of Multiplex, Inc. from 2001 to 2002 and Chief Financial Officer of SourceAlliance, Inc. from 2000 to 2001.

Jeffrey G. Rea joined Tyco Electronics in December 2008 and has been President of the Specialty Products businesses since January 1,
2009. Prior to joining Tyco Electronics, Mr. Rea was Senior Vice President, JM Building Products group for Johns Mansville, a Berkshire
Hathaway company, from 2002. Prior to 2002, Mr. Rea held various leadership positions with General Electric Company where he began his
career in 1987.

Eric J. Resch has been Senior Vice President and Tax Officer of Tyco Electronics since our separation from Tyco International in June
2007 and he served on the Tyco Electronics Board prior to the separation. He was Vice President, Tax Reporting of Tyco International from
2003 until June 2007. Prior to joining Tyco International, Mr. Resch was Director, Tax Reporting for United Technologies Corporation from
2001 to 2003.

Robert A. Scott has been Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Tyco Electronics since 2006 and prior to that was Senior Vice
President, Corporate Planning for Tyco International from January 2006 and Vice President of Strategy and Business Planning for Engineered
Products and Services from May 2004 to January 2006. He also served on the Tyco Electronics Board prior to our separation from Tyco
International in June 2007. Prior to joining Tyco International, Mr. Scott was
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Senior Vice President and Chief of Staff of Motorola's Integrated Electronics sector during 2002 and 2003 and Motorola's Senior Vice President
of Business Integration in 2001. Prior to joining Motorola, Mr. Scott was Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of
General Instrument Corporation.

Joan E. Wainwright has been Senior Vice President, Marketing and Communications at Tyco Electronics since February 2008, and she
previously was Senior Vice President, Communications and Public Affairs since joining us in June 2006. Previously, she served as Vice
President, Public Affairs and Vice President, Corporate Communications for Merck & Co., Inc. from June 2000 to June 2006. Ms. Wainwright
also served as Deputy Commissioner of Communications for the U.S. Social Security Administration and in the communications and public
relations departments of the University Health System of New Jersey, the Children's Hospital of Philadelphia, the University of Delaware and
Villanova University.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

        Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires Tyco Electronics' executive officers and directors and persons who beneficially own more than
ten percent of Tyco Electronics' common shares to file electronically reports of ownership and changes in ownership of such common shares
with the SEC and NYSE. These persons are required by SEC regulations to furnish Tyco Electronics with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they
file. As a matter of practice, Tyco Electronics' administrative staff assists Tyco Electronics' executive officers and directors in preparing initial
reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership and files those reports on their behalf. Based on Tyco Electronics' review of such
forms, as well as information provided and representations made by the reporting persons, Tyco Electronics believes that all of its executive
officers, directors and beneficial owners of more than ten percent of its common shares complied with the reporting requirements of
Section 16(a) during Tyco Electronics' fiscal year ended September 26, 2008, other than three late Form 4 filings made by each of directors
Lawrence S. Smith and Paula A. Sneed, reporting one transaction on each form.

Code of Ethics

        We have adopted the Tyco Electronics Guide to Ethical Conduct, which applies to all employees, officers, and directors of Tyco
Electronics. Our Guide to Ethical Conduct meets the requirements of a "code of ethics" as defined by Item 406 of Regulation S-K and applies to
our chief executive officer, chief financial officer, and chief accounting officer, as well as all other employees and directors, as indicated above.
Our Guide to Ethical Conduct also meets the requirements of a code of business conduct and ethics under the listing standards of the NYSE. Our
Guide to Ethical Conduct is posted on our website at www.tycoelectronics.com under the heading "Who We Are�Quick Links�Guide to Ethical
Conduct." We also will provide a copy of our Guide to Ethical Conduct to shareholders upon request. We intend to disclose any amendments to
our Guide to Ethical Conduct, as well as any waivers for executive officers or directors, on our website.

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

        Tyco Electronics' Audit Committee is comprised of Lawrence Smith, who chairs the committee since January 14, 2009, Pierre Brondeau,
Paula Sneed and Sandra Wijnberg. During fiscal year 2008, Sandra Wijnberg was chair of the committee and continued in that role through
January 13, 2009. The Board of Directors has determined that each of Mr. Smith and Ms. Wijnberg is an "audit committee financial expert," as
defined under SEC rules. The Audit Committee primarily is concerned with the quality and integrity of the company's annual and quarterly
financial statements, including its financial and accounting principles, policies and practices, and its internal control over financial reporting; the
qualifications, independence and performance of the company's independent auditor and lead audit partner; review and oversight of the
company's internal audit function; compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; review of financial and accounting risk exposure; and
procedures for handling complaints regarding accounting or auditing matters. The committee also oversees the company Ombudsman and the
company's Guide to Ethical Conduct.
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 ITEM 11.    EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

        Our fiscal year ended September 26, 2008 ("Fiscal Year 2008") was the first full fiscal year of operation for Tyco Electronics Ltd. ("Tyco
Electronics" or the "Company"), as the Company's separation from Tyco International was completed on June 29, 2007. As discussed in our
Compensation Discussion and Analysis ("CD&A") for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2007 ("Fiscal Year 2007"), the Management
Development and Compensation Committee ("MDCC" or "Committee") adopted an executive compensation philosophy shortly after separation
to serve as the Company's guiding principles in the development of executive compensation levels and programs. In addition, the Committee put
into place a disciplined process for the adoption of executive compensation actions, which includes Board approval of executive compensation
actions for the Chief Executive Officer and Committee approval of compensation actions for all other executive officers. All compensation
actions are to be reviewed for alignment with the Company's executive compensation policy and in light of competitive market data (the
Committee reviews competitive data from two separate peer groups), and with reliance on a compensation consultant (who is independent from
management) for advice, information and an objective point of view.

        In light of the limited period in which the Company operated as a public company in Fiscal Year 2007, neither Company management nor
the Committee had the opportunity to complete a comprehensive review of the Company's executive pay levels and programs. In Fiscal Year
2008, however, we had the opportunity to conduct a comprehensive analysis of the competitive position of our executive pay levels and
compensation programs. Overall, we believe that our executive pay levels and compensation programs are competitive relative to our peer
companies and that the executive pay actions taken in Fiscal Year 2008 better align our executive pay levels and compensation programs with
our executive compensation philosophy. In Fiscal Year 2008, we:

�
confirmed the structure of our overall compensation program for our executive officers as one that relies heavily on
performance through the use of annual and long-term incentive programs

�
awarded base salary increases and set annual and long-term incentive targets for executive officers at levels that are aligned
with the competitive market

�
emphasized equity (in the form of long-term incentive awards granted primarily in the form of stock options) as the primary
component of long-term compensation for our executive officers, ensuring that pay opportunities are linked to shareholder
return and maximize share ownership by our executive officers

        We are still in the early stages of the implementation of our executive compensation philosophy, but we believe that with the actions taken
in Fiscal Year 2008, we have made significant progress in aligning our executive pay levels and compensation programs with our executive
compensation philosophy.

Executive Compensation Philosophy

        Our executive compensation philosophy is designed to deliver competitive total compensation, upon the achievement of individual and/or
corporate performance objectives, which will attract, motivate and retain leaders who will drive the creation of shareholder value. The executive
compensation philosophy has also been designed to align with the Company's organization-wide total rewards strategy. The Committee reviews
and administers the Company's compensation and benefit programs for executive officers, including the named executive officers. (For purposes
of this CD&A, "executive officer" means the Chief Executive Officer, his direct reports and any other executive
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officers of the Company subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act.) In determining total compensation, the Committee considers the following
key objectives and attributes:

         Shareholder alignment�Executive compensation programs will be designed to create shareholder value. Long-term incentive awards, which
make up a significant percentage of our executives' total compensation, will closely align the interests of executives with the long-term interest
of our shareholders.

         Performance based�Many components of our executive compensation package are linked to performance. Annual cash incentive awards are
tied to overall corporate, segment or business unit measures that allow for differentiation among our highest and lowest performing business
units. Long-term incentive awards, granted primarily in the form of stock options, are designed to reward our executive officers for the creation
of long-term shareholder value.

         Competitive with external talent markets�Our executive compensation programs are designed to be competitive within the various talent
markets in which the Company competes for executive talent. Compensation programs are designed with reference to both a general peer group
of companies that compete with us for executive talent and an electronics industry peer group.

         Focus on executive stock ownership�The Company has adopted the Tyco Electronics Share Ownership and Retention Requirement Plan
which, together with long-term equity awards, drives executive stock ownership.

         Simple and transparent�Our executive compensation programs are designed to be readily understood by our executives and transparent to
our investors.

Role of the Management Development & Compensation Committee

        The MDCC administers the Company's compensation policies and programs for executive officers, including the named executive officers.
The Committee reviews, analyzes and approves the design of the Company's executive compensation policies and programs, administers the
Company's stock incentive plans (including reviewing and approving equity incentive awards for executive officers) and reviews and approves
all compensation decisions relating to the named executive officers and other executive officers of the Company.

        The Committee is comprised exclusively of members who meet the independence requirements of the NYSE. Each MDCC member is also
a "non-employee director" for purposes of Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act and an "outside director" for purposes of Section 162(m) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Role of Management

        The MDCC has established a process with management to support the development and review of executive officer compensation, as
described below.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation

        The MDCC will make recommendations to the independent members of the Board regarding Chief Executive Officer compensation
actions. The recommendations will be based on factors deemed appropriate by the Committee, including Chief Executive Officer performance
and competitive market data provided by the Committee's independent compensation consultant. The MDCC will discuss and evaluate Chief
Executive Officer compensation recommendations in an executive session attended only by the Committee members, its independent
compensation consultant, and the Senior Vice President Global Human Resources, who attends primarily to provide contextual information. The
Chief Executive Officer will not attend the executive session when Chief Executive Officer compensation actions are discussed. The MDCC
does not anticipate that management will have any role in the
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development of Chief Executive Officer compensation except for providing to the MDCC or the Committee's independent compensation
consultant relevant data relating to the Chief Executive Officer's performance and compensation history.

Other Named Executive Officer Compensation

        The Chief Executive Officer will make recommendations to the MDCC relating to compensation actions for the other executive officers.
The recommendations will be made based on each executive officer's performance, as assessed by the Chief Executive Officer, competitive
market data provided by the Committee's independent compensation consultant and other factors deemed relevant by the Chief Executive
Officer, including but not limited to internal pay equity, relative importance of the role of each executive, experience level and prior
compensation actions. The Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources also will be present for the discussion of compensation actions for
the other named executive officers.

Role of Compensation Consultant

        Under its charter, the MDCC has the sole authority to retain consultants, counsel, accountants and others to assist it in the performance of
its duties, including the evaluation of executive compensation levels and programs. The MDCC has engaged Towers Perrin to serve as the
Committee's compensation consultant. Towers Perrin reports directly to the MDCC and provides assistance to the Committee in developing the
Company's executive compensation programs and executive pay levels and generally provides advice to the Committee on executive
compensation issues. The MDCC independently retained Towers Perrin and has the ability to terminate Towers Perrin's services at the
Committee's discretion. Outside of the services performed for the MDCC, Towers Perrin provides no services to the Company except with prior
notification to the MDCC chair. The specific Towers Perrin consultants to the Committee are precluded from any involvement in any work for
management not expressly authorized by the MDCC.

        Towers Perrin performed the following services for the MDCC in Fiscal Year 2008:

�
Evaluated the competitive position of the Company's executive officers' total compensation packages relative to the
Company's peer groups for purposes of assisting the MDCC in determining compensation actions for Fiscal Year 2008 and
beyond

�
Provided advice to the Committee in the establishment of annual and long-term incentive guidelines for executive officers

�
Provided ongoing advice as needed on the design of Tyco Electronics' annual and long-term cash and equity incentive
programs, including the Fiscal Year 2008 annual grant and performance plan

�
Assisted with the development of competitive global long-term incentive grant guidelines for the Company's global
participant population, including both executives and non-executives

�
Briefed the MDCC on executive compensation trends among the Company's peer groups

�
Provided advice to the MDCC and Nominating, Governance and Compliance Committee on director compensation levels

�
Provided advice to the MDCC on the Chief Executive Officer's compensation
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Executive Compensation Benchmarks

        For purposes of benchmarking market practices on compensation levels for senior executives, the Company has adopted a peer group
framework that includes the use of a primary talent market peer group and a secondary reference group.

        The primary talent market peer group is comprised of companies across a range of industries in which Tyco Electronics competes for
executive talent�as opposed to being limited to companies only in the electronics industry. Since Tyco Electronics typically competes for
executive talent with companies in industries other than the electronics industry, the Company and Committee believe that it is appropriate to
establish a benchmark peer group that sufficiently covers companies in those industries. The industries included in the primary talent market
peer group are aerospace and defense, electronics and scientific equipment and industrial manufacturing. The primary talent market peer group
consists of approximately 90 companies, listed in this CD&A under "�Primary Talent Market Peer Group," with revenues ranging from
$350 million to $170 billion. Data obtained from this group is adjusted to reflect the relative size of Tyco Electronics within the group.

        The secondary reference group is comprised of companies within the electronics industry. We use the secondary reference group as a
benchmark to identify any differences in compensation practices between our industry peers and the broader primary talent market peer
companies. As shown below, there are currently 16 companies in the secondary industry reference group with revenues ranging from
$2.8 billion to $36.6 billion, with a median of $10 billion.

3M Company
Agilent Technologies, Inc.
Amphenol Corporation
Cooper Industries, Ltd.
Corning Incorporated
Danaher Corporation
EMC Corporation
Emerson Electric Co.

General Dynamics Corporation
Harris Corporation
Honeywell International Inc.
ITT Corporation
Johnson Controls, Inc.
Molex Incorporated
Motorola, Inc.
QUALCOMM Incorporated

        The benchmark data is compiled by the Committee's consultant and is used by the MDCC as a reference to ensure that our compensation
levels and programs are competitive with the compensation paid by the companies that may compete with Tyco Electronics for executive talent.
As explained below, the benchmark data is just one of the factors that are used in setting executive compensation levels.

Tax Deductibility of Executive Compensation

        In evaluating compensation programs covering our executive officers, the Committee considers the potential impact on the Company of
Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m). The Committee generally intends to maximize deductibility of compensation under Section 162(m) to
the extent consistent with our overall compensation program objectives, while also maintaining maximum flexibility in the design of our
compensation programs and in making appropriate payments to executive officers. However, the Committee reserves the right to use its
independent judgment to approve nondeductible compensation, while taking into account the financial effects such action may have on the
Company. Section 162(m) limits the tax deduction available to public companies for annual compensation that is paid to certain of the
Company's executive officers in excess of $1 million, unless the compensation qualifies as performance-based or is otherwise exempt from
Section 162(m). Annual incentive bonuses, stock options and other performance based awards made to executive officers under the Company's
2007 Stock and Incentive Plan are intended to qualify as performance-based compensation exemption under Section 162(m).
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Compensation Overview�Process

        The Company's total compensation package for executive officers, including named executive officers, is currently comprised of the
following elements:

�
Base salary

�
Annual cash incentives

�
Long-term equity incentives

�
Executive benefits and perquisites

�
Broad-based retirement and health and welfare benefits

        As a general rule, the MDCC has set the 50th percentile of our primary talent market peer group as the benchmark for an executive's total
compensation. The components of an executive's total compensation, base pay and annual and long-term incentive awards, also are
benchmarked at the 50th percentile of our primary talent market peer group. After the benchmark is determined for each executive position, the
MDCC takes other factors into consideration in establishing the executive's compensation level. Those factors can include: differences in the
executive's responsibilities versus the benchmark role; internal pay equity and relative importance of the executive's role with the Company;
individual performance and contributions to strategic initiatives; level of experience; and compensation history. Thus, the actual pay positioning
for each executive officer may be below or above the 50th percentile benchmark for total compensation and/or for one or more of the component
elements of total compensation. In addition, in order to attract and retain highly qualified external candidates to fill critical management roles,
the MDCC may approve total compensation packages and/or individual compensation components that are above the 50th percentile benchmark
levels for that candidate's position.

        Annual and long-term incentive awards also are structured with the potential to deliver significantly higher payouts (above the established
target level for each executive officer) as an incentive to drive the short and long-term strategies of the Company and increase shareholder value.
Similarly, the awards are structured to deliver substantially lower payouts (below the target level for each executive officer) for performance that
falls below expectations.

        Executive officers in the United States receive limited perquisites (as described below) and perquisites outside the U.S. are based on local
market practice. Broad-based employee benefit programs are provided to executive officers on the same basis as all other employees.

        In order to assist it in setting executive compensation levels, the MDCC conducts a comprehensive assessment of total compensation at
least annually, with the assistance of its compensation consultant. The assessment is completed for each executive officer and analyzes current
base salary, target annual incentive opportunity, target long-term incentive opportunity, target total cash compensation (base salary and target
incentive), and total direct compensation (base salary, target annual incentive opportunity and target long-term incentive opportunity) in light of
current market practice, which includes comparative data from the Company's primary talent market peer group. In addition to the total
compensation assessment, the Committee utilizes tally sheets that are assembled for each executive officer, showing the officer's compensation
history, work history and educational credentials, job responsibilities and tenure with the Company. The tally sheets enable the MDCC to
understand how changes in one element of an executive officer's compensation could impact the value of other elements of the executive
officer's compensation.

        With the information provided in the total compensation assessment and tally sheets as a reference, and with the input of its compensation
consultant and the Chief Executive Officer (with respect to actions taken for the other executive officers), the Committee will make executive
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compensation determinations for our executive officers based on the competitive market position and other factors discussed above. The
Committee and Board will follow a similar process in making determinations regarding the Chief Executive Officer's compensation.

        Differences in compensation levels between our executive officers are largely driven by our objective to align each executive's
compensation with 50th-percentile market compensation practices specific to the executive's role. As 50th-percentile market compensation
practices vary for the roles held by our executive officers, there are differences in their compensation levels. Additionally, the factors described
above (such as differences in the executive's responsibilities versus the benchmark role, internal pay equity and relative importance of the
executive's role with the Company, individual performance and contributions to strategic initiatives, level of experience and compensation
history) will also drive differences in compensation levels of our executive officers. An executive officer's compensation can change materially
from year to year based on Company performance, individual performance, or a role change, including promotion.

        In March 2008, the Committee, with the assistance of its compensation consultant, conducted a preliminary compensation assessment to
determine the competitive position of each executive officer's base salary, annual incentive target, total cash compensation, long-term incentive
value (based on the annualized value of the July 2, 2007 Founders' Grant awards) and total direct compensation relative to the Company's
primary and secondary peer groups. The purpose of the March compensation assessment was to provide relevant information to the Committee
for determining base salary adjustments for a group of executive officers, including named executive officers. The Committee was also provided
tally sheets for the executive officers. Based on the data provided in the competitive assessment, and in consideration of other factors deemed
relevant by the Committee, base salary increases were approved for a number of executive officers, including named executive officers (as
described below), effective in April 2008. With the base salary increases that were approved, the base salary levels for our named executive
officers range from 25% below to 6% above the 50th percentile peer group base salary benchmarks.

        In July 2008, the Committee, with the assistance of its compensation consultant, updated and reviewed the March 2008 competitive
compensation assessment. The updated competitive assessment covered each executive officer's current base salary, target annual incentive for
Fiscal Year 2008, total cash compensation, long-term incentive value (based on the annualized value of the July 2, 2007 Founders' Grant
awards) and total compensation, and indicated the competitive position of each compensation element and total compensation level relative to
the primary talent market peer group benchmarks. The competitive assessment indicated that the compensation levels for our executive officers,
including our named executive officers, fell both below and above the 50th percentile of the primary talent market peer group benchmarks. The
Committee reviewed the compensation levels for each executive officer in light of the relevant factors discussed above�such as the executive's
level of experience, the additional responsibilities of a particular executive's role versus the benchmark, individual performance considerations
and the executive's compensation history�and determined that the compensation levels were reasonable and consistent with our executive
compensation philosophy. The results of the July 2008 competitive compensation assessment assisted the Committee in determining whether to
make base salary pay adjustments effective in January 2009 (none were made) and in setting annual and long-term incentive targets for the
executive officer group for Fiscal Year 2009.
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Elements of Compensation

Base salary

        Base salary provides a fixed compensation for the performance of the executive's core duties and responsibilities. The base salary levels for
Tyco Electronics' executive officers, including the named executive officers, were initially established by Tyco International prior to separation
and were not changed during the remainder of Fiscal Year 2007. Based on the competitive data in the March 2008 compensation assessment and
in consideration of the date of the most recent base salary increase and other factors, as described below, the Committee approved base salary
increases for a number of named executive officers, including Mr. Scott, Mr. Curtin, Mr. Clarke, Mr. Okamoto and Ms. Leipold, effective
April 1, 2008.

        The Committee approved a base salary increase for Mr. Scott from $500,000 to $525,000, representing an annualized increase of
approximately 5.0% since his last base salary adjustment, which was effective January 1, 2007. The Committee approved the increase after
considering the peer group market data and the base salary levels of our Chief Financial Officer and other executive officers.

        The Committee approved a base salary increase for Mr. Curtin from $475,000 to $505,875, representing an annualized increase of
approximately 6.5% since his last base salary adjustment, which was effective January 1, 2007. The Committee approved the increase after
considering the peer group market data and the base salary levels of our General Counsel and other executive officers.

        The Committee approved a base salary increase for Mr. Clarke from £241,500 to £253,500, representing an annualized increase of
approximately 5.0% since his last base salary adjustment, which was effective October 1, 2006. The Committee approved the increase after
considering the peer group market data and the base salary levels of our other business unit presidents.

        The Committee approved a base salary increase for Mr. Okamoto from ¥52,595,920 to ¥54,700,000, representing an annualized increase of
4.0% since his last base salary adjustment, which was effective October 1, 2006. The Committee approved the increase after considering the
peer group market data and the base salary levels of our other business unit presidents.

        The Committee approved a base salary increase for Ms. Leipold from $385,000 to $404,250, representing an annualized increase of
approximately 5.0% since her last base salary adjustment, which was effective January 1, 2007. The Committee approved the increase after
considering the peer group market data and the base salary levels of our other executive officers.

        Mr. Lynch did not receive a base salary increase in Fiscal Year 2008 or in Fiscal Year 2009 through the date of filing of this Annual Report.

Annual Incentive Awards

        Annual incentive awards provide executive officers with a bonus opportunity if certain financial performance goals are achieved. The
annual incentive program is intended to reward executive officers upon the achievement of financial performance goals (at the corporate,
segment and/or business unit level), with some limited discretion applied for individual performance. The MDCC intends the Company's annual
incentive award program to provide market competitive awards targeted at the 50th percentile relative to peer companies for performance
achieved at the predetermined target levels. Award opportunities above the 50th percentile will be available to the extent that performance
exceeds the predetermined target levels. Payments at levels below the 50th percentile will be awarded to the extent that performance is below the
performance target levels. No annual incentive payments will be made if threshold performance levels are not achieved, absent the occurrence of
extenuating circumstances that, in the discretion of the Committee, merit an exception to the threshold performance requirement.
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        The annual incentive awards will typically be structured as cash payments. Within 90 days of the start of each fiscal year, the Committee
will establish the applicable performance criteria, which will include minimum performance thresholds required to earn an award, target
performance goals required to earn a payment of 100%, and a maximum performance level required to earn the maximum bonus permitted. If
the Company attains the established financial goals, executive officers will receive an award based on a target bonus percentage which will be
set at the beginning of each fiscal year and expressed as a percentage of the executive's base salary. Incentive target bonus percentages for
executive officers generally range from 50% to 100% of base salary. The target bonus percentages for our named officers for Fiscal Year 2008
were as follows: Mr. Lynch�100%; Mr. Scott�75%; Mr. Curtin�75%; Mr. Clarke�75%; Mr. Okamoto�75%; and Ms. Leipold�65%. The target bonus
percentages fell within a range of 20% below to 7% above the 50th percentile primary market group benchmarks.

        For Fiscal Year 2008, the Company established the following financial measures for the annual incentive award program:

Corporate Level:

Measure Weighting
Earnings per Share ("EPS") 60%
Return On Invested Capital ("ROIC") 30%
Key Performance Indicator ("KPI") 10%

         Business Unit Level�overall award based 80% on business unit performance (described below) and 20% on corporate level results
(described above)

Measure Weighting
Business Unit Operating Income ("OI") 60%
Business Unit ROIC 30%
Business Unit KPI 10%

        For purposes of the annual incentive award program, EPS, OI and ROIC are adjusted financial measures that exclude the effects of events
deemed not reflective of the actual performance of the eligible participants. For Fiscal Year 2008, the categories of adjustments included the
elimination of the effects of (i) business disposals, (ii) pre-separation tax matters, (iii) charges and income related to former management or
shareholder litigation, (iv) land sales, and (v) restructuring and asset impairment charges.

        The KPI is an additional measure specifically designed for the Company and each business unit to emphasize an important initiative. The
corporate level KPI for Fiscal Year 2008 was operating income percentage and the KPI for the business units was either operating income
percentage or organic sales growth. Organic sales growth is our reported net sales growth as adjusted for the impact from foreign exchange rates,
acquisitions and divestitures. As noted above, business unit awards were based 80% on the attainment of the business unit performance measures
and 20% on the corporate level results in order to drive cross-business collaboration.

        The minimum threshold performance required to earn an annual incentive award for each established performance measure was set at 90%,
with maximum payout for each performance measure set at attainment of 110% of such measure. Actual awards could have ranged from 0% (for
performance below the threshold level) to 200% (for performance at or over the maximum performance level) of an incentive bonus target.
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        For the Fiscal Year 2008 annual incentive award program, the Committee reserved the discretion to adjust individual or business unit award
amounts upward or downward by up to 25% based on its subjective evaluation of the individual or business unit performance during the fiscal
year. However, any discretionary adjustments were required to net out to zero. In addition, the Committee granted the Chief Executive Officer a
discretionary award pool of $6.5 million (10% of the target AIP pool amount) to make additional annual incentive awards as deemed appropriate
in his discretion.

        Fiscal Year 2008 performance targets, actual attainment and corresponding annual incentive award results at the corporate level and for the
Communications, Computer & Consumer Electronics and Network Solutions business units (for Mr. Okamoto and Mr. Clarke, respectively)
were as follows:

 Corporate Level: Messrs. Lynch, Scott, Curtin and Ms. Leipold

Performance Measure Target Range Results
Performance
% to Target

Bonus
Score

EPS (60%) $2.21�$2.28 $ 2.43 108.2% 178.95%
ROIC (30%) 10.4% 11.5% 110.6% 210%
KPI�OI% (10%) 14.1% 13.7% 97.2% 85.7%

Corporate Level Earned Award: 178.9%

 CC&CE: Mr. Okamoto

Performance Measure Target Range Results
Performance
% to Target

Bonus
Score

OI (48%) $531.3�$547.7M $472.9M 87.7% 0.0%
ROIC (24%) 11.2% 9.5% 84.8% 0.0%
KPI�OI% (8%) 16.7% 15.0% 89.8% 0.0%
CC&CE Earned Award, including 20% attributable to Corporate Level Results (178.9%): 35.8%

 Network Solutions: Mr. Clarke

Performance Measure Target Range Results
Performance
% to Target

Bonus
Score

OI (48%) $339.5�$350.0M $306.4M 88.9% 0.0%
ROIC (24%) 12.8% 10.7% 83.6% 0.0%
KPI�Organic Sales (8%) 7.2% 6.3% 87.5% 55.0%

Network Solutions Weighted Score: 5.5%
Network Solutions Earned Award, including 20% attributed to Corporate Level Results (178.9%): 40.2%

        Once the bonus scores were calculated, adjustments were made to arrive at the final bonus payout for each named executive officer, as
follows:

�
The corporate level bonus score was adjusted downward to a rating of 150% (from 178.9%) to more appropriately reflect the
overall business performance in Fiscal Year 2008. As a result, Messrs. Lynch, Scott and Curtin and Ms. Leipold were
awarded annual incentive payments equal to 150% of their respective annual incentive program targets.

�
The CC&CE bonus score was adjusted upward to a rating of 44.7% (from 35.8%) to recognize the business unit's solid
performance in a weak economy, its leadership in the Company's talent sharing process and productivity/TEOA (Tyco
Electronics Operational Advantage) programs, its efficiency in operational portfolio cleanup, and its market share gains with
key customers. As a
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result, Mr. Okamoto was awarded an annual incentive payment equal to 44.7% of his annual incentive plan target.

�
Mr. Clarke's bonus score was adjusted upward to a rating of 50.2% (from 40.2%) to recognize Mr. Clarke's contribution to
corporate-wide initiatives including the development of the Eastern Europe and India markets and his executive sponsorship
of the Tyco Electronics Operations Council.

        The adjustments were made based on the Committee's authority to adjust annual incentive awards upward or downward by 25% (as
described above). The Chief Executive Officer did not award any amounts from the $6.5 million discretionary pool (as described above).

Long-Term Incentive Awards

        The MDCC intends to use long-term incentive awards in the form of stock options, restricted stock units and other forms of equity and/or
cash to deliver competitive compensation that recognizes employees for their contributions to the Company and aligns executive officers with
shareholders in focusing on long-term growth and stock performance. As part of the Company's compensation philosophy, the MDCC
concluded that annual grants of long-term incentive awards to executive officers typically should be targeted at the 50th percentile relative to our
primary talent market peer group, but should have the ability to deliver compensation at the high end of the market for superior performance and
at the low end of the market for weak performance. The Company does not have a rigid policy for the allocation of long-term equity incentive
awards among the different forms of equity. However, consistent with its policy that a majority of an executive officer's compensation be
performance-based, long-term equity incentive awards for executive officers will be weighted primarily in the form of stock options or some
other form of performance-based award.

        The Committee intends that long-term equity incentive awards will be granted on an annual basis, typically in the first fiscal quarter of each
year. In general, the factors used to determine the number of shares subject to long-term incentive equity awards in any year will include
(i) target grant ranges based on competitive data from our benchmark companies, (ii) the Company's stock price, (iii) the mix of stock options
and full value shares to be granted, (iv) total share utilization and dilution, (v) the incentive and retentive value deemed appropriate for the grant,
(vi) prior grant history, and (vii) anticipated equity-related expense. (As discussed above, the Committee set Fiscal Year 2009 long-term
incentive target ranges based on the July 2008 competitive compensation assessment.)

        As discussed in our Fiscal Year 2007 CD&A, the Company issued a Founders' Grant to executive officers and other employees on July 2,
2007 that consisted of a mix of stock options and restricted stock units. (Executive officers received an award mix of 75% stock options and
25% restricted stock units.) The Founders' Grant award values were designed to cover eighteen months (as the Committee did not intend to issue
another broad-based long-term equity grant until the Company's 2009 fiscal year), plus an additional one-time award to executive officers and
other employees to recognize their contributions during the separation process. Thus, the values of the Founders' Grant awards were set between
the 50th and 75th percentiles of primary market group benchmarks. Consistent with the Committee's intent when granting the Founders' Grant
awards, no long-term equity incentive awards were granted to executive officers in Fiscal Year 2008.

        In November 2008, Fiscal Year 2009 annual long-term equity incentive awards were granted to executive officers and other employees.
(These equity awards are not reflected in the Summary Compensation Table because they were granted in Fiscal Year 2009.) To support our
philosophy that long-term incentive awards be performance based and be designed to reward the creation of shareholder value, the Fiscal Year
2009 long-term equity incentive awards for executive officers were made in the form of stock options (70%) and restricted stock unit awards
(30%). The grant values were based on the long-term equity incentive ranges adopted by the Committee in July 2008, as
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discussed above. For purposes of establishing the long-term incentive ranges, the Committee grouped executives together (except for
Mr. Lynch) based on an evaluation of the importance of each executive's role to the organization and a review of competitive market data. Roles
were grouped accordingly and ranges established based on the market data. For example, Messrs. Scott and Curtin were grouped together
reflecting their large functional roles. Messrs. Okamoto and Clarke were grouped together with other executives leading large business units.
Ms. Leipold was grouped together with other similarly-situated corporate level executives. All grants made to the executive officers, except for
Mr. Lynch, were within the ranges established for each executive group. Mr. Lynch's Fiscal Year 2009 annual long-term equity incentive grant
was based on competitive market data and was set at the 50th percentile of his primary market group benchmark.

Pay Mix

        We do not have a specific policy with respect to the allocation between fixed versus performance-based compensation or annual versus
long-term compensation. Our mix is largely driven by our practice of basing each element of compensation on market 50th-percentile practices.
However, management and the MDCC periodically review our mix in relation to market and in relation to our desired objective of providing the
majority of our named executive officers' compensation through performance-based components. The following table shows our mix of fixed
compensation versus performance-based compensation and annual versus long-term compensation, based on the data shown in the Summary
Compensation Table. As indicated by the table below, our actual mix is consistent with our objective to deliver the majority of executive
compensation through long-term equity incentives.

Base
Salary

Long-Term
Incentives

Non-Equity
Incentive

Other
Compensation

Lynch 12.5% 66.4% 18.7% 2.4%
Curtin 23.4% 44.6% 27.1% 4.8%
Scott 23.2% 43.5% 26.7% 6.6%
Okamoto 24.3% 59.2% 8.3% 8.2%
Clarke 29.2% 57.9% 11.3% 1.6%
Leipold 22.1% 49.4% 22.1% 6.3%

Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits

        The Company maintains various retirement plans to assist our executive officers with retirement income planning and increase the
attractiveness of employment with the Company.

        The Company provides a defined contribution plan, the Tyco Electronics Retirement Savings and Investment Plan ("RSIP"), that is
available to all eligible United States employees, and a nonqualified supplemental retirement plan, the Tyco Electronics Supplemental Savings
and Retirement Plan ("SSRP"), in which executive officers may participate.

        Under the RSIP, the Company match level is based on years of service, as follows:

Years of Service
Employee

Contribution*
Company

Contribution*
0�9 1% 5%
10�19 2% 6%
20�24 3% 7%
25�29 4% 8%
30 or more 5% 9%

*
Represents the percentage of the employee's compensation, which for purposes of the RSIP, generally includes base salary and
annual incentive awards paid to the employee.
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        Company contributions for the named executive officers are shown in the "All Other Compensation" column of the Summary
Compensation Table and the related table of All Other Compensation that follow this CD&A. Executive officers are fully vested in Company
matching contributions upon completion of three years of vesting service under the RSIP and SSRP.

        Under the SSRP, executive officers may defer up to 50% of their base salary and 100% of their annual incentive awards. The Company
provides matching contributions to the SSRP based on the executive officer's deferred base salary and annual incentive awards at the same rate
such officer is eligible to receive matching contributions under the RSIP and on any cash compensation (i.e., base salary and annual incentive
awards) the executive officer earns that year in excess of Internal Revenue Service limits. This plan was filed as an exhibit to Tyco Electronics'
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2007.

        All of the Company's U.S. retirement, deferred compensation, incentive and other executive and broad-based plans are intended to comply
with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code.

        Mr. Okamoto is eligible to receive retirement benefits under the Directors' Retirement Allowance Regulation, a defined benefit pension
plan maintained by the Company in Japan. Mr. Okamoto is entitled to receive either a single lump sum payment or a monthly life annuity
commencing at normal retirement age 60, or upon earlier retirement after age 50 with 15 years of service. Annuities for retirement after age 60
are payable for Mr. Okamoto's lifetime, with ten years guaranteed. Annuities for earlier retirement are payable for ten years only. The lump sum
is based upon the product of specified plan factors that vary by service, multiplied by the average annual pensionable salary during the ten-year
period prior to termination. This amount is offset by the employee retirement lump sum previously received and increased at a specified interest
rate. Death benefits will be paid to the survivor for a ten-year period upon the death of the individual who attained age 50 and 15 years of
service. Projected pension benefits for Mr. Okamoto are disclosed in the Pension Benefits table that follows this CD&A.

        Dr. Gromer participated in a defined benefit pension plan established by the Company for the benefit of its German employees. Dr. Gromer
retired from active employment on December 31, 2007 and elected to commence his pension benefit on April 1, 2008. Dr. Gromer is receiving a
monthly benefit of 46,183 €, which will be payable for the remainder of his life.

Welfare Benefits

        We provide welfare benefits to executive officers on the same basis as all other employees. These arrangements include medical, dental,
life insurance and disability coverage and are offered to all our eligible U.S.-based employees. The various benefit plans are part of our overall
total compensation offering and are intended to be competitive with peer companies.

        Outside of the United States, the Company provides welfare benefits based on local country practices.

Perquisites

        The Company's perquisite program provides for the payment to U.S. executive officers of a cash allowance equal to an additional ten
percent (10%) of base salary, in lieu of perquisites typically provided by other companies. The executive is permitted to apply the allowance as
he or she deems appropriate. Other than the allowance, there are no perquisites provided to U.S. executive officers.

        Outside of the United States, perquisite benefits are paid to executive officers based on local country practice. (See the Summary
Compensation Table that follows this CD&A for more information on the perquisite benefits paid to our non-U.S. named executive officers.)
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Change in Control and Termination Payments

        The Company maintains the Tyco Electronics Severance Plan for U.S. Officers and Executives ("Severance Plan") and the Tyco
Electronics Change in Control Severance Plan for Certain U.S. Officers and Executives ("CIC Plan"). These plans were filed as exhibits to Tyco
Electronics' Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2007. The Company believes that
the maintenance of severance and change in control benefits is appropriate in order to attract and retain executive talent (given the fact that such
benefits are standard benefits provided by peer companies), to avoid costly and potentially protracted separation negotiations, to ensure
continuity of management in the event of an actual or threatened change in control and to protect our executive officers' investment in the
Company. The Committee performed a competitive analysis of both plans when they were adopted in Fiscal Year 2007 and determined that the
benefits provided under both plans were standard in the marketplace.

        Under the Company's Severance Plan, benefits are payable to an executive officer only upon an involuntary termination of employment for
any reason other than cause, permanent disability or death, and are conditioned upon the executive officer executing a release (including
confidentiality, one year non-competition, two year non-solicitation and non-disparagement covenants) in favor of the Company. Under the
Severance Plan, an eligible executive will be paid cash severance upon termination of employment equal to: two times base salary plus two
times target bonus for the Chief Executive Officer, one and one-half times base salary plus one and one-half times target bonus for Section 16
officers who are direct reports to the Chief Executive Officer, and one times base salary plus one times target bonus for other Section 16 officers
and executives classified as Band 1 or Band 2 employees. Cash severance payments are made in monthly installments. In addition, the
terminated executive will be eligible to receive a pro rata annual incentive payment for the year in which the termination occurs and continued
health and welfare benefits for the length of the severance period. The Severance Plan does not provide any special treatment for outstanding
equity awards. The severance benefits provided under the Severance Plan, including the cash severance multiples, were set by the Committee at
levels deemed consistent with market practice. "Cause" is defined as substantial failure or refusal to perform duties and responsibilities of the
executive's job, violation of fiduciary duty, conviction of a felony or misdemeanor, dishonesty, theft, violation of our rules or policies, or other
egregious conduct that has or could have a serious and detrimental impact on Tyco Electronics and its employees.

        Severance benefits for non-U.S. executives will generally be based on local statutory requirements.

        The Company's CIC Plan incorporates a "double trigger" concept before benefits become payable. In other words, benefits are payable to
an executive officer under the CIC Plan only upon an involuntary termination of employment by the Company or "good reason resignation" that
occurs during a period shortly before and continuing after a change in control (a "qualifying termination") and are conditioned upon the
executive officer executing a release (including confidentiality, non-competition, non-solicitation and non-disparagement covenants) in favor of
the Company. For purposes of the CIC Plan, "good reason resignation" generally means assignment of duties materially inconsistent with the
executive's position, a material adverse change in the executive's position, Company actions that would cause the executive to violate his or her
ethical or professional obligations, relocation to a place of employment greater than 60 miles from the executive's current place of employment,
a reduction in the executive's base salary or annual bonus, a reduction in the aggregate of the executive's benefits or failure by the Company to
have its obligations under the CIC Plan assumed by a successor.

        No benefits are payable under the CIC Plan if the executive officer is terminated for "cause." "Cause" is defined as a violation of fiduciary
duty, conviction of a felony or misdemeanor, dishonesty, theft or other egregious conduct likely to have a materially detrimental impact on Tyco
Electronics and its employees.
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        Under the CIC Plan, an eligible executive will be paid cash severance in the event of a qualifying termination equal to: three times base
salary plus three times target bonus for the Chief Executive Officer, two times base salary plus two times target bonus for Section 16 officers
who are direct reports to the Chief Executive Officer, and one and one-half times base salary plus one and one-half times target bonus for other
Section 16 officers and Band 1 employees. Cash severance payments will be made in the form of a lump sum payment. In addition, the
terminated executive will be eligible to receive a pro rata annual incentive payment for the year in which the termination occurs and continued
health and welfare benefits for the length of the severance period (i.e., 36, 24 or 18 months). Outstanding equity awards will become fully vested
in the event of a qualifying termination. Cash severance and other benefits payable as a result of a qualifying termination will be limited to the
greater after-tax amount resulting from (i) payment of the full benefits provided under the CIC Plan and imposition of all taxes, including any
applicable excise taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 280G, or (ii) payment of the benefits capped at the Section 280G limit with no
excise tax imposed. Benefits payable under the CIC Plan will not be grossed up for the imposition of Section 280G or any other taxes. The
severance benefits provided under the CIC Plan, including the cash severance multiples, were set by the Committee at levels deemed consistent
with market practice.

Retention Agreement and Consulting Agreement with Dr. Gromer

        On March 22, 2006, Dr. Gromer and Tyco International entered into a retention agreement providing Dr. Gromer with a monetary benefit
equal to two times his annual base salary and target bonus in exchange for Dr. Gromer's continued service under his services agreement with
Tyco Electronics Logistics AG for a period of no less than two years following the separation. If Dr. Gromer's employment was terminated
before the end of the two-year period for reasons other than cause or as a result of death or disability, he would still be eligible to receive the
retention payment. However, the actual retention award Dr. Gromer was to receive was to be reduced by any severance, notice pay, termination
indemnity or other similar amount paid by Tyco International or Tyco Electronics as a result of any termination.

        On April 11, 2007, Tyco International announced that Dr. Gromer would retire from Tyco Electronics on December 31, 2007. In
accordance with the terms of a release and separation agreement among Tyco Electronics Logistics AG, Tyco Electronics AMP GmbH, Tyco
International and Dr. Gromer dated as of April 10, 2007, Dr. Gromer received a lump sum payment of 3,359,232 € (USD 4,939,863 using a
January 28, 2008 conversion ratio of 1.46860 USD to 1 € for the amount of the payment paid out of Germany, and January 29, 2008 conversion
ratio of 1.47150 USD to 1 € for the amount of the payment paid out of Switzerland), representing 24 months' base salary and target bonus, in
satisfaction of the obligations to Dr. Gromer under the March 22, 2006 retention agreement. The agreement restricts Dr. Gromer from soliciting
Tyco Electronics' customers and employees and from competing with Tyco Electronics for a period of 24 months after his retirement on
December 31, 2007.

        On January 15, 2008, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with Dr. Gromer. The term of the consulting agreement began on
January 15, 2008 and ended on December 31, 2008. During the term of the consulting agreement, Dr. Gromer made himself available to the
Chief Executive Officer on a reasonable basis to provide assistance at client meetings, industry trade shows and other customer relationship
activities. As remuneration for his services, the Company paid Dr. Gromer a monthly consulting fee equal to 11,340 EUR (USD $17,061).
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Executive Stock Ownership Requirements

        The Company maintains a Share Ownership and Retention Requirement Plan applicable to the Company's executive officers, including the
named executive officers. Under the plan, the Chief Executive Officer is required to own Tyco Electronics common shares in an amount equal to
five times base salary, while the direct reports to the Chief Executive Officer are required to own shares in an amount equal to two times base
salary. All covered executive officers are required to meet the share ownership requirements within five years of the effective date of the plan, or
within five years of the officer's date of employment, if later. The following shares count towards the ownership requirements: wholly owned
shares, shares in stock units or deferred compensation plans, shares in 401(k) plans and employee stock ownership plans, unvested restricted
stock and shares held by immediate family members that are considered beneficially owned by the executive officer. As of fiscal year end 2008,
five of the six named executive officers met their stock ownership requirements.

Primary Talent Market Peer Group

 Aerospace & Defense, Electronics & Scientific Equipment, Industrial Manufacturing

3M Co. General Dynamics Corp. Parker Hannifin Corp.
Advanced Medical Optics Inc. General Electric Company PerkinElmer Inc.
Advanced Micro Devices Inc. Goodrich Corp. Plexus Corp.
Agilent Technologies Inc. Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co. Plum Creek Timber

Company, Inc.
Alliant Techsystems, Inc. Greif, Inc. Polymer Group, Inc.
AMETEK Inc. Harman International

Industries
Powerwave Technologies, Inc.

A. O. Smith Corporation Harsco Corp. Raytheon Co.
Applied Materials Inc. Herman Miller Rockwell Automation Inc.
Ball Hexcel Corp. Rockwell Collins Inc.
Beckman Coulter Inc. HNI Corp. SAIC, Inc.
Boeing Honeywell International Inc. Schweitzer-Mauduit
Brady Corp. IDEX Corp. Smurfit-Stone Container, Inc.
Calgon Carbon Corporation Ingersoll-Rand Sonoco Products Co.
Cameron International Corp. International Paper Co. Steelcase Inc.
Carlisle Companies
Incorporated

ITT�Corporate Tektronix, Inc.

Caterpillar Inc. KLA-Tencor Corporation Temple-Inland Inc.
Celestica Inc. L-3 Communications Tennant Company
Chesapeake L. B. Foster Company Terex Corp.
Clarcor Inc. Leggett & Platt, Incorporated Texas Instruments Inc.
CONSTAR International Inc. Lockheed Martin Corp. Textron Inc.
Corning Incorporated Louisiana-Pacific Corp. Thomas & Betts Corp.
Cubic Corp. Manitowoc Co. Inc. The Timken Company
Curtiss-Wright Corporation MeadWestvaco Corp. Toro Co.
Donaldson Co. Inc. Milacron Inc. Trinity Industries Inc.
Dresser-Rand Group Inc. Millipore Corp. United Rentals, Inc.
Eaton Corp. Mine Safety Appliances Co. United Technologies Corp.
EDO MSC Industrial Direct Co. Inc. USG Corp.
Emerson Electric Co. Northrop Grumman Corp. Valmont Industries, Inc.
Flowserve Corporation Omnova Solutions Inc. W. W. Grainger, Inc.
Fortune Brands Inc. Owens-Illinois Healthcare Weyerhaeuser Co.
Gehl Company     Packaging, Inc.

Management Development and Compensation Committee Report

        The Management Development and Compensation Committee has reviewed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and discussed that
Analysis with management. Based on its review and discussions with management, the Committee recommended to our Board of Directors that
the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 26,
2008 and the company's proxy statement for the 2009 Annual
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General Meeting of Shareholders. This report is provided by the following independent directors, who comprise the committee:

The Management Development and Compensation Committee:

Frederic M. Poses, Chair
Robert M. Hernandez
Daniel J. Phelan

November 18, 2008

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

        None of our executive officers serves as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee of any entity that has one or more
of its executive officers serving as a member of our Management Development and Compensation Committee. In addition, none of our
executive officers serves as a member of the compensation committee of any entity that has one or more of its executive officers serving as a
member of our Board of Directors.

Executive Officer Compensation

Summary Compensation Table

        The following table summarizes the compensation of the named executive officers for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2008 ("fiscal
2008"). The named executive officers are the company's principal executive officer, principal financial officer and the five other most highly
compensated executives, including an executive officer who retired on December 31, 2007.

Name and Principal Position
(a)

Year
(b)

Salary(2)
($)
(c)

Bonus(3)
($)
(d)

Stock
Awards(4)

($)
(e)

Option
Awards(5)

($)
(f)

Non-Equity
Incentive
Plan

Compen-
sation(6)
($)
(g)

Change in
Pension
Value and
Nonqualified
Deferred
Compen-
sation

Earnings
($)
(h)

All Other
Compen-
sation(8)
($)
(i)

Total
($)
(j)

Thomas J. Lynch, 2008 $ 950,000 �$1,865,289 $3,191,118 $ 1,425,000 � $ 185,097 $ 7,616,504
Chief Executive 2007 $ 891,375 �$3,262,895 $4,051,446 $ 836,000 � $ 258,437 $ 9,300,153
Officer (PEO)

Terrence R. Curtin,
2008 $ 490,319 �$ 344,197 $ 591,837 $ 569,109 � $ 101,530 $ 2,096,992

EVP & Chief 2007 $ 437,500 $ 325,000 $ 358,236 $ 451,556 $ 360,525 � $ 103,697 $ 2,036,514
Financial Officer
(PFO)

Robert A. Scott,
2008 $ 512,404 �$ 369,487 $ 590,444 $ 590,625 � $ 146,050 $ 2,209,010

EVP & General 2007 $ 468,750 $ 281,250 $ 553,181 $ 577,688 $ 448,521 � $ 100,235 $ 2,429,625
Counsel

Minoru Okamoto,
2008 $ 498,926 �$ 412,693 $ 801,944 $ 170,621 $ 370,254(7) $ 167,421 $ 2,051,605

President 2007 $ 442,432 �$ 440,006 $ 690,958 $ 221,478 $ 308,607(7) $ 153,961 $ 1,948,835
Communications &
Industrial Solutions(1)

Alan C. Clarke,
2008 $ 488,963 �$ 511,454 $ 458,500 $ 188,651 $ 200,846(7) $ 28,556 $ 1,676,124

President Network
Solutions(1)

Juergen Gromer,
2008 $ 343,260 $ 4,939,863 � � $ 454,116 $ 1,280,323(7) $ 226,057 $ 5,963,296

Retired President(1) 2007 $1,116,458 �$2,741,436 $5,078,816 $ 982,483 $ 548,060(7) $ 54,024 $ 9,973,217
Jane A. Leipold,

2008 $ 394,551 �$ 336,426 $ 543,383 $ 394,144 �(7) $ 113,082 $ 1,781,586
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SVP Global Human
Resources

(1)
Salary and bonus for Messrs. Lynch, Curtin and Scott and Ms. Leipold are paid in U.S. dollars (USD). Mr. Okamoto's salary and bonus are paid in
Japanese yen (JPY). Mr. Clarke's salary and bonus are paid in Great Britain pounds (GBP).
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Dr. Gromer's salary and bonus were paid in euros (EUR), with one-third attributable to his employment status with Tyco Electronics AMP GmbH in
Germany, and two-thirds attributable to his employment status with Tyco Electronics Logistics AG in Switzerland. Dr. Gromer's salary and bonus are
pro-rated reflecting his retirement from Tyco Electronics on December 31, 2007. To convert compensation values to USD, the monthly conversion
rates, as determined by the average monthly income statement foreign currency translation rates used by Tyco Electronics finance, were averaged. For
Dr. Gromer, a three-month average was used to reflect his period of employment at Tyco Electronics during fiscal 2008. The following are the
conversion rates for the above table.

1 JPY = 0.00930 USD
1 GBP = 1.97561 USD
1 EUR = 1.44593 USD

(2)
Amounts shown are not reduced to reflect the named executive officers' elections, if any, to defer receipt of salary into the SSRP.

(3)
In satisfaction of the obligations to Dr. Gromer under his March 22, 2006 retention agreement, he received a lump sum payment representing
24 months' base salary and target bonus. The payment was paid out in accordance with his employment agreement with Tyco Electronics AMP GmbH
in Germany and Tyco Electronics Logistics AG in Switzerland totaling 3,359,232 EUR (USD $4,939,863 using a January 28, 2008 conversion ratio of
1.46860 for the German portion and January 29, 2008 conversion ratio of 1.47150 for the Swiss portion on respective dates of payment).

Amounts paid to Messrs. Curtin and Scott in 2007 represent dollar amounts outside of Tyco Electronics' Annual Incentive Plan ("AIP"). Mr. Curtin's
bonus represents a retention payment paid pursuant to the terms of an agreement with Tyco International entered into in order to retain Mr. Curtin's
services during the transition period and prior to the time at which he was appointed Chief Financial Officer to recognize the critical role he played in
the successful operation of the Tyco Electronics business during separation from Tyco International. Mr. Scott's bonus reflected the work he did on
behalf of Tyco International on the separation. Both bonuses were paid shortly after July 2, 2007, after the completion of the separation. Amounts paid
under the company's AIP are reported in column (g) as "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation."

(4)
Represents the compensation costs of restricted stock units ("RSUs") for financial reporting purposes for fiscal 2008 under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123R, "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS 123R"), rather than an amount paid to or realized by the named executive officer.
See Note 24 (Share Plans) to the notes to consolidated and combined financial statements ("Note 24") set forth in Tyco Electronics' Annual Report on
Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2008 (the "10-K") for the assumptions made in determining SFAS 123R values. For grants that
vest through the passage of time, the fair market value of the award at the time of the grant is allocated as an expense over the period of vesting. The
fair value of restricted share awards has been determined based on the market value on the grant date. There can be no assurance that the SFAS 123R
amounts will ever be realized.

Dr. Gromer had no SFAS 123R expense in fiscal 2008 because all awards had previously been expensed as a result of the accelerated vesting of his
outstanding equity awards. However, there was an accounting reversal ($201,090) representing the performance awards that were forfeited upon his
retirement. These awards were already fully vested and expensed in a prior period, but because the terms and conditions for the above target portion
were not met and the awards forfeited, the expense was reversed. No expense on these performance awards was taken in fiscal 2007 and, therefore, no
negative amount is reflected in the Summary Compensation Table.

(5)
Represents the compensation costs of stock options for financial reporting purposes for fiscal 2008 under SFAS 123R, rather than an amount paid to or
realized by the named executive officer. See Note 24 in the 10-K for the assumptions made in determining SFAS 123R values. There can be no
assurance that the SFAS 123R amounts will ever be realized.

(6)
Represents amounts earned for fiscal 2008 under the AIP. Amounts shown are not reduced to reflect the named executive officers' elections, if any, to
defer receipt of awards into the SSRP.

(7)
Represents the aggregate change in actuarial present value of the accumulated benefits for Mr. Okamoto, Mr. Clarke, Dr. Gromer and Ms. Leipold
under their pension plans as described in "CD&A�Elements of Compensation�Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits." Within the change in
pension value for Dr. Gromer, a minimal amount, $3,826 in 2008 and $1,105 in 2007, is related to an annuity contract set up with an insurance
company. Ms. Leipold had a decrease in pension value ($7,366) as a result of the increase in the discount rate and the pension plan being frozen, which
resulted in no additional benefit accrual for the year. Messrs. Lynch, Curtin and Scott do not participate in a pension plan.

(8)
See the All Other Compensation table below for amounts which include perquisites and company match on employee contributions to the employee
stock purchase plan, the company's 401(k) plan and nonqualified defined contribution plan, and other amounts. The amounts reflected in the table for
perquisites are the company's incremental cost. The company also provides group life, health, hospitalization and medical reimbursement plans which
do not discriminate in scope, terms or operation in favor of officers and are available to all full-time employees.
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 All Other Compensation

Name Year
Perquisites

($)
Other
($)

Insurance
Premiums(g)

($)

ESPP
Company
Match(h)

($)

Company
Contributions
to DC Plans(i)

($)

Total
All Other

Compensation
($)

Thomas J. Lynch 2008 $ 95,000(a) $2,303(e) � $ 3,975 $ 83,819 $ 185,097
Terrence R. Curtin 2008 $ 49,044(a) � � � $ 52,486 $ 101,530
Robert A. Scott 2008 $ 51,250(a) � � $ 4,215 $ 90,585 $ 146,050
Minoru Okamoto 2008 $ 160,272(b) � $ 7,149 � � $ 167,421
Alan C. Clarke 2008 $ 28,556(c) � � � � $ 28,556
Juergen W. Gromer 2008 $ 226,057(d) � � � � $ 226,057
Jane A. Leipold 2008 $ 39,463(a) $1,060(f) � � $ 72,559 $ 113,082

(a)
Amounts reflect a cash perquisite allowance under the executive flexible perquisites allowance program which provides executives a cash
allowance of 10%.

(b)
Outside of the United States, Tyco Electronics provides a company car to certain senior executives. Mr. Okamoto's perquisites included
$36,173, which reflects the incremental cost to the company of the lease value of a company car along with any associated taxes or
maintenance costs. The amounts also included a housing allowance of $123,904 and the cost of a club membership totaling $195, all
consistent with Japanese practice.

(c)
Mr. Clarke's perquisites included $22,024, which reflects the incremental cost to the company of the lease value of a company car along
with associated taxes or maintenance costs. In addition, Mr. Clarke was provided with a car allowance of $1,395 for any additional
miscellaneous costs and $5,137 in tax planning assistance.

(d)
For 2008, Dr. Gromer's perquisites included $205,973 which reflects the accrued vacation payment he received for unused vacation days at
the time of his retirement. The payment was made in accordance with his employment agreement, using a January 28, 2008 conversion ratio
of 1.46860 for the German portion and January 29, 2008 conversion ratio of 1.47150 for the Swiss portion on respective dates of payment.
For 2008, this amount also included $8,846 relating to the incremental cost to the company of the lease value of a company car along with
associated taxes or maintenance costs. Dr. Gromer was occasionally provided with a driver and the cost of the driver, $2,163, is included in
the amount shown along with some miscellaneous service charges. The fuel costs attributable to Dr. Gromer's personal use of the company
car are estimated to be $945. Dr. Gromer also received $8,130 in tax planning assistance.

(e)
Represents business expense income related to spousal travel for airfare and meal costs. Mr. Lynch was traveling for business and his wife
accompanied him on the trip; these are the costs associated with her travel. There was no additional incremental cost to the company
regarding usage of the corporate aircraft, as costs reflect the commercial flight ticket Mrs. Lynch took back home. The company aircraft was
only used by Mr. Lynch for company business during fiscal 2008.

(f)
Majority represents relocation costs paid out in 2008 to Ms. Leipold. She was previously located in Harrisburg, PA but moved to the new
Tyco Electronics' U.S. corporate headquarters in Berwyn, PA as a result of the company's separation from Tyco International.

(g)
The amount for Mr. Okamoto reflects the combination of premiums paid for ordinary accident and income indemnity insurance.

(h)
Represents the company matching contribution made under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

(i)
Reflects contributions made on behalf of the named executive officers under Tyco Electronics' qualified defined contribution plan and
accruals on behalf of the named executive officers under the SSRP (also a defined contribution plan), as follows:

Name Year

Company
Matching

Contribution
(Qualified
Plan)

Company
Contribution
(Non-Qualified

Plan)
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Mr. Lynch 2008 $ 11,500 $ 72,319
Mr. Curtin 2008 $ 7,750 $ 44,736
Mr. Scott 2008 $ 11,500 $ 79,085
Ms. Leipold 2008 $ 17,714 $ 54,845
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards in Fiscal 2008

        The following table discloses potential payouts under the company's non-equity and equity incentive plans. There were no equity awards
granted during fiscal 2008. The founder's grant awarded in fiscal 2007 at separation was granted at a level above the standard long-term annual
incentive award to establish a meaningful ownership stake in the newly separated company and create strong management alignment with our
shareholders' interests. On an annual basis beginning in fiscal 2009, our long-term annual incentive award will be granted in the first quarter of
each fiscal year.

        The information in the table below shows estimated possible payouts under the company's AIP for fiscal 2008 at different performance
levels. The actual payouts under the AIP for fiscal 2008 are shown in the Summary Compensation Table.

Estimated Possible Payouts Under
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards(1)

Name
(a)

Threshold
($)
(b)

Target
($)
(c)

Maximum
($)
(d)

Thomas J. Lynch 475,000 950,000 1,900,000
Terrence R. Curtin 189,703 379,406 758,813
Robert A. Scott 196,875 393,750 787,500
Minoru Okamoto(2) 190,766 381,533 763,065
Alan C. Clarke(2) 187,806 375,613 751,226
Juergen W. Gromer(2)(3) 151,788 303,576 607,152
Jane A. Leipold 131,381 262,763 525,525

(1)
The "Threshold" column represents the minimum amount payable when threshold performance is met. The "Target" column represents the amount
payable if the specified performance targets are reached. The "Maximum" column represents the maximum amount payable under the plan.

(2)
In calculating estimated possible payouts under non-equity incentive plan award numbers, the foreign currency translation rates were used as described
in footnote (1) to the Summary Compensation Table.

(3)
Dr. Gromer's numbers are pro-rated reflecting his retirement from Tyco Electronics on December 31, 2007.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Fiscal Year-End

        The following table shows the number of Tyco Electronics shares covered by exercisable and unexercisable options and unvested RSUs
held by the company's named executive officers on September 26, 2008. Each equity grant is shown separately for each named executive officer.
The vesting schedule for each grant is shown following the table, based on the option or stock award grant date.

Option Awards Stock Awards

Market
Value

of Shares
or Units
of Stock
That Have

Not
Vested(2)

($)
(h)

Number
of Shares
or Units
of Stock
That
Have
Not

Vested(1)
(#)
(g)

Number of
Securities Underlying
Unexercised Options Option

Exercise
Price
($)
(e)

Option
Expiration

Date
(f)

Name
(a)

Grant
Date

Exercisable
(#)
(b)

Unexercisable(1)
(#)
(c)

Grant
Date

Thomas J. Lynch 09/27/04 359,007 0 $ 34.48 09/26/14
03/10/05 173,015 0 $ 41.38 03/09/15
11/22/05 80,741 40,370 $ 33.52 11/21/15 11/22/05 41,430 $1,134,768
11/21/06 54,067 162,202 $ 35.03 11/20/16 11/21/06 70,962 $1,943,649
07/02/07 131,937 395,813 $ 39.97 07/01/17 07/02/07 57,194 $1,566,544
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Option Awards Stock Awards

Market
Value

of Shares
or Units
of Stock
That
Have
Not

Vested(2)
($)
(h)

Number
of Shares
or Units
of Stock
That
Have
Not

Vested(1)
(#)
(g)

Number of
Securities Underlying
Unexercised Options Option

Exercise
Price
($)
(e)

Option
Expiration

Date
(f)

Name
(a)

Grant
Date

Exercisable
(#)
(b)

Unexercisable(1)
(#)
(c)

Grant
Date

Terrence R. Curtin 03/26/01 17,301 0 $ 51.75 03/25/11
07/12/01 17,301 0 $ 58.38 07/11/11
10/01/01 17,301 0 $ 51.67 09/30/11
03/26/04 14,360 0 $ 32.13 03/25/14
03/10/05 21,626 0 $ 41.38 03/09/15
11/22/05 11,534 5,767 $ 33.52 11/21/15 11/22/05 5,917 $ 162,067
11/21/06 11,894 35,685 $ 35.03 11/20/16 11/21/06 15,610 $ 427,558
07/02/07 26,387 79,163 $ 39.97 07/01/17 07/02/07 11,440 $ 313,342

Robert A. Scott
05/03/04 22,387 0 $ 32.25 05/02/14
03/10/05 7,462 0 $ 41.38 03/09/15
11/22/05 3,863 1,932 $ 33.52 11/21/15 11/22/05 3,101 $ 84,936

01/30/06 1,000 $ 27,390
11/21/06 10,813 32,440 $ 35.03 11/20/16 11/21/06 14,191 $ 388,691
07/02/07 26,387 79,163 $ 39.97 07/01/17 07/02/07 11,440 $ 313,342

Minoru Okamoto
04/05/99 25,952 0 $ 41.80 04/04/09
10/18/99 25,952 0 $ 47.62 10/17/09
01/10/00 6,488 0 $ 42.08 01/09/10
10/03/00 31,142 0 $ 58.57 10/02/10
07/12/01 31,142 0 $ 58.38 07/11/11
10/01/01 34,603 0 $ 51.67 09/30/11
02/05/02 34,603 0 $ 27.55 02/04/12
03/26/04 35,814 0 $ 32.13 03/25/14
03/10/05 35,814 0 $ 41.38 03/09/15
11/22/05 12,111 6,055 $ 33.52 11/21/15 11/22/05 6,278 $ 171,954
11/21/06 7,439 22,319 $ 35.03 11/20/16 11/21/06 9,755 $ 267,189
07/02/07 21,987 65,963 $ 39.97 07/01/17 07/02/07 9,530 $ 261,027

Alan C. Clarke
08/12/99 17,301 0 $ 56.18 08/11/09
01/10/00 8,650 0 $ 42.08 01/09/10
04/18/00 17,301 0 $ 50.43 04/17/10
10/03/00 750 0 $ 58.57 10/03/10
10/03/00 16,550 0 $ 58.57 10/02/10

11/22/05 12,695 $ 347,716
11/21/06 10,380 31,142 $ 35.03 11/20/16 11/21/06 13,659 $ 374,120
07/02/07 26,387 79,163 $ 39.97 07/01/17 07/02/07 11,440 $ 313,342

Juergen W. Gromer
03/10/05 216,269 0 $ 41.38 12/31/10
11/22/05 139,277 0 $ 33.52 12/31/10
11/21/06 151,388 0 $ 35.03 12/31/10
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Option Awards Stock Awards

Market
Value

of Shares
or Units
of Stock
That
Have
Not

Vested(2)
($)
(h)

Number
of Shares
or Units
of Stock
That
Have
Not

Vested(1)
(#)
(g)

Number of
Securities Underlying
Unexercised Options Option

Exercise
Price
($)
(e)

Option
Expiration

Date
(f)

Name
(a)

Grant
Date

Exercisable
(#)
(b)

Unexercisable(1)
(#)
(c)

Grant
Date

Jane A. Leipold 10/03/00 3,460 0 $ 58.57 10/02/10
03/26/01 4,325 0 $ 51.75 03/25/11
07/12/01 6,920 0 $ 58.38 07/11/11
10/01/01 17,301 0 $ 51.67 09/30/11
03/26/04 8,650 0 $ 32.13 03/25/14
03/10/05 30,277 0 $ 41.38 03/09/15
11/22/05 7,785 7,786 $ 33.52 11/21/15 11/22/05 8,028 $ 219,887
11/21/06 9,732 29,196 $ 35.03 11/20/16 11/21/06 12,772 $ 349,825
07/02/07 21,987 65,963 $ 39.97 07/01/17 07/02/07 9,530 $ 261,027

(1)
Option and stock vesting schedule:

Grant Date Option Vesting Schedule
Restricted Stock Awards Vesting

Schedule
11/22/05 1/3 vesting each year starting on

1st anniversary
100% after three years from grant
date

01/30/06 n/a 100% after three years from grant
date

11/21/06 1/4 vesting each year starting on
1st anniversary

1/3 vesting each year starting on
2nd anniversary

07/02/07 1/4 vesting each year starting on
1st anniversary

1/2 vesting each year starting on
3rd anniversary

(2)
Value represents the market value of Tyco Electronics common shares (based on the closing price of $27.39 per share on September 26, 2008).

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in Fiscal 2008

        The following table sets forth certain information regarding Tyco Electronics options and stock awards exercised and vested, respectively,
during fiscal 2008 for the named executive officers.

Option Awards Stock Awards

Name
(a)

Number
of Shares
Acquired

on
Exercise

(#)
(b)

Value
Realized

on
Exercise

($)
(c)

Number
of Shares
Acquired

on
Vesting
(#)
(d)

Value
Realized

on
Vesting(1)

($)
(e)

Thomas J. Lynch � � 8,750 $ 282,494
Terrence R. Curtin � � 1,145 $ 36,966
Robert A. Scott � � 1,375 $ 44,392
Minoru Okamoto � � 1,895 $ 61,180
Alan C. Clarke � � 6,035 $ 194,840
Juergen W. Gromer � � 102,219 $3,811,235
Jane A. Leipold � � 1,602 $ 51,721
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(1)
We computed the aggregate dollar amount realized upon vesting by multiplying the number of units vested by the market value of the underlying
shares on the vesting date.
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Pension Benefits for Fiscal 2008

        The following table provides details regarding the present value of accumulated benefits under the plans described in "CD&A�Elements of
Compensation�Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits" for the named executive officers in fiscal 2008.

Name(1)
(a)

Plan Name
(b)

Number
of Years
Credited
Service(2)

(#)
(c)

Present
Value of

Accumulated
Benefit(3)

($)
(d)

Payments
During
Last
Fiscal
Year
($)
(e)

Minoru Okamoto AMP Japan Plan for Directors 19.75 $ 2,027,868 �
Alan C. Clarke Tyco Electronics UK Pension

Scheme
27.1 $ 2,030,704 �

Juergen W. Gromer Tyco Electronics�AMP
Germany (Pension Plan)

30.0 $ 15,765,948(4) $430,527(5)

Jane A. Leipold Tyco Electronics Pension
Plan�Part II AMP

17.0 $ 65,605 �

(1)
Messrs. Lynch, Curtin and Scott do not participate in any pension plan sponsored by Tyco Electronics.

(2)
In calculating Mr. Okamoto's pension benefit, all years of service were taken into account since his latest date of re-employment in 1988 with
11.4 years serving as a director. However, Mr. Okamoto was paid a lump sum settlement (JPY 14,809,520) of the pension accrued prior to becoming a
director of the Japanese subsidiary in 1997. The value of that lump sum settlement is offset against the pension accrued during his service as a director,
and the amount shown in the table reflects the pension benefit with the offset. Credited service for Dr. Gromer takes into account all years of service
with Tyco Electronics and its predecessors and an additional five years of service credited with a prior employer, as agreed when he joined Tyco
Electronics in 1983.

(3)
The present value of accumulated benefit amounts have been measured as of August 31, 2008 with the exception of Dr. Gromer, whose measurement

date of December 31, 2007 reflects his retirement date from Tyco Electronics; and are based on a number of assumptions, including:

�
A discount rate of 2.5% was used for Mr. Okamoto; 6.0% was used for Mr. Clarke and Dr. Gromer; and 7.05% was used for

Ms. Leipold;

�

Mortality rates based on standard actuarial tables; and

�
No retirements prior to normal retirement age or withdrawals for disability or otherwise prior to retirement.

With respect to: Mr. Okamoto, the dollar amount shown has been converted from JPY using a conversion rate of 0.009 USD to 1 JPY; Mr. Clarke, the
dollar amount shown has been converted from GBP using a conversion rate of 1.847 USD to 1 GBP; and Dr. Gromer, the dollar amount shown has
been converted from EUR using a conversion ratio of 1.467 USD to 1 EUR.

(4)
The present value of accumulated benefit for Dr. Gromer assumes that he will receive his retirement benefits in the form of a straight life annuity. He is
required to pay medical and long-term care insurance, as well as taxes from the benefit provided under the pension benefits plan. Additionally, $71,950
of the present value of accumulated benefit for Dr. Gromer is payable by an insurance company.

(5)
Dr. Gromer began to receive monthly payments from his accumulated pension benefit in April 2008. All payments were in euros. A majority of the
payments were paid through Tyco Electronics AMP GmbH in Germany, with $1,957 being paid out through the insurance company related to the
annuity contract. In converting the amounts to USD, a six-month average of the monthly income statement foreign currency translation rates was used
to reflect the period in which payments were received.
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Nonqualified Deferred Compensation for Fiscal 2008

        The following table discloses contributions, earnings and balances to each of the named executive officers in the table under the SSRP
(Supplemental Savings and Retirement Plan) that provides for compensation deferral on a non-tax-qualified basis. See "CD&A�Elements of
Compensation�Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits" for information regarding the plan. Pursuant to the SSRP, executive officers
may defer up to 50% of their base salary and 100% of their annual bonus. We provide matching contributions based on the executive's deferred
base salary and bonus the executive earns in excess of the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(17) limit ($230,000 in 2008) as follows: $5 for
every $1 the executive officer contributes up to the first 1% of the executive officer's eligible pay or, if the executive officer is credited with
more than ten years of service, $6 for every $1 the executive officer contributes up to the first 2% of the executive officer's eligible pay. The
SSRP is offered only in the U.S., so that Mr. Okamoto, Mr. Clarke and Dr. Gromer did not participate in the SSRP, nor did they have any
deferred compensation for fiscal 2008.

Name
(a)

Executive
Contributions
in Last FY(1)

($)
(b)

Registrant
Contributions
in Last FY(2)

($)
(c)

Aggregate
Earnings
in Last
FY(3)

($)
(d)

Aggregate
Withdrawals/
Distributions(4)

($)
(e)

Aggregate
Balance

at Last FYE
($)
(f)

Thomas J. Lynch $ 237,500 $ 72,319 $ (234,828) � $ 1,265,104
Terrence R. Curtin $ 280,470 $ 44,736 $ (121,739) $ 32,460 $ 484,259
Robert A. Scott $ 127,695 $ 79,085 $ (83,502) � $ 361,159
Jane A. Leipold $ 91,612 $ 54,845 $ (62,846) � $ 258,707

(1)
The amounts shown in column (b) represent deferrals of cash and bonuses by the named executive officers under the SSRP, the amounts of which are
included in the Summary Compensation Table in the Salary or Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column, as applicable.

(2)
The amounts shown in column (c) represent matching contributions by the company, the amounts of which are included in the Summary Compensation
Table in the All Other Compensation column.

(3)
No portion of these earnings shown in column (d) were included in the Summary Compensation Table because the SSRP does not provide for
"above-market" or preferential earnings as defined in applicable Securities and Exchange Commission rules.

(4)
The distribution shown for Mr. Curtin is from a legacy non-qualified deferred compensation plan and was made pursuant to a distribution election filed
by Mr. Curtin at the time that the compensation was deferred.

Termination and Change in Control Payments

        The table below outlines the potential payments to our Chief Executive Officer and other named executive officers upon the occurrence of
certain termination triggering events. For the purpose of the table, below are definitions generally applicable for the various types of
terminations under the Tyco Electronics Severance Plan for U.S. Officers and Executives (referred to herein as the "Severance Plan") and/or the
Tyco Electronics Change in Control Severance Plan for Certain U.S. Officers and Executives (referred to herein as the "CIC Plan"). See
"CD&A�Elements of Compensation�Change in Control and Termination Payments" for information regarding the terms of the plans.

�
"Voluntary Resignation" means any retirement or termination of employment that is not initiated by the company or any
subsidiary other than a Good Reason Resignation (defined below).

�
"Good Reason Resignation" means any retirement or termination of employment by a participant that is not initiated by the
company or any subsidiary and that is caused by any one or more of the following events which occurs during the period
beginning 60 days prior to the date of a
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Change in Control (defined below) and ending two years after the date of such Change in Control:

(1)
without the participant's written consent, the company (a) assigns or causes to be assigned to the participant any
duties inconsistent in any material respect with his or her position as in effect immediately prior to the Change in
Control, (b) makes or causes to be made any material adverse change in the participant's position (including titles
and reporting relationships and level), authority, duties or responsibilities, or (c) takes or causes to be taken any
other action which, in the reasonable judgment of the participant, would cause him or her to violate his or her
ethical or professional obligations (after written notice of such judgment has been provided by the participant to
the Management Development and Compensation Committee and the company has been given a 15-day period
within which to cure such action), or which results in a significant diminution in such position, authority, duties or
responsibilities;

(2)
without the participant's written consent, the participant's being required to relocate to a principal place of
employment more than 60 miles from his or her existing principal place of employment;

(3)
without the participant's written consent, the company (a) reduces the participant's base salary or annual bonus, or
(b) reduces the participant's retirement, welfare, stock incentive, perquisite and other benefits, taken as a whole; or

(4)
the company fails to obtain a satisfactory agreement from any successor to assume and agree to perform the
company's obligations to the participant under the CIC Plan.

�
"Involuntary Termination" means a termination of the participant initiated by the company or a subsidiary for any reason
other than Cause (defined below), Permanent Disability (defined below) or death, subject to the conditions specified in the
applicable plan.

�
"Cause" means any misconduct identified as a ground for termination in company policy or other written policies or
procedures, including among other things, misconduct, dishonesty, criminal activity, or egregious conduct that has or could
have a serious and detrimental impact on the company and its employees.

�
"Permanent Disability" means that a participant has a permanent and total incapacity from engaging in any employment for
the employer for physical or mental reasons. A "Permanent Disability" will be deemed to exist if the participant meets the
requirements for disability benefits under the employer's long-term disability plan or under the requirements for disability
benefits under the U.S. social security laws (or similar laws outside the United States, if the participant is employed in that
jurisdiction) then in effect, or if the participant is designated with an inactive employment status at the end of a disability or
medical leave.

�
"Change in Control" means any of the following events:

(1)
any "person" (as defined in Section 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act), excluding for this purpose, (i) the
company or any subsidiary company (wherever incorporated) of the company as defined by Section 86 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, or (ii) any employee benefit plan of the company or any such subsidiary
company (or any person or entity organized, appointed or established by the company for or pursuant to the terms
of any such plan that acquires beneficial ownership of voting securities of the company), is or becomes the
"beneficial owner" (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) directly or indirectly of securities of the
company representing more than 30 percent of the combined voting power of the company's then outstanding
securities; provided,
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however, that no Change in Control will be deemed to have occurred as a result of a change in ownership
percentage resulting solely from an acquisition of securities by the company;

(2)
persons who, as of July 1, 2007 (the "effective date"), constitute the Board (the "Incumbent Directors") cease for
any reason (including without limitation, as a result of a tender offer, proxy contest, merger or similar transaction)
to constitute at least a majority thereof, provided that any person becoming a director of the company subsequent
to the effective date shall be considered an Incumbent Director if such person's election or nomination for election
was approved by a vote of at least 50 percent of the Incumbent Directors; but provided further, that any such
person whose initial assumption of office is in connection with an actual or threatened proxy contest relating to the
election of members of the Board or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of
a "person" (as defined in Section 13(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) other than the Board, including by reason
of agreement intended to avoid or settle any such actual or threatened contest or solicitation, shall not be
considered an Incumbent Director;

(3)
consummation of a reorganization, merger or consolidation or sale or other disposition of at least 80 percent of the
assets of the company (a "Business Combination"), in each case, unless, following such Business Combination, all
or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the beneficial owners of outstanding voting securities
of the company immediately prior to such Business Combination beneficially own directly or indirectly more than
50 percent of the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors, as the case may be, of the company resulting from such Business Combination (including,
without limitation, a company which, as a result of such transaction, owns the company or all or substantially all of
the company's assets either directly or through one or more subsidiary companies (wherever incorporated) of the
company as defined by Section 86 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda) in substantially the same proportions
as their ownership, immediately prior to such Business Combination, of the outstanding voting securities of the
company; or

(4)
approval by the stockholders of the company of a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

�
"Change in Control Termination" means a participant's Involuntary Termination or Good Reason Resignation that occurs
during the period beginning 60 days prior to the date of a Change in Control and ending two years after the date of such
Change in Control.

No named executive officer is entitled to a payment in connection with an Involuntary Termination for Cause.
Only Mr. Okamoto is entitled to a payment in connection with a voluntary termination for retirement.
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Executive Benefits and Payments Upon Termination

Total and
Permanent
Disability,
Death or

Retirement(8)

Involuntary
Termination�
Not For
Cause

Involuntary
Termination�
Change
in Control

Thomas J. Lynch
Compensation
Severance(1) $ 3,800,000 $ 5,700,000
Short-Term Incentive(2) $ 950,000 $ 950,000
Long-Term Incentives

Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or
Continued Vesting)(3) $ 0 $ 0
Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and
Accelerated or Continued Vesting)(3) $ 4,644,961 $ 4,644,961

Benefits and Perquisites(4)

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation(5) $ 22,000 $ 33,000
Outplacement(6) $ 30,000

Terrence R. Curtin
Compensation
Severance(1) $ 1,327,922 $ 1,770,563
Short-Term Incentive(2) $ 379,406 $ 379,406
Long-Term Incentives

Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or
Continued Vesting)(3) $ 0 $ 0
Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and
Accelerated or Continued Vesting)(3) $ 902,966 $ 902,966

Benefits and Perquisites(4)

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation(5) $ 16,500 $ 22,000
Outplacement(6) $ 12,000

Robert A. Scott
Compensation
Severance(1) $ 1,378,125 $ 1,837,500
Short-Term Incentive(2) $ 393,750 $ 393,750
Long-Term Incentives

Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or
Continued Vesting)(3) $ 0 $ 0
Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and
Accelerated or Continued Vesting)(3) $ 814,359 $ 814,359

Benefits and Perquisites(4)

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation(5) $ 16,500 $ 22,000
Outplacement(6) $ 12,000
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Executive Benefits and Payments Upon Termination

Total and
Permanent
Disability,
Death or

Retirement(8)

Involuntary
Termination�
Not For
Cause

Involuntary
Termination�
Change
in Control

Minoru Okamoto
Compensation
Severance(1) $ 845,164 $ 845,164
Short-Term Incentive
Long-Term Incentives

Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or
Continued Vesting)(3) $ 0 $ 0
Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and
Accelerated or Continued Vesting)(3) $ 700,171 $ 700,171

Benefits and Perquisites(4)

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation(5)

Outplacement(6)

Pension Value(7) $ 123,886 $ 123,886
Alan C. Clarke
Compensation
Severance(1) $ 308,195 $ 308,195
Short-Term Incentive
Long-Term Incentives

Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or
Continued Vesting)(3) $ 0 $ 0
Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and
Accelerated or Continued Vesting)(3) $ 1,035,178 $ 1,035,178

Benefits and Perquisites(4)

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation(5)

Outplacement(6)

Jane A. Leipold
Compensation
Severance(1) $ 1,000,519 $ 1,334,025
Short-Term Incentive(2) $ 262,763 $ 262,763
Long-Term Incentives

Stock Options (Unvested and Accelerated or
Continued Vesting)(3) $ 0 $ 0
Restricted Stock Units (Unvested and
Accelerated or Continued Vesting)(3) $ 830,739 $ 830,739

Benefits and Perquisites(4)

Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation(5) $ 16,500 $ 22,000
Outplacement(6) $ 12,000

(1)
Severance is calculated as follows under Involuntary Termination�Not for Cause for U.S.-based executives: Mr. Lynch�two times base salary
plus two times bonus, Messrs. Curtin and Scott and Ms. Leipold�one and one-half times base salary plus one and one-half times bonus; and
as follows under Involuntary Termination�Change in Control for U.S.-based executives: Mr. Lynch�three times base salary plus three times
bonus, Messrs. Curtin and Scott and Ms. Leipold�two times base salary plus two times bonus. If the "parachute payment" (severance plus
value of accelerated equity) is greater than three times the average W-2 reported compensation for the preceding five years, then an "excise
tax" is imposed on the portion of the parachute payment that exceeds the average W-2 reported compensation for the preceding years. In this
case, the participant will receive the greater of (i) payment of the full benefits provided under the CIC Plan and imposition of all taxes,
including any applicable excise taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 280G, or (ii) payment of the benefits capped at the Section 280G
limit with no excise tax
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imposed. Under the CIC Plan, benefits payable thereunder will not be grossed up for the imposition of Internal Revenue Code Section 280G
or any other taxes. Mr. Okamoto and Mr. Clarke are not covered by the Severance Plan or CIC Plan; the termination benefits payable are
based on local requirements. Based on our understanding of Japanese law, Mr. Okamoto would be entitled to receive his normal
compensation (base salary and allowance) for the remaining term of his service contract. On September 26, 2008, Mr. Okamoto had fifteen
months remaining in his then-current directorship. Mr.Clarke is entitled to a redundancy payment based on local statutory requirements,
three weeks of base salary per every year of service as well as a notice pay amount. The total maximum redundancy payment cannot exceed
104 weeks' salary and the notice pay amount cannot exceed twelve weeks' salary. Mr. Clarke currently has 27 years of service with the
company; however, only eight years of service are included in the calculation because of the lump sum settlement Mr. Clarke received in
2000 related to the acquisition of Raychem by Tyco International in 1999. Dr. Gromer retired on December 31, 2007, and is no longer
eligible for termination payments.

(2)
Assumes the effective date of termination is September 26, 2008 and that the pro rata payment under the 2008 AIP is equal to 12/12ths of
the target award.

(3)
Assumes the effective date of termination is September 26, 2008 and the price per Tyco Electronics common share on the date of
termination equals $27.39. Under Involuntary Termination�Change in Control, all outstanding stock options that are vested and exercisable
as of the termination date, as well as the options that vest as a result of the acceleration, will be exercisable for the greater of the period
specified in the option agreement or twelve months from the termination date. In no event, however, will an option be exercisable beyond its
original expiration date. Amounts disclosed for stock options only reflect options that are in-the-money as of September 26, 2008. Restricted
stock units and options granted on July 2, 2007 will be forfeited if the retirement date is prior to July 2, 2009.

(4)
Payments associated with benefits and perquisites are limited to the items listed. No other benefits or perquisite continuation occurs under
the termination scenarios listed.

(5)
Health and welfare benefits continuation is calculated as follows under Involuntary Termination�Not for Cause: Mr. Lynch�24 months,
Messrs. Curtin and Scott and Ms. Leipold�18 months; and as follows under Involuntary Termination�Change in Control:
Mr. Lynch�36 months, Messrs. Curtin and Scott and Ms. Leipold�24 months. Annual amount is an approximation. In the event that provision
of any of the benefits would adversely affect the tax status of the applicable plan or benefits, the company, in its sole discretion, may elect to
pay to the participant cash in lieu of such coverage in an amount equal to the company's premium or average cost of providing such
coverage.

(6)
Outplacement is calculated as the cost of services for the participant for a period of twelve months from the participant's termination date
under Involuntary Termination�Change in Control. The company offers twelve month coverage totaling $30,000 for the Chief Executive
Officer and provides $12,000 for senior executives. The company has the right and sole discretion to pay outplacement services under
Involuntary Termination�Not for Cause, but is not required to provide such benefits.

(7)
Mr. Okamoto has termination provisions within his pension plan. In the event of an involuntary termination or change in control
(termination before attainment of age 60), he will receive an enhanced pension benefit. The amount shown in the table is the value of the
enhancement. Each year the value of this enhancement is decreasing because he is closer to his attainment of age 60.

(8)
Assumes that all performance based units that were converted to time based awards at separation will have fully vested prior to any officer's
retirement and that as a result no awards will be forfeited.

Compensation of Non-Employee Directors

        Compensation of each director who is not a salaried employee of Tyco Electronics is set at $200,000 per annum, payable $80,000 in cash
and $120,000 in Tyco Electronics deferred stock units ("DSUs"). The chair of the Audit Committee receives an additional $25,000 cash retainer
and the chairs of the Management Development and Compensation Committee and Nominating, Governance and Compliance Committee
receive an additional $15,000 cash retainer. The chairman of the Board receives an additional $100,000 cash retainer. Directors who are
employees of Tyco Electronics or its subsidiaries do not receive any compensation for their services as directors. In fiscal 2009, Audit
Committee members each will receive an additional $10,000 in cash compensation.

        Each DSU will vest immediately upon grant, and will be paid in common shares within 30 days following a non-employee director's
termination (subject to the option of deferring the payout as described below). Dividend equivalents or additional DSUs are credited to a
non-employee director's DSU account when dividends are paid on our common shares.
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        Upon his retirement from the company on December 31, 2007, Dr. Gromer became a non-employee director. As a result, on January 15,
2008, the Board awarded to Dr. Gromer a Founders' Grant of 4,800 DSUs. Additionally, as described in the "CD&A�Elements of
Compensation�Retention Agreement and Consulting Agreement with Dr. Gromer," on January 15, 2008, the company and Dr. Gromer entered
into a consulting agreement whereby the company paid Dr. Gromer a monthly consulting fee equal to 11,340 EUR (USD $17,061, using an
annual average of the monthly income statement foreign currency translation rates of 1.50454). The consulting agreement ended on
December 31, 2008.

        Under the Tyco Electronics Director Deferred Compensation Plan, each non-employee director may make an election to defer some or all
of his or her cash remuneration for that year. Non-employee directors also may elect to defer payout of their DSUs to a date later than
termination. Each non-employee director may elect to receive a distribution of the amounts credited to his or her deferred compensation account
either in a lump sum cash payment or in installments not to exceed ten years with payment made (or commencing) at termination of service or at
a fixed date selected by the non-employee director. Two non-employee directors elected to defer their compensation for calendar year 2008. As
a result of recent tax legislation changes, no deferral elections will be made in calendar year 2009.

        Tyco Electronics reimburses its board members for expenses incurred in attending board and committee meetings or performing other
services for the company in their capacities as directors. Such expenses include food, lodging and transportation.

        The following table discloses the cash and equity awards paid to each of the company's non-management directors during the fiscal year
ended September 26, 2008.

Name
(a)

Fees Earned
or

Paid in
Cash(1)
($)
(b)

Stock
Awards(2)

($)
(c)

Option
Awards
($)
(d)

Total
($)
(h)

Pierre R. Brondeau $ 80,000 � � $ 80,000
Ram Charan $ 80,000 � � $ 80,000
Robert M. Hernandez $ 80,000 � � $ 80,000
Juergen Gromer $ 60,000 $ 159,216 � $219,216
Daniel J. Phelan $ 80,000 � � $ 80,000
Frederic M. Poses $ 195,000 � � $195,000
Lawrence S. Smith $ 80,000 � � $ 80,000
Paula A. Sneed $ 80,000 � � $ 80,000
David P. Steiner $ 95,000 � � $ 95,000
Sandra S. Wijnberg $ 105,000 � � $105,000

(1)
The amounts shown in column (b) represent the amount of cash compensation earned in fiscal 2008 for board and committee services. Mr. Poses
received additional fees for his work as the board chair and as the chair of the Management Development and Compensation Committee. Mr. Steiner
and Ms. Wijnberg each received additional fees for their roles as chair of the Nominating, Governance and Compliance Committee and the Audit
Committee, respectively. Dr. Gromer's cash compensation was pro-rated for the 3/4ths of fiscal 2008 he served as a non-employee director. The amount
in the table reflects the USD equivalent for fees earned as Dr. Gromer is paid in euros.

(2)
Upon appointment to the Board of Directors, Dr. Gromer received a grant of 4,800 DSUs. The grant date fair value of these DSUs was $33.17 per
share, calculated by using the closing price of the common shares on the date of grant. The DSUs vested immediately and non-employee directors
receive dividend equivalents in connection with these awards. The amounts shown in column (c) represent the compensation costs of DSUs for
financial reporting purposes for the 2008 fiscal year under SFAS 123R, rather than an amount paid to or realized by the non-employee director. See
Note 24 in the 10-K for the assumptions made in determining SFAS 123R values. The fair value of DSUs has been determined based on the market
value on the grant date. There can be no assurance that the SFAS 123R amount will ever be realized.
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Charitable Contributions

        Our board governance principles require that the Board approve all charitable donations by Tyco Electronics to organizations associated
with a director. The amount of any such donation is limited to an amount that is less than one percent of that organization's annual charitable
receipts and is less than one percent of Tyco Electronics' annual charitable contributions.

        Any matching donation by Tyco Electronics to organizations associated with a director is limited to an amount that is no greater than the
amount contributed by the director and is required to be made in a manner consistent with Tyco Electronics' employee matching gift program.

 ITEM 12.    SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners

        The table below sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of Tyco Electronics' common shares as of January 15, 2009 by the
following groups:

�
each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation Table appearing in "Part III. Item 11. Executive
Compensation�Executive Officer Compensation;"

�
each of our directors; and

�
all of our directors and executive officers as a group.

        The address of our executive officers and directors is c/o Tyco Electronics, 1050 Westlakes Drive, Berwyn, Pennsylvania 19312.

Beneficial Owner

Number of
Common Shares
Beneficially
Owned(1)

Directors and Executive Officers:
Thomas J. Lynch(2)(3)(4) 986,390
Terrence R. Curtin(2)(4) 171,536
Robert A. Scott(2)(4)(5) 104,064
Minoru Okamoto(2)(4) 328,899
Alan C. Clarke(2)(4) 121,455
Jane A. Leipold(2)(4) 139,719
Pierre R. Brondeau(3)(6) 10,585
Ram Charan(3)(6) 10,585
Juergen W. Gromer(3)(4)(6) 594,957
Robert M. Hernandez(3)(6)(7) 45,585
Daniel J. Phelan(3)(6) 10,585
Frederic M. Poses(3)(6) 206,667
Lawrence S. Smith(3)(6)(8) 17,100
Paula A. Sneed(3)(6) 14,193
David P. Steiner(3)(6) 10,585
John C. Van Scoter(3)(6) 5,670
Sandra S. Wijnberg(3)(4)(6) 9,889
All current directors and executive officers as a group (24 persons)(4)(5)(6) 3,021,414

(1)
The number shown reflects the number of common shares owned beneficially as of January 15, 2009, based on information furnished by the persons
named, public filings and Tyco Electronics records. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes
voting or investment power with respect to securities. Except as otherwise indicated in the notes below and subject to applicable community property
laws, each owner has sole voting
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and sole investment power with respect to all shares beneficially owned by such person. To the extent indicated in the notes below, common shares
beneficially owned by a person include common shares of which the person has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days after
January 15, 2009. All current directors and executive officers as a group beneficially own less than 1% of outstanding common shares as of January 15,
2009.

(2)
The named person is an executive officer.

(3)
The named person is a director.

(4)
Includes common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options presently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days after January 15, 2009 as
follows: Mr. Lynch�893,204; Mr. Curtin�155,366; Mr. Scott�83,657; Mr. Okamoto�316,542; Mr. Clarke�107,700; Ms. Leipold�127,955;
Dr. Gromer�506,934; Ms. Wijnberg�4,974; all current directors and executive officers as a group�2,403,152.

(5)
Includes restricted common shares as follows: Mr. Scott�1,000; all current directors and executive officers as a group�1,000.

(6)
Includes vested deferred stock units (DSUs) as follows: Dr. Brondeau�10,585; Dr. Charan�10,585; Dr. Gromer�10,546; Mr. Hernandez�10,585;
Mr. Phelan�10,585; Mr. Poses�11,865; Mr. Smith�14,165; Ms. Sneed�12,993; Mr. Steiner�10,585; Mr. Van Scoter�5,670; Ms. Wijnberg�4,915. Distribution
of DSUs will occur upon the termination of the individual's service on the board of directors. Upon such termination, Tyco Electronics will issue the
number of common shares equal to the aggregate number of DSUs credited to the individual, including DSUs received through the accrual of dividend
equivalents.

(7)
Includes 35,000 shares held in a trust over which Mr. Hernandez has dispositive power.

(8)
Includes 1,860 shares held in a trust over which Mr. Smith has dispositive power. Mr. Smith disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares.

        The table below sets forth the information indicated for persons or groups known to us to be beneficial owners of more than 5% of our
outstanding common shares beneficially owned as of January 15, 2009.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Number of
Common
Shares

Percentage
of Class

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.(1) 32,267,133 7.0%
100 East Pratt Street
Baltimore, MD 21202

FMR LLC(2)

27,225,360 5.9%
82 Devonshire Street
Boston, MA 02109

(1)
The amount shown for the number of common shares over which T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. exercised investment discretion
was obtained by the company from a Form 13F filed by T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. for the quarter ended September 30,
2008. We have applied Regulation S-K Item 403, Instruction 3, in determining the number of common shares beneficially
owned.

(2)
The amount shown for the number of common shares over which FMR LLC exercised investment discretion was obtained by the
company from a Form 13F filed by FMR LLC for the quarter ended September 30, 2008. We have applied Regulation S-K
Item 403, Instruction 3, in determining the number of common shares beneficially owned. A Schedule 13G filed by FMR LLC
and affiliated entities with the SEC on February 14, 2008 reported beneficial ownership of Tyco Electronics' common shares as
of December 31, 2007 as follows: FMR LLC, sole voting power�1,794,845 and sole dispositive power�29,733,961; Edward C.
Johnson 3d, sole dispositive power�29,733,961.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

        See "Part II. Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities�Equity
Compensation Plan Information" for information about securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans.
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 ITEM 13.    CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

        All relationships and transactions in which the company and our directors and executive officers or their immediate family members are
participants were reviewed to determine whether such persons have a direct or indirect material interest. As required under SEC rules,
transactions that are determined to be directly or indirectly material to the company or a related person are disclosed. In addition, the
Nominating, Governance and Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors reviews and approves or ratifies any related person transaction
that is required to be disclosed. In the course of its review and approval or ratification of a disclosable related person transaction, the committee
considers whether the transaction is fair and reasonable to the company and will take into account, among other factors it deems appropriate:

�
whether the transaction is on terms no less favorable than terms generally available to an unaffiliated third-party under the
same or similar circumstances;

�
the extent of the related person's interest in the transaction and the materiality of the transaction to the company;

�
the related person's relationship to the company;

�
the material facts of the transaction, including the proposed aggregate value of the transaction;

�
the business purpose for and reasonableness of the transaction, taken in the context of the alternatives available to the
company for attaining the purposes of the transaction;

�
whether the transaction is in the ordinary course of the company's business and was proposed and considered in the ordinary
course of business; and

�
the effect of the transaction on the company's business and operations, including on the company's internal control over
financial reporting and system of disclosure controls or procedures, and any additional conditions or controls (including
reporting and review requirements) that should be applied to such transaction.

        Any member of the committee who is a related person with respect to a transaction under review may not participate in the deliberations or
vote respecting approval or ratification of the transaction, provided, however, that such director may be counted in determining the presence of a
quorum at a meeting at which the committee considers the transaction.

        Pierre Brondeau, a director, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of Rohm & Haas Company, a manufacturer of specialty materials,
from which Tyco Electronics made $3.5 million in purchases during fiscal 2008. Robert Hernandez, a director, is the Chairman of the Board of
RTI International Metals, Inc., a producer of titanium mill products and fabricated metal components, from which Tyco Electronics made
$0.3 million in purchases during fiscal 2008. Mr. Hernandez' brother, William Hernandez, is the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of PPG Industries, a supplier of paints, coatings, chemicals, optical products, specialty materials, glass and fiber glass, to which Tyco
Electronics made $2.9 million in sales during fiscal 2008. Frederic Poses, a director, is the former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Trane Inc. (formerly American Standard Companies Inc.), a manufacturer and provider of air conditioning systems and services and vehicle
control systems, with which Tyco Electronics made $0.4 million in purchases and $3.9 million in sales during the first and second quarters of
fiscal 2008 (prior to Mr. Poses' departure from Trane Inc. and Trane's acquisition by Ingersoll-Rand in 2008).

        The foregoing directors could be deemed to have indirect interests in the transactions based on their current or former executive positions
with the companies with which Tyco Electronics transacted
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business in fiscal 2008, but such transactions were arms-length commercial dealings between the companies, none of which are material
individually or in the aggregate. The Nominating, Governance and Compliance Committee has reviewed and approved or ratified these
transactions.

Director Independence

        The Board of Directors' Governance Principles, which can be found on the company's website at
http://www.tycoelectronics.com/aboutus/boardofdirectors.asp, include guidelines for determining director independence. Ten of the twelve
members of the Board of Directors have been determined by the Board to be independent directors. For a director to be considered independent,
the Board must make an affirmative determination that a director meets the stringent guidelines for independence set by the Board. These
guidelines either meet or exceed the NYSE listing standards' independence requirements. The guidelines include a determination that the
director has no current or prior material relationships with Tyco Electronics (either directly or as a partner, shareholder or officer of an
organization that has a relationship with the company), aside from their directorship, that could affect their judgment. The independence
guidelines also include the determination that certain limits to annual sales to or purchases from entities for which a director serves as an
executive officer, and limits on direct compensation from the company for directors and certain family members (other than fees paid for board
or committee service), are not exceeded and other restrictions.

        Based on the review and recommendation by the Nominating, Governance and Compliance Committee, the Board of Directors analyzed the
independence of each director and determined that the following directors meet the standards of independence under our director independence
guidelines and applicable NYSE listing standards, and that each of the following directors is free of any relationship that would interfere with his
or her individual exercise of independent judgment: Pierre R. Brondeau, Ram Charan, Robert M. Hernandez, Daniel J. Phelan, Frederic M.
Poses, Lawrence S. Smith, Paula A. Sneed, David P. Steiner, John C. Van Scoter and Sandra S. Wijnberg.

 ITEM 14.    PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Policy for the Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services

        The Audit Committee adopted a pre-approval policy that provides guidelines for the audit, audit-related, tax and other permissible
non-audit services that may be provided by the independent auditor. The policy identifies the principles that must be considered by the Audit
Committee in approving services to ensure that the auditor's independence is not impaired. The policy provides that the controller and senior
vice president and tax officer will support the Audit Committee by providing a list of proposed services to the Committee, monitoring the
services and fees pre-approved by the Committee, providing periodic reports to the Committee with respect to pre-approved services and
ensuring compliance with the policy.

        Under the policy, the Audit Committee annually pre-approves the audit fee and terms of the engagement, as set forth in the audit
engagement letter. This approval includes approval of a specified list of audit, audit-related and tax services. Any service not included in the
specified list of services must be submitted to the Audit Committee for pre-approval. All services may not extend for more than twelve months,
unless the Audit Committee specifically provides for a different period. The independent auditor may not begin work on any engagement
without confirmation of Audit Committee pre-approval from the controller or his delegate.

        In accordance with the policy, the Audit Committee may delegate one or more of its members the authority to pre-approve the engagement
of the independent auditor when the entire Committee is unable to do so. The chair must report all such pre-approvals to the Audit Committee at
the next committee meeting.
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Fees Paid to Independent Auditor

        Aggregate fees for professional services rendered by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and their
respective affiliates as of and for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 are set forth below. The aggregate fees
included in the audit fees category are fees paid or accrued for the fiscal years for the services described below. The aggregate fees included in
each of the other categories are fees billed in the fiscal years or expected to be billed with respect to the fiscal years for the services described
below. (All references to "$" below are to United States dollars.)

 Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007 Fees

Fiscal Year
2008

Fiscal Year
2007

Audit Fees $19,680,000 $16,425,000
Audit-Related Fees 287,000 1,223,000
Tax Fees 3,470,000 381,000
All Other Fees 2,000 1,000

Total $23,439,000 $18,030,000

        Audit fees for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 were for professional services rendered for the year-end
audits of the consolidated and combined financial statements of the company, review of quarterly financial statements included in the company's
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, consents, comfort letters and statutory and regulatory filings in foreign jurisdictions.

        Audit-related fees for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 were primarily related to audits of carve-out
financial statements of certain businesses that have been divested or are being considered for divestiture and other attest services.

        Tax fees for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 were primarily for tax compliance services.

        Other fees for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 were for subscriptions for research materials.

        None of the services described above were approved by the Audit Committee under the de minimus exception provided by
Rule 2-01(c)(7)(i)(C) under Regulation S-X.
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 PART IV

 ITEM 15.    EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)
1.     Financial Statements. See Item 8.

2.
Financial Statement Schedule. See Item 8.

3.
Exhibit Index:

Exhibit
Number Description

2.1 Separation and Distribution Agreement among Tyco International Ltd.,
Covidien Ltd. and Tyco Electronics Ltd., dated as of June 29, 2007 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Tyco Electronics' Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
July 5, 2007)

3.1 Memorandum of Association of Tyco Electronics Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No. 3 to Tyco Electronics' Registration Statement on
Form 10, filed June 5, 2007)

3.2 Certificate of Incorporation of Tyco Electronics Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to Tyco Electronics' Registration Statement on Form 10, filed
January 18, 2007)

3.3 Amended and Restated Bye-Laws of Tyco Electronics Ltd. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Tyco Electronics' Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
July 5, 2007)

4.1(a) Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Tyco Electronics Ltd. and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as of September 25, 2007
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(a) to Tyco Electronics' Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)

4.1(b) First Supplemental Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Tyco
Electronics Ltd. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as
of September 25, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(b) to Tyco
Electronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 28,
2007, filed December 14, 2007)

4.1(c) Second Supplemental Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Tyco
Electronics Ltd. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as
of September 25, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(c) to Tyco
Electronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 28,
2007, filed December 14, 2007)

4.1(d) Third Supplemental Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Tyco
Electronics Ltd. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as
of September 25, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1(d) to Tyco
Electronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 28,
2007, filed December 14, 2007)

4.1(e) Fourth Supplemental Indenture among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Tyco
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Electronics Ltd. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, dated as
of July 14, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Tyco Electronics'
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 14, 2008)

10.1 Tax Sharing Agreement among Tyco International Ltd., Covidien Ltd. and Tyco
Electronics Ltd., dated as of June 29, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Tyco Electronics' Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.2 Five-Year Senior Credit Agreement among Tyco International Ltd., Tyco
Electronics Group S.A., Tyco Electronics Ltd., the lenders party thereto and Bank of
America, N.A., as administrative agent, dated as of April 25, 2007 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Tyco Electronics' Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
July 5, 2007)

10.3 Guarantor Assumption Agreement between Tyco International Ltd. and Tyco
Electronics Ltd., dated as of June 29, 2007 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Tyco Electronics' Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)

10.4 Tyco Electronics Ltd. 2007 Stock and Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Tyco Electronics' Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed July 5,
2007)�

10.5 Tyco Electronics Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Tyco Electronics' Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed July 5,
2007)�

10.6 Form of Founders' Grant Option Award Terms and Conditions (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Tyco Electronics' Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
July 5, 2007)�

10.7 Form of Option Award Terms and Conditions (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to Tyco Electronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)�

10.8 Form of Founders' Grant Restricted Unit Award Terms and Conditions
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Tyco Electronics' Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)�

10.9 Form of Restricted Unit Award Terms and Conditions (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to Tyco Electronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)�

10.10 Tyco Electronics Ltd. Change in Control Severance Plan for Certain U.S. Officers
and Executives (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Tyco Electronics'
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 9, 2007)�

10.11 Tyco Electronics Ltd. Severance Plan for U.S. Officers and Executives
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tyco Electronics' Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed November 9, 2007) �

10.12 Tyco Electronics Ltd. Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Tyco Electronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)�

10.13 Tyco Electronics Corporation Supplemental Savings and Retirement Plan
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Tyco Electronics' Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed November 9, 2007) �

10.14 Tyco Electronics Ltd. UK Savings Related Share Plan (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.23 to Tyco Electronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 28, 2007, filed December 14, 2007)�

10.15 Form of Indemnification Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to
Tyco Electronics' Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 5, 2007)
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.16 Amendment to Tyco Electronics Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Tyco Electronics' Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended December 28, 2007, filed February 7, 2008)�

10.17 Consulting Agreement between Tyco Electronics Ltd. and Juergen Gromer, dated as
of January 15, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tyco Electronics'
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed January 22, 2008)

10.18 Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement among Tyco Electronics Group S.A., Cobham
Defense Electronic Systems Corporation and Cobham plc, dated as of May 12, 2008
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Tyco Electronics' Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 27, 2008, filed August 1, 2008)

21.1 Subsidiaries of Tyco Electronics Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to
Tyco Electronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
September 26, 2008, filed November 20, 2008)

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*

24.1 Power of Attorney (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 24.1 to Tyco Electronics'
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 26, 2008, filed
November 20, 2008)

24.2 Power of Attorney*

31.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

31.2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

32.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002*

*
Filed herewith

�
Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

(b)
See Item 15(a)3. above.

(c)
See Item 15(a)2. above.

110

Edgar Filing: Tyco Electronics Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

133



 SIGNATURES

        Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

By: /s/ TERRENCE R. CURTIN

Terrence R. Curtin
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

        Date: January 16, 2009

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ THOMAS J. LYNCH

Thomas J. Lynch

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

January 16,
2009

/s/ TERRENCE R. CURTIN

Terrence R. Curtin

Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

January 16,
2009

/s/ ROBERT J. OTT

Robert J. Ott

Senior Vice President and Corporate
Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

January 16,
2009

*

Pierre R. Brondeau
Director January 16,

2009

*

Ram Charan
Director January 16,

2009

*

Juergen W. Gromer
Director January 16,

2009

*

Robert M. Hernandez
Director January 16,

2009
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Signature Title Date

*

Daniel J. Phelan
Director January 16,

2009

*

Frederic M. Poses
Director January 16,

2009

*

Lawrence S. Smith
Director January 16,

2009

*

Paula A. Sneed
Director January 16,

2009

*

David P. Steiner
Director January 16,

2009

*

John C. Van Scoter
Director January 16,

2009

*

Sandra S. Wijnberg
Director January 16,

2009

*
Robert A. Scott, by signing his name hereto, does sign this document on behalf of the above noted individuals, pursuant to powers of
attorney duly executed by such individuals, which have been filed as Exhibit 24.1 and Exhibit 24.2 to this Report.

By: /s/ ROBERT A. SCOTT

Robert A. Scott
Attorney-in-fact
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 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Tyco Electronics Ltd. Board of Directors:

        We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tyco Electronics Ltd. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of
September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 and the related consolidated and combined statements of operations, equity and cash flows for each
of the three fiscal years in the period ended September 26, 2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at
Item 15. These consolidated and combined financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and combined financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

        We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and combined financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

        In our opinion, such consolidated and combined financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Company as of September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three fiscal years in the period ended September 26, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated and combined financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

        As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated and combined financial statements, prior to its separation from Tyco International Ltd. ("Tyco
International"), the Company was comprised of the assets and liabilities used in managing and operating the electronics businesses of Tyco
International. The combined financial statements also included allocations of corporate overhead, net class action settlement costs, other
expenses, debt and related interest expense from Tyco International. These allocations may not be reflective of the actual level of costs or debt
which would have been incurred had the Company operated as a separate entity apart from Tyco International.

        As discussed in Notes 2 and 19 to the consolidated and combined financial statements, in fiscal 2008, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109.

        As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated and combined financial statements, in fiscal 2007, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans�an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).

        As discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated and combined financial statements, in connection with its separation from Tyco International,
the Company entered into certain guarantee commitments with Tyco International and Covidien Ltd. and has recorded the fair value of these
guarantees.

        We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of September 26, 2008, based on the criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
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November 20, 2008 expressed an adverse opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting because of a material weakness.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
November 20, 2008
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 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Tyco Electronics Ltd. Board of Directors:

        We have audited Tyco Electronics Ltd. and subsidiaries' (the "Company's") internal control over financial reporting as of September 26,
2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based
on our audit.

        We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on that
risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

        A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

        Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

        A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. The following material weakness has been identified and included in management's assessment:

The Company did not maintain effective internal control over accounting for income taxes. Subsequent to the filing of its
combined financial statements for fiscal 2006, 2005, and 2004 in the initial filing of its registration statement with the SEC,
the Company determined that the combined financial statements contained errors. The errors primarily resulted from the
process of carving out certain income tax accounts from Tyco International's consolidated financial statements and related
information. The Company substantially relied upon the processes at
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Tyco International to prepare its carve-out accounts for income taxes. The Company determined that certain of the processes
utilized by Tyco International in determining certain carve-out amounts for income taxes did not operate at a sufficient level
of precision relative to the Company's materiality to ensure that the carve-out accounts were materially correct. The
Company also determined that it did not have sufficient control processes in place to ensure that the information provided by
Tyco International was complete and accurate, and concluded that the absence of these control processes was a material
weakness in its internal control over financial reporting relating to income taxes.

As of September 26, 2008, the Company has concluded that recently enhanced resources and processes related to this
previously identified material weakness have not been operating for a sufficient period of time and, accordingly, has further
concluded that its internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of September 26, 2008.

        This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the consolidated
and combined financial statements and financial statement schedule of the Company as of and for the year ended September 26, 2008, and this
report does not affect our report on such financial statements and financial statement schedule.

        In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness identified above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria,
the Company has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 26, 2008, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

        We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated and combined financial statements and financial statement schedule of the Company as of and for the year ended September 26,
2008, and our report dated November 20, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated and combined financial statements and
financial statement schedule and includes an explanatory paragraph referring to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
November 20, 2008
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions, except per share data)

Net sales $ 14,834 $ 12,959 $ 11,811
Cost of sales 11,064 9,620 8,617

Gross income 3,770 3,339 3,194
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 1,680 1,600 1,445
Litigation settlement, net 22 887 �
Separation costs � 44 �
Restructuring and other charges, net 185 92 7
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets 137 � �

Income from operations 1,746 716 1,742
Interest income 32 53 48
Interest expense (188) (231) (256)
Other income (expense), net 567 (219) �

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
and minority interest 2,157 319 1,534

Income taxes (558) (491) (81)
Minority interest (5) (6) (6)

Income (loss) from continuing operations 1,594 (178) 1,447
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes 188 (376) (246)

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting
change 1,782 (554) 1,201

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes � � (8)

Net income (loss) $ 1,782 $ (554) $ 1,193

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 3.30 $ (0.36) $ 2.91
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 0.39 (0.75) (0.49)

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change 3.69 (1.11) 2.42
Cumulative effect of accounting change � � (0.02)

Net income (loss) $ 3.69 $ (1.11) $ 2.40

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 3.28 $ (0.36) $ 2.91
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 0.39 (0.75) (0.49)

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change 3.67 (1.11) 2.42
Cumulative effect of accounting change � � (0.02)

Net income (loss) $ 3.67 $ (1.11) $ 2.40
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Weighted-average number of shares outstanding:
Basic 483 497 497
Diluted 486 497 497

See Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions, except

share data)
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,086 $ 942
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $42 and $57,
respectively 2,726 2,594
Inventories 2,312 2,049
Class action settlement escrow � 928
Class action settlement receivable � 2,064
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 767 589
Deferred income taxes 204 325
Assets of discontinued operations � 505

Total current assets 7,095 9,996
Property, plant, and equipment, net 3,517 3,412
Goodwill 7,068 7,177
Intangible assets, net 486 526
Deferred income taxes 1,915 1,397
Receivable from Tyco International Ltd. and Covidien Ltd. 1,218 844
Other assets 301 336

Total Assets $21,600 $23,688

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 20 $ 5
Accounts payable 1,469 1,343
Class action settlement liability � 2,992
Accrued and other current liabilities 1,596 1,417
Deferred revenue 247 181
Liabilities of discontinued operations � 266

Total current liabilities 3,332 6,204
Long-term debt 3,161 3,373
Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities 721 607
Deferred income taxes 289 271
Income taxes 2,291 1,242
Other liabilities 723 599

Total Liabilities 10,517 12,296

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Minority interest 10 15
Shareholders' Equity:
Preferred shares, $0.20 par value, 125,000,000 shares authorized; none
outstanding � �
Common shares, $0.20 par value, 1,000,000,000 authorized; 500,241,706 and
497,467,930 issued, respectively 100 99
Capital in excess:
Share premium 61 13
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Contributed surplus 10,106 10,029
Accumulated earnings 1,141 186
Treasury shares, at cost, 36,904,702 and 44,454 shares, respectively (1,264) (2)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 929 1,052

Total Shareholders' Equity 11,073 11,377

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $21,600 $23,688

See Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

Common Shares
Treasury
Shares

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

Share
Premium

Contributed
Surplus

Parent
Company
Investment

Accumulated
Earnings

Total
EquityShares Amount Shares Amount

(in millions)
Balance at October 1, 2005 � $ � �$ � $ � $ � $ 9,511 $ � $ 331 $ 9,842
Comprehensive income:
Net income � � � � � � 1,193 � � 1,193
Currency translation � � � � � � � � 242 242
Minimum pension liability,
net of income taxes � � � � � � � � 97 97

Total comprehensive
income 1,532

Net transfers to former parent � � � � � � (214) � � (214)

Balance at September 29,
2006 � � � � � � 10,490 � 670 11,160
Comprehensive income:
Net income (loss) � � � � � � (810) 256 � (554)
Currency translation � � � � � � � � 453 453
Minimum pension liability,
net of income taxes � � � � � � � � 207 207
Unrealized loss on cash
flow hedge � � � � � � � � (53) (53)

Total comprehensive
income 53

Impact of adoption of SFAS
No. 158, net of tax � � � � � � � � (225) (225)
Net transfers from former
parent � � � � � � 848 � � 848
Transfer of parent company
investment to contributed
surplus � � � � � 10,528 (10,528) � � �
Guarantees and shared tax
liabilities to Tyco
International and Covidien in
accordance with the Tax
Sharing Agreement � � � � � (296) � � � (296)
Due from Tyco International
and Covidien in accordance
with the Tax Sharing
Agreement � � � � � 844 � � � 844
Income tax liabilities assumed
upon Separation � � � � � (1,091) � � � (1,091)
Issuance of common shares 497 99 � � � � � � � 99
Compensation expense,
including charge related to
Tyco International equity
award conversion � � � � � 44 � � � 44
Dividends declared � � � � � � � (70) � (70)
Exercise of share options � � � � 13 � � � � 13
Repurchase of common
shares � � � (2) � � � � � (2)
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Balance at September 28,
2007 497 99 � (2) 13 10,029 � 186 1,052 11,377
Adoption of FIN 48 � � � � � � � (549) � (549)
Comprehensive income:
Net income � � � � � � � 1,782 � 1,782
Currency translation � � � � � � � � (22) (22)
Adjustments to
unrecognized pension and
postretirement benefit costs,
net of income taxes � � � � � � � � (107) (107)
Gain on cash flow hedge � � � � � � � � 7 7
Unrealized loss on
securities, net of income
taxes � � � � � � � � (1) (1)

Total comprehensive
income 1,659

Adjustment for
pre-Separation tax matters � � � � � 16 � � � 16
Compensation expense � � � � � 61 � � � 61
Dividends declared � � � � � � � (276) � (276)
Exercise of share options 3 1 � 7 48 � � (2) � 54
Repurchase of common
shares � � (37) (1,269) � � � � � (1,269)

Balance at September 26,
2008 500 $ 100 (37) $ (1,264) $ 61 $ 10,106 $ � $ 1,141 $ 929 $11,073

See Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ 1,782 $ (554) $1,193
(Income) loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (188) 376 246
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes � � 8

Income (loss) from continuing operations 1,594 (178) 1,447
Adjustments to reconcile net cash provided by operating activities:
Class action settlement (936) 887 �
Non-cash restructuring and other charges, net 47 23 4
Depreciation and amortization 559 514 459
Deferred income taxes 174 163 (14)
Provision for losses on accounts receivable and inventory 41 82 62
Tax sharing income (567) (13) �
Allocated loss on retirement of debt � 232 �
Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets 137 � �
Other 43 (9) 12
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable, net (106) (96) (126)
Inventories (280) (89) (351)
Other current assets 57 (138) (53)
Accounts payable 49 84 257
Accrued and other liabilities 126 103 95
Income taxes 15 (109) (179)
Deferred revenue 112 33 6
Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities 3 � 25
Other (54) 19 (20)

Net cash provided by continuing operating activities 1,014 1,508 1,624
Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued operating activities (25) 17 39

Net cash provided by operating activities 989 1,525 1,663

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (619) (875) (519)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment 42 41 6
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (3) � (23)
Purchase accounting and holdback/earn-out liabilities (2) (4) (4)
Class action settlement escrow 936 (928) �
Proceeds from divestiture of discontinued operation, net of cash retained by
businesses sold 571 227 �
Other (24) 1 27

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing investing activities 901 (1,538) (513)
Net cash (used in) provided by discontinued investing activities (6) 10 (126)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 895 (1,528) (639)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Net increase in commercial paper 630 � �
Proceeds from long-term debt 900 5,676 �
Repayment of long-term debt (1,751) (2,455) (113)
Allocated debt activity � (3,743) (713)
Net transactions with former parent � 1,112 (74)
Repurchase of common shares (1,242) � �
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Payment of common dividends (271) � �
Proceeds from exercise of share options 54 13 �
Transfers to discontinued operations (80) (134) (7)
Minority interest distributions paid (11) (7) (12)
Other (1) (8) (4)

Net cash (used in) provided by continuing financing activities (1,772) 454 (923)
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued financing activities 33 (23) 95

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,739) 431 (828)

Effect of currency translation on cash 1 46 (1)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 146 474 195
Less: net increase in cash and cash equivalents related to discontinued
operations (2) (4) (8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 942 472 285

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ 1,086 $ 942 $ 472

Supplementary Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid $ 100 $ 231 $ 261
Income taxes paid, net of refunds 369 450 274

See Notes to Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Separation and Basis of Presentation

        Tyco Electronics Ltd. ("Tyco Electronics" or the "Company"), a company organized under the laws of Bermuda, is a leading global
provider of engineered electronic components, network solutions, undersea telecommunication systems, and wireless systems.

The Separation

        Effective June 29, 2007, the Company became the parent company of the former electronics businesses of Tyco International Ltd. ("Tyco
International"). On June 29, 2007, Tyco International distributed all of its shares of Tyco Electronics, as well as its shares of its former
healthcare businesses ("Covidien"), to its common shareholders (the "Separation").

Basis of Presentation

        The accompanying Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements reflect the consolidated operations of Tyco Electronics Ltd. and its
subsidiaries as an independent, publicly-traded company subsequent to the Separation and a combined reporting entity comprising the assets and
liabilities used in managing and operating the electronics businesses of Tyco International, including Tyco Electronics Ltd., for periods prior to
the Separation.

        The Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements have been prepared in United States dollars, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). The preparation of the Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Significant estimates in
these Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements include restructuring and other charges, acquisition liabilities, allowances for doubtful
accounts receivable, estimates of future cash flows associated with asset impairments, useful lives for depreciation and amortization, loss
contingencies, net realizable value of inventories, estimated contract revenue and related costs, legal liabilities, tax reserves and deferred tax
asset valuation allowances, and the determination of discount and other rate assumptions for pension and postretirement employee benefit
expenses. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates.

        The Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements for periods prior to the Separation may not be indicative of the Company's future
performance and do not necessarily reflect what its consolidated and combined results of operations, financial position, and cash flows would
have been had it operated as an independent, publicly-traded company during the periods presented. To the extent that an asset, liability,
revenue, or expense is directly associated with the Company, it is reflected in the accompanying Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements. Certain general corporate overhead, net class action settlement costs, and other expenses as well as debt and related net interest
expense for periods prior to the Separation were allocated by Tyco International to the Company. Management believes such allocations were
reasonable; however, they may not be indicative of the actual results of the Company had the Company been operating as an independent,
publicly-traded company for the periods presented. See Note 18 for further information regarding allocations.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Separation and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Description of the Business

        The Company consists of four reportable segments:

�
Electronic Components.  The Electronic Components segment is one of the world's largest suppliers of passive electronic
components, which includes connectors and interconnect systems, relays, switches, circuit protection devices, touch screens,
sensors, and wire and cable. The products sold by the Electronic Components segment are sold primarily to original
equipment manufacturers and their contract manufacturers in the automotive, computer, communications, industrial,
aerospace and defense, appliance, consumer electronics, and medical markets.

�
Network Solutions.  The Network Solutions segment is one of the world's largest suppliers of infrastructure components and
systems for telecommunications and energy markets. These components include connectors, above- and below-ground
enclosures, heat shrink tubing, cable accessories, surge arrestors, fiber optic cabling, copper cabling, and racks for copper
and fiber networks. This segment also provides electronic systems for test access and intelligent cross-connect applications
as well as integrated cabling solutions for cabling and building management.

�
Undersea Telecommunications.  The Undersea Telecommunications segment designs, builds, maintains, and tests undersea
fiber optic networks for both the telecommunications and oil and gas markets.

�
Wireless Systems.  The Wireless Systems segment is an innovator of wireless technology for critical communications
systems. This segment provides state-of-the-art two-way land mobile radio technology products and systems, including
network and system infrastructure, portable radios, service, and maintenance. These products and systems are used primarily
by public safety and government organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

        The Company consolidates entities in which it owns or controls more than fifty percent of the voting shares or otherwise has the ability to
control through similar rights. In addition, the Company consolidates variable interest entities in which the Company bears a majority of the risk
to the entities' expected losses or stands to gain from a majority of the entities' expected returns. All intercompany transactions have been
eliminated. The results of companies acquired or disposed of are included in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal.

Fiscal Year

        Unless otherwise indicated, references in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements to fiscal 2008, fiscal 2007, and fiscal 2006
are to Tyco Electronics' fiscal years ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006. Tyco Electronics' fiscal year is a
"52-53 week" year ending on the last Friday of September, such that each quarterly period is 13 weeks in length. For fiscal years in which there
are 53 weeks, the fourth quarter reporting period will include 14 weeks, with the first such occurrence taking place in fiscal 2011.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Separation and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Reclassifications

        Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current period classification.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

        The Company's revenues are generated principally from the sale of its products. Revenue from the sale of products is recognized at the time
title and risks and rewards of ownership pass to the customer. This generally occurs when the products reach the free-on-board shipping point,
the sales price is fixed and determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. For those items where title has not yet transferred, the Company
has deferred the recognition of revenue.

        The Company provides certain distributors with an inventory allowance for returns or scrap equal to a percentage of qualified purchases. A
reserve for estimated scrap and returns allowances is established at the time of the sale based on a fixed percentage of sales to distributors
authorized and agreed to by the Company and is recorded as a reduction of sales.

        Other allowances include customer quantity and price discrepancies. A reserve for other allowances is established at the time of sale based
on historical experience and is recorded as a reduction of sales. The Company believes it can reasonably and reliably estimate the amounts of
future allowances.

        Contract sales for construction related projects are recorded primarily on the percentage-of-completion method. Profits recognized on
contracts in process are based upon estimated contract revenue and related cost to complete. Percentage-of-completion is measured based on the
ratio of actual cost incurred to total estimated cost. Revisions in cost estimates as contracts progress have the effect of increasing or decreasing
profits in the current period. Provisions for anticipated losses are made in the period in which they first become determinable. Contract sales for
construction related projects are generated primarily within the Company's Undersea Telecommunications and Wireless Systems segments.

        The Company typically warrants that its products will conform to the Company's specifications and that its products will be free from
material defects in materials and manufacturing. The Company limits its liability to the replacement of defective parts or the cash value of
replacement parts. The Company accepts returned goods only when the customer makes a claim and management has authorized the return.
Returns result primarily from defective products or shipping discrepancies. A reserve for estimated returns is established at the time of sale
based on historical return experience and is recorded as a reduction of sales.

        Additionally, certain of the Company's long-term contracts in its Undersea Telecommunications and Wireless Systems segments have
warranty obligations. Estimated warranty costs for each contract are determined based on the contract terms and technology-specific
considerations. These costs are included in total estimated contract costs and are accrued over the construction period of the respective contracts
under percentage-of-completion accounting.

        On September 19, 2005, the Company's Wireless Systems segment entered into a twenty-year lease contract with the State of New York to
construct, operate, and maintain a statewide wireless
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

communications network for use by state and municipal first responders. Lease terms and payment streams begin when each of the regional
networks that make up the statewide network are determined to meet the operational requirements of the contract and are accepted by the State
of New York, with the lease terms running through September 2025.

        The Company is accounting for each regional network as a stand-alone sales-type lease and will recognize revenue on acceptance of each
region. As of September 26, 2008, the first region has not been accepted by the State; therefore, the Company has not recognized any revenue on
the construction of the network. Revenue recognition related to the operating and maintenance service elements begins following regional
acceptance. As of fiscal year end 2008, 2007, and 2006, costs totaling $56 million, $28 million, and $8 million, respectively, associated with the
development and construction of the statewide wireless network, including interest expense incurred to finance the construction, have been
capitalized primarily as inventories on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

        On August 29, 2008, the Company was served by the State of New York with a default notice related to the first regional network, pursuant
to the contract. Under the contract, the Company had 45 days to rectify the deficiencies noted by the State. On October 16, 2008, the Company
certified the system ready for testing and presented its conclusions to the State of New York. The Company informed the State that all
deficiencies had been remediated and the system is operating in accordance with the contract specifications. The State's testing is scheduled to
occur in November and December 2008.

Research and Development

        Research and development expenditures are expensed when incurred and are included in cost of sales. Research and development expenses
include salaries, direct costs incurred, and building and overhead expenses. The amounts expensed in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 were
$530 million, $482 million, and $428 million, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

        All highly liquid investments purchased with maturities of three months or less from the time of purchase are considered to be cash
equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

        The allowance for doubtful accounts receivable reflects the best estimate of probable losses inherent in the Company's outstanding
receivables determined on the basis of historical experience, specific allowances for known troubled accounts, and other currently available
evidence.

Inventories

        Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market value.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net and Long-Lived Assets

        Net property, plant, and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repair expenditures are charged to
expense when incurred. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and related improvements 5 to 40 years
Leasehold improvements Lesser of remaining term of the lease

or economic useful life
Machinery and equipment 1 to 15 years

        The Company periodically evaluates the net realizable value of long-lived assets, including property, plant, and equipment and amortizable
intangible assets, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections, and anticipated future cash
flows. When indicators of potential impairment are present, the carrying values of the assets are evaluated in relation to the operating
performance and estimated future undiscounted cash flows of the underlying business. An impairment in the carrying value of an asset group is
recognized whenever anticipated future undiscounted cash flows from an asset group are estimated to be less than its carrying value. The amount
of impairment recognized is the difference between the carrying value of the asset and its fair value. Fair value estimates are based on
assumptions concerning the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows and assumed discount rates, reflecting varying degrees of
perceived risk.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

        Intangible assets acquired include both those that have a determinable life and residual goodwill. Intangible assets with a determinable life
include primarily intellectual property consisting of patents, trademarks, and unpatented technology with estimates of recoverability ranging
from 1 to 50 years that are amortized on a straight-line basis. See Note 11 for additional information regarding intangible assets. An evaluation
of the remaining useful life of intangible assets with a determinable life is performed on a periodic basis and when events and circumstances
warrant an evaluation. The Company assesses intangible assets with a determinable life for impairment consistent with its policy for assessing
other long-lived assets. Goodwill is assessed for impairment separately from other intangible assets with a determinable life by comparing the
carrying value of each reporting unit to its fair value on the first day of the fourth quarter of each year or whenever the Company believes a
triggering event requiring a more frequent assessment has occurred. In making this assessment, management relies on a number of factors
including operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows, transactions, and market place data. There are
inherent uncertainties related to these factors and management's judgment in applying them to the analysis of goodwill impairment.

        The Company has 14 reporting units, of which 13 contained goodwill prior to the annual goodwill impairment test. See Notes 5 and 10 for
information regarding the goodwill impairment recorded as a result of the annual impairment test. When changes occur in the composition of
one or more operating segments or reporting units, the goodwill is reassigned to the reporting units affected based on their relative fair values.

        When testing for goodwill impairment, the Company performs a step I goodwill impairment test to identify a potential impairment. In doing
so, the Company compares the fair value of a reporting unit

126

Edgar Filing: Tyco Electronics Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

153



TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

with its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill may be impaired and a step II goodwill
impairment test is performed to measure the amount of any impairment loss. In the step II goodwill impairment test, the Company compares the
implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of reporting unit goodwill
exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The implied fair value of
goodwill is determined in the same manner that the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination is determined. The Company
allocates the fair value of a reporting unit to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit, including intangible assets, as if the reporting unit had
been acquired in a business combination. Any excess of the value of a reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the
implied fair value of goodwill.

        Estimates about fair value used in the step I goodwill impairment tests have been calculated using an income approach based on the present
value of future cash flows of each reporting unit. The income approach has been supported by other valuation approaches, such as similar
transaction and guideline analyses. These approaches incorporate many assumptions including future growth rates, discount factors, and income
tax rates in assessing fair value. Changes in economic and operating conditions impacting these assumptions could result in goodwill
impairments in future periods.

Income Taxes

        Income taxes are computed in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes." In these Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements, the benefits of a consolidated return have been
reflected where such returns have or could be filed based on the entities and jurisdictions included in the financial statements. Deferred tax
liabilities and assets are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been reflected in the Consolidated and
Combined Financial Statements. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the differences between the book and tax bases of
particular assets and liabilities and operating loss carryforwards using tax rates in effect for the years in which the differences are expected to
reverse. A valuation allowance is provided to offset deferred tax assets if, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not that some
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

        Effective September 29, 2007, the beginning of fiscal 2008, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB")
Interpretation No. ("FIN") 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109." See additional
discussion below under "Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements."

Financial Instruments

        In order to address certain financial exposures, the Company adopted a risk management program that includes the use of derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments. The Company has established policies regarding the types and notional value of derivative financial
instruments that can be entered into. The Company currently enters into foreign exchange forwards and swaps to reduce the effects of fluctuating
foreign exchange rates, interest rate swaps to manage interest rate exposures, and forward contracts to reduce the effects of commodity price
fluctuations. Also, the Company has designated certain intercompany non-derivative financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

as a hedge of its net investments in certain foreign operations denominated in the same foreign currencies.

        All derivative financial instruments are reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivative
instruments that are not designated as either cash flow or fair value hedges are recognized currently in earnings in selling, general, and
administrative expenses in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments
designated as fair value hedges affect the carrying value of the asset or liability hedged, with changes in both the derivative instrument and the
hedged asset or liability being recognized in earnings. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are
reflected in other comprehensive income, a component of equity, to the extent that they are deemed effective. Effectiveness of cash flow hedges
is measured quarterly using the cumulative-dollar-offset-method and any changes in fair value that are determined to be ineffective are
recognized currently in earnings in selling, general, and administrative expenses. The remeasurement of the intercompany non-derivative
financial instruments designated as a hedge of the Company's net investment in foreign operations is recorded in cumulative translation
adjustment in accumulated other comprehensive income on the Consolidated Balance Sheets offsetting the change in cumulative translation
adjustment attributable to the Company's net investments in certain foreign operations.

        The Company determines the fair value of its financial instruments by using methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions
and risks existing at each balance sheet date. Standard market conventions are used to determine the fair value of financial instruments,
including derivatives.

Share-Based Compensation

        The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, "Share-Based Payment," on October 1, 2005 using the modified prospective transition method.
Under SFAS No. 123R, the Company determines the fair value of share awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation
model. That fair value is expensed ratably over the expected service period, with an allowance made for estimated forfeitures based on historical
employee activity. See Note 24 for additional information related to the Company's share-based compensation.

Share Premium and Contributed Surplus

        In accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, when the Company issues shares for cash at a premium to their par value, the
resulting premium is credited to a share premium account, a non-distributable reserve. Contributed surplus, subject to certain conditions, is a
distributable reserve.

Currency Translation

        For the Company's non-U.S. dollar functional currency subsidiaries with a functional currency other than U.S. dollars, assets and liabilities
are translated into U.S. dollars using year-end exchange rates. Sales and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates in effect during
the year. Foreign currency translation gains and losses are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income within equity.
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

        Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions, which are included in net income, were immaterial in all periods presented.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change

        During fiscal 2006, the Company adopted FIN 47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations�an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 143." Accordingly, the Company recognized asset retirement obligations of $16 million and net property, plant, and equipment of
$4 million in its Combined Balance Sheet at fiscal year end 2006. In addition, the Company recorded a cumulative effect of accounting change
which resulted in an $8 million after-tax, $12 million pre-tax, loss.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

        In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles." SFAS No. 162 codifies the
hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles to be used by the preparers of financial statements. The hierarchy is identical to that
contained in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statements on Auditing Standards No. 69, "The Meaning of Present Fairly
in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles." Adoption of the standard did not have any impact on the Company's
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

        In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. This interpretation prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition,
measurement, presentation, and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48 requires that an
enterprise must determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities,
including resolution of any appeals or litigation processes, based upon the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the
more-likely-than-not threshold is then measured to determine the amount of tax benefit to recognize in the financial statements. As a result of
adopting FIN 48, the Company recorded a net increase in contingent tax liabilities of $1,197 million, an increase in deferred tax assets of
$648 million, and a corresponding decrease in the opening balance of accumulated earnings of $549 million. See Note 19 for additional
information regarding income taxes and the adoption of FIN 48.

        In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans�an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)." SFAS No. 158 requires that employers recognize the funded status of
defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans as a net asset or liability on the balance sheet and recognize as a component of
other comprehensive income, net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized
as a component of net periodic benefit cost. Under SFAS No. 158, companies are required to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of
their fiscal year end. The Company currently uses a measurement date of August 31st. SFAS No. 158 also requires additional disclosure in the
notes to the financial statements. The measurement date provisions will become effective for the Company in fiscal 2009. The Company is
currently assessing the impact of the measurement date change provisions on its results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. The
Company adopted the funded status recognition provisions at September 28, 2007. The incremental effects of adopting the standard on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet were increases of $386 million in long-term pension and postretirement benefit liabilities, $16 million in accrued
and other current liabilities, and $55 million in other assets. The impact of adoption also resulted in additional net deferred tax assets of
$122 million. The impact of adoption to accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of equity, was a reduction of $225 million.
There was no impact
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on pension or other postretirement benefit expense, cash flows, or benefits plans in fiscal 2007. On-going compliance with the standard will not
impact pension or other postretirement benefit expense, cash flows, or benefit plans. See Note 16 for further discussion of the implementation of
the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158.

        In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") issued Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 108, "Considering the
Effect of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements." SAB No. 108 provides guidance on
evaluating the materiality of prior periods' misstatements, quantifying the effects of correcting misstatements in the current period, and criteria
for restatement of prior periods. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The Company adopted this guidance
effective for fiscal 2007. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

        In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP") No. FAS 157-3, "Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset when
the Market for That Asset Is Not Active." FSP No. FAS 157-3 clarifies the methods employed in determining the fair value for financial assets
when a market for such assets is not active. FSP No. FAS 157-3 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The adoption of
FSP No. FAS 157-3 will not have a significant impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") 03-6-1, "Determining Whether Instruments Granted in
Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities." FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 concludes that unvested restricted share awards that pay
nonforfeitable cash dividends are participating securities and are subject to the two-class method of computing earnings per share. FSP No.
EITF 03-6-1 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. The Company does not expect that adoption of FSP No. EITF 03-6-1
will have a material impact on its Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

        In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 142-3, "Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets." FSP No. FAS 142-3 amends
the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible
asset under SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." FSP No. FAS 142-3 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of
fiscal 2010. The Company is currently assessing the impact that FSP No. FAS 142-3 will have on its results of operations, financial position, or
cash flows.

        In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures About Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities�an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133." SFAS No. 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities," to provide improved transparency into the uses and financial statement impact of derivative instruments and hedging
activities. The Company plans to adopt SFAS No. 161 in the second quarter of fiscal 2009. The Company is currently assessing the impact that
SFAS No. 161 will have on its Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

        In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, "Business Combinations." SFAS No. 141R replaces SFAS No. 141 and addresses the
recognition and accounting for identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and noncontrolling interests in business combinations. SFAS
No. 141R is effective
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for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. The Company is currently assessing the impact that SFAS No. 141R will have on its results
of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements." SFAS No. 160
addresses the accounting and reporting framework for minority interests by a parent company. SFAS No. 160 is effective for the Company in the
first quarter of fiscal 2010. The Company is currently assessing the impact that SFAS No. 160 will have on its results of operations, financial
position, or cash flows.

        In June 2007, the FASB EITF issued EITF Issue No. 06-11, "Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment
Awards." EITF 06-11 requires that a realized income tax benefit from dividends or dividend equivalent units paid on unvested restricted shares
and restricted share units be reflected as an increase in contributed surplus and reflected as an addition to the Company's excess tax benefit pool,
as defined under SFAS No. 123R. EITF 06-11 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The adoption of EITF 06-11 will
not have a significant impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities." SFAS No. 159
permits an entity, on a contract-by-contract basis, to make an irrevocable election to account for certain types of financial instruments and
warranty and insurance contracts at fair value, rather than historical cost, with changes in the fair value, whether realized or unrealized,
recognized in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The Company does not expect to use the
fair value election for any existing assets or liabilities as of the date of adoption. The adoption of SFAS No. 159 will not have a significant
impact on the Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements." SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for the Company in the
first quarter of fiscal 2009. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 will not have a significant impact on the Company's results of operations, financial
position, or cash flows.

3. Separation Costs

        In connection with the Separation, the Company incurred costs of $44 million in fiscal 2007, primarily related to employee costs, including
non-cash compensation expense of $11 million related to the modification of share option awards at Separation and $12 million related to the
acceleration of restricted share award vesting as a result of Separation. See Note 24 for further information on the conversion of Tyco
International share option awards into Tyco Electronics share option awards.
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        Charges (credits) to operations by segment during fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Electronic Components $166 $ 54 $ 9
Network Solutions 23 35 9
Undersea Telecommunications 5 5 (4)
Wireless Systems � 3 (1)

$194 $ 97 $ 13

        Amounts recognized in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations during fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Restructuring and other charges (credits), net:
Cash charges $147 $ 74 $ 9
Non-cash charges (credits) 38 18 (2)

Total restructuring and other charges, net 185 92 7
Cost of sales 9 5 6

$194 $ 97 $ 13

Cash Charges

        Activity in the Company's restructuring reserves during fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 is summarized as follows:

Balance
at

Beginning
of Year Charges Utilization

Changes
in

Estimate

Transfers
from

Held for
Sale(1)

Currency
Translation

Balance
at

End of
Year

(in millions)
Fiscal 2008 Activity:
Fiscal 2008 Actions
Employee severance $ � $ 125 $ (7) $ � $ � $ �$ 118
Facilities exit costs � 1 (1) � � � �
Other � 4 (2) � � � 2

Total � 130 (10) � � � 120

Fiscal 2007 Actions
Employee severance 62 � (39) (1) � 9 31
Facilities exit costs 1 6 (6) 1 � � 2
Other 1 6 (5) � � � 2

Total 64 12 (50) � � 9 35
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Pre-Fiscal 2006 Actions
Facilities exit costs 64 4 (16) 1 � 3 56

Total fiscal 2008 activity 128 146 (76) 1 � 12 211
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Balance
at

Beginning
of Year Charges Utilization

Changes
in

Estimate

Transfers
from

Held for
Sale(1)

Currency
Translation

Balance
at

End of
Year

(in millions)
Fiscal 2007 Activity:
Fiscal 2007 Actions
Employee severance � 66 (3) � � (1) 62
Facilities exit costs � 1 (1) � 1 � 1
Other � 2 (1) � � � 1

Total � 69 (5) � 1 (1) 64

Fiscal 2006 Actions
Employee severance 2 � (2) � � � �
Facilities exit costs � � � � � � �

Total 2 � (2) � � � �

Pre-Fiscal 2006 Actions
Facilities exit costs 66 5 (16) � 7 2 64

Total fiscal 2007 activity 68 74 (23) � 8 1 128

Fiscal 2006 Activity:
Fiscal 2006 Actions
Employee severance � 10 (8) � � � 2
Facilities exit costs � � � � � � �
Other � � � � � � �

Total � 10 (8) � � � 2

Pre-Fiscal 2006 Actions
Employee severance 7 � (5) (2) � � �
Facilities exit costs 71 � (13) 3 � 5 66
Other 1 � 1 (2) � � �

Total 79 � (17) (1) � 5 66

Total fiscal 2006 activity $ 79 $ 10 $ (25) $ (1) $ � $ 5 $ 68

(1)
During fiscal 2006, the Printed Circuit Group business was accounted for as a discontinued operation and related restructuring liabilities were
reclassified accordingly. During fiscal 2007, the Printed Circuit Group business was sold and $8 million of restructuring liabilities were retained by the
Company. See Note 6 for additional information.

Fiscal 2008 Actions
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        The Company initiated restructuring programs during fiscal 2008 primarily relating to the migration of product lines to low-cost countries
and the exit of certain manufacturing operations in the Electronic Components and Network Solutions segments. In connection with these
actions, during fiscal 2008, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $130 million primarily related to employee severance and benefits.
The Company expects to complete all restructuring activities commenced in fiscal 2008 by the end of fiscal 2010 and to incur additional
charges, primarily in the Electronic Components segment, of approximately $48 million relating to these initiated actions by completion.
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Fiscal 2007 Actions

        Fiscal 2007 actions included the migration of product lines to low-cost countries and the exit of manufacturing operations in the Electronic
Components and Network Solutions segments and the rationalization of a product line in the Wireless Systems segment. In connection with
these actions, during fiscal 2008 and 2007, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $12 million and $69 million, respectively, primarily
related to employee severance and benefits. The Company expects to complete all restructuring activities commenced in fiscal 2007 by the end
of fiscal 2009 and to incur additional charges of approximately $5 million relating to these initiated actions by completion.

Pre-Fiscal 2006 Actions

        During fiscal 2002, the Company recorded restructuring charges of $779 million primarily related to a significant downturn in the
telecommunications industry and certain other end markets. These actions have been completed. As of fiscal year end 2008, the remaining
restructuring reserves related to the fiscal 2002 actions are $56 million, relating to exited lease facilities. During fiscal 2008, the Company
recorded restructuring charges of $4 million for interest accretion on these reserves. The Company expects that its remaining reserves will
continue to be paid out over the expected terms of the obligations which range from one to fifteen years.

Non-Cash Charges and Credits

        During fiscal 2008, the Company recorded non-cash charges of $38 million primarily related to fixed assets and intangibles in connection
with exited manufacturing facilities and product lines. Also, the Company recorded non-cash charges of $9 million in cost of goods sold for
write-downs in carrying value of inventory related to exited product lines in fiscal 2008.

        During fiscal 2007, the Company recorded non-cash charges of $18 million primarily related to fixed assets in connection with exited
manufacturing operations and $5 million in cost of goods sold for write-downs in carrying value of inventory related to exited product lines.

        During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded non-cash charges of $8 million, including $6 million in cost of goods sold for write-downs in
carrying value of inventory related to exited product lines. Also, during fiscal 2006, the Company completed exit activities related to previously
acquired operations for which goodwill had been fully impaired in prior years. As these activities were completed for amounts less than
originally established as acquisition liabilities, the Company recorded the reversal of the acquisition liabilities as a restructuring and other credit
of $4 million.

Total Restructuring Reserves

        The Company's restructuring reserves by segment at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)

Electronic Components $123 $ 29
Network Solutions 33 34
Undersea Telecommunications 54 63
Wireless Systems 1 2

Restructuring reserves $211 $128
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        At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, restructuring reserves were included in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)

Accrued and other current liabilities $131 $ 66
Other liabilities 80 62

Restructuring reserves $211 $128

5. Impairment of Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

        During fiscal 2008, the Company recorded impairment charges of $137 million, consisting of a goodwill impairment of $103 million and
long-lived asset impairment of $34 million. The goodwill impairment, which related to the Global Application and Tooling Division reporting
unit of the Electronic Components segment, was incurred when the reporting unit experienced slower growth and profitability than
management's previous expectations and lower future expectations in certain end markets. See Note 10 for additional information regarding the
impairment of goodwill. The long-lived asset impairment was comprised of $22 million related to the pending divestiture of the Company's
Battery Systems business and $12 million related to certain dedicated manufacturing lines serving the North American automotive market.
These charges are presented in impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations.

        In September 2008, the Company's board of directors authorized management to proceed with strategic alternatives with respect to the
Company's Battery Systems business, a business of the Electronic Components segment. This event qualifies as a triggering event, requiring the
Company to assess the recoverability of the asset group. Based on a negotiated sales price of $30 million, the Company has determined that the
carrying value of the Battery Systems business' assets and liabilities exceeds its fair value. Consequently, a pre-tax impairment charge of
$22 million has been recorded in fiscal 2008 to write the carrying value of the assets and liabilities down to the fair value.

        During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company determined that the certain North American automotive customer-specific product
lines in the Electronic Components segment were impaired due to declining future production expectations. The Company determined that an
impairment test was necessary due to changes in the North American automotive industry. These asset groups were assessed for recoverability
under SFAS No. 144 and impaired based on estimates of the asset group fair values. Using a discounted cash flow analysis, the Company
determined that a pre-tax impairment charge of $12 million was required to write the carrying value down to the fair value.

6. Discontinued Operations

        During fiscal 2008, the Company was authorized by its board of directors to pursue the divestiture of its Radio Frequency Components and
Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors businesses. In September 2008, the Company completed the sale of the Radio Frequency
Components and Subsystem business for net cash proceeds of $427 million and recorded a $184 million pre-tax gain on the sale. In September
2008, the Company also completed the sale of the Automotive Radar Sensors business for
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net cash proceeds of $42 million and recorded a $31 million pre-tax gain on the sale. The proceeds received in both transactions are subject to
final working capital adjustments.

        The divestiture of the Company's Power Systems business was authorized during fiscal 2007. As a result, the Company assessed Power
Systems' assets for impairment and determined that the book value of the Power Systems business exceeded its estimated fair value. The
Company recorded a $585 million pre-tax impairment charge in fiscal 2007 in income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
on the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations. In fiscal 2008, the Company completed the sale of its Power Systems business for
$102 million in net cash proceeds and recorded a $51 million pre-tax gain on the sale.

        During fiscal 2006, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to divest the Printed Circuit Group business. In fiscal 2007, the
Company completed the sale of the Printed Circuit Group business for $227 million in net cash proceeds and recorded a $45 million pre-tax gain
on the sale.

        During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment of $316 million in income (loss) from discontinued operations related to
the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors reporting units, which were reporting units in the Wireless
Systems segment prior to being reclassified to held for sale. The impairment charge was incurred when the reporting units experienced slower
growth and profitability than management's previous expectations and lower future expectations due to sales declines in certain end markets.

        The Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem, Automotive Radar Sensors, Power Systems, and Printed Circuit Group businesses met
the held for sale and discontinued operations criteria and have been included in discontinued operations in all periods presented. Prior to
reclassification to discontinued operations, the Radio Frequency Components and Subsystem and Automotive Radar Sensors businesses were
components of the Wireless Systems segment. Both the Power Systems and Printed Circuit Group businesses were components of the Other
segment, which has been renamed the Undersea Telecommunications segment.

        The following table reflects net sales, pre-tax income (loss) from discontinued operations, pre-tax gain on sale of discontinued operations
including impairments and costs to sell, and income taxes for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Net sales $603 $ 991 $1,429

Pre-tax income (loss) from discontinued operations $ 14 $ (598) $ (328)
Pre-tax gain on sale of discontinued operations 266 45 �
Income tax (expense) benefit (92) 177 82

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of
income taxes $188 $ (376) $ (246)
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        The following table presents balance sheet information for discontinued operations at fiscal year end 2007; there were no such amounts at
fiscal year end 2008:

Fiscal
2007
(in

millions)
Accounts receivable, net $ 188
Inventories 193
Intangible assets, net 29
Property, plant, and equipment, net 94
Other assets 1

Total assets $ 505

Accounts payable $ 78
Accrued and other current liabilities 67
Other liabilities 121

Total liabilities $ 266

7. Acquisitions

Acquisitions

        The Company acquired one business for an aggregate cost of $3 million in fiscal 2008. During fiscal 2006, the Company acquired one
business for an aggregate cost of $18 million and the remaining interest in a joint venture for $5 million. These acquisitions were funded
utilizing cash generated from operations. These acquisitions did not have a material effect on the Company's results of operations, financial
position, or cash flows.

Holdback and Earn-Out Liabilities

        The Company paid cash related to holdback and earn-out liabilities of approximately $1 million and $82 million during fiscal 2007 and
2006, respectively, relating to certain prior period acquisitions. The total cash paid in fiscal 2006 was reported in discontinued operations as it
related to the Printed Circuit Group business. Holdback liabilities represent a portion of the purchase price withheld from the seller pending
finalization of the acquisition balance sheet and other pre-acquisition contingencies. Additionally, certain acquisitions have provisions that
would require the Company to make additional contingent purchase price payments to the sellers if the acquired company achieves certain
milestones subsequent to its acquisition by the Company. These payments are tied to certain performance measures, such as sales, gross margin,
or earnings growth and generally are treated as additional purchase price.

        At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, holdback and earn-out liabilities of $61 million and $59 million, respectively, were included in other
liabilities on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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8. Inventories

        At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, inventories consisted of the following:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)

Raw materials $ 402 $ 324
Work in progress 926 856
Finished goods 984 869

Inventories $ 2,312 $2,049

9. Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net

        At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, net property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)

Land and improvements $ 252 $ 248
Buildings and leasehold improvements 1,375 1,303
Machinery and equipment 6,691 6,173
Construction in process 492 467

Gross property, plant, and equipment 8,810 8,191
Accumulated depreciation (5,293) (4,779)

Property, plant, and equipment, net $ 3,517 $ 3,412

        Depreciation expense was $523 million, $480 million, and $426 million in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

        During fiscal 2007, the Company exercised its option to buy five cable-laying sea vessels that were previously leased to the Company and
used by the Undersea Telecommunications segment at a cost of $280 million, which was reflected as a capital expenditure.

138

Edgar Filing: Tyco Electronics Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

167



TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Goodwill

        The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for fiscal 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Electronic
Components

Network
Solutions

Wireless
Systems Total

(in millions)
Balance at September 29, 2006 $ 5,973 $ 843 $ 319 $7,135
Purchase accounting adjustments (1) 1 � �
Currency translation 36 6 � 42

Balance at September 28, 2007 6,008 850 319 7,177
Purchase accounting adjustments 3 � � 3
Currency translation (8) (1) � (9)
Impairment (103) � � (103)

Balance at September 26, 2008 $ 5,900 $ 849 $ 319 $7,068

        During fiscal 2008, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment of $103 million in its Electronic Components segment related to the
Global Application and Tooling Division reporting unit. The impairment charge was incurred when the reporting unit experienced slower
growth and profitability than management's previous expectations and lower future expectations in certain end markets.

        In performing the annual step I goodwill impairment test, the Company determined the fair value of the Global Application and Tooling
Division reporting unit based on a discounted cash flows analysis incorporating the Company's estimate of future operating performance. The
results of the step I goodwill impairment test indicated that the book value of the reporting unit exceeded the fair value of the reporting unit. The
failure of the step I goodwill impairment test triggered a step II goodwill impairment test in which the Company determined the implied fair
value of the reporting unit's goodwill by comparing the reporting unit fair value determined in step I to the fair value of the reporting unit's net
assets, including unrecognized intangible assets. The step II goodwill impairment test indicated that there is no implied value related to the
goodwill, resulting in an impairment of the reporting unit's entire goodwill balance of $103 million. The goodwill impairment is presented in
impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations.
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        The Company's intangible assets at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Weighted
Average

Amortization
Period

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Weighted
Average

Amortization
Period

($ in millions)
Intellectual property $ 815 $ (342) $ 473 24 years $ 809 $ (294) $ 515 24 years
Other 16 (3) 13 49 years 14 (3) 11 50 years

Total $ 831 $ (345) $ 486 24 years $ 823 $ (297) $ 526 24 years

        Intangible asset amortization expense, which is recorded in selling, general, and administrative expenses, was $36 million, $34 million, and
$33 million for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. The estimated aggregate amortization expense on intangible assets currently owned by
the Company is expected to be as follows:

(in
millions)

Fiscal 2009 $ 35
Fiscal 2010 34
Fiscal 2011 34
Fiscal 2012 32
Fiscal 2013 32
Thereafter 319

$ 486

12. Accrued and Other Current Liabilities

        At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, accrued and other current liabilities consisted of the following:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)

Accrued payroll and employee benefits $ 416 $ 349
Income taxes payable 215 245
Restructuring reserves 131 66
Dividends payable 74 70
Deferred income taxes 28 49
Other 732 638

Accrued and other current liabilities $1,596 $1,417
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        Debt at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)

6.00% senior notes due 2012 $ 800 $ 800
5.95% senior notes due 2014 300 �
6.55% senior notes due 2017 753 747
7.125% senior notes due 2037 498 498
Unsecured senior bridge loan facility � 550
Unsecured senior revolving credit facility � 700
Commercial paper 647 �
Other 183 83

Total debt 3,181 3,378
Less current portion(1) 20 5

Long-term debt $3,161 $3,373

(1)
The current portion of long-term debt at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 was comprised of amounts shown as other.

        During September 2007, Tyco Electronics Group S.A. ("TEGSA"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued $800 million
principal amount of 6.00% senior notes due 2012, $750 million principal amount of 6.55% senior notes due 2017, and $500 million principal
amount of 7.125% senior notes due 2037. In connection with the issuance of the senior notes, TEGSA and the Company entered into a
registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers under which TEGSA and the Company agreed, for the benefit of the holders of the
senior notes, to file with the SEC an exchange offer registration statement within 210 days after the date of the original issue of the notes. The
registration statement became effective April 15, 2008, and the exchange offer was completed on May 20, 2008, meeting the registration
requirements.

        During July 2008, TEGSA issued $300 million principal amount of 5.95% senior notes due 2014. The notes were offered and sold pursuant
to an effective registration statement on Form S-3 filed on July 1, 2008. Interest on the notes accrues from their date of issuance at a rate of
5.95% per year and is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year, beginning on January 15, 2009. The notes are TEGSA's
unsecured senior obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of the existing and future senior debt and senior to any subordinated
indebtedness that TEGSA may incur. Net proceeds from the issuance were approximately $298 million.

        In July 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TEGSA issued $100 million principal amount of profit sharing notes with an initial maturity
date of 2010. Remuneration on the notes is paid quarterly, commencing on October 15, 2008, based on the after tax profits of the TEGSA
subsidiary, with quarterly remuneration not to exceed 0.9615% of the outstanding principal.
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        As of September 28, 2007, TEGSA had $550 million of indebtedness outstanding under its unsecured senior bridge loan facility, which
bore interest at the rate of 5.47%. During fiscal 2008, the Company paid off all balances and cancelled all commitments under the unsecured
senior bridge loan facility.

        In April 2007, TEGSA entered into a five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility. The commitments under the revolving credit
facility total $1,500 million; however, $75 million of these commitments are from a subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. Due to the
Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing by Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. in September 2008, the Company believes it is unlikely that this $75 million
commitment will be honored. Accordingly, the Company's useable commitments under the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility
are likely $1,425 million. Borrowings under the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility bear interest, at TEGSA's option, at a base
rate or the London interbank offered rate ("LIBOR") plus a margin dependent on TEGSA's credit ratings and the amount drawn under the
facility. TEGSA is required to pay an annual facility fee ranging from 4.5 to 12.5 basis points depending on its credit ratings.

        As of September 28, 2007, TEGSA had $700 million of indebtedness outstanding under the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit
facility, which bore interest at the rate of 5.38%. In July 2008, the Company paid off all amounts outstanding under the five-year unsecured
senior revolving credit facility with proceeds from the issuance of the $300 million principal amount of 5.95% senior notes and $100 million
principal amount of profit sharing notes, as well as cash from operations.

        In November 2007, TEGSA commenced issuing commercial paper to U.S. institutional accredited investors and qualified institutional
buyers in accordance with available exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act"), as part of
the Company's ongoing effort to enhance financial flexibility and to potentially decrease the cost of borrowings. As of fiscal year end 2008,
TEGSA had $647 million of commercial paper outstanding at an average interest rate of 4.01%. Borrowings under the commercial paper
program are backed by the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility.

        TEGSA's payment obligations under its senior notes, five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility, commercial paper, and profit
sharing notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Tyco Electronics Ltd.

        The Company's debt agreements contain financial and other customary covenants. As of September 26, 2008, the Company was in
compliance with all of its debt covenants.

        During 2008, the Company entered into interest rate swaps to effectively convert fixed-rate debt into variable-rate debt. As of
September 26, 2008, the Company had outstanding interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges on $300 million principal amount of the
6.55% senior notes and $200 million principal amount of the 6.00% senior notes. The maturity date of the interest rate swaps coincides with the
maturity date of the underlying debt. Under these agreements, the Company receives fixed rates of interest applicable to the underlying debt and
pays floating rates of interest based on six month LIBOR. These agreements do not include an exchange of the underlying debt principal
amounts. The fair value of the interest rate swaps was $6 million at September 26, 2008 and was recorded in other assets with a corresponding
increase in the debt obligation. The changes in fair value of both the interest rate swap agreements and the underlying debt obligation were
classified as interest expense and were directly offsetting. See Note 15 for additional information on interest rate swaps.
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        In periods prior to Separation, Tyco International's consolidated debt, exclusive of amounts incurred directly by the Company, was
proportionately allocated to the Company based on the historical funding requirements of the Company using historical data. Net interest
expense was allocated in the same proportions as debt through June 1, 2007 and includes the impact of interest rate swap agreements designated
as fair value hedges. For fiscal 2007 and 2006, Tyco International allocated to Tyco Electronics interest expense of $150 million and
$234 million, respectively, and interest income of $20 million and $33 million, respectively.

        In addition, Tyco International allocated to the Company loss on retirement of debt in the amount of $232 million for fiscal 2007, which is
included in other income (expense), net in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations. The method utilized to allocate loss on
retirement of debt was consistent with the allocation of debt and net interest expense as described above.

        Management believes the allocation basis for debt, net interest expense, and loss on retirement of debt was reasonable based on the
historical financing needs of the Company; however, these amounts may not be indicative of the actual amounts that the Company would have
incurred had it been operating as an independent, publicly-traded company for the periods presented.

        The fair value of the Company's debt was approximately $3,115 million and $3,413 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, respectively.
For further detail of methods and assumptions used in determining fair value, see Note 2.

        The aggregate amounts of total debt maturing during the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

(in
millions)

Fiscal 2009 $ 667
Fiscal 2010 101
Fiscal 2011 1
Fiscal 2012 �
Fiscal 2013 858
Thereafter 1,554

Total $ 3,181

        The outstanding commercial paper of $647 million at September 26, 2008 is classified as long-term as borrowings under the commercial
paper program are backed by the five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility. On the maturity schedule above, the $647 million is
presented as maturing in fiscal 2009.

        Certain of the Company's operating subsidiaries have overdraft or similar types of facilities, which totaled $42 million, of which
$41 million was not drawn and available at fiscal year end 2008. These facilities, most of which are renewable, expire at various dates through
the year 2010 and were established primarily within the Company's international operations.

14. Guarantees

        Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement and Tax Sharing Agreement, upon Separation, the Company entered into certain
guarantee commitments and indemnifications with Tyco
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International and Covidien. Under these agreements, principally the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics
share 27%, 42%, and 31%, respectively, of certain contingent liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International. The
effect of the Tax Sharing Agreement is to indemnify the Company for 69% of certain liabilities settled by the Company with respect to
unresolved legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that indemnification, the Company has made similar indemnifications to Tyco International and
Covidien with respect to 31% of certain liabilities settled by the companies with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. If any of the
companies responsible for all or a portion of such liabilities were to default in its payment of costs or expenses related to any such liability, the
Company would be responsible for a portion of the defaulting party or parties' obligation.

        The Company's indemnification created under the Tax Sharing Agreement qualifies as a guarantee of a third party entity's debt under
FIN 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others."
FIN 45 addresses the measurement and disclosure of a guarantor's obligation to pay a debt incurred by a third party. To value the initial
obligation under FIN 45, the Company considered a range of probability-weighted future cash flows that represent the likelihood of payment of
each class of liability by each of the three post-Separation companies. The future cash flows incorporate interest and penalties that the companies
believe will be incurred on each class of liabilities and are discounted to the present value to reflect the value associated with each at Separation.
The FIN 45 calculation includes a premium that reflects the cost for an insurance carrier to stand in and assume the payment obligation.

        Based on the probability-weighted future cash flows related to the unresolved tax matters, the Company, under the Tax Sharing Agreement,
faces a maximum potential liability of $3 billion, based on undiscounted estimates and interest and penalties used to determine the fair value of
the FIN 45 guarantee and an assumption of 100% default on the parts of Tyco International and Covidien, a likelihood that management believes
to be remote. In the event that the Company is required, due to bankruptcy or other business interruption on the part of Tyco International or
Covidien, to pay more than the contractually determined 31%, the Company retains the right to seek payment from the effected entity.

        At September 28, 2007, the probability-weighted cash flows and risk premium of certain unresolved legacy tax matters for which the
Company has made indemnifications to Tyco International and Covidien resulted in a fair value of the FIN 45 liability of $296 million, which
was reflected as an adjustment to contributed surplus on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. During fiscal 2008, the Company, while assessing its
income tax positions under FIN 48, decreased this liability by $14 million and recorded the adjustment to other income on the Consolidated and
Combined Statement of Operations. Also, in fiscal 2008, this liability was increased by $57 million as a result of the completion by Tyco
International of certain proposed tax adjustments to U.S. federal income tax returns. (See Note 17 for additional information regarding the
proposed tax adjustments.) As of September 26, 2008, the total liability of $339 million was recorded in income taxes on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

        In disposing of assets or businesses, the Company often provides representations, warranties, and/or indemnities to cover various risks
including unknown damage to the assets, environmental risks involved in the sale of real estate, liability for investigation and remediation of
environmental contamination at waste disposal sites and manufacturing facilities, and unidentified tax liabilities and legal fees related to periods
prior to disposition. The Company does not have the ability to estimate
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the potential liability from such indemnities because they relate to unknown conditions; however, the Company has no reason to believe that
these uncertainties would have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In the normal course of business, the Company is liable for contract completion and product performance. In the opinion of management,
such obligations will not significantly affect the Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        The Company generally records estimated product warranty costs at the time of sale. For further information on estimated product warranty
see Note 2. The changes in the Company's warranty liability for fiscal 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)

Balance at beginning of fiscal year $23 $ 25
Warranties issued during the fiscal year 7 6
Warranty expirations and changes in estimate 4 (3)
Settlements (4) (5)

Balance at end of fiscal year $30 $ 23

15. Financial Instruments

        The Company's financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, debt, and
derivative financial instruments. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and derivative financial
instruments approximated book value at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007. See Note 13 for the fair value estimates of debt.

        To the extent that Tyco International entered into hedges on behalf of the Company prior to Separation, the statement of operations effects
of those hedges have been allocated to the Company as part of the Tyco International general corporate overhead expense allocation or interest
expense allocation as appropriate. See Note 18.

        The cash flows related to derivative financial instruments are reported in the operating activities section of the Consolidated and Combined
Statements of Cash Flow.

        The Company's derivative financial instruments present certain market and counterparty risks; however, concentration of counterparty risk
is mitigated as the Company deals with a variety of major financial institutions worldwide with long-term Standard & Poor's and Moody's credit
ratings of A/A2 or higher. In addition, only conventional derivative financial instruments are utilized. The Company is exposed to potential
losses if a counterparty fails to perform according to the terms of its agreement. With respect to counterparty net asset positions recognized at
September 26, 2008, the Company has assessed the likelihood of counterparty default as remote. At this time, the Company is not required, nor
does it require, collateral or other security to be furnished by the counterparties to its derivative financial instruments.
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Foreign Exchange Risks

        As permitted under the Company's risk management program and policies, the Company uses derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments to manage certain exposures to foreign currency risks.

        As part of managing the exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, the Company utilizes foreign exchange forwards and
swaps. The objective of these contracts is to minimize impacts to cash flows and profitability due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates
on intercompany transactions, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and forecasted cash transactions. These contracts are recorded at fair value
with changes in the derivatives' fair value recognized currently in earnings in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated
and Combined Statements of Operations. At fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, the Company had net liabilities of $5 million and $8 million,
respectively, on the Consolidated Balance Sheet related to these transactions.

        The Company centrally manages the cash of most of its subsidiaries. To convert foreign currency cash flows in a cost effective manner, the
Company enters into currency swaps and foreign exchange forwards. The terms of these instruments are generally less than one year. The
changes in the fair values of these contracts and of the underlying hedged exposures are largely offsetting and are recorded in selling, general,
and administrative expenses in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations.

Interest Rate Risk Management

        The Company issues debt, from time to time, in capital markets to fund its operations. Such borrowings can result in interest rate and/or
currency exposure. To manage these exposures and to minimize overall interest cost, the Company has used, and may use in the future, interest
rate swaps to convert a portion of its fixed-rate debt into variable-rate debt (fair value hedges) and/or convert a portion of its variable-rate debt
into fixed-rate debt (cash flow hedges). As of fiscal year end 2008, the Company had outstanding interest rate swaps designated as fair value
hedges on $300 million principal amount of the 6.55% senior notes and $200 million principal amount of the 6.00% senior notes. The maturity
date of the interest rate swaps coincides with the maturity date of the underlying debt. Under these agreements, the Company receives fixed rates
of interest applicable to the underlying debt and pays floating rates of interest based on six month LIBOR. As of September 26, 2008, the
Company's interest rate swaps were in an asset position of $6 million. The changes in fair value of both the interest rate swap agreements and the
underlying debt obligation were classified as interest expense and were directly offsetting. As of September 28, 2007, the Company had no
outstanding interest rate swaps.

        During fiscal 2007, in anticipation of issuing fixed rate debt, the Company entered into and, concurrent with the Company's fixed-rate debt
issuance, terminated forward starting interest rate swaps to hedge the variability in interest expense that would result from changes in interest
rates between the date of the swap and the Company's anticipated date of issuing fixed-rate debt. These forward starting interest rate swaps were
designated as effective hedges of the probable interest payments under SFAS No. 133. Upon the issuance of the Company's senior notes in
September 2007, these swaps were terminated for a cash payment of $54 million. The effective portion of these swaps of $53 million was
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and is recognized in earnings as interest expense over the remaining term of the related
debt instruments. The ineffective portion of $1 million was
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recorded as interest expense in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2008, the Company recognized
$6 million of interest expense relating to the swaps in the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations.

Hedge of Net Investment

        The Company hedges its net investments in certain foreign operations using intercompany non-derivative financial instruments
denominated in the same currencies. The aggregate notional value of these hedges was $1,161 million and $3,675 million at fiscal year end 2008
and 2007, respectively. As a result of the hedges of net investment, the Company reclassified a foreign exchange loss of $168 million and
$118 million, respectively, in fiscal 2008 and 2007. These amounts were recorded as currency translation, a component of other comprehensive
income, offsetting foreign exchange gains or losses attributable to the translation of the net investments. (See additional information in Note 23.)
The Company did not hedge net investments in foreign operations during fiscal 2006.

Commodity Hedges

        As part of managing the exposure to certain commodity price fluctuations, the Company utilizes forward contracts. The objective of these
contracts is to minimize impacts to cash flows and profitability due to changes in prices of commodities used in production. The Company
accounts for the contracts on its Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of a derivative that
is designated as, and meets the required criteria for, a cash flow hedge is recorded in other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings
in the same period or periods during which the underlying hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective portions of a cash flow hedge are recognized
currently in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations.

        At September 26, 2008, the Company's commodity hedges, all of which related to gold and had maturities of less than one year, had a
notional value of $21 million and were in a gain position of $2 million. The hedges were effective as of September 26, 2008, resulting in a
reclassification of the $2 million gain to other comprehensive income. No amounts were reclassified into earnings during fiscal 2008. The
Company expects that significantly all of the balance in accumulated other comprehensive income associated with the commodities hedges will
be reclassified into the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations during fiscal 2009 as adjustments to cost of sales. The Company
did not engage in commodities hedges during fiscal 2007 or 2006.
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Adoption of SFAS No. 158

        The Company adopted the funded status recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158 effective September 28, 2007. The impact of the adoption
of SFAS No. 158 on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 28, 2007 was as follows:

Prior to SFAS
No. 158
Adoption

Impact of SFAS
No. 158
Adoption

After SFAS
No. 158
Adoption

(in millions)
Assets:
Current deferred income tax assets $ 320 $ 5 $ 325
Other assets 281 55 336
Non-current deferred income tax assets 1,274 123 1,397

Total Assets $ 23,505 $ 183 $ 23,688

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:
Accrued and other current liabilities $ 1,401 $ 16 $ 1,417
Non-current deferred tax liabilities 265 6 271
Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities 221 386 607
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,277 (225) 1,052

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 23,505 $ 183 $ 23,688

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

        Prior to Separation, the Company participated through its former parent, Tyco International, in a number of contributory and
noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans. Subsequent to Separation, the Company assumed sponsorship of those plans, covering certain
of its U.S. and non-U.S. employees, designed in accordance with local custom and practice. Net periodic pension benefit cost is based on the
utilization of the projected unit credit method of calculation and is charged to the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations on a
systematic basis over the expected average remaining service lives of current participants. Contribution amounts are actuarially determined. The
benefits under the defined benefit plans are based on various factors, such as years of service and compensation.

        Prior to Separation, the Company participated through its former parent in one co-mingled plan that included plan participants of other
Tyco International subsidiaries. The Company recorded its portion of the co-mingled plan's expense and the related obligation, which has been
actuarially determined based on the Company's specific benefit formulas by participants and allocated plan assets. The contribution amounts
were determined in total for the co-mingled plan and allocated to the Company based on headcount. Management believes such allocations were
reasonable. In fiscal 2007, this plan was legally separated, resulting in a reallocation of assets based on the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act ("ERISA") prescribed calculation.

        The Company's measurement date is August 31 for each year presented.
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        The net periodic benefit cost (credit) for all U.S. and non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 was as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
($ in millions)

Service cost $ 5 $ 5 $ 4 $ 73 $ 60 $ 62
Interest cost 56 55 50 83 70 60
Expected return on plan assets (75) (74) (72) (73) (60) (51)
Amortization of prior service credit � � � (2) (2) (2)
Amortization of net actuarial loss 7 13 15 8 20 24
Curtailment/settlement gain and special
termination benefits 1 (10) � (3) (1) �

Net periodic benefit cost (credit) $ (6) $ (11) $ (3) $ 86 $ 87 $ 93

Weighted-average assumptions used to
determine net pension cost (credit) during the
period:
Discount rate 6.35% 6.00% 5.25% 4.70% 4.15% 3.85%
Expected return on plan assets 7.99% 7.99% 7.99% 5.98% 5.73% 5.76%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 3.45% 3.19% 3.06%
        The following table represents the changes in benefit obligations, plan assets, and the net amount recognized on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets for all U.S. and non-U.S. defined benefit plans at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2008 2007
($ in millions)

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligation at end of prior period $918 $947 $1,758 $1,662
Service cost 5 5 73 60
Interest cost 56 55 83 70
Employee contributions � � 7 6
Plan amendments � � 2 3
Actuarial gain (58) (34) (51) (126)
Benefits and administrative expenses paid (63) (51) (68) (60)
(Divestitures) new plans � (4) 4 31
Curtailment/settlement gain and special termination benefits � � (9) (6)
Currency translation � � (14) 118

Benefit obligation at end of period $858 $918 $1,785 $1,758
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U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2008 2007
($ in millions)

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior period $ 964 $ 951 $1,194 $1,002
Actual return on plan assets (59) 114 (80) 94
Employer contributions 1 1 76 68
Employee contributions � � 7 6
(Divestitures) new plans � (51) � 16
Benefits and administrative expenses paid (63) (51) (68) (60)
Settlement gain and special termination benefits � � (7) (6)
Currency translation � � (23) 74

Fair value of plan assets at end of period $ 843 $ 964 $1,099 $1,194

Funded status $ (15) $ 46 $ (686) $ (564)
Contributions after the measurement date � � 8 11

Net amount recognized $ (15) $ 46 $ (678) $ (553)

Amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Other assets $ 2 $ 63 $ 8 $ 14
Accrued and other current liabilities (4) (3) (10) (8)
Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities (13) (14) (676) (559)

Net amount recognized $ (15) $ 46 $ (678) $ (553)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine pension benefit
obligations at period end:
Discount rate 7.05% 6.35% 5.11% 4.70%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 3.63% 3.45%

        The pre-tax amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income for all U.S. and non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans in
fiscal 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)

Change in net loss:
Unrecognized net loss at end of prior period $170 $200 $ 240 $ 400
Current year changes recorded to accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) 75 (27) 98 (142)
Amortization reclassified to earnings (7) (13) (8) (20)
Curtailment/settlement reclassified to earnings � 10 3 2
Other � � (7) �

Unrecognized net loss at end of period $238 $170 $ 326 $ 240

Change in prior service credits:
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Unrecognized prior service credit at end of prior period $ � $ � $ (18) $ (21)
Amortization reclassified to earnings � � 2 2
Other � � 3 1

Unrecognized prior service credit at end of period $ � $ � $ (13) $ (18)
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        The estimated amortization from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost in fiscal 2009 is as follows:

U.S.
Plans

Non-U.S.
Plans

(in millions)
Amortization of net actuarial loss $ (15) $ (14)
Amortization of prior service credit � 1

$ (15) $ (13)

        In determining the expected return on plan assets, the Company considers the relative weighting of plan assets by class and individual asset
class performance expectations as provided by their external advisors.

        The investment strategy for the U.S. pension plans has been governed by the Company's Investment Committee; investment strategies for
non-U.S. pension plans are governed locally. The Company's investment strategy for its pension plans is to manage the plans on a going concern
basis. Current investment policy is to achieve a reasonable return on assets, subject to a prudent level of portfolio risk, for the purpose of
enhancing the security of benefits for participants. Projected returns are based primarily on pro forma asset allocation and expected long-term
returns and forward-looking estimates of active portfolio and investment management.

        During the year, the Company's Investment Committee made the decision to change the target asset allocation of the U.S. Plans' Master
Trust from 60% equity and 40% fixed income to 30% equity and 70% fixed income in an effort to better align asset risk with the anticipated
payment of benefit obligations. The target asset allocation transition began in fiscal 2008 and is expected to be completed in fiscal 2010.
Subsequent to fiscal year end 2008, conditions in the worldwide debt and equity markets have deteriorated significantly. These conditions have
had a negative effect on the fair value of the Plan's investments since September 26, 2008.

        Target weighted-average asset allocations and weighted-average asset allocations for U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans at fiscal year end
2008 and 2007 were as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Target
Fiscal
2008

Fiscal
2007 Target

Fiscal
2008

Fiscal
2007

Asset Category:
Equity securities 30% 54% 59% 47% 45% 52%
Debt securities 70 44 39 41 45 39
Real estate � � � 3 3 3
Cash and cash equivalents � 2 2 9 7 6

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

        Tyco Electronics' common shares are not a direct investment of the Company's pension funds; however, the pension funds may indirectly
include Tyco Electronics shares. The aggregate amount of the Tyco Electronics common shares would not be considered material relative to the
total pension fund assets.
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        The Company's funding policy is to make contributions in accordance with the laws and customs of the various countries in which it
operates as well as to make discretionary voluntary contributions from time-to-time. The Company anticipates that, at a minimum, it will make
the minimum required contributions to its pension plans in fiscal 2009 of $4 million for U.S. plans and $77 million for non-U.S. plans.

        Benefit payments, which reflect future expected service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as follows:

U.S.
Plans

Non-U.S.
Plans

(in millions)
Fiscal 2009 $ 58 $ 61
Fiscal 2010 57 62
Fiscal 2011 58 69
Fiscal 2012 60 73
Fiscal 2013 61 83
Fiscal 2014-2018 338 453

        The accumulated benefit obligation for all U.S. and non-U.S. plans as of fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)

Accumulated benefit obligation $855 $915 $1,518 $1,503
        The accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations
in excess of plan assets at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)

Accumulated benefit obligation $808 $ 19 $1,314 $ 754
Fair value of plan assets 793 4 862 386

        The projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans with projected benefit obligations in
excess of plan assets at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2008 2007
(in millions)

Projected benefit obligation $810 $ 22 $1,726 $1,667
Fair value of plan assets 793 4 1,032 1,088
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Defined Contribution Retirement Plans

        The Company maintains several defined contribution retirement plans, which include 401(k) matching programs, as well as qualified and
nonqualified profit sharing and share bonus retirement plans. Expense for the defined contribution plans is computed as a percentage of
participants' compensation and was $77 million, $72 million, and $69 million for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plans

        The Company maintains nonqualified deferred compensation plans, which permit eligible employees to defer a portion of their
compensation. A record keeping account is set up for each participant and the participant chooses from a variety of measurement funds for the
deemed investment of their accounts. The measurement funds correspond to a number of funds in Tyco Electronics' 401(k) plans and the
account balance fluctuates with the investment returns on those funds. Total deferred compensation liabilities were $38 million and $37 million
at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Rabbi Trusts

        The Company has established rabbi trusts, related to certain acquired companies, through which the assets may be used to pay non-qualified
plan benefits. The trusts primarily hold bonds. The rabbi trust assets are subject to the claims of the Company's creditors in the event of the
Company's insolvency. The value of the assets held by these trusts, included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, was $84 million
and $89 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, respectively. Total liabilities related to the assets held by the rabbi trust and reflected on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet were $17 million and $25 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, respectively. Plan participants are general
creditors of the Company with respect to these benefits.

Postretirement Benefit Plans

        In addition to providing pension and 401(k) benefits, the Company also provides certain health care coverage continuation for qualifying
retirees from date of retirement to age 65.
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        Net periodic postretirement benefit cost in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 was as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
($ in millions)

Service cost $ 1 $ 1 $ 1
Interest cost 2 3 2
Curtailment/settlement gain and special termination
benefits � (3) �

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost $ 3 $ 1 $ 3

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net
postretirement benefit cost during the period:
Discount rate 6.35% 5.75% 4.75%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

        The components of the accrued postretirement benefit obligations, substantially all of which are unfunded, at fiscal year end 2008 and
2007, were as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
($ in millions)

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $ 41 $ 49
Service cost 1 1
Interest cost 2 3
Actuarial gain (3) (7)
Benefits paid (3) (5)

Benefit obligation at end of period $ 38 $ 41

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of assets at beginning of period $ 4 $ 4
Employer contributions 3 5
Benefits paid (3) (5)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period $ 4 $ 4

Funded status / net amount recognized $ (34) $ (37)

Amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Accrued and other postretirement liabilities $ (2) $ (3)
Long-term pension and postretirement liabilities (32) (34)

Net amount recognized $ (34) $ (37)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine
postretirement benefit obligations at period end:
Discount rate 7.05% 6.35%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00%
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        Unrecognized prior service costs of $2 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 were recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income. There were no changes in the balances during either period.
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There is expected to be no significant amortization of the current balance into net periodic benefit cost in fiscal 2009.

        The Company expects to make contributions to its postretirement benefit plans of $2 million in fiscal 2009.

        Benefit payments, including those amounts to be paid out of corporate assets and reflecting future expected service as appropriate, are
expected to be paid as follows:

(in
millions)

Fiscal 2009 $ 3
Fiscal 2010 3
Fiscal 2011 3
Fiscal 2012 3
Fiscal 2013 3
Fiscal 2014-2018 15

        Health care cost trend assumptions are as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next fiscal year 9.21% 10.18%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline 5.00% 5.00%
Fiscal year the ultimate trend rate is achieved 2014 2013

        A one-percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the following effects:

One Percentage
Point Increase

One Percentage
Point Decrease

(in millions)
Effect on total of service and interest cost $ � $ �
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 3 (2)

17. Commitments and Contingencies

General Matters

        The Company has facility, land, vehicle, and equipment leases that expire at various dates through the year 2056. Rental expense under
these leases was $182 million, $165 million, and $158 million for
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fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. At fiscal year end 2008, the minimum lease payment obligations under non-cancelable lease
obligations were as follows:

(in millions)
Fiscal 2009 $ 118
Fiscal 2010 88
Fiscal 2011 67
Fiscal 2012 46
Fiscal 2013 37
Thereafter 127

Total $ 483

        The Company also has purchase obligations related to commitments to purchase certain goods and services. At fiscal year end 2008, the
Company had commitments to spend $128 million in fiscal 2009.

        At fiscal year end 2008, the Company had a contingent purchase price commitment of $80 million related to the fiscal 2001 acquisition of
Com-Net by the Wireless Systems segment. This represents the maximum amount payable to the former shareholders of Com-Net only after the
construction and installation of a communications system for the State of Florida is finished and the State has approved the system based on the
guidelines set forth in the contract. A liability for this contingency has not been recorded in the Company's Consolidated and Combined
Financial Statements as the amount of this contingency is not currently estimable.

Environmental Matters

        The Company is involved in various stages of investigation and cleanup related to environmental remediation matters at a number of sites.
The ultimate cost of site cleanup is difficult to predict given the uncertainties regarding the extent of the required cleanup, the interpretation of
applicable laws and regulations, and alternative cleanup methods. As of fiscal year end 2008, the Company concluded that it was probable that it
would incur remedial costs in the range of approximately $13 million to $25 million. As of fiscal year end 2008, the Company concluded that
the best estimate within this range is approximately $16 million, of which $4 million is included in accrued and other current liabilities and
$12 million is included in other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. In view of the Company's financial position and reserves for
environmental matters of $16 million, the Company believes that any potential payment of such estimated amounts will not have a material
adverse effect on its results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

Tyco Electronics Legal Proceedings

Intellectual Property and Antitrust Litigation

        The Company is a party to a number of patent infringement and antitrust actions that may require the Company to pay damage awards. The
Company has assessed the status of these matters and has recorded liabilities related to certain of these matters where appropriate.

Other Matters

        The Company is a defendant in a number of other pending legal proceedings incidental to present and former operations, acquisitions, and
dispositions. The Company does not expect the outcome of
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these proceedings, either individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, financial position, or cash
flows.

Legal Matters under Separation and Distribution Agreement

        The Separation and Distribution Agreement provided for the allocation among the Company, Tyco International, and Covidien of Tyco
International's assets, liabilities, and obligations attributable to periods prior to the Company's and Covidien's separations from Tyco
International on June 29, 2007. Under the Separation and Distribution Agreement, the Company assumed the liability for, and control of, all
pending and threatened legal matters at Separation related to the Company's business or assumed or retained liabilities, and will indemnify the
other parties for any liability arising out of or resulting from such assumed legal matters. Tyco Electronics will be responsible for 31% of certain
potential liabilities that may arise from litigation pending or threatened at Separation that was not allocated to one of the three parties, and Tyco
International and Covidien are responsible for 27% and 42%, respectively, of such liabilities. If any party defaults in payment of its allocated
share of any such liability, each non-defaulting party will be responsible for an equal portion of the amount in default together with any other
non-defaulting party, although any such payments will not release the obligation of the defaulting party. Subject to the terms and conditions of
the Separation and Distribution Agreement, Tyco International manages and controls all the legal matters related to the shared contingent
liabilities, including the defense or settlement thereof, subject to certain limitations. All costs and expenses that Tyco International incurs in
connection with the defense of such litigation, other than the amount of any judgment or settlement, which will be allocated in the manner
described above, will be borne equally by Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company.

Tyco International Legal Proceedings

Securities Class Actions and Settlement

        As previously reported in the Company's periodic filings, prior to the announcement by Tyco International of the planned separation of
Tyco Electronics and Covidien in January 2006, Tyco International and certain of its former directors and officers were named as defendants in
over 40 purported securities class action lawsuits. As a part of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, any existing or potential liabilities
related to the securities class actions were allocated among Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company. The Company is responsible for
31% of potential liabilities that may arise upon the resolution of the remaining pending litigation.

        Most of the securities class actions were transferred to the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire for coordinated or
consolidated pre-trial proceedings. A consolidated securities class action complaint was filed in these proceedings and on June 12, 2006, the
court entered an order certifying a class "consisting of all persons and entities who purchased or otherwise acquired Tyco securities between
December 13, 1999 and June 7, 2002, and who were damaged thereby, excluding defendants, all of the officers, directors and partners thereof,
members of their immediate families and their legal representatives, heirs, successors or assigns, and any entity in which any of the foregoing
have or had a controlling interest." As previously reported, Tyco International settled 32 of the purported securities class action lawsuits arising
from the actions alleged to have been taken by its prior management, for which the Company was responsible for 31%. All legal contingencies
that could have affected the final order entered in the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire approving the settlement
expired on February 21, 2008. As of the opt-out deadline for the
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settlement, Tyco International received opt-out notices from individuals and entities totaling approximately 4% of the shares owned by class
members. A number of these individuals and entities have filed actions separately against Tyco International and/or Tyco International,
Covidien, and the Company. It is not possible at this time to predict the final outcome or to estimate the amount of loss or range of possible loss,
if any, that might result from an adverse resolution of the asserted or unasserted claims from individuals that have opted out.

        Several securities cases remain outstanding, including several cases asserting claims arising under ERISA. If the unresolved securities
proceedings were to be determined adversely to Tyco International, the Company's share of any additional potential losses under the terms of the
Separation and Distribution Agreement, which are not presently estimable, may have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of
operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        In fiscal 2007, the Company was allocated a charge from Tyco International of $922 million for the class action settlement, for which no
tax benefit was available. In addition, in fiscal 2007, the Company was allocated $35 million of income relating to Tyco International's expected
recovery of certain costs from insurers. The net charge of $887 million was recorded on the Consolidated and Combined Statement of
Operations as litigation settlement, net. The portion allocated to the Company was consistent with the sharing percentage included in the
Separation and Distribution Agreement. Tyco International placed funds in escrow for the benefit of the class. The escrow account earned
interest that was payable to the class. In addition, interest was accrued on the class action settlement liability. At fiscal year end 2007, the
Company reflected $928 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for its portion of the escrow. In addition, the Company reflected a
$2,992 million liability and a $2,064 million receivable from Tyco International and Covidien for their portion of the liability on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at fiscal year end 2007.

        The finalization of the settlement in February 2008 resulted in the extinguishment of the Company's class action settlement liability of
$3,020 million, interest in the escrow of $936 million, and class action settlement receivable of $2,084 million from the Consolidated Balance
Sheet in the second quarter of fiscal 2008. The finalization of the class action settlement resulted in a decrease to cash flows from operating
activities and an increase to cash flows from investing activities during fiscal 2008. It did not affect the cash balance on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet because the Company had previously fully funded its portion of the class action settlement into an escrow account intended to be
used to settle the liability, as mentioned above.

Settlement of Securities Proceedings Not Covered by the Class Action Settlement

        As previously reported, on April 29, 2008, Tyco International signed a definitive agreement with the State of New Jersey, on behalf of
several of the State's pension funds, to settle the action captioned New Jersey v. Tyco International Ltd., et al., brought by the State in 2002 in
the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey against Tyco International, its former auditors, and certain of its former officers
and directors, alleging that the defendants had, among other things, violated federal and state securities and other laws through the unauthorized
and improper actions of Tyco International's former management. The agreement with the State of New Jersey provided for Tyco International
to make a payment of $73 million to the plaintiffs in exchange for the plaintiffs' agreement to dismiss the case and release all claims asserted or
which might have been asserted therein, which payment was made on June 2, 2008. In fiscal 2008, the Company recorded a charge of
$23 million, for which no tax
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benefit was available. The charge represented the Company's share of the settlement costs in accordance with the sharing percentages included
in the Separation and Distribution Agreement.

        On June 2, 2008, Tyco International entered into an agreement in principle with the trustee of various trusts that brought claims against
Tyco International in the previously disclosed action captioned Ballard v. Tyco International Ltd., et al., in the United States District Court for
the District of New Hampshire, alleging, among other things, securities fraud in connection with Tyco International's acquisition in 1999 of
AMP Incorporated. A definitive settlement agreement and release was executed on June 10, 2008. The settlement agreement and release set
forth the terms pursuant to which the parties settled all claims between them that were raised or could have been raised in the litigation. The
settlement agreement and release provided that Tyco International make a payment of $36 million to the plaintiffs, which payment was subject
to the sharing formula contained in the Separation and Distribution Agreement. Pursuant to the sharing formula, the Company's net liability was
approximately $11 million, with Tyco International and Covidien responsible for approximately $10 million and $15 million, respectively.

Investigations

        As previously reported in the Company's periodic filings, Tyco International and others have received various subpoenas and requests from
the SEC's Division of Enforcement, the U.S. Department of Labor, the General Services Administration, and others seeking the production of
voluminous documents in connection with various investigations into Tyco International's governance, management, operations, accounting, and
related controls prior to the Separation. The Department of Labor is investigating Tyco International and the administrators of certain of its
benefit plans. Tyco International has advised the Company that it cannot predict when these investigations will be completed, nor can it predict
what the results of these investigations may be. It is possible that Tyco International will be required to pay material fines or suffer other
penalties, and pursuant to the liability sharing provisions of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, a portion of such payments may be
allocated to the Company. It is not possible to estimate the amount of loss, or range of possible loss, if any, that might result from an adverse
resolution of these matters. As a result, the Company's share of such potential losses also is not estimable and may have a material adverse effect
on the Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

Compliance Matters

        As previously reported in the Company's periodic filings, Tyco International received and has responded to various allegations that certain
improper payments were made by Tyco International subsidiaries, including Tyco Electronics subsidiaries, in recent years prior to the
Separation. Tyco International reported to the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") and the SEC the investigative steps and remedial measures
that it had taken in response to the allegations, including that it retained outside counsel to perform a company-wide baseline review of its
policies, controls, and practices with respect to compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FCPA"), that it would continue to make
periodic progress reports to these agencies, and that it would present its factual findings upon conclusion of the baseline review. To date, the
Company's baseline review has revealed that some of the Company's former business practices may not comply with FCPA requirements. At
this time, the Company cannot predict the outcome of these matters and other allegations reported to regulatory and law enforcement authorities
and therefore cannot estimate the range of potential loss or extent of risk, if any, that may result from an adverse resolution of these matters.
However, it is possible that the
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Company may be required to pay judgments, suffer penalties, or incur settlements in amounts that may have a material adverse effect on the
Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. Any judgment, settlement, or other cost incurred by Tyco International in
connection with these matters not specifically allocated to Tyco International, Covidien, or the Company would be subject to the liability sharing
provisions of the Separation and Distribution Agreement.

Income Taxes

        In connection with the Separation, the Company entered into a Tax Sharing Agreement that generally governs Covidien's, Tyco
Electronics', and Tyco International's respective rights, responsibilities, and obligations after the distribution with respect to taxes, including
ordinary course of business taxes and taxes, if any, incurred as a result of any failure of the distribution of all of the shares of Covidien or Tyco
Electronics to qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes within the meaning of Section 355 of the Internal Revenue
Code (the "Code") or certain internal transactions undertaken in anticipation of the spin-offs to qualify for tax-favored treatment under the Code.

        Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement and Tax Sharing Agreement, upon Separation, the Company entered into certain
guarantee commitments and indemnifications with Tyco International and Covidien. Under these agreements, principally the Tax Sharing
Agreement, Tyco International, Covidien, and Tyco Electronics share 27%, 42%, and 31%, respectively, of certain contingent liabilities relating
to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International. The effect of the Tax Sharing Agreement is to indemnify the Company for 69% of
certain liabilities settled by the Company with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that indemnification, the Company has made
similar indemnifications to Tyco International and Covidien with respect to 31% of certain liabilities settled by the companies with respect to
unresolved legacy tax matters. If any of the companies responsible for all or a portion of such liabilities were to default in its payment of costs or
expenses related to any such liability, the Company would be responsible for a portion of the defaulting party or parties' obligation.

        Prior to Separation, certain of the Company's subsidiaries filed combined tax returns with Tyco International. Those and other of the
Company and its subsidiaries' income tax returns are periodically examined by various tax authorities. In connection with these examinations,
tax authorities, including the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), have raised issues and proposed tax adjustments. Tyco International, as the U.S.
income tax audit controlling party under the Tax Sharing Agreement, is reviewing and contesting certain of the proposed tax adjustments.
Amounts related to these tax adjustments and other tax contingencies and related interest that management has assessed under the provisions of
FIN 48, which relate specifically to Tyco Electronics entities have been recorded in the Company's Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements. In addition, the Company may be required to fund portions of Covidien and Tyco International's tax obligations. Estimates about
these guarantees have also been recognized in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. See Note 14 for additional information.

        In prior years, in connection with the IRS audit of various fiscal years, Tyco International submitted to the IRS proposed adjustments to
these prior period U.S. federal income tax returns resulting in a reduction in the taxable income previously filed. The IRS accepted substantially
all of the proposed adjustments for fiscal years 1997 through 2000 for which the IRS had completed its field work. On the basis of previously
accepted amendments, the Company has determined that acceptance
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of adjustments presented for additional periods through fiscal 2005 is probable and, accordingly, has recorded them, as well as the impacts of the
adjustments accepted by the IRS, in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

        During fiscal 2007, the IRS concluded its field examination of certain of Tyco International's U.S. federal income tax returns for the years
1997 through 2000 and issued anticipated Revenue Agent Reports which reflect the IRS' determination of proposed tax adjustments for the
periods under audit. Tyco International has agreed with the IRS on adjustments totaling $498 million, with an estimated cash impact of
$458 million which was paid by Tyco International during fiscal 2007. The Company's portion of this payment reduced income taxes on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet by $163 million. It is the Company's understanding that Tyco International has appealed other proposed adjustments
totaling approximately $1 billion and is vigorously defending its prior filed tax return positions.

        Additionally, the IRS proposed civil fraud penalties against Tyco International arising from alleged actions of former executives in
connection with certain intercompany transfers of stock in 1998 and 1999. Any penalty imposed would be subject to sharing with Tyco
International and Covidien under the Tax Sharing Agreement. It is the Company's understanding that Tyco International is vigorously opposing
the assertion of any such penalties. The Company continues to believe that the amounts recorded in its Consolidated and Combined Financial
Statements relating to these matters are appropriate. However, the ultimate resolution is uncertain and, should Tyco International lose its appeal,
it could result in a material impact to the Company's results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

        Tyco International continues to complete proposed adjustments to the remainder of its U.S. federal income tax returns. In fiscal 2008,
certain proposed adjustments to U.S. federal income tax returns were completed by Tyco International and presented to the IRS. As a result, in
fiscal 2008, the Company recorded a $225 million decrease in income tax liabilities, a $42 million decrease in deferred tax assets, a $140 million
decrease in the receivable from Tyco International and Covidien recorded in connection with the Tax Sharing Agreement, a $57 million increase
in the indemnification liability to Tyco International and Covidien, and a $14 million charge to contributed surplus. See Note 14 for additional
information regarding the indemnification liability to Tyco International and Covidien. In addition, in fiscal 2008, Tyco International, Covidien,
and the Company completed and filed certain fiscal 2007 U.S. consolidated federal and state income tax returns which included a combination
of Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company's subsidiaries. As a result, the Company recorded a $66 million decrease in income tax
liabilities with a corresponding offset to the income tax receivable, a $44 million decrease in the receivable from Tyco International and
Covidien and a $42 million decrease in the payable to Tyco International and Covidien pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement, a $30 million
increase in contributed surplus, and a $32 million net adjustment to other related tax accounts. As the Company's tax return positions continue to
be updated, additional adjustments may be identified and recorded in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. While the final
adjustments cannot be determined until the income tax return amendment process is completed, the Company believes that any resulting
adjustments will not have a material impact on its results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows. Additionally, adjustments may be
recorded to shareholders' equity in the future for the impact of filing final or amended income tax returns in certain jurisdictions where those
returns include a combination of Tyco International, Covidien, and/or the Company's subsidiaries for the periods prior to the Separation.

161

Edgar Filing: Tyco Electronics Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

192



TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Related Party Transactions

Trade Activity

        Prior to Separation, the Company sold certain of its manufactured products consisting primarily of connectors and cable assemblies to Tyco
International and its affiliates, at prices which approximated fair value. Sales to Tyco International and its affiliates, which are included in net
sales on the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations, were $60 million during the first nine months of fiscal 2007 and $76 million
in fiscal 2006.

Debt and Related Items

        The Company was allocated a portion of Tyco International's consolidated debt, net interest expense, and loss on retirement of debt. See
Note 13 for further information regarding these allocations.

Allocated Expenses

        In fiscal 2007, the Company was allocated a net charge from Tyco International of $887 million related to the class action settlement. See
Note 17 for further information regarding the class action settlement.

        Prior to Separation, the Company was allocated general corporate overhead expenses from Tyco International for corporate-related
functions based on a pro-rata percentage of Tyco International's consolidated net revenue. General corporate overhead expenses primarily related
to centralized corporate functions, including treasury, tax, legal, internal audit, human resources, and risk management functions. During fiscal
2007 and 2006, the Company was allocated $152 million and $177 million, respectively, of general corporate overhead expenses incurred by
Tyco International, which are included within selling, general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of
Operations.

        As discussed in Note 1, the Company believes the assumptions and methodologies underlying the allocation of general corporate overhead
expenses and net class action settlement costs from Tyco International were reasonable. However, such expenses may not be indicative of the
actual level of expenses that would have been incurred by the Company had it been operating as an independent, publicly-traded company
during the periods presented.

Transactions with Tyco Electronics' and Tyco International's Directors

        During fiscal 2008 and 2007, the Company engaged in commercial transactions in the normal course of business with companies where
Tyco Electronics' directors were employed and served as officers. Purchases from such companies aggregated less than one percent of net sales
in fiscal 2008 and 2007. In addition, during periods prior to the Separation in fiscal 2007 and 2006, the Company engaged in commercial
transactions in the normal course of business with companies where Tyco International's directors were employed and served as officers. During
each of these periods, Tyco Electronics' purchases from such companies aggregated less than one percent of net sales.

Separation and Distribution Agreement

        Upon Separation, the Company entered into a Separation and Distribution Agreement and other agreements with Tyco International and
Covidien to effect the Separation and provide a framework for
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the Company's relationships with Tyco International and Covidien after the distribution of the Company's and Covidien's shares to Tyco
International's shareholders. These agreements govern the relationships among Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company subsequent to the
Separation and provide for the allocation to the Company and Covidien of certain of Tyco International's assets, liabilities, and obligations
attributable to periods prior to the Separation.

        Under the Separation and Distribution Agreement and other agreements, subject to certain exceptions contained in the Tax Sharing
Agreement, the Company, Covidien, and Tyco International assumed 31%, 42%, and 27%, respectively, of certain of Tyco International's
contingent and other corporate liabilities. All costs and expenses associated with the management of these contingent and other corporate
liabilities will be shared equally among the parties. These contingent and other corporate liabilities primarily relate to consolidated securities
litigation and any actions with respect to the Separation or the Distribution brought by any third party. If any party responsible for such liabilities
were to default in its payment, when due, of any of these assumed obligations, each non-defaulting party would be required to pay equally with
any other non-defaulting party the amounts in default. Accordingly, under certain circumstances, Tyco Electronics may be obligated to pay
amounts in excess of its agreed-upon share of the assumed obligations related to such contingent and other corporate liabilities, including
associated costs and expenses.

Tax Sharing Agreement

        Upon Separation, the Company entered into a Tax Sharing Agreement, under which the Company shares responsibility for certain of its,
Tyco International's, and Covidien's income tax liabilities based on a sharing formula for periods prior to and including June 29, 2007. The
Company, Covidien, and Tyco International share 31%, 42%, and 27%, respectively, of U.S. income tax liabilities that arise from adjustments
made by tax authorities to its, Tyco International's, and Covidien's U.S. income tax returns. The effect of the Tax Sharing Agreement is to
indemnify the Company for 69% of certain liabilities settled by the Company with respect to unresolved legacy tax matters. Pursuant to that
indemnification, the Company has made similar indemnifications to Tyco International and Covidien with respect to 31% of certain liabilities
settled by the companies relating to unresolved legacy tax matters. All costs and expenses associated with the management of these shared tax
liabilities will be shared equally among the parties. The Company will be responsible for all of its own taxes that are not shared pursuant to the
Tax Sharing Agreement's sharing formula. In addition, Tyco International and Covidien will be responsible for their tax liabilities that are not
subject to the Tax Sharing Agreement's sharing formula.

        All of the tax liabilities of Tyco International that were associated with Tyco International subsidiaries that are included in Tyco Electronics
following the Separation became Tyco Electronics' tax liabilities upon Separation. Although Tyco Electronics has agreed to share certain tax
liabilities with Tyco International and Covidien pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco Electronics remains primarily liable for all of
these liabilities. If Tyco International and Covidien default on their obligations to Tyco Electronics under the Tax Sharing Agreement, Tyco
Electronics would be liable for the entire amount of these liabilities.

        If any party to the Tax Sharing Agreement were to default in its obligation to another party to pay its share of the distribution taxes that
arise as a result of no party's fault, each non-defaulting party would be required to pay, equally with any other non-defaulting party, the amounts
in default. In
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addition, if another party to the Tax Sharing Agreement that is responsible for all or a portion of an income tax liability were to default in its
payment of such liability to a taxing authority, the Company could be legally liable under applicable tax law for such liabilities and required to
make additional tax payments. Accordingly, under certain circumstances, the Company may be obligated to pay amounts in excess of its agreed
upon share of its, Tyco International's, and Covidien's tax liabilities.

19. Income Taxes

        Significant components of the income tax provision for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 are as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Current:
United States:
Federal $ 132 $ 45 $ (181)
State (21) 2 (25)

Non-U.S. 273 281 301

Current income tax provision 384 328 95

Deferred:
United States:
Federal 126 168 75
State 33 (7) (31)

Non-U.S. 15 2 (58)

Deferred income tax provision 174 163 (14)

$ 558 $491 $ 81

        The U.S. and non-U.S. components of income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest for 2008, 2007, and
2006 are as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

U.S. $ 334 $326 $ 302
Non-U.S. 1,823 (7) 1,232

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
and minority interest $2,157 $319 $1,534
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19. Income Taxes (Continued)

        The reconciliation between U.S. federal income taxes at the statutory rate and the Company's provision for income taxes on continuing
operations for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 are as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Notional U.S. federal income tax expense at the statutory
rate $ 755 $112 $ 537
Adjustments to reconcile to the income tax provision:
U.S. state income tax provision (benefit), net 1 (3) (36)
Other income�Tax Sharing Agreement (198) (5) �
Class action settlement 8 312 �
Divestitures and impairments 21 � �
Proposed adjustments to prior year tax returns (13) 9 �
Tax law changes 5 (11) �
Tax credits (7) (8) (12)
Non-U.S. net earnings(1) (135) (96) (122)
Nondeductible charges 11 6 32
Change in accrued income tax liabilities 100 53 21
Allocated loss (gain) on retirement of debt � 81 (87)
Valuation allowance 23 26 (268)
Adjustment to tax account balances (33) � �
Other 20 15 16

Provision for income taxes $ 558 $491 $ 81

(1)
Excludes asset impairments, nondeductible charges, and other items which are broken out separately in the table.

        The provision for fiscal 2008 includes a benefit of $198 million primarily related to the pre-tax income of $545 million recognized in
connection with our adoption of FIN 48, for which no tax was provided. The provision was also impacted by increased accruals in fiscal 2008 of
interest related to uncertain tax positions partially offset by a $42 million benefit associated with a favorable settlement with a taxing authority
for certain legacy tax issues. In addition, the provision for fiscal 2008 reflects the benefits of increased profitability in operations in lower tax
rate jurisdictions, a $33 million benefit related to adjustments to tax account balances, a $25 million increase in the valuation allowance related
to restructuring charges, and a $22 million tax detriment recorded in connection with the goodwill impairment charge for which a tax benefit
was not fully realized.

        During fiscal 2008, the Company, in connection with the implementation of certain new control processes, completed the analysis and
reconciliation of its tax accounts. As a result of this analysis, the Company adjusted its tax account balances and recorded a $34 million
reduction in income tax liabilities, a $1 million increase in deferred tax liabilities, and a $33 million benefit in the income tax provision.

        In fiscal 2007, no tax benefits were recorded related to the pre-tax charges for the class action settlement and loss on retirement of debt. The
net increase of $26 million of deferred tax asset
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19. Income Taxes (Continued)

valuation allowances in fiscal 2007 reflects the tax impacts of increased borrowings as a result of the class action settlement and the Company's
Separation from Tyco International.

        The net decrease of $268 million of deferred tax asset valuation allowances in fiscal 2006 is primarily driven by improved profitability in
certain jurisdictions, principally the U.S. The Company's U.S. results of operations in fiscal 2006 combined with other available evidence,
including projections of future taxable income, indicated that it is more likely than not the Company will realize additional deferred tax assets in
the future, and accordingly, the related valuation allowances were reduced. Reflected in the state tax provision line for fiscal 2006 is a
$39 million state tax benefit primarily related to the Tyco Global Network divestiture.

        The allocated loss on retirement of debt in fiscal 2006 is a cumulative one-time benefit of $87 million associated with the receipt of a
favorable non-U.S. tax ruling permitting the deduction of historical debt retirement costs. This benefit is partially offset by an increased
valuation allowance of $62 million relating to the deferred tax asset associated with net operating losses created by the debt retirement
deductions. This $62 million is reflected on the valuation allowance line in the table above.

        Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the amount of assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting and
tax purposes. The components of the net deferred income tax asset at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
(in millions)

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued liabilities and reserves $ 273 $ 253
Tax loss and credit carryforwards 2,512 2,135
Inventories 46 60
Pension and postretirement benefits 175 143
Deferred revenue 43 26
Interest 227 54
Unrecognized tax benefits 392 �
Other 23 89

3,691 2,760

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets (875) (388)
Property, plant, and equipment (94) (148)
Other (47) (119)

(1,016) (655)

Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 2,675 2,105
Valuation allowance (873) (703)

Net deferred tax asset $ 1,802 $1,402

        At fiscal year end 2008, the Company had approximately $1,524 million of U.S. federal and $187 million of U.S state net operating loss
carryforwards (tax effected) which will expire in future
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19. Income Taxes (Continued)

years through 2028. In addition, at fiscal year end 2008, the Company had approximately $114 million of U.S. federal tax credit carryforwards,
of which $15 million have no expiration and $99 million will expire in future years through 2028, and $42 million of U.S. state tax credits
carryforwards which will expire in future years through 2023. The Company also had $5 million of U.S. federal contribution carryforwards (tax
effected) expiring through 2012 and $87 million of U.S. federal capital loss carryforwards (tax effected) expiring through 2013 at fiscal year end
2008.

        At fiscal year end 2008, the Company had approximately $531 million of net operating loss carryforwards (tax effected) in certain non-U.S.
jurisdictions, of which $140 million have no expiration and $391 million will expire in future years through 2022. Also, at fiscal year end 2008,
there were $3 million of non-U.S. tax credit carryforwards which will expire in future years through 2013 and $19 million of non-U.S. capital
loss carryforwards (tax effected) with no expiration.

        The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets of $873 million and $703 million at fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, respectively, relates
principally to the uncertainty of the utilization of certain deferred tax assets, primarily tax loss, capital loss, and credit carryforwards in various
jurisdictions. The Company believes that it will generate sufficient future taxable income to realize the tax benefits related to the remaining net
deferred tax assets on its Consolidated Balance Sheet. The valuation allowance was calculated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 109 which requires that a valuation allowance be established or maintained when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of deferred
tax assets will not be realized. At fiscal year end 2008, approximately $41 million of the valuation allowance relates to share-based
compensation and will be recorded to equity if certain net operating losses and tax credit carryforwards are utilized.

        The Company and its subsidiaries' income tax returns are periodically examined by various regulatory tax authorities. See "Income Taxes"
in Note 17 for further information.

        The calculation of the Company's tax liabilities includes estimates for uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations across
multiple global jurisdictions where the Company conducts its operations. Under the provisions of FIN 48, the Company recognizes liabilities for
tax as well as related interest for issues in the U.S. and other tax jurisdictions based on its estimate of whether, and the extent to which,
additional taxes and related interest will be due. These tax liabilities and related interest are reflected net of the impact of related tax loss
carryforwards as such tax loss carryforwards will be applied against these tax liabilities and will reduce the amount of cash tax payments due
upon the eventual settlement with the tax authorities. These estimates may change due to changing facts and circumstances; however, due to the
complexity of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in a settlement that differs from the Company's current estimate of the tax
liabilities and related interest. Further, management has reviewed with tax counsel the issues raised by certain taxing authorities and the
adequacy of these recorded amounts. If the Company's current estimate of tax and interest liabilities is less than the ultimate settlement, an
additional charge to expense may result. If the Company's current estimate of tax and interest liabilities is more than the ultimate settlement,
income tax benefits may be recognized. Substantially all of these tax liabilities and related interest are recorded in income taxes on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as payment is not expected within one year.

        The Company has provided income taxes for earnings that are currently distributed as well as the taxes associated with several subsidiaries'
earnings that are expected to be distributed in fiscal year 2009. No additional provision has been made for U.S. or non-U.S. income taxes on the
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries or for unrecognized deferred tax liabilities for temporary differences related to
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19. Income Taxes (Continued)

basis differences in investments in subsidiaries, as such earnings are expected to be permanently reinvested, the investments are essentially
permanent in duration, or the Company has concluded that no additional tax liability will arise as a result of the distribution of such earnings. As
of September 26, 2008, certain subsidiaries had approximately $10 billion of undistributed earnings that the Company intends to permanently
reinvest. A liability could arise if the Company's intention to permanently reinvest such earnings were to change and amounts are distributed by
such subsidiaries or if such subsidiaries are ultimately disposed. It is not practicable to estimate the additional income taxes related to
permanently reinvested earnings or the basis differences related to investments in subsidiaries.

FIN 48

        Effective September 29, 2007, the beginning of fiscal 2008, the Company adopted FIN 48. As discussed above, during fiscal 2008, the
Company, in connection with the implementation of certain new control processes, completed the analysis and reconciliation of its tax accounts.
As a result of this analysis, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, the Company adjusted certain amounts recorded in connection with the
initial adoption of FIN 48. These adjustments included an $85 million reduction in contingent tax liabilities, a $1 million increase in deferred tax
assets, and an $86 million increase in the opening balance of accumulated earnings. Overall, the Company recorded a net increase in contingent
tax liabilities of $1,197 million, an increase in deferred tax assets of $648 million, and a corresponding decrease in the opening balance of
accumulated earnings of $549 million in connection with the initial adoption of FIN 48 as well as the subsequent adjustment of certain amounts.
Furthermore, pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement, certain contingent tax liabilities related to unresolved tax matters are subject to sharing
between Tyco International, Covidien, and the Company. See Note 17 for additional information regarding responsibilities for unresolved legacy
tax matters. Tyco International and Covidien would be contractually obligated for $531 million of the Company's net increase in contingent tax
liabilities recorded in connection with its adoption of FIN 48, of which $558 million was recorded in connection with the initial adoption of
FIN 48 during the first quarter of fiscal 2008 and $27 million was recorded as an adjustment to this amount during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2008. Accordingly, the Company recorded this amount in 2008 as other income and recorded the related increase in the receivable from Tyco
International and Covidien for shared contingent tax liabilities. In addition, in connection with the adoption of FIN 48, the Company reassessed
and decreased its FIN 45 liability to Tyco International and Covidien and recorded $14 million of other income. See Note 14 for additional
information regarding the Company's indemnifications under the Tax Sharing Agreement. These adjustments are summarized in the following
table:

Adoption of FIN 48 and Related Tax Sharing Agreement Income:

Adjustment
to

Opening
Balance of
Accumulated
Earnings

Tax
Sharing
Income

(in millions)
Contingent tax liabilities $ (1,197) $ 531
Deferred tax assets 648 �
FIN 45 � 14

$ (549) $ 545
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19. Income Taxes (Continued)

        As of September 29, 2007, the Company had total unrecognized tax benefits of $2,029 million. If recognized in future periods,
$1,864 million of these currently unrecognized tax benefits would impact the income tax provision and effective tax rate. Of the remaining
currently unrecognized tax benefits, $56 million is associated with discontinued operations. The following table summarizes the activity related
to our unrecognized tax benefits:

(in
millions)

Balance as of September 29, 2007 $ 1,906
Adjustments to balance as of September 29, 2007 123
Additions related to prior periods tax positions 259
Reductions related to prior periods tax positions (312)
Additions related to current period tax positions 42
Settlements (1)
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statute of limitations (8)

Balance at September 26, 2008 $ 2,009

        As of September 26, 2008, the Company had total unrecognized tax benefits of $2,009 million. If recognized in future periods,
$1,775 million of these currently unrecognized tax benefits would impact the income tax provision and effective tax rate. Of the remaining
currently unrecognized tax benefits, $55 million is associated with discontinued operations.

        The Company records accrued interest as well as penalties related to uncertain tax positions as part of the provision for income taxes. As of
September 29, 2007, the Company had recorded $1,092 million of accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. During fiscal 2008, the Company recognized $115 million of interest and penalties on the Consolidated and
Combined Statement of Operations. As of September 26, 2008, the balance of accrued interest and penalties is $1,106 million, which is recorded
in income taxes in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

        In fiscal 2007, the IRS concluded its field examination of certain of Tyco International's U.S. federal income tax returns for the years 1997
through 2000. Tyco International is in the process of appealing certain tax adjustments proposed by the IRS related to this period. In the second
quarter of fiscal 2008, the IRS commenced its field examination of certain Tyco International U.S. federal income tax returns for the years 2001
through 2004. Tyco International's U.S. federal tax filings for years subsequent to 2004 also remain open to examination by the IRS. See
Note 17 for additional information regarding the status of IRS examinations.

        The Company files income tax returns on a combined, unitary, or stand-alone basis in multiple state and local jurisdictions, which generally
have statutes of limitations ranging from 3 to 5 years. Various state and local income tax returns are currently in the process of examination or
administrative appeal.

        The Company's non-U.S. subsidiaries file income tax returns in the countries in which they have operations. Generally, these countries have
statutes of limitations ranging from 3 to 7 years.
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19. Income Taxes (Continued)

        As of September 26, 2008, under applicable statutes, the following tax years remained subject to examination in the major tax jurisdictions
indicated:

Jurisdiction Open Years
Belgium 2006 through

2008
Brazil 2003 through

2008
Canada 2001 through

2008
China 2003 through

2008
Czech Republic 2007 through

2008
France 2002 through

2008
Germany 2003 through

2008
Hong Kong 2002 through

2008
India 2001 through

2008
Italy 2004 through

2008
Japan 2003 through

2008
Korea 2003 through

2008
Luxembourg 2007 through

2008
Netherlands 2007 through

2008
Portugal 2004 through

2008
Singapore 2001 through

2008
Spain 2003 through

2008
Switzerland 2006 through

2008
United Kingdom 2006 through

2008
United States, federal and state and local 1991 through

2008
        In most jurisdictions, taxing authorities retain the ability to review prior tax years and to adjust any net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards from these years that are utilized in a subsequent period.

        Although it is not possible to predict the timing or results of these pending examinations, the Company currently does not anticipate there
will be significant changes in the next twelve months to the amount of unrecognized tax benefits inherent in the Company's Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of September 26, 2008.

20. Other Income (Expense), Net
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        In fiscal 2008, the Company recorded other income of $567 million pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement with Tyco International and
Covidien, of which $545 million ($1.13 for basic earnings per share and $1.12 for diluted earnings per share in fiscal 2008) related to certain
incremental tax liabilities recorded by the Company in connection with the adoption of FIN 48. See Notes 2 and 19 for additional information
regarding the adoption of FIN 48. For further information regarding the Tax Sharing Agreement, see Notes 17 and 18.

        Net other expense of $219 million in fiscal 2007 includes an allocation from Tyco International of $232 million for loss on retirement of
debt. See Note 13 for additional information. Additionally, in fiscal 2007, the Company recorded other income of $13 million associated with
Tyco International's and
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20. Other Income (Expense), Net (Continued)

Covidien's share of certain contingent tax liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters of legacy Tyco International.

21. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

        The computation of basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the Company's net income (loss) divided by the basic weighted-average
number of common shares. On June 29, 2007, the Separation from Tyco International was completed in a tax-free distribution to the Company's
shareholders of one common share of Tyco Electronics Ltd. for every four common shares of Tyco International held on June 18, 2007. As a
result, on June 29, 2007, the Company had 497 million common shares outstanding. The same number of shares is being used for both diluted
earnings (loss) per share and basic earnings (loss) per share for all periods prior to the date of Separation as no Tyco Electronics equity awards
were outstanding prior to the Separation.

        The following table sets forth the denominators of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share computations:

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Weighted-average shares outstanding:
Basic 483 497 497
Share options and restricted share awards 3 � �

Diluted 486 497 497

        For fiscal 2008 and 2007, certain share options were not included in the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share because the
underlying exercise prices were greater than the average market prices of Tyco Electronics' common shares and inclusion would be antidilutive.
Such shares not included in the computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share totaled 21 million and 20 million as of September 26, 2008 and
September 28, 2007, respectively.

        For the year ended September 28, 2007, options to purchase Tyco Electronics' common shares with the underlying exercise prices less than
the average market prices were outstanding, but were excluded from the calculations of diluted loss per share as inclusion of these securities
would have been antidilutive. Such shares not included in the computation of diluted loss per share totaled 3 million as of September 28, 2007.

        The Separation and Distribution Agreement entered into pursuant to Separation requires that the Company issue common shares, as needed,
to satisfy convertible debentures issued prior to Separation by Tyco International and retained by Tyco International subsequent to Separation.
During fiscal 2008, approximately 230,000 shares were issued to satisfy those convertible debentures. Those shares are reflected in both
weighted-average basic and diluted shares outstanding based on the underlying date of issuance. As of fiscal year end 2008, the expected
number of contingently issuable shares to holders of Tyco International convertible debt is immaterial.
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22. Equity

Parent Company Investment and Separation Related Equity Adjustments

        For all periods prior to June 29, 2007, Tyco International's investment in the electronics businesses is shown as parent company investment
in the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements. Parent company investment represents the historical investment of capital into the
Company, the Company's accumulated net earnings after taxes, and the net effect of transactions with and allocations from Tyco International.
See Note 18 for additional information regarding the allocation to the Company of various expenses incurred by Tyco International.

        On June 29, 2007, Tyco International completed a distribution of one common share of Tyco Electronics Ltd. for every four common
shares of Tyco International. Following the Separation, the Company had 497 million common shares outstanding. After the Separation
adjustments were recorded on June 29, 2007, the remaining parent company investment balance, which includes all earnings prior to the
Separation, was transferred to contributed surplus. Net income subsequent to the Separation is included in accumulated earnings.

        During fiscal 2007, the Company assumed $1,091 million of contingent tax liabilities from Tyco International and recorded a related
receivable of $844 million from Tyco International and Covidien to reflect the 69% indemnification granted by each. These items were recorded
as adjustments to contributed surplus on the Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements.

Preferred Shares

        The Company has authorized 125,000,000 preferred shares, par value of $0.20 per share, none of which were issued and outstanding at
September 26, 2008. Rights as to dividends, return of capital, redemption, conversion, voting, and otherwise with respect to the preferred shares
may be determined by the Company's board of directors on or before the time of issuance. In the event of the liquidation of the Company, the
holders of any preferred shares then outstanding would be entitled to payment to them of the amount for which the preferred shares were
subscribed and any unpaid dividends prior to any payment to the common shareholders.

Dividends

        In September 2008, the Company's board of directors declared a regular quarterly cash dividend of $0.16 per common share. The dividend
was paid on November 4, 2008. The declared but unpaid dividend is recorded in accrued and other current liabilities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at fiscal year end 2008.

Share Repurchase Program

        In September 2007, the Company's board of directors authorized a share repurchase program of $750 million to purchase a portion of the
Company's outstanding common shares. The Company's board of directors authorized an increase in the share repurchase program from
$750 million to $1,250 million in March 2008 and an additional increase in the program from $1,250 million to $2,000 million in July 2008. In
fiscal 2008, the Company purchased approximately 37 million common shares for $1,269 million under this program, of which $1,242 million
was paid as of September 26, 2008. No common shares were repurchased under this program in fiscal 2007.
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23. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

        The components of accumulated other comprehensive income are as follows:

Currency
Translation(1)(2)

Unrealized
Gain
(Loss)
on

Securities

Unrecognized
Pension and
Postretirement
Benefit Costs

(Loss) Gain
on Cash

Flow Hedge

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

(in millions)
Balance at October 1, 2005 $ 657 $ 1 $ (327) $ � $ 331
Pre-tax current period change 242 � 150 � 392
Income tax expense � � (53) � (53)

Balance at September 29, 2006 899 1 (230) � 670
Pre-tax current period change 453 � 319 (53) 719
Income tax expense � � (112) � (112)

1,352 1 (23) (53) 1,277
Adoption of SFAS No. 158:
Pre-tax current period change � � (347) � (347)
Income tax benefit � � 122 � 122

Total � � (225) � (225)

Balance at September 28, 2007 1,352 1 (248) (53) 1,052
Pre-tax current period change (22) � (159) 8 (173)
Income tax benefit � (1) 52 (1) 50

Balance at September 26, 2008 $ 1,330 $ � $ (355) $ (46) $ 929

(1)
During fiscal 2008 and 2006, $6 million and $38 million, respectively, were transferred from currency translation adjustments as a result of the sale of
non-U.S. subsidiaries. These gains are included in income (loss) from discontinued operations in the Consolidated and Combined Statement of
Operations.

(2)
Includes hedge of net investment foreign exchange gains or losses, offsetting foreign exchange gains or losses attributable to the translation of the net
investments.

24. Share Plans

        Prior to Separation on June 29, 2007, all equity awards (restricted share awards and share options) held by Company employees were
granted under the Tyco International Ltd. 2004 Stock and Incentive Plan or other Tyco International equity incentive plans. All equity awards
granted by the Company subsequent to Separation were granted under the Tyco Electronics Ltd. 2007 Stock and Incentive Plan (the "2007
Plan"). The 2007 Plan is administered by the Management Development and Compensation Committee of the board of directors of Tyco
Electronics, which consists exclusively of independent directors of Tyco Electronics and provides for the award of share options, stock
appreciation rights, annual performance bonuses, long-term performance awards, restricted units, deferred stock units, restricted shares,
promissory shares, and other share-based awards (collectively, "Awards"). The 2007 Plan provides for a maximum of 25 million common shares
to be issued as Awards, subject to adjustment as provided under the terms of the 2007 Plan. The 2007 Plan allows for the use of authorized but
unissued shares or treasury shares to be used to satisfy such awards.
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24. Share Plans (Continued)

        Prior to the Separation, all employee equity awards were granted by Tyco International. At Separation, significantly all of Tyco
International's outstanding restricted share awards issued to Company employees prior to September 29, 2006 were converted into restricted
share awards of the Company at a ratio of one share of the Company for every four Tyco International common shares. The conversion of those
pre-September 29, 2006 awards also resulted in the issuance of one restricted share award in Tyco International and Covidien. The conversion of
pre-September 29, 2006 awards to executives and employees of Tyco International and Covidien resulted in the issuance of a Tyco
Electronics Ltd. restricted share award for every four Tyco International awards that existed. The remaining restricted share and share option
awards issued to Company employees converted into restricted share and share option awards of the Company based on a ratio of the Company's
final pre-Separation when-issued share price and Tyco International's pre-Separation closing share price. All share option awards granted prior
to September 29, 2006 to Company employees who were identified as "Tyco Corporate Employees" prior to Separation converted to share
option awards in each of the three post-Separation companies based on ratios of the respective company's final pre-Separation when-issued share
price and Tyco International's pre-Separation closing share price. All share option award conversions were done in accordance with
Sections 409A and 424 of the Code. Upon Separation, all performance conditions on outstanding performance share awards to Company
employees were lifted and those awards converted to restricted share awards in the Company's stock only.

Restricted Share Awards

        Restricted share awards are granted subject to certain restrictions. Conditions of vesting are determined at the time of grant under the 2007
Plan. All restrictions on the award will lapse upon retirement or normal retirement eligibility, death, or disability of the employee. Recipients of
restricted shares have the right to vote such shares and receive dividends, whereas recipients of restricted units have no voting rights and receive
dividend equivalents. For grants that vest based on certain specified performance criteria, the fair market value of the shares or units is expensed
over the period of performance, once achievement of criteria is deemed probable. For grants that vest through passage of time, the fair market
value of the award at the time of the grant is amortized to expense over the period of vesting. The fair value of restricted share awards is
determined based on the market value of the Company's shares on the grant date. Restricted share awards generally vest in one-third increments
over a period of four years beginning in the second year, as determined by the Management Development and Compensation Committee, or
upon attainment of various levels of performance that equal or exceed targeted levels, if applicable. The compensation expense recognized for
restricted share awards is net of estimated forfeitures.
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        Restricted share award activity for grants as of fiscal year end 2008 and changes during the year then ended is presented below:

Non-vested Restricted Share Awards Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair

Value
Non-vested at September 28, 2007 4,398,545 $ 36.96
Granted 239,884 33.94
Vested (938,048) 36.05
Forfeited (372,111) 37.17

Non-vested at September 26, 2008 3,328,270 $ 36.97

        The weighted-average grant-date fair value of Tyco Electronics restricted share awards granted during fiscal 2008 and 2007 were $33.94
and $39.69, respectively. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of Tyco International restricted share awards granted to Tyco Electronics
employees during pre-Separation fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 were $30.34 and $28.96, respectively.

        As of fiscal year end 2008, there was $61 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested Tyco Electronics restricted
share awards. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.1 fiscal years.

Deferred Stock Units

        Deferred Stock Units ("DSUs") are notional units that are tied to the value of Tyco Electronics common shares with distribution deferred
until termination of employment. Distribution, when made, will be in the form of actual shares. Similar to restricted share grants that vest
through the passage of time, the fair value of DSUs is determined based on the market value of the Company's shares on the grant date and is
amortized to expense over the vesting period. Recipients of DSUs do not have the right to vote such shares and do not have the right to receive
cash dividends. However, they have the right to receive dividend equivalents, which are delivered at the same time as the underlying DSUs.
Conditions of vesting are determined at the time of grant. As of fiscal year end 2008 and 2007, 50,010 and 44,450 vested but undistributed DSUs
were outstanding, respectively. The grant-date fair value of vested but undistributed DSU grants was expensed immediately and was not
significant during fiscal 2008 and post-Separation 2007. There were no DSUs issued prior to Separation.

Share Options

        Share options are granted to purchase Tyco Electronics common shares at prices which are equal to or greater than the market price of the
common shares on the date the option is granted. Conditions of vesting are determined at the time of grant under the 2007 Plan. Options
generally vest and become exercisable in equal annual installments over a period of four years and will generally expire 10 years after the date of
grant.
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        Share option activity for grants as of fiscal year end 2008 and changes during the year then ended is presented below:

Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted-
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

(in years)
(in

millions)
Outstanding at September 28, 2007 32,307,571 $ 42.86
Granted 128,900 33.15
Exercised (2,578,127) 21.70
Expired (4,125,258) 50.30
Forfeited (268,066) 37.06

Outstanding at September 26, 2008 25,465,020 $ 43.81 4.5 27

Vested and unvested expected to vest at
September 26, 2008 24,844,248 $ 43.97 4.5 27
Exercisable at September 26, 2008 21,185,069 45.13 3.8 27

        The conversion of Tyco International share option awards into Tyco Electronics share option awards at Separation was considered a
modification of an award in accordance with SFAS No. 123R. As a result, the Company compared the fair value of the award immediately prior
to the Separation to the fair value immediately after the Separation to measure incremental compensation cost. The conversion resulted in an
increase in the fair value of the awards of $13 million. Of that amount, the Company recorded non-cash compensation expense of $1 million and
$11 million in selling, general, and administrative and separation costs in the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Operations for fiscal
2008 and 2007, respectively. The remaining $1 million of modification expense will be recorded through 2011.

        As of fiscal year end 2008, there was $35 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested Tyco Electronics share
options granted under Tyco Electronics share option plans. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.0 years.

Share-Based Compensation

        Effective October 1, 2005, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective transition method. As a
result, the Company's results from continuing operations for fiscal 2006 include incremental share-based compensation expense of $40 million.
Share-based compensation cost during fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 totaled $62 million, $100 million, and $69 million, respectively, of which
$58 million, $93 million, and $64 million, respectively, have been included in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations within
selling, general, and administrative expenses and separation costs. Share-based compensation expense of $4 million, $7 million, and $5 million,
respectively, has been included in the Consolidated and Combined Statements of Operations within income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of tax for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006. The Company has recognized a related tax benefit associated with its share-based compensation
arrangements of $17 million, $27 million, and $19 million in fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Share Plans (Continued)

        The grant-date fair value of each option grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model. The fair value is then
amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period. Use of a valuation
model requires management to make certain assumptions with respect to selected model inputs. Expected share price volatility was calculated
based on the historical volatility of the stock of a composite of peers of Tyco Electronics and implied volatility derived from exchange traded
options on that same composite of peers. The average expected life was based on the contractual term of the option and expected employee
exercise and post-vesting employment termination behavior. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a
remaining term equal to the expected life assumed at the date of grant. The expected annual dividend per share was based on Tyco Electronics'
expected dividend rate. The compensation expense recognized is net of estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures are estimated based on voluntary
termination behavior, as well as an analysis of actual option forfeitures.

        The weighted-average grant-date fair value of Tyco Electronics options granted during fiscal 2008 and post-Separation fiscal 2007 and the
weighted-average assumptions Tyco Electronics used in the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model for fiscal 2008 and post-Separation
fiscal 2007 were as follows:

Fiscal

2008 2007
Weighted-average grant-date fair value $8.87 $12.34
Assumptions:
Expected share price volatility 30% 30%
Risk free interest rate 3.2% 4.9%
Expected annual dividend per share $0.59 $ 0.56
Expected life of options (years) 5.0 5.2

        The weighted-average grant-date fair values of Tyco International options granted to Tyco Electronics employees during pre-Separation
fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 and the weighted-average assumptions Tyco International used in the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model for
pre-Separation fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 were as follows:

Fiscal

2007 2006
Weighted-average grant-date fair value $9.52 $8.96
Assumptions:
Expected share price volatility 32% 34%
Risk free interest rate 4.3% 4.3%
Expected annual dividend per share $0.64 $0.40
Expected life of options (years) 4.9 4.0

        The total intrinsic value of Tyco Electronics options exercised during fiscal 2008 and post-Separation fiscal 2007 were $39 million and
$7 million, respectively. The total cash received by the Company related to the exercise of options totaled $54 million and $13 million in fiscal
2008 and post-Separation fiscal 2007, respectively. The related excess cash tax benefit classified as a financing
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Share Plans (Continued)

cash inflow for fiscal 2008 and 2007 in the Consolidated and Combined Statement of Cash Flows was not significant.

        The total intrinsic value of Tyco International options exercised by Tyco Electronics employees during pre-Separation fiscal 2007 and fiscal
2006 was $48 million and $22 million, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

        The Company also maintains employee stock purchase plans for the benefit of employees of certain qualified U.S. and non-U.S.
subsidiaries. The terms of these plans provide employees the right to purchase shares of the Company's stock at a stated price and receive certain
tax benefits. The significant plans are discussed below.

        Substantially all full-time employees of the Company's U.S. subsidiaries and employees of certain qualified non-U.S. subsidiaries are
eligible to participate in the Tyco Electronics Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESP Plan"). Eligible employees authorize payroll
deductions to be made for the purchase of shares. The Company matches a portion of the employee contribution by contributing an additional
15% of the employee's payroll deduction on the first $40,000 of payroll deductions. All shares purchased under the ESP Plan are purchased on
the open market by a designated broker. Participation in the ESP Plan began in December 2007. The Company incurred $1 million in matching
contribution expense in fiscal 2008.

        Substantially all full-time employees of the Company's United Kingdom subsidiaries are eligible to participate in the Tyco Electronics Ltd.
Savings Related Share Plan (the "UK SAYE Plan"). Under the UK SAYE Plan, eligible employees are granted options to purchase shares at the
end of three years of service at 85% of the market price at the time of grant. Options under the UK SAYE Plan are generally exercisable after a
period of three years and expire six months after the date of vesting. Participation in the UK SAYE Plan began in February 2008. As of fiscal
year end 2008, 123,818 unvested options are outstanding under the UK SAYE Plan; there are no vested options outstanding. Non-cash
compensation expense related to the UK SAYE Plan was not significant in fiscal 2008.

25. Consolidated and Combined Segment and Geographic Data

        The Company aggregates its operating segments into four reportable segments based upon the Company's internal business structure. See
Note 1 for a description of the segments in which the Company operates. Segment performance is evaluated based on net sales and operating
income. Generally, the Company considers all expenses to be of an operating nature, and, accordingly, allocates them to each reportable
segment. Costs specific to a segment are charged to the segment. Corporate expenses, such as headquarters administrative costs, are allocated to
the segments based on segment income from operations. Net litigation settlement costs and separation costs incurred in fiscal 2008 and 2007
were not allocated to the segments. Intersegment sales are not material and are recorded at selling prices that approximate market prices.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. Consolidated and Combined Segment and Geographic Data (Continued)

        Net sales and income from operations by business segment are presented in the following table for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006:

Net Sales Income from Operations

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Electronic Components $11,043 $10,111 $ 9,386 $1,287(1) $1,339 $1,404
Network Solutions 2,163 1,897 1,740 254 231 268
Undersea Telecommunications 1,165 565 300 160 38 15
Wireless Systems 463 386 385 67 39 55
Litigation settlement costs, net and
separation costs � � � (22) (931) �

Total $14,834 $12,959 $11,811 $1,746 $ 716 $1,742

(1)
Includes goodwill and long-lived asset impairments of $137 million in fiscal 2008. See Note 5 for additional information.

        No single customer accounted for more than 10% of net sales in fiscal 2008, 2007, or 2006.

        As the Company is not organized by product or service, it is not practicable to disclose net sales by product or service.

        Depreciation and amortization and capital expenditures for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

Depreciation and
Amortization Capital Expenditures

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Electronic Components $ 466 $ 436 $ 396 $ 529 $ 521 $ 462
Network Solutions 48 32 32 65 52 38
Undersea Telecommunications 26 22 15 14 288(1) 4
Wireless Systems 19 24 16 11 14 15

Total $ 559 $ 514 $ 459 $ 619 $ 875 $ 519

(1)
Includes $280 million related to the Company's exercise of its option to buy five cable-laying sea vessels in fiscal 2007. See Note 9 for additional
information.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. Consolidated and Combined Segment and Geographic Data (Continued)

        Segment assets and a reconciliation of segment assets to total assets at fiscal year end 2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

Segment Assets

Fiscal

2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

Electronic Components $ 3,665 $ 3,550 $ 3,320
Network Solutions 787 704 604
Undersea Telecommunications 304 155 57
Wireless Systems 282 234 202

Total segment assets(1) 5,038 4,643 4,183
Other current assets 2,057 5,353 2,503
Non-current assets 14,505 13,692 12,405

Total assets $21,600 $23,688 $19,091

(1)
Segment assets are comprised of accounts receivable and inventory.

        Net sales by geographic region for fiscal 2008, 2007, and 2006 and net property, plant, and equipment by geographic area at fiscal year end
2008, 2007, and 2006 were as follows:

Net Sales(1)
Property, Plant, and
Equipment, Net

Fiscal Fiscal

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
(in millions)

United States $ 4,619 $ 3,950 $ 3,730 $ 1,093 $ 1,109 $ 1,105
Other Americas 642 514 460 46 52 42
Europe/Middle East/Africa 5,515 4,816 4,264 1,405 1,325 1,166
Asia-Pacific 4,058 3,679 3,357 973 926 659

Total $14,834 $12,959 $11,811 $ 3,517 $ 3,412 $ 2,972

(1)
Net sales from external customers is attributed to individual countries based on the legal entity that records the sale.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

        Summarized quarterly financial data for the fiscal years ended September 26, 2008 and September 28, 2007 were as follows:

Fiscal 2008
First

Quarter(1)
Second

Quarter(2)
Third

Quarter(3)
Fourth

Quarter(4)

(in millions, except per share data)
Net sales $ 3,558 $ 3,662 $ 3,908 $ 3,706
Gross income 892 970 997 911
Income from continuing operations 868 302 317 107
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes 81 (1) 13 95
Net income 949 301 330 202
Basic earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations $ 1.75 $ 0.62 $ 0.66 $ 0.23
Income from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes 0.16 � 0.03 0.20
Net income 1.91 0.62 0.69 0.43

Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations $ 1.74 $ 0.62 $ 0.66 $ 0.23
Income from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes 0.16 � 0.02 0.20
Net income 1.90 0.62 0.68 0.43

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding:
Basic 496 486 478 470
Diluted 499 489 482 473

(1)
Income from continuing operations for the first quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $21 million of net restructuring and other charges and $592 million of
income pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement with Tyco International and Covidien. Net income for the first quarter of fiscal 2008 includes
$81 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.

(2)
Income from continuing operations for the second quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $23 million of litigation settlement costs, $25 million of net
restructuring and other charges, and $13 million of income pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement with Tyco International and Covidien.

(3)
Income from continuing operations for the third quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $16 million of net restructuring and other charges. Net income for the
third quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $13 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.

(4)
Income from continuing operations for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 includes $123 million of net restructuring and other charges, $137 million of
goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charges, $39 million of other expense related to the Tax Sharing Agreement with Tyco International and
Covidien, and $33 million of income tax benefit related to the analysis and reconciliation of tax accounts. Net income includes $95 million of income,
net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) (Continued)

Fiscal 2007
First

Quarter(1)
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter(2)

Fourth
Quarter(3)

(in millions, except per share data)
Net sales $ 2,975 $ 3,204 $ 3,292 $ 3,488
Gross income 787 832 837 883
Income (loss) from continuing operations 235 281 (933) 239
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes 46 (4) (435) 17
Net income (loss) 281 277 (1,368) 256
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.47 $ 0.57 $ (1.88) $ 0.48
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes 0.10 (0.01) (0.87) 0.04
Net income (loss) 0.57 0.56 (2.75) 0.52

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 0.47 $ 0.57 $ (1.88) $ 0.48
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income
taxes 0.10 (0.01) (0.87) 0.03
Net income (loss) 0.57 0.56 (2.75) 0.51

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding:(4)
Basic 497 497 497 496
Diluted 497 497 497 500

(1)
Net income for the first quarter of fiscal 2007 includes $46 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.

(2)
Loss from continuing operations for the third quarter of fiscal 2007 includes $891 million of net litigation settlement costs, $25 million of separation
costs, $25 million of net restructuring and other charges, and $232 million of allocated loss on retirement of debt. Net loss includes a $435 million loss,
net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.

(3)
Income from continuing operations for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 includes $19 million of separation costs, $50 million of net restructuring and
other charges, and $13 million of other income related to the accretion of interest on certain contingent tax liabilities relating to unresolved tax matters
of legacy Tyco International. Net loss includes $17 million of income, net of income taxes, from discontinued operations.

(4)
At Separation, on June 29, 2007, the Company had 497 million common shares outstanding. The same number of shares is being used for both diluted
earnings per share and basic earnings per share for all periods prior to the date of Separation as no Tyco Electronics equity awards were outstanding
prior to the Separation. The computation of diluted loss per share excludes non-vested restricted shares and share options of 4 million for the quarter
ending June 29, 2007 as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A.

        In December 2006, prior to the Separation, TEGSA, a 100% owned subsidiary of Tyco Electronics Ltd., was formed. TEGSA, a
Luxembourg company, is a holding company that owns directly, or indirectly, all of the operating subsidiaries of Tyco Electronics Ltd. TEGSA
is the obligor under the Company's senior notes, five-year unsecured senior revolving credit facility, and commercial paper all of which are fully
and unconditionally guaranteed by its parent, Tyco Electronics Ltd. The following tables present condensed consolidating financial information
for Tyco Electronics Ltd., TEGSA, and all other subsidiaries that are not providing a guarantee of debt but which represent assets of TEGSA,
using the equity method.

 Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 26, 2008

Tyco
Electronics Ltd.

Tyco
Electronics
Group S.A.

Other
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments Total

(in millions)
Net sales $ � $ � $ 14,834 $ � $14,834
Cost of sales � � 11,064 � 11,064

Gross income � � 3,770 � 3,770
Selling, general, and administrative
expenses 41 10 1,629 � 1,680
Litigation settlement, net 22 � � � 22
Restructuring and other charges, net � � 185 � 185
Impairment of goodwill and
long-lived assets � � 137 � 137

Income (loss) from operations (63) (10) 1,819 � 1,746
Interest income � � 32 � 32
Interest expense � (180) (8) � (188)
Other income, net � � 567 � 567
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 1,682 1,788 � (3,470) �
Equity in net income of subsidiaries
of discontinued operations 188 188 � (376) �
Intercompany interest and fees (25) 84 (59) � �

Income from continuing
operations before income taxes
and minority interest 1,782 1,870 2,351 (3,846) 2,157

Income taxes � � (558) � (558)
Minority interest � � (5) � (5)

Income from continuing
operations 1,782 1,870 1,788 (3,846) 1,594

Income from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes � � 188 � 188

Net income $ 1,782 $ 1,870 $ 1,976 $ (3,846) $ 1,782
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

 Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2007

Tyco
Electronics Ltd.

Tyco
Electronics
Group S.A.

Other
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments Total

(in millions)
Net sales $ � $ � $ 12,959 $ � $12,959
Cost of sales � � 9,620 � 9,620

Gross income � � 3,339 � 3,339
Selling, general, and administrative
expenses 27 (34) 1,607 � 1,600
Litigation settlement, net 887 � � � 887
Separation costs � � 44 � 44
Restructuring and other charges, net � � 92 � 92

Income (loss) from operations (914) 34 1,596 � 716
Interest income � 11 42 � 53
Interest expense � (105) (126) � (231)
Other (expense) income, net � (232) 13 � (219)
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 736 921 � (1,657) �
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries of
discontinued operations (376) (376) � 752 �
Intercompany interest and fees � 107 (107) � �

Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes
and minority interest (554) 360 1,418 (905) 319

Income taxes � � (491) � (491)
Minority interest � � (6) � (6)

Income (loss) from continuing
operations (554) 360 921 (905) (178)

Loss from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes � � (376) � (376)

Net income (loss) $ (554) $ 360 $ 545 $ (905) $ (554)
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

 Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 29, 2006

Tyco
Electronics Ltd.

Other
Subsidiaries Total

(in millions)
Net sales $ � $ 11,811 $11,811
Cost of sales � 8,617 8,617

Gross income � 3,194 3,194
Selling, general, and administrative expenses � 1,445 1,445
Restructuring and other charges, net � 7 7

Income from operations � 1,742 1,742
Interest income � 48 48
Interest expense � (256) (256)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
and minority interest � 1,534 1,534

Income taxes � (81) (81)
Minority interest � (6) (6)

Income from continuing operations � 1,447 1,447
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes � (246) (246)

Income before cumulative effect of accounting change � 1,201 1,201
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes � (8) (8)

Net income $ � $ 1,193 $ 1,193
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

 Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of September 26, 2008

Tyco
Electronics

Ltd.

Tyco
Electronics
Group S.A.

Other
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments Total

(in millions)
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ � $ � $ 1,086 $ � $ 1,086
Accounts receivable, net � � 2,726 � 2,726
Inventories � � 2,312 � 2,312
Intercompany receivables 1 � 23 (24) �
Prepaid expenses and other current
assets 2 86 679 � 767
Deferred income taxes � � 204 � 204

Total current assets 3 86 7,030 (24) 7,095
Property, plant, and equipment, net � � 3,517 � 3,517
Goodwill � � 7,068 � 7,068
Intangible assets, net � � 486 � 486
Deferred income taxes � � 1,915 � 1,915
Investment in subsidiaries 11,069 12,957 � (24,026) �
Intercompany loans receivable 167 6,551 5,500 (12,218) �
Receivable from Tyco
International Ltd. and Covidien Ltd. � � 1,218 � 1,218
Other assets � 21 280 � 301

Total Assets $ 11,239 $ 19,615 $ 27,014 $ (36,268) $21,600

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ � $ � $ 20 $ � $ 20
Accounts payable 27 � 1,442 � 1,469
Accrued and other current liabilities 83 81 1,432 � 1,596
Deferred revenue � � 247 � 247
Intercompany payables 23 � 1 (24) �

Total current liabilities 133 81 3,142 (24) 3,332
Long-term debt � 2,998 163 � 3,161
Intercompany loans payable 33 5,467 6,718 (12,218) �
Long-term pension and postretirement
liabilities � � 721 � 721
Deferred income taxes � � 289 � 289
Income taxes � � 2,291 � 2,291
Other liabilities � � 723 � 723

Total Liabilities 166 8,546 14,047 (12,242) 10,517

Minority interest � � 10 � 10
Equity 11,073 11,069 12,957 (24,026) 11,073
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Total Liabilities and
Shareholders' Equity $ 11,239 $ 19,615 $ 27,014 $ (36,268) $21,600
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

 Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of September 28, 2007

Tyco
Electronics

Ltd.

Tyco
Electronics
Group S.A.

Other
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments Total

(in millions)
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2 $ � $ 940 $ � $ 942
Accounts receivable, net � � 2,594 � 2,594
Inventories � � 2,049 � 2,049
Class action settlement escrow 928 � � � 928
Class action settlement receivable 2,064 � � � 2,064
Intercompany receivables 181 29 (84) (126) �
Prepaid expenses and other current
assets (2) � 591 � 589
Deferred income taxes � � 325 � 325
Assets of discontinued operations � � 505 � 505

Total current assets 3,173 29 6,920 (126) 9,996
Property, plant, and equipment, net � � 3,412 � 3,412
Goodwill � � 7,177 � 7,177
Intangible assets, net � � 526 � 526
Deferred income taxes � � 1,397 � 1,397
Investment in subsidiaries 11,136 13,329 � (24,465) �
Investment in subsidiaries of
discontinued operations 239 239 � (478) �
Intercompany loans receivable � 6,267 5,024 (11,291) �
Receivable from Tyco
International Ltd. and Covidien Ltd. � � 844 � 844
Other assets � 2 334 � 336

Total Assets $ 14,548 $ 19,866 $ 25,634 $ (36,360) $23,688

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ � $ � $ 5 $ � $ 5
Accounts payable 1 � 1,342 � 1,343
Class action settlement liability 2,992 � � � 2,992
Accrued and other current liabilities 61 3 1,353 � 1,417
Deferred revenue � � 181 � 181
Intercompany payables 29 181 (172) (38) �
Liabilities of discontinued
operations � � 266 � 266

Total current liabilities 3,083 184 2,975 (38) 6,204
Long-term debt � 3,283 90 � 3,373
Intercompany loans payable 88 5,024 6,267 (11,379) �
Long-term pension and postretirement
liabilities � � 607 � 607
Deferred income taxes � � 271 � 271
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Income taxes � � 1,242 � 1,242
Other liabilities � � 599 � 599

Total Liabilities 3,171 8,491 12,051 (11,417) 12,296

Minority interest � � 15 � 15
Equity 11,377 11,375 13,568 (24,943) 11,377

Total Liabilities and
Shareholders' Equity $ 14,548 $ 19,866 $ 25,634 $ (36,360) $23,688
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27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

 Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 26, 2008

Tyco
Electronics

Ltd.

Tyco
Electronics
Group S.A.

Other
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments Total

(in millions)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing
operating activities $ (649) $ (38) $ 1,701 $ � $ 1,014
Net cash used in discontinued operating
activities � � (25) � (25)

Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities (649) (38) 1,676 � 989

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures � � (619) � (619)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and
equipment � � 42 � 42
Acquisition of business, net of cash
acquired � � (3) � (3)
Purchase accounting and holdback/earn-out
liabilities � � (2) � (2)
Class action settlement escrow 936 � � � 936
Proceeds from divestiture of discontinued
operations, net of cash retained by business
sold � � 571 � 571
Decrease in intercompany loans (222) 159 � 63 �
Other (8) � (16) � (24)

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing
investing activities 706 159 (27) 63 901
Net cash used in discontinued investing
activities � � (6) � (6)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities 706 159 (33) 63 895

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Net increase in commercial paper � 630 � � 630
Proceeds from long-term debt � 800 100 � 900
Repayment of long-term debt � (1,750) (1) � (1,751)
Changes in parent company equity 1,398 199 (1,597) � �
Repurchase of common shares (1,242) � � � (1,242)
Payment of common dividends (271) � � � (271)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 54 � � � 54
Transfer to discontinued operations � � (80) � (80)
Loan borrowing from parent � � 63 (63) �
Minority interest distributions paid � � (11) � (11)
Other 2 � (3) � (1)

Net cash used in continuing financing
activities (59) (121) (1,529) (63) (1,772)
Net cash provided by discontinued
financing activities � � 33 � 33

Edgar Filing: Tyco Electronics Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

224



Net cash used in financing activities (59) (121) (1,496) (63) (1,739)

Effect of currency translation on cash � � 1 � 1
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents (2) � 148 � 146
Less: net increase in cash and cash
equivalents related to discontinued
operations � � (2) � (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of fiscal year 2 � 940 � 942

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal
year $ � $ � $ 1,086 $ � $ 1,086
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

 Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 28, 2007

Tyco
Electronics

Ltd.

Tyco
Electronics
Group S.A.

Other
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments Total

(in millions)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing
operating activities $ (74) $ (264) $ 1,846 $ � $ 1,508
Net cash provided by discontinued
operating activities � � 17 � 17

Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities (74) (264) 1,863 � 1,525

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures � � (875) � (875)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and
equipment � � 41 � 41
Purchase accounting and holdback/earn-out
liabilities � � (4) � (4)
Class action settlement escrow (928) � � � (928)
Proceeds from divestiture of discontinued
operation, net of cash retained by business
sold � � 227 � 227
Decrease in intercompany loans � 2,011 � (2,011) �
Other � � 1 � 1

Net cash (used in) provided by continuing
investing activities (928) 2,011 (610) (2,011) (1,538)
Net cash provided by discontinued
investing activities � � 10 � 10

Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities (928) 2,011 (600) (2,011) (1,528)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt � 5,676 � � 5,676
Repayment of long-term debt � (2,393) (62) � (2,455)
Allocated debt activity � (3,743) � � (3,743)
Net transactions with former parent 875 (2,956) 3,193 � 1,112
Changes in parent company equity 129 1,669 (1,798) � �
Proceeds from exercise of share options 13 � � � 13
Transfers to discontinued operations � � (134) � (134)
Loan borrowing from parent � � (2,011) 2,011 �
Minority interest distributions paid � � (7) � (7)
Other (13) � 5 � (8)

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing
financing activities 1,004 (1,747) (814) 2,011 454
Net cash used in discontinued financing
activities � � (23) � (23)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities 1,004 (1,747) (837) 2,011 431
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Effect of currency translation on cash � � 46 � 46
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2 � 472 � 474
Less: net increase in cash and cash
equivalents related to discontinued
operations � � (4) � (4)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of fiscal year � � 472 � 472

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal
year $ 2 $ � $ 940 $ � $ 942
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED AND COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27. Tyco Electronics Group S.A. (Continued)

 Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 29, 2006

Tyco
Electronics Ltd.

Other
Subsidiaries Total

(in millions)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net cash provided by continuing operating activities $ � $ 1,624 $1,624
Net cash provided by discontinued operating activities � 39 39

Net cash provided by operating activities � 1,663 1,663

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures � (519) (519)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment � 6 6
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired � (23) (23)
Purchase accounting and holdback/earn-out liabilities � (4) (4)
Other � 27 27

Net cash used in continuing investing activities � (513) (513)
Net cash used in discontinued investing activities � (126) (126)

Net cash used in investing activities � (639) (639)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Repayment of long-term debt � (113) (113)
Allocated debt activity � (713) (713)
Net transactions with former parent � (74) (74)
Transfers from discontinued operations � (7) (7)
Minority interest distributions paid � (12) (12)
Other � (4) (4)

Net cash used in continuing financing activities � (923) (923)
Net cash provided by discontinued financing activities � 95 95

Net cash used in financing activities � (828) (828)

Effect of currency translation on cash � (1) (1)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents � 195 195
Less: net increase in cash and cash equivalents related to
discontinued operations � (8) (8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year � 285 285

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year $ � $ 472 $ 472
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TYCO ELECTRONICS LTD.

SCHEDULE II�VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Fiscal Years Ended September 26, 2008, September 28, 2007, and September 29, 2006

Description

Balance at
Beginning of

Year

Additions
Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

Acquisitions,
Divestitures
and Other Deductions

Balance
at

End of
Year

(in millions)
Fiscal 2008
Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts Receivable $ 57 $ 5 $ � $ (20) $ 42

Fiscal 2007
Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts Receivable 56 9 4 (12) 57

Fiscal 2006
Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts Receivable 67 1 1 (13) 56
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